FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
Marco’s Franchising, LLC
An Ohio Limited Liability Company
5252 Monroe Street
Toledo, Ohio 43623
800.262.7267
www.marcos.com
http://www.facebook.com/MarcosPizza
http://i.instagram.com/marcospizza/
http://twitter.com/marcospizza
https://www.pinterest.com/marcospizza
https://www.youtube.com/user/marcospizzallc

You will operate a Marco’s Pizza® Store featuring the sale of various sizes and recipes of pizza
for dine in, carryout and delivery and soft drinks. Stores also sell, to a much lesser extent,
secondary products such as chicken wings, salads, CheezyBread, and sandwiches. Depending
on your situation, you may not be required to sell these secondary products.
The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Store ranges from $221,592 to $421,592
for a Store with limited seating, and from $262,092 to $546,592 for a Store with expanded seating.
This includes $55,000 that must be paid to the franchisor or an affiliate.
The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Special Venue Store ranges from
$150,592 to $404,592. This includes the $10,000 to $35,000 that must be paid to the franchisor
or an affiliate.
If you sign a Development Agreement, you will pay us a development fee in the amount of $5,000
for each Store that you agree to develop under that agreement, which will be credited toward your
initial franchise fees, as described in this disclosure document.
This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements
carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign
a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection
with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified
the information contained in this document.
You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for
you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Debbie Allen, our
Director of Corporate Compliance, at 5252 Monroe Street, Toledo, Ohio 43623 (800.262.7267).
The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your
contract and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.
Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help
you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying
a Franchise¸” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available
from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing
to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the
FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your
public library for other sources of information on franchising.
There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.
Issuance Date: April 14, 201513, 2016
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STATE COVER PAGE
Your state may have a franchise law that requires a franchisor to register or file with a state
franchise administrator before offering or selling in your state. REGISTRATION OF A
FRANCHISE BY A STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE STATE RECOMMENDS THE
FRANCHISE OR HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.
Call the state franchise administrator in Exhibit A for information about the franchisor or about
franchising in your state.
MANY FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS DO NOT ALLOW YOU TO RENEW UNCONDITIONALLY
AFTER THE INITIAL TERM EXPIRES. YOU MAY HAVE TO SIGN A NEW AGREEMENT WITH
DIFFERENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN ORDER TO CONTINUE TO OPERATE YOUR
BUSINESS. BEFORE YOU BUY, CONSIDER WHAT RIGHTS YOU HAVE TO RENEW YOUR
FRANCHISE, IF ANY, AND WHAT TERMS YOU MIGHT HAVE TO ACCEPT IN ORDER TO
RENEW.
Please consider the following RISK FACTORS before you buy this franchise:
1.

THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRES YOU TO RESOLVE DISPUTES WITH
US BY ARBITRATION AND LITIGATION ONLY IN OHIO. OUT-OF-STATE
ARBITRATION OR LITIGATION MAY FORCE YOU TO ACCEPT A LESS FAVORABLE
SETTLEMENT FOR DISPUTES. IT MAY ALSO COST YOU MORE TO ARBITRATE
OR LITIGATE WITH US IN OHIO THAN IN YOUR OWN STATE.

2.

THE FRANCHISE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS STATE THAT OHIO LAW
GOVERNS THE AGREEMENTS, AND THIS LAW MAY NOT PROVIDE THE SAME
PROTECTIONS AND BENEFITS AS LOCAL LAW. YOU MAY WANT TO COMPARE
THESE LAWS.

3.

THE FRANCHISOR WILL TAKE A SECURITY INTEREST IN ALL OF THE ASSETS
OF THE FRANCHISED STORE TO SECURE PAYMENT OF ALL FEES OWED BY
THE FRANCHISEE TO THE FRANCHISOR AND AFFILIATES.

4.

THERE MAY BE OTHER RISKS CONCERNING THIS FRANCHISE.

We use the services of one or more FRANCHISE BROKERS or referral sources to assist
us in selling our franchise. A franchise broker or referral source represents us, not you.
We pay this person a fee for selling our franchise or referring you to us. You should be
sure to do your own investigation on the franchise.
Effective Date: See the next page for state effective dates.

MARCO’S PIZZA®
Franchise Disclosure Document ǀ 20152016

STATE EFFECTIVE DATES
The following states require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with
the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan,
Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and
Wisconsin.
This Franchise Disclosure Document is registered, on file or exempt from registration in the
following states having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective
dates:
STATES

EFFECTIVE DATE

California

April 14, 201513, 2016

Illinois
Indiana

April 14, 201513, 2016

Maryland
Michigan

April 14, 201513, 2016

Minnesota
New York
North Dakota
South Dakota
Virginia
Washington
Wisconsin

April 14, 2016

In all other states, the effective date of this disclosure document is the issuance date of April 14,
2015.
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MICHIGAN NOTICE
The State of Michigan prohibits certain unfair provisions that are sometimes in franchise
documents. If any of the following provisions are in these franchise documents, the provisions
are void and cannot be enforced against you:
(a)

A prohibition against you joining an association of franchisees.

(b)
A requirement that you assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel
which would deprive you of rights and protections provided under the Michigan Franchise
Investment Law. This does not preclude you, after entering into a franchise agreement, from
settling any and all claims.
(c)
A provision that permits the franchisor to terminate your franchise prior to the expiration
of its term except for good cause. Good cause includes your failure to comply with any lawful
provision of the Franchise Agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice
thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such
failure.
(d)
A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew your franchise without fairly
compensating you by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration,
of your inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings. Personalized materials which
have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not
reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation.
This provision applies only if:
(i)

The term of the franchise is less than five years; and

(ii)
You are prohibited by the Franchise Agreement or other agreement from
continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark,
trade name, logotype, advertising or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to
the expiration of the franchise or if you do not receive at least six months advance notice of the
franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.
(e)
A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew the franchise on terms generally
available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This
provision does not require a renewal provision in the Franchise Agreement or other agreement.
(f)
A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside of Michigan. This
does not preclude you from entering into an agreement, at the time of the arbitration, to conduct
arbitration at a location outside of Michigan.
(g)
A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of the
franchise, except for good cause. This provision does not prevent the franchisor from exercising
a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause includes, but is not limited to:
(i)
The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then-current
reasonably qualifications or standards.
(ii)

The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor.

(iii)
The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all
lawful obligations.
(iv)
The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the
franchisor or to cure any default in the Franchise Agreement existing at the time of the proposed
transfer.
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(h)
A provision that requires you to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified
with the franchisor. This does not prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor a right of first
refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide
third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does it prohibit a provision that grants
the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of
such assets if you have breached the lawful provisions of the Franchise Agreement and have
failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in (c), above.
(i)
A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to you unless provision has been
made for providing the required contractual services.
The fact that there is a notice of this offering on file with the Attorney General does not constitute
approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the Attorney General.
Any questions concerning this notice should be directed to the Michigan Department of Attorney
General, Consumer Protection Division, Franchise Unit, 525 W. Ottawa Street, G. Mennen
Williams Building, 1st Floor, Lansing, Michigan 48913, (517) 373-7117.
NOTE: NOTWITHSTANDING PARAGRAPH (F) ABOVE, WE INTEND TO, AND YOU AGREE
THAT WE AND YOU WILL, ENFORCE FULLY THE PROVISIONS OF THE ARBITRATION
SECTION OF OUR AGREEMENTS. WE BELIEVE THAT PARAGRAPH (F) IS PREEMPTED
BY THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT, AND THEREFORE THAT PARAGRAPH (F) IS
UNCONSTITUTIONAL AND CANNOT PRECLUDE US FROM ENFORCING THE
ARBITRATION PROVISIONS.
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ITEM 1
THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENT, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES
To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, (“Marco’s”, “us”, “our” or “we”) means
Marco’s Franchising, LLC, the franchisor. “You” means the person or legal entity who buys the
franchise. If you are a corporation, partnership, or limited liability company, certain provisions of
this Disclosure Document also apply to your owners and will be noted.
We are an Ohio limited liability company. We maintain our principal place of business at 5252
Monroe Street, Toledo, Ohio 43623. We do not maintain sales offices at any location other than
our principal place of business. We do business under the names Marco’s® and “Marco’s Pizza®.
We engage in only 2two lines of business: (1) the offering of Marco’s Pizza Stores through the
Franchise Agreement and the Development Agreement (described below); and (2) the offering of
Area Representative Businesses (described below). This disclosure document contains
information for the offer of Store franchises, and the terms of the Franchise Agreement and
Development Agreement. Information about our area representative program is contained in a
different disclosure document.
We have offered franchises for Stores since January 2004. We have offered franchises for Area
Representative Businesses since 2006, but not in all states. We do not currently offer franchises
in any other line of business; however until January, 2011 we offered Hot2Go franchises that were
very limited menu pizza stores. We do not own or operate any Stores, but our affiliates own and
operate 33 Stores as described below and in Item 20..
We do not own or operate any Stores, but our affiliates operate 25 Stores in Columbus, Cleveland,
Dayton, Toledo, and Rossford, Ohio, and 8 stores in the Indianapolis, Indiana, area.
A list of our agents for service of process is attached as Exhibit B to this Disclosure Document.
Our Parent, Predecessors, Affiliates and History of Operations
We have no parent company. On January 12, 2004, we, and no predecessor from whom we’ve
acquired, directly or indirectly, the principalmajor portion of our assets from its founder,in the last
10 years.
We were founded by Pasquale Giammarco (the “Founder”). Those assets included the
trademarks, operational processes, existing franchise agreements and all rights to franchise
Marco’s Pizza Stores. Our Founder”), who sold 118 Marco’s Pizza franchises from January 1979
until January 2004 which were transferred to us as the franchisor at that time.
The Founder, and who currently operates 16 Stores in Ohio. The Founder also owns the right to
develop additional Stores in: (a) Lucas County, Ohio (and within 7 miles of Lucas County); (b) a
portion of Lorain County, Ohio; and (c) Collier County, Florida (and within 10 miles of Collier
County). The Founder currently operates 1one Store in Collier County, Florida. The Founder is
located in the same office building at 5252 Monroe Street, 1st Floor, Toledo, Ohio 43623, but
does not share office space with us.
Marco’s Franchise Services, LLC (“MFS”) is our designated broker for the sale of franchises and
certain support services to our franchisees. We retain the right to sell franchises but intend that
all new franchise applicants will be recommended by MFS. MFS is managed by MP Management
#2, LLC which is managed and controlled by John A. Butorac, Jr., our CEO. Certain MFS
employees (directed by Bryon Stephens and Cameron Cummins) organize and perform the
franchise sales functions of MFS. MFS is paid a share of the Initial Franchise Fee and royalty
fees for those services.
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MFS Realty, LLC is a wholly owned subsidiary of MFS and previously provided real estate lease
support services to MFS. MFS Leasing, LLC is a majority owned subsidiary of MFS. MFS Leasing
previously provided Marco’s Pizza store leasing services to Area Representatives and
Franchisees.
Our affiliates listed below operate “Marco’s Pizza” Stores:


Authentic Pizza, LLC, formed in December 2004, owns 18 “Marco’s Pizza” Stores
operating in the greater Cleveland, Ohio area. Cleveland Marco’s, LLC owns 10% of
Authentic Pizza, LLC.



45 Pizza, LLC, formed in June 2004, operates 2 “Marco’s Pizza” Stores in the greater
Toledo, Ohio area.



Marco’s Indiana, LLC, formed in April 2005, operates 5 “Marco’s Pizza” Stores in the
greater Indianapolis, Indiana, area.



Cleveland Marco’s, LLC; formed in August 2003, owns 8 “Marco’s Pizza” Stores, 5 of
which are in Cleveland, one in Rossford, Ohio, two in Dayton, Ohio, and 2 in the
Columbus, OH market.

Marco’s Assurance, LLC, (“MA”) is a wholly owned subsidiary formed in March 2009 and
previously offered limited guarantees on loans, leases, and other forms of financing on certain
select financing programs sponsored by us. These limited guarantees are the obligation of
Marco’s Assurance (MA) our subsidiary, and not of us.
Marco’s Pizza Distribution, LLC (“MPD”) is affiliated with us by virtue of common ownership but
we do not own any part of the company. MPD was formed on March 23, 2009, to distribute food,
packaging, equipment, and cleaning and maintenance supplies to Marco’s Pizza stores in the
Ohio, Michigan and Indiana area. Certain of our executives, including our CEO, John Butorac
also serve in executive roles with MPD. MPD is headquartered at 1435B Holland Rd., Maumee,
Ohio 43537.
MP Marks, LLC (“MP MARKS”), a Delaware limited liability company, is our affiliate by virtue of
common ownership and was formed on November 12, 2015. MP MARKS maintains its principal
place of business at 6597 Nicholas Blvd, Cap Ferrat, PH 11, Naples, Florida 34108. On
December 28, 2015, MP MARKS acquired all ownership and rights to intellectual property held
by Marco’s, and each of the domestic and international registrations for our trademarks, service
marks, logos, trade names, and associated goodwill. By agreement between MP MARKS and
Marco’s, MP MARKS licenses those trademarks, service marks, trade names and logos to us for
use in the Marco’s Pizza system, which we further license to you and other franchisees.
All of our affiliates are organized in Ohio, and with the exception of MPD and MP MARKS, are
based at 5252 Monroe Street, Toledo, Ohio 43623. None of our affiliates have ever offered
franchises for sale.
Except as described above, neither we, nor our predecessor, nor any affiliate of either of ours,
has ever engaged in, or offered franchises in, any other lines of business.
The Franchise Offered
Marco’s Pizza Stores are characterized by our system (the “System”). Some of the features of
the System include specially-developed equipment, equipment layouts, signage, distinctive
interior and exterior design and accessories; products; procedures for operations; quality and
uniformity of products and services offered; procedures for management and inventory control;
training and assistance; and advertising and promotional programs. We may periodically change
and improve the System to conform to our needs and business goals.
MARCO’S PIZZA®
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Marco’s Pizza Stores operate in a building that bears our trade dress (interior, exterior, or both).
A Marco’s Pizza Store makes and sells various sizes and recipes of pizza for carryout, delivery,
in-store dining, and catering. Stores also sell, to a much lesser extent, secondary products such
as soft drinks, salads, CheezyBread, hot and cold sandwiches, and chicken wings, (together, all
of these items are referred to as the “Approved Products and Services”). Depending on your
situation, you may not be required to sell these secondary products (for example, if the landlord
does not permit you to offer the entire range of Approved Products and Services; we will work
with you to make mutually-acceptable adaptations to your list of offerings). Stores are required
to offer both customer pick-up, delivery service, catering and may be authorized to offer fast
casual type dine-in services.
We offer franchises for MARCO’S PIZZA stores (each a “Store”) at agreed-upon locations. We
offer franchises for three types of Stores:
 “Stores – Limited Seating” are stores with limited or no seating for consumption of products
on the premises. Limited Seating Stores typically occupy 1,200 to 1,600 square feet of
commercial space and seat 12 or fewer people;
 “Stores – Expanded Seating” are stores with a certain amount of designated area(s) for
seating and consumption of products on the premises. Expanded Seating Stores typically
occupy 1,600 to 2,500 square feet of commercial space and seat 20 or more people; and
 “Special Venue Stores” are stores located in “captive markets,” which include nonfoodservice businesses of any sort within which a MARCO’S PIZZA Store or branded
facility is established and operated, including, for example, hotels and resorts (where the
Store is enclosed within the confines of a hotel or resort structure); airports and other travel
facilities; federal, state, or local government facilities (including military bases); theme and
amusement parks; recreational facilities; colleges and other academic facilities; seasonal
facilities; shopping malls; theaters; train stations; toll roads; hospitals; cafeterias; snack
bars; truck stops; casinos; department stores; supermarkets; gasoline convenience
stores; and sporting event arenas and centers; and retail restaurant locations being sublet
under a lease to a master concessionaire. Special Venue Stores are required to offer
customer pick-up, and may be authorized to offer fast casual type dine-in services. Special
Venue Stores do not provide delivery services.
Unless otherwise designated in this FDD, the term Store will refer to all three types of stores. We
offer Franchise Agreements and Development Agreements, which are described below.
You must operate your Store in accordance with our standards and procedures, which we will
provide in printed or digital format materials, including our Confidential Operating Manuals (the
“Manual”). We will lend you a copy of the Manual for the duration of the Franchise Agreement.
In addition, we will grant you the right to use our marks, including the mark “Marco’s Pizza” and
any other trade names and marks that we designate in writing for use with the System (the
“Marks”).
Stores are operated from an indoor structure that need not be free-standing, but varies in size
based on the type of Store the franchisee chooses to operate. Each Store is designed and
decorated to meet our operational and image specifications (including the use of our trade dress,
trademark, and design).
Franchise Agreement. We offer qualified persons and legal entities that wish to establish and
operate a Store (a “Franchisee”) the right to enter into a franchise agreement (“Franchise
Agreement”). Under a Franchise Agreement, we will grant you the right to operate a Store at an
agreed-upon location (the “Permitted Location”), and you will accept the obligation to operate that
Store in full compliance under the terms of the Franchise Agreement. Our current form of
MARCO’S PIZZA®
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Franchise Agreement is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit E.
Development Agreement. We offer to qualified persons and legal entities (a “Developer”) the right
to develop an agreed-upon number of Stores within a specific geographic area (“Development
Area”) under our Development Agreement (the “Development Agreement”).
Under a
Development Agreement, you will be required to establish an agreed-upon number of Stores
within the Development Area, at specific locations (to be specified in separate Franchise
Agreements) as explained below. An important part of the Development Agreement is a
development schedule (also called a “Development Schedule”), which spells out the number of
Stores that you must have open and operating by certain established dates. Our current form of
Development Agreement is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit D.
Area Representative Business. We also offer “Area Representative” franchised businesses that
will solicit, screen, and evaluate prospective franchisees, and train, support and service
franchisees who have entered into a Franchise Agreement with us. The Area Representative
businesses are offered under a separate Franchise Disclosure Document. Area Representatives
provide training and assistance to our franchisees in some areas of the country.
Competition
Stores compete with locally-owned businesses, as well as with national and regional chains that
offer pizza carryout and delivery services and related products, and which may compete with the
products offered at a Store. Pizza restaurants compete aggressively based on many factors,
such as price, service, store location, product quality, and store promotions and marketing
programs. These businesses are often affected by other factors as well, such as changes in
consumer taste, economic conditions, seasonal population fluctuation, and travel patterns.
Industry-Specific Regulations
We know of no trade or license regulations that specifically affect only the pizza industry, apart
from other segments of the food service industry. However, you will be required to comply with
the FDA’s final rule for nutrition labeling in chain restaurants regarding the posting of calorie
information for the Marco’s pizza and other food items on menus, menu boards, and for online
ordering as well. You also must comply with all local, state, and federal laws that apply to your
Restaurant operations, including for example health, sanitation, no-smoking, EEOC, OSHA,
discrimination, employment, and sexual harassment laws. The Americans with Disability Act of
1990 requires readily accessible accommodation for disabled persons and therefore may affect
your building construction, site elements, entrance ramps, doors, seating, bathrooms, drinking
facilities, etc. For example, you must obtain real estate permits (e.g., zoning), real estate licenses,
and operational licenses. There are also regulations that pertain to sanitation, menu labeling
requirements, food preparation, food handling, and food service. Employees may need foodhandler licenses. Many municipalities regulate the use of restaurant grease traps for cooking and
require special sewer hook-ups for restaurants. Regulations vary widely from place to place and
you will have to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations in
connection with the operation of your restaurant. You should consult with your attorney
concerning those and other local laws and ordinances that may affect your restaurant’s operation.
ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE
Manager and Chief Executive Officer (CEO): John A. Butorac, Jr.
John Butorac, Jr., has been our Chief Executive Officer since April, 2014, and previously served
as our President from January 2004 to April, 2014. He is also our sole “manager”, as that term is
used in the Ohio limited liability company statutes. Mr. Butorac served as a consultant to MI from
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May 2002 until January 2004. Mr. Butorac also serves as President/CEO of Cleveland Marco’s,
LLC and all of our affiliates.
President and Chief Operating Officer: J. Bryon Stephens
Bryon Stephens has been our President and Chief Operating Officer since April, 2014. Mr.
Stephens was our Chief Operating Officer from April 2013 to April, 2014. He was Vice President
of New Business Development of MFS from January 2006 to April 2013.
Executive Vice President of Operations: Tony Libardi
Tony Libardi has been our Executive Vice President of Operations since June 2014. Mr. Libardi
provided consulting services to individuals seeking to invest in business opportunities from
January 2014 to June 2014. Mr. Libardi was the Vice President of Company Operations for Burger
King Corporation from February 2003 to January 2014.
Vice President / CFO: Kenneth R. Switzer Charles (Buddy) Solomon
Ken SwitzerBuddy Solomon has been our Vice President and Chief Financial OfficerCFO since
January 2004. March, 2016. Mr. Switzer has been a majority shareholder Solomon was the Vice
President of CRH, Inc.Accounting for Arby’s in Fort Wayne, Indiana since September
2001Atlanta, Georgia from August 2011 to March 2016. Mr. Solomon was Vice President –
Finance and Controller of Travelport in Atlanta, Georgia from July 2010 to July 2011.
Vice President – General Counsel, Chief Legal Officer: Todd Watson
Todd Watson joined us in July 2013has served as our Vice President – General Counsel and
Chief Legal Officer. since July 2013. He was Corporate Counsel for Snelling Services, LLC in
Dallas, Texas, from July 2012 to March 2013. Mr. Watson was Corporate Counsel for Aimbridge
Hospitality, L.P. in Plano Texas from March 2010 to February 2012, and was General Counsel
for Taco Bueno Restaurants, L.P. in Farmer’s Branch, Texas from April 2006 to March 2010.
Vice President of Product Integrity: C. Michael Jaynes
Mike Jaynes has been our Vice President of Product Integrity since January 2010. Before that,
he served as our Vice President of Sales and Product Development (January 2008 to January
2010). He previously served as our Area Operations Vice President from January 2004 to January
2008.
Vice President of Marketing: Catherine A. Hull
Catherine Hull has been our Vice President of Marketing and Chief Marketing Officer since
December 2013. Ms. Hull was the Chief Marketing Officer for Fazoli’s, LLC in Lexington,
KYKentucky, from August, 2009 through November 2013 and was responsible for all aspects of
the marketing and culinary functions. From May, 2001 through July, 2009 Ms. Hull was the Vice
President, Strategy and Brand Marketing for Papa John’s International, Louisville, KY and was
responsible for developing brand positioning, monitoring brand image and driving the overall
marketing strategy and planning for domestic operations.
Vice President of Store Profitability: Jim Strachan
Jim Strachan has been our Vice President of Store Profitability since June, 2014. Mr. Strachan
was our Vice President of Franchise Operations from January, 2009 to June, 2014. From January
2004 until January 2009 he was our Franchise Director. From August 2001 to January 2004, he
was a Franchise Director for MI. Mr. Strachan has been a majority shareholder of XLC, Inc. in
Pinckney and Whitmore Lake, Michigan since November 1998.
Vice PresidentVP of Franchise Development and Chief Development Officer: Cameron W.
Cummins
MARCO’S PIZZA®
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Cameron Cummins has been our Vice President of Franchise Development and Chief
Development Officer since April, 2014. Mr. Cummins was our Vice President of Franchise
Marketing and Recruitment for MFS from January 2006 to April, 2014.
Executive Vice President of Operations: Tony LibardiPurchasing: Donald Vlcek, Jr.
Tony LibardiDon Vlcek has beenserved as our Executive Vice President of OperationsPurchasing
since June, 2014.April, 2008. Since September 1997, Mr. Libardi provided Vlcek has owned Don
Vlcek & Associates, Ltd. in Ann Arbor, Michigan, which is a convention keynote speaking and
consulting services to individuals seeking to invest in business opportunities from company. As
of January, 2014 to June, 2014. 1, 2010, Don assumed Mr. Libardi was the Vicerole as President
of Company Operations for Burger King Corporation from February, 2003 to January,
2014Marco’s Pizza Distribution, LLC an affiliate supplier to Franchisor.
Senior Director of Learning and Development: Roderick Sanders
Roderick Sanders has been our Senior Director of Learning and Development since January,
2015. From January, 2013 to January, 2015 he served as the Director of Training for Praescient
Analytics, LLC in Alexander, VAVirginia. From June, 1988 to February, 2013 he served as
Command Sergeant Major for the US Army Military Intelligence branch.
Director of Corporate Compliance: Deborah Allen
Deborah Allen has been our Director of Corporate Compliance since January, 2014. Ms. Allen
was our Manager of Corporate Compliance from November 2008 to January, 2014. From
September 2004 to November 2008, she was our Compliance Officer.
President – Marco’s Pizza Distribution, LLC: Donald Vlcek, Jr.
Don Vlcek joined us in April 2007 as our Vice President of Purchasing. Since September 1997,
Mr. Vlcek has owned Don Vlcek & Associates, Ltd. in Ann Arbor, Michigan which is a convention
keynote speaking and consulting company. As of January 1 2010, Don assumed his new role as
President of Marco’s Pizza Distribution, LLC.
Vice President of Franchise Marketing and Recruitment: Cameron W. Cummins
Cameron Cummins has served as Vice President of Franchise Marketing and Recruitment for
MFS since January 2006.
ITEM 3
LITIGATION
Past Litigation
Antonio Sofo & Son Importing Co. and A&M Cheese Co. v. Marco’s Franchising LLC, Marco’s
Pizza Distribution LLC, Jack Butorac, Kenneth Switzer, and Don Vlcek, and Bryon Stephens,
Court of Common Pleas, Lucas County, Ohio, Case No. CI0201004649 (filed June 18, 2010).
This lawsuit was filed against us, our affiliate MPD, and four of our executives by a company that
has served as an approved supplier to the Marco’s system. The plaintiffs filed this lawsuit in state
court after originally filing a virtually identical complaint on May 12, 2010 in the U.S. District Court
for the Northern District of Ohio, Case No. 3:10-cv-01066-JGC. After a hearing in the federal
court on June 16, 2010, the plaintiffs withdrew their federal action.
In the state court lawsuit, the plaintiffs alleged that they were injured when we did not agree to
extend a distribution agreement that had expired in 2007. The complaint also sought money for
products allegedly delivered. Although this was truly a contract dispute, the Sofo complaint
included claims for tortious interference, defamation, misappropriation of trade secrets,
negligence, fraud, unjust enrichment, deceptive trade practices, unfair competition, conspiracy,
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alter ego, and racketeering under Ohio state law. The plaintiffs sought a preliminary injunction to
preserve their approved distributor status. On June 24, 2010, the parties agreed before the judge
to maintain the status quo pending a hearing on the plaintiffs’ preliminary injunction request. The
preliminary injunction hearing was held in August 2010 and followed by post-hearing briefs. On
November 30, 2011, the court entered a preliminary injunction requiring that, during the pendency
of the litigation, the plaintiffs would remain an approved distributor within the Marco’s system
without geographic limitation. The court also ordered both parties to cease and desist from any
communication with others regarding the lawsuit or one another’s business practices, except for
a communication to Marco’s franchisees that the plaintiffs remain an approved distributor until
further notification.
On January 31, 2012, the plaintiffs filed a Notice of Partial Dismissal, under which the plaintiffs
voluntarily dismissed the following claims with prejudice: (a) misappropriation of trade secrets; (b)
deceptive trade practices; (c) civil conspiracy; (d) violation of the Ohio Corrupt Practices Act
(Ohio’s racketeering law); (e) breach of duty of good faith and fair dealing; (f) breach of contract –
third party beneficiary; and (g) tortious interference – third party beneficiary.
The parties settled the case in June 2012. Under the settlement, we agreed to allow Sofo to
remain an approved distributor for another 30 months (through the end of 2014), we and our
insurance companies paid Sofo $800,000, and the parties’ mutually agreed not to sue and to
dismiss all of the remaining portions of the lawsuit.
Except for the one action described above, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY
No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM 5
INITIAL FEES
Initial Franchise Fee – Single Store Franchise Agreement.
When you sign the Franchise Agreement, you will pay us an initial franchise fee. Except for the
differences described below, the initial franchise fee is uniform for all new franchisees. Some of
our existing franchisees, however, have the right to develop additional Stores under existing
agreements and on different terms.
The Initial Franchise Fee for Limited Seating and Expanded Seating Stores is $25,000, but may
be discounted if you qualify for our Military or Management Employee promotional incentives
described below:
 We currently discount the Initial Franchise Fee to $20,000 for qualified U.S. veterans. The
military discount is available to veterans who have received a discharge (other than
dishonorable) as well as any active-duty personnel. If the franchisee is a corporation,
partnership, limited liability company, or other legal entity, the veteran participant must
maintain at least 51% ownership interest in the entity to qualify for this discount. To apply
for the discount, you must provide us a copy of form DD-214, reflecting your military status,
before the Franchise Agreement is signed.
 We currently discount the Initial Franchise Fee for qualified “Key Management
Employees.” There are three levels of available discounts: Level 1 (Initial Franchise Fee
is 60% of the standard Initial Franchise Fee); Level 2 (Initial Franchise Fee is $10,000),
and Level 3 (Initial Franchise Fee is $5,000). A Key Management Employees is an
individual who has been employed in a designated Store management program for a
minimum of one year, either for us or for one of our franchisees. The participant must meet
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our financial and creditworthiness criteria. If the franchisee is a corporation, partnership,
limited liability company, or other legal entity, the qualifying participant must maintain at
least 51% ownership in the entity to qualify for this program, and the franchisee must
comply with program requirements.
The Initial Franchise Fee for Special Venue Stores ranges from $10,000 to $25,000, depending
on the location and type of Special Venue Store.
The Initial Franchise Fee is due in full when you sign the Franchise Agreement. If there is a credit
available from your Development Fee or your deposit (as each are described below), then that
credit will be applied to reduce your Initial Franchise Fee payment. The Initial Franchise Fee will
be fully earned when paid, must be paid in one lump-sum amount, excluding any required
deposits, and will not be refundable except as provided below and in the Franchise Agreement.
Development Agreement. If you sign a Development Agreement, you will pay us a Development
Fee to acquire the rights under that agreement. This amount will be equal to $5,000 for each Store
that you must develop in your territory.
We will apply a $5,000 credit from the Development Fee that you pay us toward the Initial
Franchise Fee that is due under the Franchise Agreement for each Store that you commit to
develop under the Development Agreement. The total of these credits can be up to, but not more
than, the total Development Fee that you have actually paid to us. You must pay the Initial
Franchise Fee when you sign the Franchise Agreement, as described above, less any available
credits from the Development Fee.
The Initial Franchise Fee and Development Fee will be fully earned, and non-refundable, when
we each enter into a Franchise Agreement and a Development Agreement (respectively), except
as explained below.
Refunds. If we terminate the Franchise Agreement during the first week of training for your first
Store, we will refund all amounts that we have received from you less the demonstrated costs
that we have incurred, which will not exceed $5,000 (however, if you complete our “Operational
Assessment” before you sign a Franchise Agreement and we exercise our right to terminate
during the first week of training, then we will refund your entire initial franchise fee), so long as
you sign a termination agreement including mutual releases. Except as described above, the
fees that you pay to us are not refundable.
Other Payments:
Brand Launch Program. We will work together to conduct a Brand Launch Program for your Store,
which we estimate will cost between $33,500 and $38$30,000. We will coordinate all Brand
Launch Program activities. You initially will pay us $30,000 in installments, as follows: (1) $5,000
when you sign your Franchise Agreement; (2) $10,000 when you receive building permits for
construction of your Store; and (3) $15,000 through a weekly automated debit from your checking
account (ACH deduction) of $937.50 per week for the 16 weeks following the Store opening date.
Additionally, you will reimburse us for all Grand Opening event expenses by ACH Deduction at
the end of week 4 following your Store opening date. We will use these funds to pay for Brand
Launch Program activities for your benefit. If total costs are more than $38exceed $30,000, then
you must pay the difference to us or to the product or service provider, as applicable, upon receipt
of an invoice. See Item 6. If total costs are less than $30,000, then we will refund to you the
balance. Your payments otherwise are nonrefundable. Special Venue Stores are not required to
participate in the Brand Launch Program, but we may require special marketing programs for the
grand opening.
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ITEM 6
OTHER FEES
Type of Fee (Note 1)

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Royalty – Limited
Seating and
Expanded Seating
Stores

5.5% (subject to
adjustment as
described in Note 23,
up to a maximum of
6.0%) of Net Royalty
Sales.

Paid by electronic
payment (ACH
debit) each
Friday). ACH
based on your
Store’sWeekly Net
Royalty Sales
duringis processed
each Monday, 8
days after the
priorend of each
week. (See Note
69)

The term “Net Royalty
Sales” is defined in Note
21.
(Please see Note 6)

Royalty – Special
Venue Stores

Standard is 5.5% of
Net Royalty Sales but
may be reduced by
agreement based on
the various Special
Venue facilitiesfacility
characteristics and
event criteria.
(See Note 3)

Paid by electronic
payment (ACH
debit) each
Friday). ACH
based on your
Store’sWeekly Net
Royalty Sales
duringis processed
each Monday, 8
days after the
priorend of each
week. (See Note
69)

The term “Net Royalty
Sales” is defined in Note
21.
(Please see Note 6)

Royalty – Key
Management
Employee Program

2.5% of Net Royalty
Sales after taking into
consideration any
commissions due to
an Area
Representative

Paid by electronic
payment (ACH
debit) each
Friday). ACH
based on your
Store’sWeekly Net
Royalty Sales
duringis processed
each Monday, 8
days after the
priorend of each
week. (See Note
69)

The term “Net Royalty
Sales” is defined in Note
21.
(Please see Note 6)
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Type of Fee (Note 1)
Brand Development
Fund

Geography Based
Advertising Funds
(includes National
Advertising Fund and
Regional Advertising
Fund)

Amount

Due Date

Currently, 1% of Net
Royalty Sales. (We
have the right to
increase this fee by
½% by giving you 90
days prior written
notice.)
Depending on the
venue, Special Venue
Stores may not be
required to participate
in the Brand
Development Fund.
Currently, we do not
require contribution to
a National Advertising
Fund.

Same as Royalty
Fee

Used to fund creative
content of advertising
materials, brand
development, web
pages, franchise
conferences, consumer
research, motivational or
leadership programs
and other activities that
enhance the Brand.

Same as Royalty
Fee

Regional Ad Fund
Contribution
(% of Net Royalty Sales)

The amount of
contribution required
to a Regional
Advertising Fund
depends on the
geographic region in
which the Store is
located (see
“Remarks” column).

Region
Contribution

Your total combined
contribution to a
National Advertising
Fund and Regional
Advertising Fund will
not exceed a total of
5% of Net Royalty
Sales combined for
all levels of the
Geography Based
Advertising Funds.

Montgomery, AL

2.5%

Tampa, FL

2.5%

Atlanta, GA

2.5%

Columbus, GA

2.5%

Macon, GA

2.5%

Indianapolis, IN
23.5%
Lansing, MI

2.5%

Cincinnati, OH
3.5.0%

Depending on the
venue, Special Venue
Stores may not be
required to participate
in the Geography
Based Advertising
Fund.
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Cleveland, OH

3.5%

Dayton, OH

2.5%

Toledo, OH

1.0%

NW Ohio

.25%

Rapid City, SD

4.5%

Knoxville, TN

2.5%

Type of Fee (Note 1)
Market Advertising
Cooperative

Amount
Amount set and
spend determined by
co-op member votes.
Depending on the
venue, Special Venue
Stores may not be
required to participate
in the Marketing
Advertising
Cooperative.

Due Date
Same as Royalty
Fee

Remarks
Our franchisees may
form an advertising
cooperative, which will
establish its own local
advertising fees to
combine the resources
of several Stores and
manage advertising
media purchases. We
allow credit for your
Marketing Advertising
Cooperative expenditure
for a minimum of 3%
against this Geography
Based contribution.

Local Store Marketing

Minimum of 0.5% of
Net Royalty Sales,
but not more than 7%
minus the percentage
contributed to the
Brand Development
Fund and Geography
Based Advertising
Funds.
(See Note 4.)
Depending on the
venue, Special Venue
Stores may not be
required to participate
in local store
marketing, however,
the
lease/management
agreement of some
Special Venue Stores
may require certain
marketing expenses.

Same as Royalty
Fee

Paid to various vendors
other than us.
Amount paid to an Ad
Co-op may be credited
toward your Local Store
Marketing requirement.
(See Note 4.)

Additional Training

$1,000 per person

2 weeks before
beginning of
training

The Initial Franchise Fee
includes initial training
for one person
(Designated Franchise
Representative-see
Sections 8.1 of
Franchise Agreement);
for others, you must pay
an additional fee (see
Section 10.2 of
Franchise Agreement)
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Type of Fee (Note 1)

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Replacement
Designated Franchise
Representative
Training

$5,000 per person

Upon beginning of
training

If we train a replacement
for you or the
Designated Franchise
Representative the
replacement must begin
the initial training
program within 15 days
after the end of the
former person’s full time
employment

Additional Assistance

$300 per day

30 days after
billing

See Section 10.4 of the
Franchise Agreement

Performance
Deficiencies Service
Fee

$500 per continued
failure to comply with
operational standards
or policies

15 days after
billing

Payable if you
receivefail to adequately
perform a score of 2 or
less on any specific
category of performance
measurement on a Store
Visitation Report and fail
to rectify the item before
the next Store Visitation,
but not less than 30
days.

Transfer

$2,500-$8,250, or 1/3
of the then current
initial franchise fee
plus 3% of gross
selling price if buyer
is acquired through
our lead generation
system or existing
franchisee (Note 5)

Before the transfer
takes place

Payable when you sell
your franchise. No
charge if franchise
transferred to a
corporation, partnership,
or limited liability
company which you
control.

Audit

Cost of audit, plus
prime, plus 4%
interest on
underpayment
(Note 47)

15 days after
billing

Payable only if audit
shows an
understatement of at
least 2% of Net Royalty
Sales for any
Accounting Period.

Renewal Fee –
Limited Seating and
Expanded Seating
Stores

$6,250 or 25% of the
then-current Initial
Franchise Fee,
whichever is greater

30 days before
renewal

See Item 17(c) of this
Disclosure Document
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Type of Fee (Note 1)

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Renewal Fee –
Special Venue Store

25% of the thencurrent Initial
Franchise Fee, but
may be reduced by
agreement based on
the various Special
Venue facilities,
characteristics and
event criteria.

30 days before
renewal

See Item 17(c) of this
Disclosure Document

Insurance

Varies

As incurred

If you fail to obtain the
required insurance
coverage(s), we may
obtain this insurance for
you and you must
reimburse us within 5
days for all costs we
incur in doing so. (Note
8)

Interest and
Additional Expense
Fees

1.5% per month
interest on all late
payments, plus a 5%
Additional Expense
Fee

As accrued

These fees apply to late
payments owed to us or
our affiliates.
The Additional Expense
Fee applies to amounts
due that are not paid
within 10 business days
of the due date.

Termination Fee

Average Royalty
Fees due for the 24
full Accounting
Periods immediately
preceding the time
you ceased operation
times the lesser of:
(a) 36; and (b) the
number of Accounting
Periods remaining in
the Term of the
Franchise Agreement

Upon Franchisee
termination

We will not enforce the
requirement to pay a
termination fee if you
and we mutually agree
to close the Store, sell
the equipment, sign a
termination agreement,
and if a pizza store no
longer operates at the
location.
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Type of Fee (Note 1)

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

On-line Order Entry
System Pyrimont

Currently, the
maximum charged is
$145 per month (Note
6). Depending on the
venue, Special Venue
Stores may not be
required to participate
in on-line order entry.
(Note 6)

Paid to Pyrimont
Operating
Solutions as
accrued

See Item 11 for details.
Subject to adjustment
for changes to the Index.
You may only purchase
on-line services from
Pyrimont or FoodTec –
depending on which
POS system you choose

On-line Order Entry
System FoodTec
Solutions

Currently $100 per
month (Note 56).
Depending on the
venue, Special Venue
Stores may not be
required to participate
in on-line order entry.
(Note 6)

Paid to FoodTec
Solutions as
accrued

See Item 11 for details.
Subject to adjustment
for changes to the Index.
You may only purchase
on-line services from
Pyrimont or FoodTec –
depending on which
POS system you choose

Web Based Training
(Marco’s University)

$1/day ($365 per
year) in quarterly
installmentsPayment
included as part of
$91.25 the
Technology Fee
(Note 6)

Quarterly except
the initial fee is
paid before Store
openingWeekly –
Same as Royalty
Fee

Ongoing fees will be
deposited into a
separate web based
training fund and will be
used to purchase future
enhancements of the
program.
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Type of Fee (Note 1)

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Una
FonteTechnology Fee

$50110.56 per
Accounting Period by
ACH (Note 6) and
6(a))

Each Accounting
Period$27.64
Weekly – Same as
Royalty Fee

This is to use the Una
Fonte system of social
media management,
which includes email
advertising to customers
and customer surveying
that is part of Ciao Net.
This fee is typically paid
out of the Geography
Based Advertising Fund
which you may be
required to participate.
If there is no Regional
Based Advertising Fund
for your Store, then the
cost of Una Fonte is
billed to you each
Accounting
Period.Multiple
technology systems to
provide support for
customer relationship
management system,
email advertising
customers and online
training and tools to
measure customer
satisfaction.

Costs and Attorneys’
Fees

Will vary under
circumstances (Note
610)

Upon demand

If you default under the
Franchise Agreement,
you must reimburse us
for our expenses
(including reasonable
attorneys’ fees) in
enforcing or terminating
the agreement.

Audit Costs

All costs and
expenses associated
with the audit,
reasonable
accounting and legal
costs; and interest on
the underpayment
(see Notes 6 andNote
7)

Upon demand

Payable only if we audit
because you did not
submit sales statements
or keep books and
records, or if you
underreport your sales
by 2% or more., or
intentionally underreport.

Indemnification

Will vary under
circumstances

As incurred

Note 710
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Type of Fee (Note 1)

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Securities Offering
Fee

$2,500 or our actual
expenses, whichever
is greater (Note 6)

Upon demand

If you engage in a
securities offering, you
must reimburse us for
our reasonable costs
and expenses (including
legal and accounting
fees) to evaluate your
proposed offering and
you also must indemnify
us (see above).

Development
Agreement
Continuation Fee

75% of the weekly
average systemwide
sales, multiplied by
5.5%

Weekly

If you do not meet your
Development Schedule
obligations under the
Development
Agreement, you may
extend the relevant time
period for up to 6
months by paying a
Continuation Fee.
(Please see Note 11.)

Except as otherwise noted, all of the fees listed above are (a) imposed by and are payable to us
or our affiliates unless otherwise indicated, (b) non-refundable, (c) uniformly imposed and (d)
accounted for using a Fiscal Year basis. We will take a security interest in all of the assets of your
Franchised Store, for the term of the Franchise Agreement, to secure the payment of all fees that
you owe to us and to our affiliates.
Notes to Item 6 chart (above):
1. Definitions:
“Accounting Period” or “Period” means a period of time we establish periodically for which you
will report sales, financial results and other required reporting information. Typically, each
Accounting Period will start on a Monday and run for 28 consecutive days (4 weeks). We may
revise the defined Accounting Period, Quarter or Year by sending you notice of a change. If
we change the Accounting Period, then any payments in this Agreement that are set on a perAccounting-Period basis shall automatically be adjusted on a per diem basis to match the
change in the number of days in an Accounting Period.
“Accounting Quarter” or “Quarter” means a group of consecutive Periods according to the
calendar we publish each Year. Quarters 1, 2 and 4 will have 3 periods. Quarter 3 will have 4
periods.
“Accounting Week,” “Week” or “Weekly” is 7 consecutive days beginning on Monday and
continuing through the following Sunday.
“Accounting Year” or “Year” means a fiscal year consisting of 13 Accounting Periods defined
by us. Approximately every 5 Years, We use a 53-Week Year instead of the normal 52 Weeks
in order to conform to various accounting conventions and tax regulations.
“Good Standing” means that you and all of your Owners (if you are a business entity): (i) are
in compliance with all applicable System standards; (ii) have satisfied all monetary obligations
owed to us and our affiliates as well as all suppliers and government authorities; (iii) are not
in default of any provision of the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement with us or with
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any of our Affiliates; (iv) have not been notified, in writing, on 2 or more occasions during the
last 2 years that you are in default or otherwise not in compliance with any provision of the
Agreement; and (v) have not been notified on 2 occasions in the last 2 years that you are
“past due” on sums of money owed to us, our Affiliates, suppliers, landlords, lenders or
governmental taxing authorities. Failure to remain in Good Standing may result in loss of your
pro-rata share of any voluntary payment by us of rebates or other supplier incentives which
we receive from suppliers. In order to be in “Good Standing” you and your Owners (if you are
a business entity) must be in Good Standing under your Franchise Agreement and also the
franchise agreement for any other Store in which the Owners have more than a 25%
ownership interest or otherwise control the Store’s operations.
“Index” means the Consumer Price Index (1982 84=100; all items; CPI-U; all urban
consumers) as published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (or if the CPI is no longer
published, another substitute reference that we reasonably designate).
“Net Royalty Sales” means the total gross amount of all revenues, excluding only (1) sales tax
or other receipts you collect and remit to the proper taxing authorities and (2) authorized
coupon or other promotional discounts you provide to your customers. Included in the
definition is revenue from whatever source derived (whether in the form of cash, credit,
agreements to pay, or other consideration (such as bartering), and whether or not payment is
received at the time of sale or any of those amounts prove uncollectible. Also included is
revenue that in any manner at all arises from or is derived by you or by any other business
conducted or which originate in, on, from or through the Site or the Store. This includes,
revenue you derive through the Store, from the sale of products associated with the Store,
and revenue derived from your use of the Marks, whether or not you conduct those operations
in compliance with or in violation of this Agreement.
2. Except as otherwise stated in this Item, current fees are uniformly imposed, are collected by
us, and are non-refundable.
3. Our Royalty Fee is initially 5.5% of the Net Royalty Sales of your Store, but . If you operate a
Special Venue Store franchise, the Royalty Fee may be reduced by agreement based on the
various Special Venue facilities,facility’s characteristics, and other event criteria. All existing
franchisees, except certain of our franchise affiliates as of the date of this Disclosure
Document, pay a Royalty Fee of 4.0% to 5.0% of their Net Royalty Sales.
We have the right to increase the Royalty Fee by 1/2% but will do so only if we increase the
Royalty Fee of substantially all other franchises and upon giving you at least 90 days prior
written notice.The Royalty Fees may be modified by us under the following conditions: (a) an
increase is consistently applied across all franchisees on a system wide basis (to the extent
permitted by each franchise agreement); (b) an aggregate increase in the Royalty Fee rate
will not exceed a total of six percent (6%) of Net Royalty Sales; (c) 90 days prior written notice
must be provided to you. We may modify the Royalty Fee rate to a lower percentage and
then increase the rate again under the stated conditions above. All Royalty Fee modifications
will continue until you are notified otherwise by us.
All Royalty Fees, advertising fees, or other payments due to our affiliates or us are paid by
Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) from your bank account to our bank account as indicated.
All fixed-dollar amounts are subject to adjustment to reflect changes in the Index
(measured against the Index as it stood on December 31, 2014).
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Some of the terms used in Item 6 and these notes are defined as follows:
4. You will also be required to spend a portion of the Net Royalty Sales of your Store on
advertising, marketing and promotional activities within the market and community where your
Store is located. The exact percentage is determined by the formula: 7% minus the amounts
you pay to us for the Brand Development Fund, any Geography Based Advertising Fund you
contribute to, and any amount we determine is allowable for your payments to a Market
Advertising Cooperative. Currently, you must pay 1% of the Net Royalty Sales to the Brand
Development Fund. If we do not require you to participate in any Geography Based
Advertising Fund or Ad Co-op, you will be required to spend the remaining 6% of the Total
Marketing Spend for Local Store Marketing that you must manage. Amounts that you
contribute to an Ad Co-op will reduce the amount you must spend as Local Store Marketing,
but only to the extent that we designate or approve. Depending on the venue, Special Venue
Stores may be required to participate in these advertising, marketing and promotional
activities.
5. The transfer fee is 1/3 of the then current Initial Franchise Fee or $8,250, whichever is more,
if the buyer is not an existing Marco's Pizza franchisee. If the buyer is an existing Marco's
Pizza franchisee, then the transfer fee will be reduced to $2,500. If you askedShould a buyer
for our assistance in re-marketing your Store (or your Area Development Agreement), and our
assistance results in a transfer) be acquired through our franchise candidate lead generation
system, you must also pay us a marketingFranchise Resale Fee equal to 3% of the gross
selling price of your Store (or Development Agreement).
6. These amounts may be subject to increases based on changes in market conditions,
inflation, our cost of providing services, future policy changes, and changes in our costs
from our suppliers. All fixed-dollar amounts are subject to adjustment to reflect changes in
the Index (measured against the Index as it stood on December 31, 2015). Other than those
fees that are subject to increase based on changes in a rate or index published by a third
party, we review all fees over which we have control quarterly, and we may periodically
authorize an adjustment.
(a) In 20152016, we plan to implement additional technology services relating to mobile, on
line ordering, and digital marketing, to enhance or replace some of the current technology
requirements and other technology related services to provide a more comprehensive
management of digital tools and data. It is also planned that athe Technology Fee related
to these technology services will be charged to you and may range from $301 - $356364
per Period. You will be required to participate in these technology services.
7. If an audit reveals underpayment, then within 15 days after the receipt of the audit results,
you must pay us the Royalty Fee, the required contributions to the Brand Development Fund
and the Geography Based Advertising Funds and interest on the understated amount at the
lesser of: (a) the maximum rate allowed by law; or (b) the prime rate of interest, plus four
percentage points (or 400 basis points), as stated in The Wall Street Journal's Table of Money
Rates on the date when payment is due. Interest will accrue from the date of the
underpayment.
8. You must obtain and keep in full force and effect comprehensive liability insurance. See
“Insurance” in Item 8 below for an in-depth discussion of your insurance requirements.
9. You must participate in an electronic funds transfer (using the Automated Clearing House
(“ACH”) electronic network) program under which we (or our Affiliates) make a periodic
(usually weekly) pre-authorized bank withdrawal from your account to pay all Royalty Fees
and other fees and expenses due to us or our Affiliates under the Franchise Agreement (or
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any other agreement). If you do not report your sales on a timely basis, we have the right to
make these withdrawals based on our estimate of your past Net Royalty Sales and our
reasonable expectations of Royalty Fees and other amounts that are due to us. You may also
be required to provide us reports of Net Royalty Sales and other details using an electronic
reporting system.The sales data collected by us will be used to calculate Royalty Fees,
advertising fees, and other fees payable to us or our Affiliates that were achieved by the Store
through the end of the preceding Accounting Week. We will debit your bank account for the
proper amount of Royalty Fees, advertising fees and other fees in the amount you owe to us,
based on the sales data collected. If the Net Royalty Sales data is not available to us or
retrievable on a timely basis, we will debit your bank account on the designated day in an
amount estimated based on previous Royalty Fee and Advertising contributions amount.
At the end of each Accounting Period, Net Royalty Sales and all fees and charges will be
reconciled. Any outstanding adjustments, whether debits or credits, will be included with the
ACH for the final week at the Period close.
If funds are not available at the time the ACH is drafted, you will be charged a $35 nonsufficient funds fee for each occurrence. The Interest and Additional Expense Fee will be
charged where applicable. If you request to have your ACH draft deferred, you will be charged
a fee of $35 plus $5 per day until the amount due to us is paid, for a maximum of 10 days
without incurring the Interest and Additional Expense Fee. All deferral requests must be made
prior to the date the payment is due according to the Marco’s Accounting and Reporting
Policies.
9.10. You must indemnify us, and reimburse us for our costs (including our attorneys’ fees), if
we are sued or held liable in any case: (a) having anything to do with any securities offering
you make; (b) your use of the marks (other than as we approve); or (c) that has anything to
do with a claim arising out of the operation of your Store or your violation of the Franchise
Agreement.
10.11. If you do not meet the Development Schedule criteria under a Development Agreement,
at your discretion, in lieu of termination of the Development Agreement, you may continue the
Development Agreement by payment of a fee each week to us (“Continuation Fee”) equal to
75% of the 5.5% Royalty fee for the weekly Average Systemwide Sales (as defined in our
then current Franchise Disclosure Document for the previous fiscal year) for each Store not
in compliance with the Development Schedule until such time as Developer is in compliance
with the Development Schedule or 6 months, whichever time is lesser. If you are not in
compliance with the Development Schedule within 6 months, we may exercise our right to
terminate the Development Agreement and all rights to any benefits provided under the
Development Agreement.
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ITEM 7
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
Store – Limited Seating
Method of
Payment

To Whom
Paid

Type of Expenditure

Amount

Initial Franchise Fee
(Note 1)

$25,000

See Note 1

See Note 1

Us

Real Property
(Note 2)

$5,000 - $12,000

See Note 2

Monthly

Landlord

Equipment, Fixtures
(Note 3)

$60,000 - $94,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Vendors

Point of Sale
Computers (Note 4)

$26,000 - $38,000

As Incurred

Before
Installation

Vendors

Leasehold
Improvements
(Note 5)

$20,500 - $130,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Vendors;
Contractors

Signage

$3,000 - $9,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Vendors;
Contractors

Opening Inventory
(Note 6)

$6,000 - $15,000

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Suppliers

Small Supplies
(Note 7)

$6,000 - $7,500

Lump Sum

See Note 6

Suppliers; Us

See Note 8

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Dealer/Mfr./
Driver

Deposits, Pre-Paid
Expenses (Note 9)

$1,400 - $7,000

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Suppliers;
Utilities

Business Licenses
(Note 10)

$100 - $500

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

State & Local
Agencies

Insurance (Note 11)

$1,500 - $4,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Insurance
Company

Training Expenses
(Note 12)

$500 - $5,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Employees,
Hotel, Etc.

Annual Conference
Expenses

$1,000 – 1,500

See Note 18

By the date of
the
conference

Travel
providers; Us

Miscellaneous
Expenses (Note 13)

$500 - $5,000

As Incurred

As Required

Suppliers,
Employees

Additional Funds
(3 months) (Note 14)

$32,500

As Incurred

As Required

Suppliers,
Employees

Architectural and
Engineering (Note 15)

$4,000 - $6,500

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Professionals

$92

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Us

Delivery Vehicles
(Note 8)

Web-Based Training
(Note 16)
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When Due

Method of
Payment

To Whom
Paid

Type of Expenditure

Amount

Delivery Area, streets
database for POS,
and shape files for
POS and OLO
platform Maps

$1,000 - $1,500

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Suppliers, Us

$33,500 - $38,000

Installments

See Note 17.

Us

Brand Launch
Program (Note 17)
TOTAL

When Due

$221,592 to $421,592
Store – Expanded Seating
Method of
Payment

To Whom
Paid

Type of Expenditure

Amount

Initial Franchise Fee
(Note 1)

25,000

See Note 1

See Note 1

Us

$5,000 - $16,000

See Note 2

Monthly

Landlord

Equipment, Fixtures
(Note 3)

$60,000 - $103,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Vendors

Point of Sale
Computers (Note 4)

$26,000 - $38,000

As Incurred

Before
Installation

Vendors

Leasehold
Improvements
(Note 5)

$60,000 - $237,500

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Vendors;
Contractors

Signage

$3,000 - $9,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Vendors;
Contractors

Opening Inventory
(Note 6)

$6,000 - $15,000

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Suppliers

Small Supplies
(Note 7)

$6,000 - $8,500

Lump Sum

See Note 6

Suppliers; Us

See Note 8

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Dealer/Mfr./
Driver

Deposits, Pre-Paid
Expenses (Note 9)

$2,400 - $7,000

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Suppliers;
Utilities

Business Licenses
(Note 10)

$100 - $500

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

State & Local
Agencies

Insurance (Note 11)

$1,500 - $5,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Insurance
Company

Training Expenses
(Note 12)

$500 - $5,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Employees,
Hotel, Etc.

Annual Conference
Expenses

$1,000 – 1,500

See Note 18

By the date of
the
conference

Travel
providers; Us

Real Property
(Note 2)

Delivery Vehicles
(Note 8)
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When Due

Type of Expenditure

Method of
Payment

Amount

When Due

To Whom
Paid

Miscellaneous
Expenses (Note 13)

$500 - $5,000

As Incurred

As Required

Suppliers,
Employees

Additional Funds
(3 months) (Note 14)

$32,500

As Incurred

As Required

Suppliers,
Employees

Architectural and
Engineering (Note 15)

$4,000 - $9,000

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Professionals

Web-Based Training
(Note 16)

$92

Lump Sum

Before
opening

Us

Delivery Area, streets
database for POS,
and shape files for
POS and OLO
platform Maps

$1,000 - $1,500

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Suppliers, Us

$33,500 - $38,000

Installments

See Note 17

Brand Launch
Program (Note 17)
TOTAL

Us

$262,092 to $546,592
Special Venue Store

Type of Expenditure

Method of
Payment

Amount

When Due

To Whom
Paid

Initial Franchise Fee
(Note 1)

$10,000 - $25,000

See Note 1

See Note 1

Us

Real Property
(Note 2)

$5,000 - $12,000

See Note 2

Monthly

Landlord

Equipment, Fixtures
(Note 3)

$60,000 - $94,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Vendors

Point of Sale
Computers (Note 4)

$0 - $38,000

As Incurred

Before
Installation

Vendors

$20,500 - $130,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Vendors;
Contractors

Signage

$3,000 - $9,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Vendors;
Contractors

Opening Inventory
(Note 6)

$6,000 - $15,000

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Suppliers

Small Supplies
(Note 7)

$6,000 - $8,500

Lump Sum

See Note 6

Suppliers; Us

Leasehold
Improvements
(Note 5)

$0

Delivery Vehicles
Deposits, Pre-Paid
Expenses (Note 9)

$2,400 - $7,000

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Suppliers;
Utilities

Business Licenses
(Note 10)

$100 - $500

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

State & Local
Agencies
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Type of Expenditure

Method of
Payment

Amount

When Due

To Whom
Paid

Insurance (Note 11)

$1,500 - $5,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Insurance
Company

Training Expenses
(Note 12)

$500 - $5,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Employees,
Hotel, Etc.

Annual Conference
Expenses

$1,000 - $1,500

See Note 18

By the date of
the
conference

Travel
providers; Us

Miscellaneous
Expenses (Note 13)

$500 - $5,000

As Incurred

As Required

Suppliers,
Employees

Additional Funds
(3 months) (Note 14)

$30,000

As Incurred

As Required

Suppliers,
Employees

Architectural and
Engineering (Note 15)

$4,000 - $9,000

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Professionals

Web-Based Training
(Note 16)

$92

Lump Sum

Before
opening

Us

Delivery Area, streets
database for POS,
and shape files for
POS and OLO
platform maps

$0

Lump Sum

Before
Opening

Suppliers; Us

Special Grand
Opening Marketing
Program (Note 17)
TOTAL

$0 - $10,000
$150,592 to $404,592

Notes to Item 7 tables:
1.

The Initial Franchise Fee is determined as explained in Item 5 above.
We may be willing, in certain cases, to extend financing to qualified franchisees under
certain lease terms that are described in Item 10 below.
The amounts that you pay to us are not refundable (except in the limited circumstances
described in Item 5 above). Your payment obligations to vendors are not likely to be
refundable unless you negotiate those arrangements.

2.

The estimate in the chart is for the space that you will need to operate your Store, through
the end of the third month of operation, as described below.
Real estate costs vary widely from place to place, and franchisees have a wide range of
options to choose from in selecting a location. Your location must be in a general area
that will allow you to provide delivery services efficiently and conveniently to customers in
the area you serve. You will need about 1,200 – 2,500 square feet of space for your
location. Most franchisees find suitable space in a commercial district or strip mall located
relatively close to residential areas.
Commercial rental rates vary rather substantially based upon a wide range of factors. The
estimate provided in the table is based on the following factors: (1) that in the current real
estate market, you will be able to negotiate a total rent abatement for the build-out period
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(that is, before your store opens); (2) that you will pay a one-month security deposit in
addition to the three-month period after you open, for a total of four months’ rent; and (3)
that you will lease between 1,200 to 2,500 square feet of space for your store. Stores Limited Seating typically occupy 1,200 to 1,600 square feet of space at an annual rate of
rent of between $15 and $35 per square foot. Stores - Expanded Seating occupy 1,500 to
2,500 square feet at an annual rental rate of between $10 and $30 per square foot.
If you lease a location, you are also likely to incur build-out expenses (see note 5 below).
You may also incur real estate broker fees, additional prepayments, “additional rent,”
common area maintenance (CAM fees), operating fees, or other costs, depending on the
terms of your lease and the prevailing real estate market in your area.
Most franchisees lease their space. We cannot estimate your costs for buying or leasing
land and constructing a building, as these costs vary substantially from market to market,
depending on many factors, such as location and the design and construction of the
building, as well as fluctuations in the local real estate market.
3.

This cost estimate includes all major pieces of equipment for your Store as required under
our manuals, installation costs and freight. It does not include any sales tax on the
equipment, which varies from state-to-state. The low estimate assumes the purchase of
some refurbished equipment. The upper estimate assumes that you will purchase all new
equipment. Stores - Expanded Seating will require tables and chairs, benches or other
seating arrangements ranging in cost from $50 to $150 per seat, inclusive of the cost of
the table.

4.

We require all new Stores to install an approved “point-of-sale” (POS) computer system.
Presently we have two approved POS systems offered by Pyrimont Operating Solutions,
a division of Front End Digital, Inc. and FoodTec Solutions, Inc. We have no affiliation with
Pyrimont Operating Solutions, or FoodTec Solutions although some Stores affiliated with
us use Pyrimont Operating Solutions’ POS system and paid for those systems at market
price. Pyrimont Operating Solutions and FoodTec Solutions also provides the on-line
ordering system through third party arrangements. The cost estimates indicated in this
table include an estimated $500 in start-up expenses to allow a Pyrimont or FoodTec
Solutions equipped store to accept on-line (website) pizza and other food order entry. See
Franchise Agreement Section 13.15 for additional information on on-line order entry
requirements. Stores - Expanded Seating may need to install an additional order taking
station at a cost of approximately $2,000.

5.

You will incur costs for the build-out of your Store. You will lease between 1,200 to 2,500
square feet of space for your Store. A Stores – Limited Seating will occupy between 1,200
and 1,600 square feet of space and will require leasehold improvements at a cost ranging
from $20,500 to $130,000. Stores - Expanded Seating will occupy between 1,500 and
2,500 square feet of space and will require leasehold improvements at a cost ranging from
$60,000 to $237,500. The upper end of this scale would include substantial rehabilitation
costs not normally incurred and also assumes substantial remodeling of the space, not
previously useable by a food business with little or no work performed or funded by the
landlord. You may be able to negotiate a construction allowance from the landlord, which
may cover a portion of the build-out/leasehold improvement expenses. The lower
estimate assumes a substantial amount of the work will be performed or funded by the
landlord.

6.

You will need an initial supply of inventory, including items including foodstuffs and paper
goods. The estimated cost should cover approximately 1 to 2 weeks of operation. All
supplies and inventory must meet our standards and specifications (see Item 8).
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7.

You will need various “small supplies,” including various hand tools for pizza making. You
will also need miscellaneous stationery and office supplies, including forms we designate
(see Item 8).

8.

You will need a sufficient number of delivery vehicles, each of which must be outfitted with
a sign or painted to our specifications (see Item 8). Our estimate assumes that you will
hire delivery drivers who will have their own vehicles, and that you will simply lend a “cartop” sign for each vehicle. Most Stores need 6 to 12 delivery vehicles available. Our
estimate does not include the cost of directly leasing or buying vehicles.

9.

The estimate includes deposits that may be refundable to you at a later time. In most
cases, your lease will require you to pay electric, gas, water and other utilities directly;
however, some landlords cover some utility charges through CAM fees or operating fees
(see Note 2 above).

10.

You should consult your lawyer or your local county and state authorities about the specific
legal requirements for business licenses and related types of expenses in your local area.

11.

Insurance costs may vary in different localities. The estimate is for initial amounts paid in
the first 90 days, which may include a full year of liability insurance coverage, including
hired/non-owned automobile coverage. If you have employees, you must maintain
adequate workers' compensation and liability insurance. We are unable to estimate
amounts for workers' compensation insurance. The requirements and rates vary widely
from place to place. We reserve the right to require additional types of insurance and
coverage as provided under the Franchise Agreement. See Item 8 for our insurance
requirements.
During training, you must obtain workers' compensation insurance on yourself and on all
personnel undergoing training at our facilities. You must also have the insurance
coverage outlined above in effect at the beginning of the training period, and maintain it
throughout your training. You will not be allowed to begin training until you have given us
proof of insurance coverage.

12.

This estimate does not include additional training fees, which would apply if you decide to
send more than 1 person to the initial training course (see Item 6). For training
requirements in general, see Item 11. These costs would be paid to other suppliers such
as hotels and airline companies if you were traveling.

13.

“Miscellaneous expenses” includes a variety of other costs. Legal expenses would be a
miscellaneous expense included in this cost estimate. In some cases, you may need
assistance from others in helping to obtain financing for your Store. The amount of that
assistance may depend on the amount of your loan and may run as high as 3% of your
financed amount (or more in some circumstances). In addition, if your financing must be
guaranteed by the SBA (Small Business Administration), the SBA may require you to pay
a 2% guarantee fee.

14.

We require you to have a minimum of $30,000 in working capital available when your store
opens for business and all expenses are paid. This is an estimate only of the amount of
funds you may need for start-up and additional payroll expenses you may incur and your
start-up expenses may be higher or lower. The actual amount of additional funds you will
need depends on a variety of factors, including the type of community in which you open
your Store, the size of your advertising area and delivery territory, the time of year when
you open your Store, your own management skill, economic conditions, competition in
your area, and other factors.

MARCO’S PIZZA®
Franchise Disclosure Document ǀ 20152016

26

15.

You will be required to obtain professional blue prints and engineering drawings for your
Store and in most cases to obtain construction permits, food service permits, and other
required permits. Most equipment purveyors will provide basic line drawings at little or no
cost to you that you can provide your chosen architect or engineer in order to save
substantial time and money. We may provide recommendations for a possible architect
or engineer, however you are not obligated to choose our recommendation. We will review
the basis line drawings and the final blue prints in order to ensure compliance with the
System. You will be responsible for all architectural, engineering and similar fees.

16.

You will be required to pay to us the periodic payment due for the first quarter of $91.25
for our on-line or web-based training program. This program is also referred to as “Marco’s
University.”

17.

The total cost of the Brand Launch Program is between $33,500 to $38$30,000and covers
all the expected costs of local store marketing for the first 3-4-6 months the Store is open
plus the Grand Opening event expenses. Included in the total cost is $5,000 for Launch
Kit items (banners, yard signs etc.) You will pay this amount to the Marco’s Advertising
Fund in installments, as follows: (1) $5,000 when you sign your Franchise Agreement; (2)
$10,000 when you receive building permits for construction of your Store; and (3) the
remaining $15,000 balance will be paid through a weekly automated debit from your
checking account (ACH deduction) of $937.50 per week for the 16 weeks following the
Store opening date. Additionally, you will reimburse us for all Grand Opening expenses
by ACH Deduction at the end of week 4 following your Store opening date. All marketing
for Special Venue Stores must be approved by us. Special Venue Stores are not required
to participate in the Brand Launch Program, but we may require special marketing
programs for the grand opening.

18.

The Franchise Annual Conference provides significant training, development, motivation
and awareness of new products and equipment that will enhance your Store and the
Marco’s brand. All franchisees are required to attend the Annual Conference 4 out of 5
consecutive years.
ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

General
You must operate your Store in strict conformity with the methods, standards, and specifications
that we prescribe in the Manual or otherwise in writing. Among other things, you must purchase
equipment, fixtures, software, ingredients, paper products and other items in accordance with our
specifications.
Depending on the item, our purchasing specifications may include particular brands or models,
particular characteristics of the products and services to be purchased, or one or more particular
sources for the product or service. We reserve the right to change our specifications during the
franchise term in our sole discretion.
Equipment, fixtures and leasehold improvements. You must purchase your Store equipment,
leasehold improvements, and fixtures according to the specifications outlined in our Manual.
Oven. The only approved ovens to bake our products are those manufactured by the MiddlebyMarshall Company and the XLT Company. These ovens must be certified by themthe
manufacturer or its representatives to meet our specifications. The list of approved models of
ovens are defined in our Manuals. We do not require that the ovens be “new”, but they must meet
our specifications. These specifications are established by us to ensure a desired and uniform
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“bake” of our products. You must purchase thenew ovens from MPD as our exclusive approved
vendor.
POS System. We have the right to require that you use a specific point of sale and computer
system. Limited Seating and Expanded Seating Stores must use the Profitouch POS computer
system or FoodTec Solutions computer system. We do not currently recommend or require
particular hardware, but each Store must have a sufficient number of “order taking stations”
installed to meet its needs. We do recommend a “standard store POS configuration” to ensure
your needs are met. You must purchase “software support” on your POS system during the first
year of your Store’s operation. See Item 11, under the heading “Electronic Point of Sale and
Computer Systems” for details. Special Venue Stores may be permitted to use other systems,
depending on the venue.
Order entry system. We have the right to require that you use a specific order entry system.
Limited Seating and Expanded Seating Stores must use an on-line order entry system from
FoodTec Solutions and MPOS, LLC, an affiliate Pyrimont Operation Solutions (Pyrimont). See
Item 11, under the heading “Order Entry System” for details. Special Venue Stores may be
permitted to use other systems, depending on the venue.
Soft drinks. We currently have an agreement with PepsiCo that designates Pepsi-Cola and its
bottlers as the sole vendor to our Stores for certain soft drinks. Special Venue Stores may or may
not be required to sell Pepsi-Cola products, depending on the venue.
Seasoning for pizza sauce and pizza dough. Marco’s Pizza stores are authorized to only sell
pizzas and other food products made with our “Marco’s” special seasoning and pizza dough. You
must purchase the special seasoning for the pizza sauce and the pizza dough pack from a
designated supplier. Currently, there is one Approved Supplier of the pizza dough and sauce
seasoning packs who sell these products to our Approved Distributors (see below).
Other proprietary items. For all other food items and packaging items that incorporate our
proprietary specifications, trade secrets, or that bear the “Marco’s Pizza” trademarks (“Proprietary
Items”), we select manufacturers (“Approved Suppliers”) and authorize them to sell the
Proprietary Items to the distributors we have approved to service Marco’s Pizza Stores
(“Approved Distributors”). In order to ensure product integrity and a consistent customer
experience, you must purchase your Proprietary Items only from an Approved Distributor.
Approved Distributor. Our affiliate, MPD, is an Approved Distributor for equipment and other items
necessary to operate a Store. There are currently three Approved Distributors, designated to
serve our franchisees by geographical regions. Depending on the geographical location of your
Store, you may be required to make certain purchases from MPD. Certain of our officers own an
interest in MPD.
Generic Items. Currently, you may purchase generic food items, and any cleaning and
maintenance items, from any supplier that meets Federal and local health regulations. We may
require you to
Cleaning and Maintenance Items. You must purchase our required cleaning and maintenance
supplies from a designated supplier in the future.system, identified by Betco, through MPD or our
other Approved Distributors.
Supplier/Distributor approval process. Upon reasonable request, we will consider the approval of
other suppliers and distributors of equipment and consumable items, but we are under no
obligation to approve any particular supplier or distributor or any minimum number of them. If you
would like to nominate an alternative supplier or distributor, you can request our “approval criteria
and request form.” We will provide our criteria only to a nominated alternative supplier or
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distributor (but not to franchisees), so long as the nominee signs a confidentiality agreement with
us before receiving our specifications. We will test the products or services of the nominee and
review its facilities, trucks, financial records, business reputation, delivery performance, credit
rating and any other information we deem relevant.
We do not currently charge a fee for such approval, but we reserve the right to require that a
nominee reimburse us for costs that we incur in testing and evaluating their application. Among
other criteria, we may consider the nominee’s ability to demonstrate that it can meet the
purchasing needs of neighboring franchisees or the entire chain. We may also consider the
impact of any potential loss of our chain’s purchasing power with existing suppliers and
distributors. Our review is typically completed within 120 days, and we will notify you within 30
days after our review is completed. In order to become approved, the new supplier or distributor
must sign an agreement in a form acceptable to us. We reserve the right to withdraw our approval
of a supplier or distributor if they no longer meet our criteria, or if our supply or distribution
agreement expires.
To become an Approved Distributor of Proprietary Items, the distributor must agree, among other
things, to deliver only approved food and packaging items to your Store (no rogue items) and to
meet our standards and specifications (including details such as shelf life and temperature
specifications for storage and transit of food items to your Store). We currently require distributors
to pay us a product management and trademark service fee for food and paper items shipped to
the Stores. We expect that this fee is less than four-tenths of one percent (0.4%) of your sales.
We use this fee to help offset the costs of operating a bulk food purchasing program for benefit of
franchised stores and also for a limited purpose license to use our trade marks. Through our food
purchasing program, we negotiate bulk purchasing arrangements and develop and enforce
standards and specifications, assess new proposed suppliers and distributors, negotiate business
terms, and fund research and development of non-proprietary items by our Product Integrity
group.
Our Interest in Suppliers. We are not an approved supplier or the only supplier of any products
or services. As described in this Item, MPD may be an approved distributor or the only approved
distributor for certain products, and certain of our officers own an interest in MPD. Except for our
officers’ interest in MPD, none of our officers owns an interest in any privately-held suppliers, or
a material interest in any publicly-held suppliers. Occasionally, our officers may own non-material
interests in publicly-held companies that may be suppliers to our franchise system.
Insurance
You must obtain and keep in full force and effect comprehensive liability insurance, including
premises, products, and completed operations, with a broad form comprehensive general liability
endorsement, including owned (if you own your own delivery vehicles) and hired (non-owned
vehicles) automobile coverage, with a minimum limit of $500,000 for death and injury to each
person, in any accident, and 500,000 per accident, with an umbrella coverage of $1,000,000, or
underlying liability coverage with a minimum of $1,000,000 limits, covering you, and if you are a
corporation, partnership, or limited liability company, covering your officers and
shareholders/partners personally. If you sell alcoholic beverages (which are not a recommended
part of our offering and require prior written permission) you must also obtain specific liability
coverage for such in an amount equal to $1,000,000 in aggregate. You must name us as an
additional insured in the insurance policies required to be obtained, and provide a current copy of
each required insurance policy to us. All policies of insurance must include a provision prohibiting
cancellations, non-renewal or material changes to the policies until 30 days’ prior written notice
has been given to us in writing. All insurance must be placed with a reputable insurance company
licensed to do business in the state in which the Store is located and having a financial size
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category of XIII and policy holder’s rating of “A” (excellent) as assigned by Alfred M. Best and
Company, Inc. We may decide that these insurance requirements might not be sufficient in the
future and you must, upon written notification, increase the limits of the insurance coverage as
we specify.
You must maintain adequate workers’ compensation and employer’s liability insurance in
accordance with the laws of the United States and of the states in which your Store’s operations
are conducted. You must provide copies of the workers’ compensation policies and certificates
of coverage to us upon request. If you fail to obtain or maintain in force any insurance we require
or fail to furnish any certificates we require, we will have the right (but not the obligation) to obtain
that insurance (or certificate) and you must reimburse us for all premiums and other costs that we
incur. Limited Seating and Expanded Seating Stores must maintain automobile liability insurance
for hired and non-owned vehicles. This insurance is not required for Special Venue Stores.
Gift Card Program
You must participate in the gift card program administered by a third party approved by us which
permits retail customers to purchase store value coupons certificates or cards which are sold and
redeemed throughout the System. You may not issue any store value tokens, certificates or cards
that are not approved by us. As of the date of this Disclosure Document the estimated per monthly
cost is $4.95, paid directly to the vendor. It will be determined by venue criteria whether Special
Venue Stores are required to participate.
Revenue Derived from Franchisee Purchases and Leases
We currently receive fees, marketing support and/or other payments from our food, beverage and
packaging suppliers and distributors based on the purchases made by our franchisees. These
required purchases account for approximately 3.9% of your total purchases or leasesThe fees
and other payments from these providers. vary based on the type of product and supplier, but
range from a flat rate of $.49 per case to $2.71 per case. We also receive rebates from certain of
our equipment suppliers of .5% of franchisee purchases, and receive a training cost
reimbursement from one of our POS system providers ranging from 3.6% to 5% of system costs.
We contribute certain of these payments to the Brand Development Fund, and apply other
payments to fund R&D studies for specialty product design and specifications, to pay the costs of
monitoring quality assurance and supplier performance, additional marketing support in certain
markets, and for general corporate purposes.
During our fiscal year ended December 28, 27, 20152014, we derived $2,486,1153,948,633 as a
result of required franchisee purchases and leases, representing 14.512.6% of our total revenues
of $19,777,90327,149,624, based on our audited financial statements. During its fiscal year ended
December 28, 27, 2015, MPD2014, MPD’s derived $47,068,67452,905,840 from the sale of
equipment and products to our franchisees.
Estimated Proportion of Required Purchases and Leases to all Purchases and Leases
We estimate that required purchases and leases, excluding your commercial real estate lease,
will account for 35% to 55% of all of your purchases and leases in establishing the franchised
business, and 92% to 98% of all of your purchases and leases in operating the franchised
business.
Description of Purchasing Cooperatives; Purchasing Arrangements
We may negotiate purchasing arrangements with Approved Suppliers and Approved Distributors
on behalf of franchisees, although we have no obligation to do so. There are no purchasing
cooperatives or distribution cooperatives in the Marco’s Pizza system (although we do conduct,
for benefit of franchised Stores, bulk purchasing programs). We do not grant material benefits
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based on your decision to purchase particular goods or services or to use particular suppliers.
We do not sell items to our franchisees.
ITEM 9
FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS
This table lists your principal obligations under the Franchise Agreement and
Development Agreement. It will help you find more detailed information about your
obligations in these agreements and in other items of this Disclosure Document.
Franchise Agreement for Limited Seating and Expanded Seating Stores
Obligation

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Item in Disclosure
Document

a.

Site selection and acquisition/lease

2.43 and 7

7 and 11

b.

Pre-opening purchases/leases

7.4 and 7.10

7 and 8

c.

Site development / other pre-opening
requirements

7, and 9.2 – 9.4

7 and 11

d.

Initial and on-going training

8 and 10

11

e.

Opening

9.3

11

f.

Fees

2.3231, 2.37, 2.4142
3.7, 4, 11, and
20.2.4.6

5, 6 and 11

g.

Compliance with standards and
policies/Operations Manual

2.35, 12.3, 12.5,
12.14

11

h.

Trademarks and proprietary information

2.36, 12.11, 17

13 and 14

i.

Restrictions on products/services offered

12.7, 12.8, and 12.10

16

j.

Warranty and customer service
requirements

12.13.2

11

k.

Territorial development and sales quotas

Not Applicable

12

l.

On-going product/service purchases

12.7, 12.08

8

m. Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

7.12, 12.12

8 and 11

n.

Insurance

18.2

6, 7, 8

o.

Advertising

2.1110, 2.2810,
2.4327, , 11

6 and 11

p.

Indemnification

18.1

6

q.

Owner's participation/management
staffing

2.2625, 13.1 – 13.3.2

11 and 15

r.

Records/Reports

2.19 and 14

6

s.

Inspections/Audits

12.10 and 14.3

6 and 11

t.

Transfer

20

17

u.

Renewal

2.40 and 3

17
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Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Item in Disclosure
Document

Post-termination obligations

19.7

17

w. Non-competition covenants

13.4

17

x.

Dispute resolution

21.1 – 21.11

17

y.

Other (Personal Guarantee)

Exhibit BA

Not applicable

Obligation
v.

Franchise Agreement for Special Venue Stores
Obligation

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Item in Disclosure
Document

7 and 11

a.

Site selection and acquisition/lease

7
For 2.43 refer to
Exhibit HD of the
Franchise
Agreement

b.

Pre-opening purchases/leases

7.4 and 7.10

7 and 8

c.

Site development / other pre-opening
requirements

7 and 9.2 – 9.4

7 and 11

d.

Initial and on-going training

8 and 10

11

e.

Opening

9.3

11

f.

Fees

2.4142, 4 and
20.2.4.6
For 2.3231, 2.37,
3.7, 4.1, 11, refer to
Exhibit HD of the
Franchise
Agreement

5, 6 and 11

g.

Compliance with standards and
policies/Operations Manual

2.35, 12.3, 12.5,
12.14

11

h.

Trademarks and proprietary information

2.36, 12.11, 17

13 and 14

i.

Restrictions on products/services offered

12.7, 12.8, and 12.10

16

j.

Warranty and customer service
requirements

12.13.2, refer to
Exhibit HD of the
Franchise
Agreement

11

k.

Territorial development and sales quotas

Not Applicable

12

l.

On-going product/service purchases

12.7, 12.08

8

m. Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

7.12, 12.12

8 and 11

n.

18.2

6, 7, 8

Insurance
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Obligation

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Item in Disclosure
Document

6 and 11

o.

Advertising

2.11, 2.2827, 2.4342,
11, refer to Exhibit
HD of the Franchise
Agreement

p.

Indemnification

18.1

6

q.

Owner's participation/management
staffing

2.2625, 13.1 – 13.3.2

11 and 15

r.

Records/Reports

2.19 and 14

6

s.

Inspections/Audits

12.10 and 14.3

6 and 11

t.

Transfer

20

17

u.

Renewal

3
For 2.40 and 3.7,
refer to Exhibit HD of
the Franchise
Agreement

17

v.

Post-termination obligations

19.7

17

w. Non-competition covenants

13.4

17

x.

Dispute resolution

21.1 – 21.11

17

y.

Other (Personal Guarantee)

Exhibit BA

Not applicable

Development Agreement
Obligation

Section in
Development
Agreement

Item in Disclosure
Document

a.

Site selection and acquisition/lease

5.1.1 and 5.1.2

7 and 11

b.

Pre-opening purchases/leases

Not Applicable

7 and 8

c.

Site development / other pre-opening
requirements

3, 5.1.2, and Ex. A.

7 and 11

d.

Initial and on-going training

Not Applicable

11

e.

Opening

Not Applicable

11

f.

Fees

2, 3.1.1

5 and 6

g.

Compliance with standards and
policies/Operations Manual

6.3

11

h.

Trademarks and proprietary information

1.3.1.2,

13 and 14

i.

Restrictions on products/services offered

Not Applicable

16

j.

Warranty and customer service
requirements

Not Applicable

11

k.

Territorial development and sales quotas

1.1

12

MARCO’S PIZZA®
Franchise Disclosure Document ǀ 20152016

33

Obligation

Section in
Development
Agreement

Item in Disclosure
Document

On-going product/service purchases

Not Applicable

8

m. Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

Not Applicable

11

n.

Insurance

Not Applicable

6, 7, 8

o.

Advertising

Not Applicable

6 and 11

p.

Indemnification

11

6

q.

Owner's participation/management
staffing

5.2.5

11 and 15

r.

Records/Reports

3.2

6

s.

Inspections/Audits

Not Applicable

6 and 11

t.

Transfer

7

17

u.

Renewal

Not Applicable

17

v.

Post-termination obligations

6.4

17

w. Non-competition covenants

8

17

x.

Dispute resolution

15.2

17

y.

Other (Personal Guarantee)

Exhibit BA

Not applicable

l.

ITEM 10
FINANCING
Except as described below, we do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your
note, lease or obligation.
We offer limited assistance in obtaining financing for your Store as described in this Item. We do
not guarantee that you will qualify for financing under the program described below, or that the
terms of financing described below will be similarly or more favorable than the terms of financing
that otherwise might be available to you. You are not required to accept financing through this
program. We must review the terms and conditions of any financing arrangements you are
considering prior to signing any documents with the lender.
ARGC, LLC - Limited Loan Guarantee Program
ARGC, LLC (“ARGC”) provides a limited guarantee of financing programs offered by a third party
lender (currently, Mt. Pleasant Capital, LLC of Warrendale, PAPennsylvania) to build new Marco’s
Pizza Stores. ARGC was formed on May 28, 2013. ARGC is currently approximately 87% owned
by 55 of our current Area Representatives and 13% owned by us.
We offer and/or have arranged for a number of different finance programs as described in this
Disclosure Document, and any decision you make to participate in the ARGC loan guarantee
program is voluntary. However, if you choose to participate in the ARGC loan guarantee program,
you must pay a financing guarantee fee (“ARGC Guarantee Fee”) in the amount of 0.5% of the
Net Royalty Sales of your Store for as long as the loan remains outstanding on your Store. There
is no maximum amount of ARGC Fee that you may be required to pay, and the amount of the
ARGC Fee will depend on the amount of Net Royalty Sales of your Store and the period of time
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the loan remains outstanding.
If you expect to obtain a loan guarantee by ARGC on your planned financing, contact us or your
Area Representative before signing the Franchise Agreement to ensure you are eligible for this
program. This program may not be available in your state or geographical area, and you do not
have an automatic “right” to participate in this or any individual financing program that is
sponsored by us or one of our affiliates, or to any guarantee program we or our affiliates may
offer.
ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING
Except as listed below, Marco’s Franchising, LLC is not required to provide you with any
assistance.
Some of the assistance we provide to you is furnished by our Area Representatives or other third
parties operating under our direction and guidance. We will remain responsible, however, for all
of this assistance even if it is provided by an Area Representative.
Before you open the Store:
1.
We will provide an initial training program. The initial training program generally consists
of 6 to 8 weeks at our training center (“Marco’s University”) and a certified training store in Toledo,
Ohio, or, at other locations as we deem appropriate; provided, however, that the final week may
be conducted at your Store, following the issuance of the Permitted Site AddendumLetter.
(Section 7.56, Franchise Agreement). (Training is also discussed below in this Item 11 under the
subheading “Training”) However, if the Franchise Agreement is for a “Key Management
Employee” of a Store on a reduced franchise fee program, or for your second or subsequent
Store, we are only obliged to provide training in duration and scope as we determine to be
appropriate in that specific case in our sole judgment. This training may include supervisory
training.
We will provide and conduct the initial training program for Special Venue Stores suitable for the
venue at our training center in Toledo, Ohio, or, at other locations as we deem appropriate. The
final week of initial training may be conducted at the venue.
If you have signed a Development Agreement, we will provide for the first Store you develop under
the agreement the same training as for a single Store (Franchise Agreement, Section 8).
2.
We will provide you with guidance in obtaining a site for your Store (the “Site”). (Section
7.2, Franchise Agreement).
3.
We will provide you with general design and decor plans and a basic layout for the
Equipment to be installed at the Store. These plans will include dimensions, exterior design,
materials, interior layout, and Equipment plans, and decorating specifications. Subject to our
approval, you may modify our basic plans and specifications only to the extent required to comply
with various applicable local ordinances, building codes and permit requirements. (Franchise
Agreement, Section 7.9).
4.
We will assist you in obtaining the Equipment and Supplies required by the Manuals;
provided, however, any financing assistance as may be required will be arranged by separate
agreement between you and a lending institution of your choice. (Franchise Agreement, Section
7.10).
5.
We will loan you a copy of the Manual during the term which you must keep in the Store.
(Franchise Agreement, Sections 12.1 and 12.5). As of the date of this Disclosure Document the
Manual contained 165 pages. The table of contents of the Manual is attached as Exhibit F.
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6.
We will provide you advice and guidance in preparing to open your Store, including
standards and procedures for obtaining inventory and supplies, providing approved services,
advertising and promoting the business, and operating the Store (Franchise Agreement, Section
7.10,).
7.
Grant a license to use the System and Marks, within the Area of Responsibility, for an
initial term of 10 years (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1).
8.
Grant a license to use the System and Marks at a Special Venue Store to match the term
of the lease/management agreement that provides possession and the right to sell Marco’s Pizza
products at the venue for a period not to exceed10 years.
9.
Designate your Area of Responsibility (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1) and designate
your Delivery Area (Franchise Agreement, Section 12.13.3).
During the operation of your business:
1.
We will provide you with continuing advice, guidance and assistance, as we determine
reasonably necessary concerning the System. This guidance, at our discretion, will be furnished
in the form of bulletins and other written materials, consultations by telephone or in person, or by
any other means of digital format communications. (Franchise Agreement, Section 10.1)
2.
We will provide additional training courses that we periodically make available to you and
your employees on an “as available” basis, upon our then-current terms for providing additional
training. (Franchise Agreement, Section 10.2)
3.
We will administer the Brand Development Fund as stated in the Franchise Agreement
and as described below in this Item 11. (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.2)
Site Selection
You may only operate the Store from a Site we have previously permitted in writing. Our
permission to operate at the Site does not mean we guarantee that the Store will be successful
at the Site. The factors we will consider for the proposed Site may include the following: (1)
population and household counts; (2) demographic characteristics of the surrounding area;
(3) location and surrounding area foot and vehicle traffic patterns; (4) competitive analysis; and
(5) availability of utilities.
We use information and assistance from third parties, currently Pitney Bowes MapInfo,
Quantitative Analysis and Forum Analytics to help target locations for Stores and Forum Analytics
and Trade Area Systems for demographics, which provides site specific data. We use this
information as a starting point to evaluate a location for a Store and to begin additional physical
site analysis and competitor and demographic analysis.
We use reports and modeling developed by companies known as Forum Analytics and
Quantitative Analysis for proprietary modeling techniques and mathematical formula to identify
and evaluate potential locations and trade areas for Stores within a given geographic area. This
evaluation is for our internal purposes to determine if locating a store in that trade area is likely to
be a good investment by us (and not necessarily by you) in helping you establish your business.
If we share the results of our decision to permit you to operate in a specific location including
decisions reached by us based on, in whole or in part, the Pitney Bowes Map Info, Forum
Analytics, Trade Area Systems or Quantitative Analysis modeling, with you, you cannot rely on
results of these models to suggest that a particular location for a Store will be successful. You
also cannot use or rely on this information to help determine whether you can expect to achieve
a particular level of sales or profits from operating a Store at a given location. The Franchise
Agreement provides that in accepting this information from us, you will release and hold us
harmless for any claims that may arise because we shared this type of information with you.
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You must prepare a competitive analysis to document you have studied the competition and made
your decision based on the analysis for any location in which you request site permission. Our
permission to operate at a specific site is not an endorsement of your competitive analysis or its
conclusion. You must sign theWe will provide you a Permitted Site Addendum (Exhibit F of the
Franchise Agreement)Letter signifying your and our permission to operate at the Site. If you fail
to do so within six (6) months of signing your Franchise Agreement, your Franchise Agreement
will automatically expire. (Section 3.1 of the Franchise Agreement)
Real Estate, Restrictions on Lease of Site
All leases for Marco’s Pizza Stores must use the Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider.
Your real estate lease must be amended by the Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider (Exhibit H).
The purpose of the Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider is to grant us certain rights under the
lease. You are permitted, generally, to make additions to the Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider
however no revisions can be made that reduce certain rights without our approval. Because we
are a signer on the Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider it must remain a separate document and
may not be incorporated into the lease document. Please note that no real estate lease may be
signed without prior or concurrent executionreceipt of the Marco’s Permitted Site Addendum
(Exhibit F of the Franchise Agreement,Letter which documents our permission to operate at the
Site.
The underlying lease for the Site must meet the requirements described in Section 7.6, and 7.8
of the Franchise Agreement. The typical length of time between the signing of the Franchise
Agreement (and the first payment of any consideration for the Store) and the opening of the Store
is generally 60 to 180 days. If you do not open your Store within 180 days of the date you enter
into the Franchise Agreement, we will have the right to terminate the Franchise Agreement.
All negotiations of the lease are your responsibility. We may require you to utilize a specified real
estate consultant to assist with the lease negotiations for the Site. If you do not have legal counsel,
we (or our designee) will provide you with the name of one or more attorneys or real estate
consultants who we believe are qualified to assist you in those negotiations. We (or our designee)
do not receive any referral or commission fees for referring you to those attorneys or consultants,
who will charge you for their services.
Initial Training
Before your Store opens, we will provide training to you, as the store owner. If you will not be
participating in the in-store operations training then we require two designated trainees to
complete the training program. We must approve the individuals designated by you, as to their
ability to perform the management functions required for the role you have designated for them,
and as their ability to assume responsibility for the operation of the Store (“Designated Franchise
Representative”). The Designated Franchise Representative will start and continue, until
completion, our initial training program; but if your Designated Franchise Representative: (A) has
previously completed our initial training program; or (B) is a key management employee of ours
(as we determine) eligible for a reduced franchise fee program that we may offer, then we will
provide to the Designated Franchise Representative the initial training that we, in our sole
discretion, deem appropriate, including supervisory training. If your Designated Franchise
Representative does not start training within 15 days of the Effective Date of the Franchise
Agreement, or within 15 days of acquiring possession of the Site, through no fault of ours, we
reserve the right to reschedule the training for completion or, in our sole discretion, terminate this
Agreement upon written notice to you.
The subjects covered in the initial training program are described in the table below.
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Marco’s University Online (MUO) is the primary tool for all online instruction. You must procure
a device compatible with accessing MUO and using its content. MUO does not provide such
devices. In 2016, we plan to implement additional pre-attendance e-learning modules.
Initial Training Program
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Course/Subjects

Hours of
Classroom
Training

Hours of on
The Job
Training

Location

 Marco’s University Online (MUO)
eLearning (Pre-101 Attendance
Work)
 The Road to Certification

.1

eLearning

 Module 1: “Life at Marco’s”

.75

eLearning

 Module 2: “Store Health”

1

eLearning

 Module 3: “Station Certification”

1

eLearning

 Module 4: “Food Prep”

1

Currently in
Text Form

 Module 5: “Dough Management”

.75

Currently in
Text Form

 Module 6: “The Five-Star Guest
Experience”

.75

Currently in
Text Form

 Module 7: “Sales Team
Certification”

.75

Currently in
Text Form

Course/Subjects
Module 8: “Driver Certification”
 Lead Insider/Lead Driver Exam
 Module 9: “Certified Trainers
Course”

Hours of
Classroom
Training

Hours of on
The Job
Training

Location

1.25

Currently in
Text Form

2

Currently in
Text Form

1.5

Currently in
Text Form

7.8 hours of
pre-work
Instructor-led
Classroom
training will be
held at our
Corporate offices
in Toledo,
OHMarco’s
Support Center,

Introduction to Operational
Excellence 101 (Classroom
Training)

Toledo, OH
 Welcome/Introductions/Overview of
Training
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 Marco’s Cultural Beliefs and Key
Results
 “We BelieveHospitality First”
 Dough Management
 The Service-Profit Chain

3
.25
2
2.75

 People Management, Part I:
Opening and Candidate Selection

.5

 People Management, Part II:
Behavioral Interviewing, Scoring,
and Tips

12.5

 People Management, Part III:
Employee Engagement

1

 Homework: Competitor Analysis
(Dinner

1.5

 “Execute Excellence”

1.25

 The “Why” Philosophy (Sales,
Profitability, Brand Integrity)

31

 Training Kitchen Tour and Store
Layout

.255

 Oven Assembly

21.5

 Food Safety

1.25

 Assemble and Bake

23

Course/Subjects

Hours of
Classroom
Training

 “Be Accountable”“Accountability =
Results”

1

 Grand Opening (GO) Checklist

12

 Franchise Decisions and Resources
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Hours of on
The Job
Training

Location

 Make Lunch for the MFLLC Support
Center

3

 Exam

2

 Debrief and Q&A/ Self-Assessment

1

Total of at least
242 hours as
documented in
the Training
Store’s POS
(this is total
time, not just
instructional
hours)

Operational Excellence Lab (OE
Lab)
6-Week Training Store Practicum

 Introduction/Orientation

2

 Marketing

10

 RestaurantWeek 1:
Product Quality
Food Safety
Sanitation
 Food Cost Management Systems
(POS for Foodtec and Pyrimont)

40

 Accounting & Finance Principals

8

 Managing for Profits

8

 Customer Service

35
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Certified
Training Store
that we
designate1

 StoreWeek 2:
Daily Shift Operations
 Maintenance and Safety

120
40

 Distribution / Purchasing MPD
WarehouseWeek 3:
 People and Labor Management

1640

 Week 4:
Hospitality and Guest Services


40

 Week 5:
 Administrative / Insurance/ Ciao Net

840

 Marco’s University / Studying
Manuals / Testing / Time
TrialsWeek 6: Ownership of the 10
Operating Systems

3040

Instructor-led
Classroom
training will be
held at our
Corporate offices
in Toledo,
OHMarco’s

Introduction to Operational
Excellence 102
(Classroom Training

Support
Center,
Toledo, OH
 Kitchen Lab (Optional)
Course/Subjects
 “Drive ResultsEmbody Trust”
 P&L Simulation (Working Dinner)

2
Hours of
Classroom
Training
.5
.254.5

 “Embody Trust”“Accelerate
Innovation”

2.5

 Time Trials/ ProductDough
Certification

61.756

 AchievingThe Extraordinary Results
Through People LeadershipLeader

.252

 “Unity Wins”

1.5

 Emotional Intelligence (EQ)
 Product Certification
 The Art of Leadership: Decision

2
1.75
.75

Filters
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Hours of on The
Job Training

Location

 Expectations, Feedback,

2

Coaching
 “Have Fun”

.5

 What is a Brand?
 The CustomerGuest Experience

2.75
1

 Regional Marking

2

 Pizza-Making/Guest Service Event

23

 Regional Marking

.5


 Local Store Marketing (LSM)

12

 Introduce Leadership Plan and
Begin Workshop

.251

 “We BelieveHospitality First”

2.5

 Leadership Plan/ Capstone
Workshop

21.5

 Capstone Presentations

1

 Comprehensive IOE Final Exam

2

 Training and Readiness Survey

2

 Graduation and Celebratory
Luncheon
TOTAL

1.5
5666 Hours

277242 Hours

Note 1. We will attempt to schedule on-the-job training at a Certified Training Store within
reasonable proximity of your Store or at our Toledo, Ohio, or Cleveland, Ohio, Certified Training
Store
Stores located within an Area Representative’s territory in California shall receive in-store initial
training at a Certified Training Store in Toledo or Cleveland, Ohio, or at a Certified Training Store
located in Las Vegas, Nevada.
Continuous Training. You must, upon opening the Store for business, implement and maintain a
continuous training program for your employees in accordance with applicable training standards
and procedures we prescribe in the Manuals or any subsequently published notices or
memorandum. You must purchase from us and utilize all training aids which we may periodically
require, such as films, video tapes web/internet, and printed materials. You must refrain from
employing or continuing to employ any person who fails to successfully complete any of our
required training programs.
Roderick Sanders oversees and directs all training as our Senior Director of Learning and
Development. He has been our Senior Director of Learning and Development since January,
2015. From January, 2013 to January, 2015 he served as the Director of Training for Praescient
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Analytics, LLC in Alexander, VA.Alexandria, Virginia. From June, 1988 to February, 2013 he
served as Command Sergeant Major forin the US Army Military Intelligence branch.
Our training sessions are conducted by various highly trained and experienced personnel in store
operations, marketing, accounting, and other essential elements for operating Marco’s Pizza
Stores.
Various training store managers that(Brand Ambassadors) who have completed our certification
program also participate in your operational training.
You must pay all expenses incurred in connection with training, including travel, living expenses,
compensation, worker’s compensation insurance and any other expenses of the Designated
Franchise Representative or your other employees during the duration of any training program.
You or your Designated Franchise Representative must complete the initial training program to
our satisfaction before opening your Store. If you or your Designated Franchise Representative
fails to complete the initial training program to our satisfaction, or if we, in our sole discretion at
any time, determine that you or your Designated Franchise Representative is not capable of
satisfactorily completing the initial training program, then we may, in our sole discretion, terminate
this Agreement upon written notice to you. We will not terminate this Agreement without providing
you an opportunity to designate (one-time) an alternative Designated Franchise Representative
within 30 days from the date which we determine the initial Designated Franchise Representative
is unacceptable. We will not charge you for training the alternative Designated Franchise
Representative.
If either you or the Designated Franchise Representative discontinue their active roles with your
Store or otherwise cease active full-time involvement in your Store, then you must enroll a
qualified replacement (who must be reasonably acceptable to us) in our initial training program
not more than 15 days after the end of the former person’s full-time employment, involvement,
and/or management responsibilities. The replacement must attend and successfully complete
the initial training program to our reasonable satisfaction as soon as it is practical to do so, and
you must pay us a training fee in the amount of $5,000 for each replacement who must be trained,
with payment to be made before replacement training begins.
You or the Designated Franchise Representative may also be required to attend refresher
courses, seminars, and other training programs that we may reasonably require periodically.
The instructional materials include the Road to Success Manual, Operations Manual,
Management Manual, Health and Safety Manual and Skill Evaluations, quizzes and Management
Test.
Pre-Approval Operational Assessment
We may require all financially qualified and otherwise approved franchisee candidates to attend
a three day “Operational Assessment” (“OA”) before your execution of the Franchise Agreement.
We retain the right to require any candidate to satisfactorily complete such program before
execution of the Franchise Agreement. There is no cost for you to participate in the OA. The
objective of the OA is to provide both you and us sufficient information about your in-store
operational disposition and temperament to help predict your performance in the Initial Training
program. We make no warranties that satisfactory completion of the three day program will
guarantee any level of success in the Initial Training program or its tests or in actual operations
of your Store.
The major objectives of the Operational AssessmentOA will be to determine your ability to
successfully handle customer contact, learn the fundamentals of pizza store operations,
understand the challenges and rigors of the food service industry, and comprehend basic store
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administrative functions. The program will require a total time commitment of between 24 and 48
hours and working at a Marco’s Pizza Store through its normal closing at least one night until
12:00 midnight or later. A summary report checklist and recommendation of the responsible
trainer will be provided to the candidate. Before participation in the OA, the candidate will sign a
standard non-disclosure agreement and agree to hold us and our participating training Store
harmless from any injury or damage suffered during the OA.
Advertising
We use a comprehensive marketing and advertising program consisting of:
(1) Our System-wide brand enhancement and development fund (“Brand Development Fund”
or “BDF”) to develop brand awareness through a variety of sources and uses, including
the creative content of all materials used by the System, in all mediums of advertising,
marketing and promotion of the Marco’s Pizza brand.
(2) Various levels of geography-based advertising fund (“Geography Based Advertising Fund”
or “GBF”) (National Advertising Fund and/or Regional Advertising Fund) to purchase
media and undertake marketing and promotional activities on a regional basis.
(3) Market level advertising cooperatives (“Market Advertising Cooperative” or “Ad Co-op”) to
combine the resources of several Stores and manage advertising media purchases and
develop marketing and promotional activities in a defined local or regional market area to
increase the effectiveness.
(4) Other advertising, marketing and promotional activities at the local store or community
level (“Local Store Marketing” or “LSM”).
You must spend a minimum of 7% of your Net Royalty Sales in the form of fees, payments, and
expenditures described in Item 6 related to our advertising, marketing and promotional programs.
We have the authority to determine what percentage of your required advertising related
expenditures will be paid to us (up to a maximum of 6.5% and we will manage those expenditures
through a combination of funds, including a Brand Development Fund and various Geography
Based Advertising Funds, as stated in more detail below. You may also be required to contribute
to a Market Advertising Cooperative, and/or initiate advertising, marketing and promotional
activities at your local Store level. The combined amount of required advertising marketing and
promotional expenditures for your Store, calculated as a percentage of your Net Royalty Sales
(“Total Marketing Spend”), is summarized below:
Advertising Requirements
Category of Spend
A

Percent of Net Royalty Sales

Required Minimum for Total Marketing Spend
by your Store

7%

Allocation
Managed By Us

Brand Development Fund:

1-1.5%
5% Maximum, combined for all
levels of GBF’s. We allow
credit for Ad Co-op
expenditure.

B Geography Based Advertising Fund:
National Advertising Fund
Regional Advertising Fund
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Combined
1 - 6.5%

Managed By You or a Market Ad Co-op

0.5% minimum (includes Ad
Co-op spend), but must equal
the sum of 7% minus the
percentage contribution
required in B, above.
We allow credit for your Ad
Co-op expenditure against the
required GBF contribution –
minimum of 3%, more at our
discretion.

Local Store Marketing:
C

Market Advertising Cooperative

Combined
0.5 - 6 %

Brand Development Fund
In order to fund the Brand Development Fund, you must pay us an amount equal to 1% of Net
Royalty Sales. We have the right to increase the Brand Development Fund contribution up to a
maximum of 1.5%. We will give you at least 90 days prior written notice if we choose to increase
the required contribution. Brand Development Fund payments must be reported and paid to us
at the same time and in the same manner that the Royalty Fees are reported and paid.
We have the right to determine how the Brand Development Fund will be allocated, and spent,
toward all activities of brand development, including producing creative content for all national,
regional and local marketing, designing and producing marketing materials, developing and
maintaining social media and internet “web” sites, franchisee-accessible intranets, promotional
activities, product development and consumer research, franchise conferences, motivational or
leadership programs, and any other program or activity we determine will enhance the recognition
and value of the brand. This fund may purchase media occasionally, but that is not the general
purpose of the Brand Development Fund. Depending on the venue, Special Venue Stores may
not be required to participate in the Brand Development Fund.
National Advertising Fund
We do not currently maintain a National Advertising. No amounts were contributed to, or
expended by, a National Advertising Fund during our fiscal year ended December 28, 27,
20152014. Depending on the venue, Special Venue Stores may not be required to participate in
the National Advertising Fund.
Geography Based Advertising Funds
You must contribute to a Geography Based Advertising Fund amounts that we designate, but not
to exceed a total of 5% of the Net Royalty Sales of the Store. The designated GBF may be a
National Advertising Fund or a Regional Advertising Fund, or you may be required to contribute
to both. We may initiate a Geography Based Advertising Fund or change a region’s boundaries
upon 30 days prior written notice to you. We may increase or decrease your Geography Based
Advertising Fund payments upon 30 days prior written notice to you, but we cannot make your
combined GBF payments greater than 5% of your Net Royalty Sales. All modifications will
continue in effect until we or our designee send you written notice of any change.
These Geography Based Advertising Funds support advertising, marketing and promotional
programs throughout the United State or for a designated region, including the placement and
purchase of advertising in various media. We have the exclusive right to determine how the
National Advertising Fund and Regional Advertising Funds will be allocated, and spent, toward
all advertising, marketing and promotional activities on a national or regional basis, respectively.
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The Geography Based Advertising Fund payments must be reported and paid to us or our
designee, each Period. The National Advertising Fund will be available for use by us across the
entire United States. We will spend all your Regional Advertising Fund contributions within the
region where your Store is located. However, you understand that we have no obligation to insure
that you will benefit directly or on a proportionate basis with other stores from the placement of
any type of Geography Based advertising, either nationally or regionally. It is our intention, but we
are not required, to form a Regional Advertising Fund for any market area when a certain number
of stores are established in that market to allow sufficient advertising efficiency and market
penetration. The region boundaries may include all or part of a single Designated Market Area
(“DMA”), or multiple DMA’s. Currently, we have 11 regional ad funds with a variety of percentages
being collected. The chart below identifies the regions and the percentage of Net Royalty Sales
that franchisees within the boundaries of these regions must pay to the GBF. Depending on the
venue, Special Venue Stores may not be required to participate in the Geography Based
Advertising Funds.
Regional Advertising Funds Currently Operating

Montgomery, AL

Percent of
Net Royalty Sales
2.5%

Tampa, FL

2.5%

Atlanta, GA

2.5%

Columbus, GA

2.5%

Macon, GA

2.5%

Indianapolis, IN

23.5%

Lansing, MI

2.5%

Cincinnati, OH

3.5.0%

Cleveland, OH

3.5%

Dayton, OH

2.5%

Toledo, OH

1.250%

North West Ohio

.25%

Rapid City, SD

4.5%

Knoxville, TN

2.5%

Region

Market Advertising Cooperatives
We may require that you join and participate in a Market Advertising Cooperative formed by the
owners of a majority of the Marco's Pizza Stores located within the designated market where your
Store is located. Before any Ad Co-op is formed, the by-laws of that organization must be
submitted to us and we must approve them. Once approved and formed by the majority of the
owners of the Marco's Pizza Stores in the designated market (including any Store owned by us
or one of our affiliates), all Marco’s Pizza Stores within the designated geographical area must
participate. Any payment required by the membership of the Ad Co-op will be an obligation you
must fulfill under the terms of your Franchise Agreement. All advertising, marketing and
promotional activities of the Ad-Co-op will be managed by the membership of each specific Ad
Co-op according to the individual By-laws. We may determine that some, all or none of the
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contributions you make to an Ad Co-op will be allowed to fulfill a portion of the required payments
to a Geographic Based Advertising Fund. If we do not require you to participate in any GBF, all
amounts you contribute to an Ad Co-op will reduce the amount you must spend as LSM.
Depending on the venue, Special Venue Stores may not be required to participate in Marketing
Advertising Cooperatives.
Local Store Marketing
You will also be required to spend a portion of the Net Royalty Sales of your Store on advertising,
marketing and promotional activities within the market and community where your Store is
located. You may be required to spend up to 6% of the Net Royalty Sales. The exact percentage
is determined by the formula: 7% minus the amounts you pay to us for the Brand Development
Fund, any Geography Based Advertising Fund you contribute to, and any amount we determine
is allowable for your payments to an Ad Co-op. See the chart above titled Advertising
Requirements for a summary of the various elements that make up the advertising expenditures
you must make. Currently, you must pay 1% of the Net Royalty Sales to the Brand Development
Fund. If we do not require you to participate in any GBF or Ad Co-op, you will be required to
spend the remaining 6% of the Total Marketing Spend for Local Store Marketing that you must
manage. Any amount we require you to spend on a GBF, as a percentage of your Net Royalty
Sales, will reduce the amount you must spend as LSM. If we do not require you to participate in
any GBF, all amounts you contribute to an Ad Co-op, as a percentage of your Net Royalty Sales,
will reduce the amount you must spend as LSM.
Example 1:
Total Marketing Spend Required:
Your Contribution to the Brand Development Fund:
Your Contribution to the National Advertising Fund:
Your Contribution to a Regional Advertising Fund:
Sub-total of Funds Managed by Us:

7%
1%
2%
2%
5%

Market Advertising Cooperative for Your Store:
Amount allowed by us against LSM
Sub-total of Funds Managed by an Ad Co-op:

2%
0%
0%

Total of combined funds and Ad Co-ops allowable:

5%

Amount you must append on Local Store Marketing

2% (7% - 5%)

Example 2:
Total Marketing Spend Required:
Your Contribution to the Brand Development Fund:
Your Contribution to the National Advertising Fund:
Your Contribution to a Regional Advertising Fund:
Sub-total of Funds Managed by us:

7%
1%
2%
1%
4%

Market Advertising Cooperative for your Store:
Amount allowed by us against LSM
Sub-total of Funds Managed by an Ad Co-op:

3%
2%
3%

Total of combined funds and Ad Co-ops allowable:

6%
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Amount you must spend on Local Store Marketing

1% (7% - 6%)

Certain items that may be a benefit to the marketing of your Store are excluded for the calculation
of the amount you spend for this Local Store Advertising requirement:


The value of any promotions and deductions (for example coupons, buy one-get one free)
or other promotional allowances which are excluded from the definition of Net Royalty
Sales



Expenditures for Supplies which bear any of the Marks (for example pizza boxes,
uniforms, etc.)

You must submit evidence of all qualifying expenditures for local advertising, marketing and
promotional activities to us on a quarterly basis. If you do not meet the LSM requirement for any
Year, we may, immediately upon notice provided to you, assess you for any deficiency, which will
be contributed, at our sole discretion, to the Brand Development Fund, any Geography Based
Advertising Fund or Ad Co-op. Depending on the venue, Special Venue Stores may not be
required to participate in the Local Store Marketing.
Brand Launch Program
The Brand Launch Program (the “Brand Launch Program”) is designed to help establish a base
level of market awareness of your Store in your primary marketing area. This marketing area may
be greater than your Area of Exclusive Responsibility, but will not be greater than your Delivery
Area. Advertising media used include, but are not limited to, individually mailed direct mail
advertising pieces of letters and postcards, “shared mail” such as “RedPlum” and similar, and
other direct mail type programs. The program will also include a special event for the Grand
Opening. The expenditures for the Brand Launch Program are directed by us.
You must participate in the Brand Launch Program for at least the opening of your first Marco’s
Pizza store. Once you have opened a Store under the Brand Launch Program you may request
a waiver from participation for your second or future stores. We do not intend to grant such a
waiver unless you have demonstrated a high level of expertise in advertising in your existing store.
The Brand Launch Program is directed by us with significant assistance from the Area
Representative (if one is appointed for your area).
We will work together to conduct a Brand Launch Program for your Store. We estimate that your
Brand Launch Program will cost between $33,500 and $38$30,000, which includes the cost of
the Grand Opening event, $5,000 for Brand Launch kit items (banners, yard signs, etc.) and
anticipated costs of local store marketing for the first 6 months the store is open.
During the Brand Launch Program, we waive the requirement of any other Local Store Marketing
as provided in Section 11.5 of your Franchise Agreement.
Neither we nor our Area Representatives make any guarantee or sales projection and assume no
responsibility or liability for any level of sales or profits for your store due to your participation in
the Brand Launch Program. Sales are a highly complex function of a large number of factors
which include but are not limited to the actual number of households in your area, their predilection
to purchase pizza in general and Marco’s Pizza in particular, the number and quality of other pizza
competitors in your area, the price you establish for your products, the physical site characteristics
of your Store, the number and type of other food service businesses in your area which compete
for the food service dollar, the quality of products, service and image of your Store, the courtesy
of your employees, and a number of other factors. We represent only that we believe our
organized approach to launching brand awareness to attract potential customers in your area will
be higher with our Brand Launch Program than if you were allowed to design your own Brand
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Launch Program. All marketing for Special Venue Stores must be approved by us. Special Venue
Stores are not required to participate in the Brand Launch Program, but we may require special
marketing programs for the grand opening.
We are not obligated to develop, implement or administer any advertising efforts to insure that
amounts equal or proportionate to your fees paid to the Brand Development Fund, any of the
Geography Based Advertising Funds, or any amounts by us, are spent in developing marketing
materials or in placement of advertising in the market area in which the Store is located, or that
you will benefit directly or on a proportionate basis from the development or placement of any
type of advertising. The Brand Development Fund will not make expenditures principally to solicit
new franchisees. We do not audit the Brand Development Fund and do not make its financial
records available to franchisees generally, but summaries of the financial performance are
reported to the representatives of the Marco’s Franchise Advisory Board (“MFAB”). Members of
the MFAB are appointed by Marco’s from a list of franchisees in Good Standing, and serve
staggered terms of 3 years.
We are not obligated to maintain or administer the Brand Development Fund or any of the
Geography Based Advertising Funds in any manner except to insure the security of these funds.
We may maintain the Brand Development Fund and any of the Geography Based Advertising
Funds in bank accounts administered by us. The funds may be comingled with other of our
monies, but the Brand Development Fund and all Geography Based Advertising Funds will be
accounted for separately. We may engage separate advertising companies to hold and maintain
the funds, and we do not act as trustee or in any other fiduciary capacity with regard to any
advertising fund. The Brand Development Fund will not be our asset. The Brand Development
Fund will not otherwise inure to our benefit. Although the Brand Development Fund is intended
to be of perpetual duration, we maintain the right to terminate the Brand Development Fund. The
Brand Development Fund will not be terminated, however, until all monies in the Brand
Development Fund have been spent for marketing or promotional purposes.
During the last fiscal year of the Brand Development Fund (ending on December 28, 27,
20152014), the Brand Development Fund spent approximately:
% of Total BDF
Expenditures
63.468.0%
2.91.0%
13.010.8%
20.72%
100%

Purpose of Expenditure
creative efforts, production and agency fees
media placement and other advertising programs
administrative expenses (including general office supplies
used by the creative staff)
other expenses (promotion, market research, and printing costs).
Total

Electronic Point-Of-Sale and Computer Systems
POS System. Under the franchise agreement, we have the right to require that you use a specific
point of sale and computer system that will generate and store information regarding the products
and services sold at the Store.


Our current requirement is that you must use the Profitouch POS or FoodTec Solutions
computer system at your Store.



We do not currently recommend or require particular hardware, but each Store must have
a sufficient number of “order taking stations” installed to meet its needs. We do
recommend the “standard store POS configuration” that we provide (defined in the
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manuals) to ensure your needs are met. Your vendor may require you to use only a
hardware and software configuration that they support.


We will have independent access to the information and data stored on your POS system,
and we will have the right to use this information and data in any manner we deem
appropriate.



We can require you to make upgrades to your POS system and other computer hardware
and software, and there is no limitation on the cost or frequency associated with our right
to do so.



You must buy “software support” on your POS system during the first year of your Store’s
operation at an annual cost of approximately $1,900 - $2,050 depending on your vendor.
We do not receive any portion of these fees, which you will pay to the POS vendor. After
one year, you can choose a different level of support, or none at all, but virtually all
franchisees elect a basic support package that currently costs $1,500 - $1,800 per year
depending on your vendor.



In addition to the “software support” on your POS system, you will also incur expenses to
maintain the hardware and other configuration expenses that typically cost approximately
$700 - $3,000 per year. We do not provide software or hardware support for your POS
system.

Depending on the venue, Special Venue Stores may not be required to purchase a POS system.
Order Entry System.
Under the franchise agreement, we have the right to require that you use an approved on-line
order entry system. You must participate in an approved on-line order entry system in order to
accept pizza and other food orders placed by customers on our Website. You may not obtain online orders into your POS through any other website. You must comply with our system standards
and procedures concerning the on-line order entry system. Among other things, you must:
(1) accept and enter these orders for pick-up or delivery as you would any other order placed
directly with your Store; (2) enter these orders via the POS system, as we may reasonably require;
and (3) while we currently do not do so we may reserve the right ato charge for administration of
the on-line order entry system and you will be required to pay the use fees to the vendor for the
order entry system which currently range from $100 - $145 per month. The vendors monthly use
fees will be in addition to credit card fees, “set-up” costs, and hardware costs. We may require
you to participate in other online and mobile systems for online ordering and marketing.
We presently have 2 on-line order systems, depending on your POS. The current fee for on-line
order entry billed by FoodTec is $100 per month, paid directly to FoodTec, and for a Pyrimont
POS is $145 per month, payable to MPOS, LLC, an affiliate of Pyrimont.
The estimated cost of purchasing the required POS hardware and software is $26,000 - $38,000,
which includes the first year of updates and enhancements, support, and approximately $2,000
towards the cost of installation. The estimated annual cost for future updates, enhancements and
support of the POS system in future years is $1,900 - $2,050 per year (which may increase over
time).
There are no further requirements under the Franchise Agreement or Development Agreement
regarding the use of computer hardware or software, except that you may be required to
electronically report sales and other information to us and you will be required to participate in an
“on-line order entry system” through the Marco’s Website.
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Depending on the venue, Special Venue Stores may not be required to operate an Order Entry
System.
Online Sites
We have an Online Site to benefit us and the System as we determine in our sole discretion.
Unless we approve otherwise in writing, you may not establish a separate Online Site, and will
only have one or more references or webpage(s), as we designate and approve, within our Online
Site. (The term “Online Site” means one or more related documents, designs, pages, or other
communications that can be accessed through electronic means, including, but not limited to, the
Internet, World Wide Web, webpages, microsites, social networking sites (e.g., Facebook, Twitter,
LinkedIn, You Tube, Google Plus, Pinterest, etc.), blogs, vlogs, applications to be installed on
mobile devices (e.g., iPad or Droid apps), and other applications, etc.
We do not intend to approve any separately identifiable Online Sites requested by Franchisees.
However, if we would approve such separate Online Site for you (which we are not obligated to
do), then each of the following provisions will apply: (1) you may neither establish nor use any
Online Site without our prior written approval; (2) before establishing any Online Site, you must
submit to us, for our prior written approval, a sample of the proposed Online Site, including its
domain name, format, visible content (including, without limitation, proposed screen shots), and
non-visible content (including meta tags), in the form and manner we may require; (3) you must
not use or modify an Online Site without our prior written approval; (4) you must comply with the
standards and specifications for Online Sites that we may periodically prescribe in the Manuals
or otherwise in writing; and (5) if we require, you must establish hyperlinks to our Online Site and
other Online Sites.
Online or Web-Based Training
You must use our online or web-based training program known as Marco’s University.
Participation in the Marco’s University training program requires internet access within your Store.
The online/web-based training modules are accessed through your POS system and provide
training and certification of your employees through interactive modules. You will pay $1/day
($365/year) as defined below in Technology Fee for use of the system (which will paid in quarterly
installments). These fees will be deposited into a separate web-based training bank account and
will be used for future enhancements of the program.
Ciao Net
We have created an intranet system to communicate with you, which is called “Ciao Net.” You
will receive correspondence and importance communication from us through “Ciao Net.” You
must access the “Ciao Net” system at least once each week to check for communication from us.
You may be required to submit your weekly royalty report summary through the “Ciao Net” intranet
system. You will have access to all manuals and proprietary information through this system. We
may require additional participation from you as we develop additional modules. There is no
additional cost for you to utilize “Ciao Net.” There is a fee of $50 per accounting period to use the
“UnaFonte” system of Social Media management, email advertising to customers, and customer
surveying that is part of Ciao Net. This fee is typically paid out of the Regional Based Advertising
Fund which you may be required to participate. If there is not a Regional Based Advertising Fund
for your area, then the cost of UnaFonte is your obligation and billed to you each accounting
period.
Una Fonte
Una Fonte isTechnology Fee
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Marco’s may provide certain other technology solutions such as a customer relationship
management system (CRM) and an extension of “CiaoNet” that enables, among other things,
email advertising to customers, a web-based training portal, tools to measure customer
surveying,satisfaction, and products enabling search engine optimization. Currently, the
Technology Fee for these solutions and tracking of responses made to customers. At our request,
you must pay $50 eachservices total $110.56 per Accounting Period toward the Store’s
proportionate share of the cost of the Una Fonte system. . If you belong to a Geography Based
Advertising Fund, $50 of this fee will typically be paid by that fund. If your Store does not
participate in a Geography Based Advertising Fund, then you must pay the Una Fonte fee, in the
manner we specify, no later than the first day of each Accounting Periodfull Technology Fee,
which is collected weekly by EFT.
The functions currently provided under the Technology Fee are the email marketing platform,
Marco’s University, Tell Marco’s (guest satisfaction program), and search engine optimization.
ITEM 12
TERRITORY
Franchise Agreement.
You must operate your Store from only one location. If you wish to relocate, you must obtain our
written permission before doing so. We will only approve a relocation of the Store if we consider
the circumstances regarding the location of the Store (such as traffic patterns, demographics,
nearby development) to have changed.
You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from
outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.
You will, however, receive a protected territory (“Area of Responsibility”), and may be authorized
to operate your franchise business beyond your Area of Responsibility as we designate (“Delivery
Area”). This area is developed using site data information and operational experience, and will be
indicated in Exhibit Athe Franchise Summary to the Franchise Agreement. There is no minimum
Area of Responsibility and, in certain circumstances, it may consist only of the building in which
the Store operates. If no other metes and bounds description has been defined in the Franchise
Agreement, the Area of Responsibility will be an area with a 1.5 mile radius from your Store’s
front door. A Delivery Area may be designated by us, but may be adjusted by us in our sole
discretion. A minimum Delivery Area will consist of your Area of Responsibility.
The Area of Responsibility for Special Venue Stores shall be limited to the confines of the venue
unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing.
We agree not to establish, and not to license to any other person to establish another Store at
any location within the Area of Responsibility; however the Area of Responsibility does not include
Special Venue Stores except as described below.
We have the right to establish, and license others to establish, Stores at any location outside the
Area of Responsibility, notwithstanding their proximity to the Area of Responsibility or the
Permitted Location or their actual or threatened impact on sales at the Franchised Business.
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We have the right to establish, and license others to establish Special Venue Stores (that is,
Stores located in a Captive Market Location) inside or outside the Area of Responsibility, despite
those Stores’ proximity to the Permitted Location or their actual or threatened impact on sales at
the Franchised Business. “Captive Market Location” includes, among other things, nonfoodservice businesses of any sort within which a Store or a “Marco’s Pizza” branded facility is
established and operated, including, for example, hotels and resorts (where the Store is enclosed
within the confines of a hotel or resort structure); airports and other travel facilities; federal, state,
or local government facilities (including military bases); theme and amusement parks; recreational
facilities; colleges and other academic facilities; seasonal facilities; shopping malls; theaters; train
stations; toll roads; hospitals; cafeterias; snack bars; truck stops; casinos; department stores;
supermarkets; gasoline convenience stores; sporting event arenas and centers; and retail
restaurant locations being sublet under a lease to a master concessionaire.
We have the right to establish, and license others to establish, businesses that are not operated
under the System and that do not use the Proprietary Marks licensed to you under this Agreement,
even if those businesses offer or sell products that are the same as or similar to the Products
offered from the Franchised Business, whether those businesses are located inside or outside
the Area of Responsibility, despite those businesses’ proximity to the Permitted Location or their
actual or threatened impact on sales at the Franchised Business.
We have the right to acquire (or be acquired) and then operate any business of any kind, whether
located inside or outside the Area of Responsibility, despite those businesses’ proximity to the
Permitted Location or its actual or threatened impact on sales at the Franchised Business
provided such businesses do not use the Marks.
So long as sales are not made from a Store located inside the Area of Responsibility (excluding
a Special Venue Store), we have the right to sell and distribute (or license others to sell and
distribute) directly or indirectly, any Products or Proprietary Items, from any location or to any
purchaser (including, but not limited, to sales made to purchasers in the Area of Responsibility
through supermarkets, gourmet shops, mail order, and on the Internet).
Your territorial rights under the Franchise Agreement include all of the rights described above
relating to the Area of Responsibility. Because the term “exclusive” on its own can be read to
mean different things by different people, we want to be precise in our language and our mutual
understanding of what is and what is not included within your Area of Responsibility. To be clear,
except as described above, you will not receive an “exclusive” territory. You may face competition
from outlets that we own or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we
control.
Limits on Where You May Sell. You may offer and sell Products only: (a) from the Franchised
Business; (b) in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and the procedures set forth
in the Manual; and (c) to retail customers for consumption on the Franchised Business’s premises,
for personal, carry-out consumption, catering, and/or for delivery. Special Venue Stores may offer
and sell Products only: (a) from the Franchised Business located solely within the confines of the
venue; (b) in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and the procedures set forth in
the Manual; and (c) to retail customers for carry-out or personal consumption on the venue
premises. You agree not to offer or sell Products through any means other than as provided
above; and therefore, for example, you agree not to offer or sell Products from satellite locations,
temporary locations, carts or kiosks, by use of catalogs, the Internet, or through any other digital
format or print media unless specifically approved by us.
Delivery and Catering. You agree to conduct all delivery activities in accordance with the
procedures that we have specified in the Manual or otherwise in writing, and the revenue from
those orders will be considered to be part of your Store’s Net Royalty Sales. Among other things,
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you agree not to engage in catering or delivery services outside of the Delivery Area unless you
have obtained our prior written consent as to each such proposed delivery order. By granting
approval to any one or more proposals to provide catering or delivery service outside of your
Delivery Area, we will not have waived our right to later approve or disapprove any other proposed
catering or delivery services. Special Venue Stores may only sell Approved Products within the
confines of the venue.
Vehicles. You will need a sufficient number of vehicles and personnel to provide satisfactory
delivery service, as we periodically determine, at all times during approved hours of operation, to
all customers located within the Delivery Area. You will need to hire delivery drivers who will have
their own vehicles, and lend them a “car-top” sign for use with each of those vehicles. Most Stores
need 6 to 12 delivery vehicles available. We assume that you will rely on employees to provide
their own transportation and will not lease or buy vehicles directly. Our vehicle requirements do
not apply to Special Venue Stores, which will not provide delivery services.
Right of First Refusal - Captive Market Locations (Special Venue).
If we desire to license any other third party to operate at a Special Venue to operate a Store in
your Area of Exclusive Responsibility, we will provide you with a Right of First Refusal to operate
or manage such facility. The terms of the Right of First Refusal are stated in the Development
Criteria Standards.
This Right of First Refusal will not apply to any facility which you are not qualified to operate due
to your non-compliance with the Development Criteria Standards. Such standards include (a) your
financial condition and inability to obtain financing for properly equipping or building such Store,
(b) your lack of security clearances or inability to obtain such, (c) any other lack of qualification
that would deny you the ability to operate any other Store in any other location, or (d) in any facility
whose food service operations are controlled by a third party contract for which you are not
qualified by such third party.
We will provide you with all relevant details concerning any such Special Venue and provide you
with thirty days written notice to allow you to exercise your Right of First Refusal as provided in
this Section. Should you not respond within said time period or if you are unable to fully commit
to exercising your Right of First Refusal, then we will have satisfied our obligations to you under
this Section.
If you are not qualified to operate said Special Venue or if you elect not to operate said location
for any reason, and we license a third party to so operate the location, we agree to pay you an
“Area Usage Fee” equal to 40% of any “net royalties” which we collect from the location. The
term “net royalties” means the gross amount we collect, less any fees paid to any applicable Area
Representative Agreements, and our direct costs in supporting such location.
Development Agreement.
As described in Item 1, if you sign a Development Agreement, you will receive a Development
Area within which you must develop Stores. If you are in compliance with your obligations under
the Development Agreement (including by developing Stores at the times required under the
Development Schedule) and all provisions of the Development Criteria Standards then in effect,
we will not establish, nor license anyone other than you to establish, a Store in the Development
Area until the last date specified in the Development Schedule, except as otherwise provided
below.
Your territorial rights under the Development Agreement include all of the rights relating to the
Development Area. Because the term “exclusive” on its own can be read to mean different things
by different people, we want to be precise in our language and our mutual understanding of what
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is and what is not included within your Development Area. To be clear, except as described
above, you will not receive an “exclusive” territory. You may face competition from outlets that
we own or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.
We will retain all other rights, and therefore retain the right (among others), and without granting
to you any rights, to operate (directly or through an affiliated entity) and grant others the right to
operate, within the Development Area and elsewhere:


Marco’s Pizza stores or other food service businesses using any part or all of the System
or the Marks at any Special Location (defined to mean institutional, government, municipal
or other special locations, which may include college campuses, hospitals, public
transportation facilities (for example, highway rest stops, airport facilities, etc.), military
bases, grocery stores, gasoline convenience stations, supermarkets, convenient stores or
department stores) or mobile units at special events such as sports or entertainment
events;



restaurants or other food service businesses that we buy (or as to which we buy the rights
as the “franchisor”) that are part of another franchise system or chain, regardless of
whether those businesses are converted to use any of the Marks or the System;



offer and sell (directly or indirectly, or through third parties), at wholesale or other channels
of distribution, products and services that may be part of the System, including products
and services that may be resold to the general public (such as, for example, sales made
through supermarkets, gourmet shops, mail order, and on the Internet); and



establish, and license others to establish, Stores anywhere outside the Development Area
despite how close they may be to the Development Area or any Store you operate within
the Development Area.

We will not prohibit other Marco’s Pizza Stores (whether we own or franchise those Stores) from
providing delivery or catering service to customers at any location, whether within or outside the
Development Area except where a store is open for business and is protected by a Delivery Area.
ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS
We license you the right to use our Marks for use in your Store. By “Marks” we mean trade
names, trademarks, service marks, and logos used to identify your Store. Our affiliate, MI,
registered and assigned to us the following trademarks and service marks, which are listed on
the Principal Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”):
Mark

MARCO’S PIZZA® (word mark)
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Registration
Number

Class(es)

Registration
Date

1,172,629

43

Oct. 6, 1981

1,316,241

43

Jan. 22, 1985

1,392,554

30, 42, 46 & 100

May 6, 1986

3,145,461

30 and 43

Sept 19, 2006
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All required affidavits have been filed. There is no pending litigation involving our principal marks
by the USPTO or the trademark administrator of any state.
You must follow our rules when you use these Marks. You cannot use a name or a Mark as part
of a corporate name or with modifying words, designs or symbols except for those which we
license to you. You may not use our registered name in connection with the sale of an
unauthorized product or service or in a manner we have not authorized in writing.
No agreements we have signed limit our right to use or license the use of our Marks. No
interference, opposition or cancellation proceeding concerning any of the service marks or trade
names, logo types or commercial symbols is presently in progress.
You must promptly notify us of any unauthorized use of the Marks, any challenge to the validity
of the Marks, or any challenge to our ownership of, right to use and to license others to use, or
your right to use, the Marks. We have the right to direct and control any administrative proceeding
or litigation involving the Marks, including any settlement. We have the right, but not the obligation,
to take action against uses by others that may constitute infringement of the Marks. We will
defend you against any third party claim, suit, or demand arising out of your use of the Marks. If
we determine that you have used the Marks in compliance with the Franchise Agreement, we will
bear the cost of defense, including the cost of any judgment or settlement, as well as your out of
pocket costs (except that you will bear the salary costs of your employees). If we determine that
you have not used the Marks in compliance with the Franchise Agreement, you must bear the
cost of defense, including the cost of any judgment or settlement, and you must promptly
reimburse us for those amounts. If there is any litigation due to your use of the Marks, you must
execute all documents and do all things as may be necessary to carry out a defense or
prosecution, including becoming a nominal party to any legal action.
We reserve the right to substitute different Marks for use in identifying the System and the
businesses operating under the System if our currently owned Marks no longer can be used, or if
we, exercising our right to do so, determine that substitution of different Marks will be beneficial
to the System. In these circumstances, the use of the substituted marks will be governed by the
terms of the Franchise Agreement.
We do not know of any infringing uses that could materially affect your use of the Marks except
as noted below. We are generally aware that there may be other food service or pizza business
that use the name “Marco’s” or “Marco’s Pizza” and we make no claim that we are the only food
service or pizza business entitled to use the name “Marco’s” or “Marco’s Pizza”. Among others,
we are aware of businesses in Denver, ColoradoCorning, California, Chicago, Illinois, Pennington
and Parsippany New Jersey, Middletown, New York, Ashville, Garner, and Mocksville, North
Carolina, Allentown, Lansford, Gilbertsville, Marietta, Lebanon, and New Town, Pennsylvania,
Sugar Land, TXTexas, Burlington, Vermont, and Milwaukee and MillOak Creek, Wisconsin, that
use and have used the name “Marco’s Pizza” or similar derivations for several years. These
businesses may or may not be infringing on one or more of our Marks. We are considering our
legal options in connection with these businesses’ use of the name “Marco’s Pizza”.
Nothing in the Franchise Agreement gives you any right, title or interest in any of the Marks used
in connection with the System, or in the goodwill of the Marks, or any right in the design of any
building or premises; your only right is the license granted under the Franchise Agreement, and
only for the term of the Franchise Agreement. Any and all goodwill associated with or identified
by the Marks is for our benefit.
ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION
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Patents and Copyrights. There are no patents material to the franchise. We claim copyright
protection covering various materials used in our business and the development and operation of
Stores, including the Operations Manual, advertising and promotional materials, and similar
materials. We have not registered these materials with the United States Registrar of Copyrights
but we are not required to do so.
There are no currently effective determinations of the United States Copyright Office or any court,
nor any pending litigation or other proceedings, regarding any copyrighted materials. No
agreement limits our rights to use or allow franchisees to use the copyrighted materials. We do
not know of any superior prior rights or infringing uses that could materially affect your use of the
copyrighted materials. No agreement requires us to protect or defend our copyrights or to
indemnify you for any expenses or damages you incur in any judicial or administrative
proceedings involving the copyrighted materials. No provision in the Development Agreement or
Franchise Agreement requires you to notify us of claims by others of rights to, or infringements
of, the copyrighted materials. If we require, you must immediately modify or discontinue using
the copyrighted materials. Neither we nor our affiliates will have any obligation to reimburse you
for expenditures you make because of any discontinuance or modification.
Confidential Information
Confidential Information means all information about the business of either you or us (or our
affiliates) which is not in the public domain. Some information about System, which is confidential,
is also protected under copyright and other federal laws and regulations.
You may not communicate, disclose, or use for any person's benefit any of the Confidential
Information, knowledge, or know-how concerning the operation of your Store that may be
communicated to you or that you may learn by virtue of your operation of a Store. You may
divulge Confidential Information only to those of your employees who must have access to it in
order to operate your Store. Any and all information, knowledge, know-how, and techniques that
we designate as confidential will be deemed confidential for purposes of the Franchise
Agreement. However, Confidential Information does not include information that you can show
came to your attention before we disclosed it to you; or that at any time became a part of the
public domain, through publication or communication by others having the right to do so.
Manual
You must operate the Store according to the various written instructions and Manual, including
any amendments, as we may periodically publish in paper or digital format.
You must, at all times, use your best efforts to keep the Manual and all other materials, goods,
and information we create, provide, or use and that we designate for confidential use within the
System and the information contained in them as confidential, and you must limit access to your
employees on a need-to-know basis. You may not, without our prior written consent, disclose,
use or permit the use of to copy, duplicate, record, transfer, transmit or otherwise reproduce that
information, in any form or by any means, in whole or in part, or otherwise make the same
available to any unauthorized person or source. Any and all information, knowledge, and knowhow not generally available outside of the System regarding our products, services, standards,
procedures, techniques and other information or material as we may designate as confidential
will be deemed Confidential Information.
The Manuals must be kept at the Store by either hard copy or digital format. If you own more
than one Store and maintain a separate office, one additional copy of the Manuals, if we have
supplied them, may be kept in that office.
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ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE
ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS.
You must devote your best efforts to operate the Store at maximum capacity and efficiency. You
must also maintain a high quality of work and services, provide suitable staffing and delivery
vehicles, employ sufficient help to do same, and continuously remain open for business 7 days
per week throughout the year, with the exception of certain holidays and during business hours
as specified in the Manuals (except when the Store is rendered untenantable for a period not to
exceed 120 days by reason of fire or other casualty).
For Special Venue Stores, you must devote best efforts to operate the Store at maximum capacity
and efficiency. The Special Venue Store will only be required to operate during the hours required
by the lease/management agreement that authorizes Franchisee possession and authority to sell
Marco’s Pizza products. You must also maintain a high quality of work and services, provide
suitable staffing, employ sufficient help to do the same as specified in the Manuals, (except when
the Store is rendered untenantable for a period not to exceed 120 days by reason of fire or other
casualty).
You must perform the tasks as we deem reasonably necessary to adhere to the minimum
performance standards we establish for the operation of the Store. You further agree to correct
any deficiencies immediately in connection with the operation of the Store that may be disclosed
in the course of any inspection, which we may conduct. If the Store is owned or operated by a
corporation, a partnership, or a limited liability company or similar organization, that entity may
not be engaged in any other line of business other than a Store, without our prior written consent.
We will take a security interest in all of the assets of your Franchised Store, for the term of the
Franchise Agreement, to secure the payment of all fees that you owe to us and to our affiliates.
The Designated Franchise Representative (who may be you) must control and be responsible for
all operations of the Store. The Designated Franchise Representative may be replaced only with
our written consent. The Designated Franchise Representative must undertake and successfully
complete any initial or any future training we require. The Store must be under the direct, on
premises, supervision of the Designated Franchise Representative. At least one Designated
Franchise Representative must devote his entire working time (excluding reasonable vacation
periods), which must be no less than 40 hours per week, to the on-site management and
supervision of the Store. You may employ store managers to direct the daily operations of the
Store, in which event the Designated Franchise Representative must supervise the Store
Manager.
If you own more than one Store, or have signed a Development Agreement, at least one
Designated Franchise Representative/Supervisor must devote his entire time (as outlined above)
to the supervision and management and supervision of the Stores. The Designated Franchise
Representative/Supervisor must satisfactorily complete any additional supervisory training that
we may require.
Each Store must be under the direct on-premises supervision of a manager at all times the Store
is open for business, supervising and performing on premises store operation management
duties. The Designated Franchise Representative/Supervisor must accordingly supervise all
store managers.
If the franchisee is a corporation, a partnership, or a limited liability company, each owner of the
entity must complete, execute and deliver the Guarantee, Indemnification and Acknowledgement
attached to the Franchise Agreement as Exhibit “BA”. We do not impose any other restrictions
on your owners or managers.
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ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL
You may offer and sell only those goods and services that we have approved.
You must offer all the goods and services that we designate as required for all franchisees. These
required goods and services are pizza and sub sandwich preparation, along with a very limited
menu of other related foods, and a delivery service. The various supplies and equipment used in
your Marco's Pizza Store are subject to our review and approval, and you cannot use any of those
items without our prior written approval (see Item 8).
You must purchase only approved ingredients from approved distributors to make approved
products in your Store.
We have the right to add additional authorized services and products that you will be required to
offer. There are no limits on our right to do so.
You are not restricted as to the customers to whom you may sell the products or services, except
that you may not sell the products at wholesale to retail establishments for re-sale, without our
prior written permission, (Franchise Agreement, Section 13.6). We have the option to set
minimum and maximum boundaries within or beyond which you must or may not offer delivery
service (Franchise Agreement, Section 12.13). While we have no present intentions to do so, we
do reserve the right to offer and sell, within the Area of Responsibility and elsewhere, at wholesale
or through channels of distribution distinct from those of your Store, products and services that
may comprise a part of the system (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1.3). These products may
then be resold at retail to the general public.
ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
This table lists important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should
read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.
THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP
Limited Seating and Expanded Seating Store Franchise Agreement
Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

a. Length of the franchise
term

2.4748 and
3.1

Summary*

Term is 10 years.
If you are a buying an existing franchise, then the new
form of franchise agreement will be adjusted so that the
10 year term dates back to the Effective Date of the
seller’s original franchise agreement.

b. Renewal or extension
of the term
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Two additional terms of 10 years each.
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Summary*

c. Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

3.7.6

You must be in compliance with the Development
Criteria Standards, sign a release, sign our new form of
franchise agreement, pay a renewal fee of $6,250 (or
25% of then- current franchise fee), and meet other
requirements. The new form of franchise agreement
may contain terms and conditions that are materially
different from your original Franchise Agreement,
including higher fees and advertising contributions.

19.1 and
19.2

If you terminate during the first week of the initial
training program, you will receive a refund of the Initial
Franchise Fee. If you terminate after the first week of
the initial training program (but still during the initial
training program), we will retain the Initial Franchise
Fee. If you terminate after the initial training program,
you will owe us a termination fee.

19.1

We may terminate the Franchise Agreement during the
initial training program for any reason, with or without
cause.

19.3 – 19.5

If you dissolve your entity (whether it is a corporation, a
partnership, or a limited liability company), fail to open
your Store within 180 days after the Effective Date,
abandon or fail to actively operate the Store for 3
consecutive days, unless such closure is caused by an
event wholly beyond your control and the Store is
reopened for business to the public within 24 hours
following the resolution of the cause, transfer an
Interest without our consent, lease or sublease or
possessory rights are cancelled or terminated, store
perpetuates a material hazard or danger to the health
and/or safety of the public, employees and/or others,
made any material misstatement or omission in the
application for the franchise, you, your employees are
convicted of a felony, or pleads guilty or no contest to a
charge that impacts the goodwill associated with the
Marks, you, your employees consume or possess
illegal drugs or alcoholic beverages at the Store or
while engaging in any delivery service, use supplies,
inventory or ingredients are not approved or that we
have disapproved, fail on two or more occasions with
any twelve months to comply with the lawful terms of
the Agreement, default on any promissory note secured
by equipment or other assets, or default on the lease
for the Site, and the expiration of any cure periods that
may apply (depending on the default).

d. Termination by
franchisee

e. Termination by
franchisor without
cause
f. Termination by
franchisor with cause
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Summary*

g. “Cause” defined –
curable defaults

19.4

All defaults not specified in “h: below. You have 30
days to cure all defaults, except for non-payment of
amounts to us or our affiliates, for which you will have
10 days to cure.

h. “Cause” defined –
nonenon-curable
defaults

19.3 and
19.5

Non-curable defaults include bankruptcy, conviction of
a felony, repeated defaults, even if cured,
abandonment, use of unapproved supplies and
inventory, and unapproved transfers. (Under the
U.S. Bankruptcy Code, 11 US Code § 101, et seq., we
may not be able to enforce the termination upon
bankruptcy clause.)

i. Franchisee’s
obligations on
termination or nonrenewal

19.7

Obligations include complete de-identification, return of
confidential materials, and payment of amounts due
(see also item “r” below)

j. Assignment of contract
by franchisor
k. “Transfer” by
franchisee – defined

No
provision
2.5150 and
20.2.1

No restriction on our right to assign.
Includes any and all assignments of any part of your
assets, rights, or obligations, as well as any interest in
you (if you are an entity, such as a corporation, a
partnership, or a limited liability company). The term
“assignment” includes any sale, conveyance, pledge,
encumbrance, merger, subcontract, creation of a
security interest in, gift, or any other transfer, whether
directly or indirectly.

l. Franchisor approval of
transfer by franchisee

20.2.3

We have the right to approve transfers.

m. Condition for
franchisor approval of
transfer

20.2.4

Transferee qualifies, transfer fee is paid, purchase
agreement is approved, training arranged, release is
signed by you and your principals, and current
Franchise Agreement is signed by transferee.

n. Franchisor’s right of
first refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

20.2.2

We can match any offer for your business.

o. Franchisor’s option to
purchase franchisee’s
business

19.8

Upon termination for cause because you have
defaulted in the performance of your agreement, we
have the option to purchase your business for the fair
market value of your equipment, in cash, within thirty
days.

p. Death or disability of
franchisee

20.3

Franchise must be transferred by estate to a qualified
heir or approved buyer, within a reasonable time.
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Summary*

q. Non-competition
covenants during the
term of the franchise

13.4

No involvement in any other food service business
where pizza represents more than 10% of sales.

r. Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated
or expires

13.4

No involvement in a business whose sales are more
than 10% pizza products for 24 months and within 5
miles of the Store or any other Marco’s Store.

s. Modification of the
agreement

21.15

No modifications unless in writing by both parties.

t. Integration/merger
clause

21.15

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are binding
(subject to state law). Any representation or promises
outside of the disclosure document and Franchise
Agreement may not be enforceable.

u. Dispute resolution by
arbitration/ mediation

21.3

Except for certain claims, all disputes must be
arbitrated in Toledo, Ohio.

v. Choice of forum

21.4

All litigation, court proceedings, lawsuits, arbitration
proceedings and other hearings must take place only in
Toledo, Ohio. Subject to state law.

w. Choice of law

21.1

Except to the extent governed by the federal trademark
laws, the law of the State of Ohio. Please refer to the
disclosure addenda and contractual amendments
(Exhibit I) attached to this Disclosure Document for
additional terms that may be required under applicable
state law.

Special Venue Store Franchise Agreement
Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

a. Length of the franchise
term

2.4748 and
3.1, refer to
Exhibit HD
of the
Franchise
Agreement

b. Renewal or extension
of the term
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Summary*

A Term to match the lease/management agreement
that provides possession and the right to sell Marco’s
Pizza products at the venue for a period not to
exceed10 years.
If you are a buying an existing franchise, then the new
form of franchise agreement will be adjusted so that the
term dates back to the Effective Date of the seller’s
original franchise agreement.
Two additional Terms to match the lease/management
agreement that provides possession and the right to
sell Marco’s Pizza products at the venue. Each renewal
term shall not exceed10 years.
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Summary*

c. Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

3.7.6

You must be in compliance with the Development
Criteria Standards, sign a release, sign our new form of
franchise agreement, pay a renewal fee of 25% of the
then-current Initial Franchise Fee, but may be reduced
by agreement based on the various Special Venue
facilities, characteristics and event criteria, and meet
other requirements. The new form of franchise
agreement may contain terms and conditions that are
materially different from your original Franchise
Agreement, including higher fees and advertising
contributions.

19.1 and
19.2

If you terminate during the first week of the initial
training program, you will receive a refund of the Initial
Franchise Fee. If you terminate after the first week of
the initial training program (but still during the initial
training program), we will retain the Initial Franchise
Fee. If you terminate after the initial training program,
you will owe us a termination fee.

19.1

We may terminate the Franchise Agreement during the
initial training program for any reason, with or without
cause.

19.3 – 19.5

If you dissolve your entity (whether it is a corporation,
partnership, or limited liability company), fail to open
your Store within 180 days after the Effective Date,
abandon or fail to actively operate the Store for 3
consecutive days, transfer an Interest without our
consent, lease or sublease or possessory rights are
cancelled or terminated, store perpetuates a material
hazard or danger to the health and/or safety of the
public, employees and/or others, made any material
misstatement or omission in the application for the
franchise, you, your employees are convicted of a
felony, or pleads guilty or no contest to a charge that
impacts the goodwill associated with the Marks, you,
your employees consume or possess illegal drugs or
alcoholic beverages at the Store or while engaging in
any delivery service, use supplies, inventory or
ingredients are not approved or that we have
disapproved, fail on two or more occasions with any
twelve months to comply with the lawful terms of the
Agreement, default on any promissory note secured by
equipment or other assets, or default on the lease for
the Site, and the expiration of any cure periods that
may apply (depending on the default).

d. Termination by
franchisee

e. Termination by
franchisor without
cause
f. Termination by
franchisor with cause
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Summary*

g. “Cause” defined –
curable defaults

19.4

All defaults not specified in “h: below. You have 30
days to cure all defaults, except for non-payment of
amounts to us or our affiliates, for which you will have
10 days to cure.

h. “Cause” defined –
nonenon-curable
defaults

19.3 and
19.5

Non-curable defaults include bankruptcy, conviction of
a felony, repeated defaults, even if cured,
abandonment, use of unapproved supplies and
inventory, and unapproved transfers. (Under the
U.S. Bankruptcy Code, 11 US Code § 101, et seq., we
may not be able to enforce the termination upon
bankruptcy clause.)

i. Franchisee’s
obligations on
termination or nonrenewal

19.7

Obligations include complete de-identification, return of
confidential materials, and payment of amounts due
(see also item “r” below)

j. Assignment of contract
by franchisor
k. “Transfer” by
franchisee – defined

No
provision
2.5150 and
20.2.1

No restriction on our right to assign.
Includes any and all assignments of any part of your
assets, rights, or obligations, as well as any interest in
you (if you are an entity, such as a corporation, a
partnership, or a limited liability company). The term
“assignment” includes any sale, conveyance, pledge,
encumbrance, merger, subcontract, creation of a
security interest in, gift, or any other transfer, whether
directly or indirectly.

l. Franchisor approval of
transfer by franchisee

20.2.3

We have the right to approve transfers.

m. Condition for
franchisor approval of
transfer

20.2.4

Transferee qualifies, transfer fee is paid, purchase
agreement is approved, training arranged, release is
signed by you and your principals, and current
Franchise Agreement is signed by transferee.

n. Franchisor’s right of
first refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

20.2.2

We can match any offer for your business.

o. Franchisor’s option to
purchase franchisee’s
business

19.8

Upon termination for cause because you have
defaulted in the performance of your agreement, we
have the option to purchase your business for the fair
market value of your equipment, in cash, within thirty
days.

p. Death or disability of
franchisee

20.3

Franchise must be transferred by estate to a qualified
heir or approved buyer, within a reasonable time.
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Summary*

q. Non-competition
covenants during the
term of the franchise

13.4

No involvement in any other food service business
where pizza represents more than 10% of the sales.

r. Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated
or expires

13.4

No involvement in a business whose sales are more
than 10% pizza products for 24 months and within 5
miles of the Store or any other Marco’s Store.

s. Modification of the
agreement

21.15

No modifications unless in writing by both parties.

t. Integration/merger
clause

21.15

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are binding
(subject to state law). Any representation or promises
outside of the disclosure document and Franchise
Agreement may not be enforceable.

u. Dispute resolution by
arbitration/ mediation

21.3

Except for certain claims, all disputes must be
arbitrated in Toledo, Ohio.

v. Choice of forum

21.4

All litigation, court proceedings, lawsuits, arbitration
proceedings and other hearings must take place only in
Toledo, Ohio. Subject to state law.

w. Choice of law

21.1

Except to the extent governed by the federal trademark
laws, the law of the State of Ohio. Please refer to the
disclosure addenda and contractual amendments
(Exhibit I) attached to this Disclosure Document for
additional terms that may be required under applicable
state law.

Development Agreement
Provision

Section in
Development
Agreement

a. Length of the
franchise term
a. Length of the
franchise term
b. Renewal or
extension of the
term
c. Requirements for
franchisee to renew
or extend

4

Summary *

Term expires when the last Franchise Agreement is
entered into under the development schedule.

No provision
No provision

No provision
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Provision

d. Termination by
franchisee
e. Termination by
franchisor without
cause

Section in
Development
Agreement
No provision
No provision

f. Termination by
franchisor with
cause

6

g. “Cause” defined –
curable defaults
h. “Cause” defined –
nonenon-curable
defaults

6.3

Default under Development Agreement, noncompliance with Development Criteria Standards,
bankruptcy, abandonment, failure to meet obligations,
and failure to comply with any material term and
condition. (Under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, 11 US
Code § 101, et seq., we may not be able to enforce the
termination upon bankruptcy clause.)
All other defaults not specified within 15 days.

6.1 and 6.2

Bankruptcies, abandonment, conviction of felony, fail to
meet obligations, fail to comply with any material term
and condition. (Under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, 11
US Code § 101, et seq., we may not be able to enforce
the termination upon bankruptcy clause.)

6.5

Obligations include ceasing to select or develop sites,
and ceasing to hold yourself out as our Developer (see
also item “r” below)

i. Franchisee’s
obligations on
termination or nonrenewal
j. Assignment of
contract by
franchisor
k. “Transfer” by
franchisee – defined

Summary *

7.1

7.4.1 – 7.4.4

l. Franchisor approval
of transfer by
franchisee
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There are no limits on our right to assign the
Development Agreement.
Includes any and all assignments of any part of your
assets, rights, or obligations, as well as any interest in
you (if you are an entity, such as a corporation, a
partnership, or a limited liability company). The term
“assignment” includes any sale, conveyance, pledge,
encumbrance, merger, subcontract, creation of a
security interest in, gift, or any other transfer, whether
directly or indirectly.
We have the right to approve transfers.
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Provision

Section in
Development
Agreement

Summary *

7.5

You and your principals must sign a release, transferee
signs a new Development Agreement, pays a transfer
fee or remaining Development Fee, meets financial
criteria, and completes training programs.

7.6

We can match any offer for your business.

m. Condition for
franchisor approval
of transfer

n. Franchisor’s right of
first refusal to
acquire franchisee’s
business
o. Franchisor’s option
to purchase
franchisee’s
business
p. Death or disability of
franchisee

q. Non-competition
covenants during
the term of the
franchise
r. Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is
terminated or
expires

No provision

7.7, 7.8 and
7.9

Your estate must transfer your interest in the
Development Agreement to a third party we have
approved, within a year after death or 6 months after
the onset of disability.

8.2, 8.3 and
8.4

No interest in a business of a similar nature (a business
featuring the sale of pizza products) during the term of
the Development Agreement.

8.3 and 8.4

Includes a 24 month prohibition similar to “q” above
within the area granted under the Development
Agreement and within 5 miles of any Marco’s Store.

s. Modification of the
agreement

13

Must be in writing by both parties.

t. Integration/merger
clause

13

Only the terms of the Development Agreement are
binding (subject to state law). Any representations or
promises outside of the disclosure document and
Development Agreement may not be enforceable.

u. Dispute resolution
by arbitration/
mediation
v. Choice of forum
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Except for certain claims, all disputes must be
arbitrated or litigated only in Toledo, Ohio.
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Provision

Section in
Development
Agreement

w. Choice of law

15.1

Summary *

The law of the State of Ohio. Please refer to the
disclosure addenda and contractual amendments
(Exhibit I) attached to this Disclosure Document for
additional terms that may be required under applicable
state law.

ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES
We do not use any public figure to promote our franchise.
ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATION
The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor owned outlets, if there is a reasonable
basis for the information and if the information is included in the Disclosure Document. Financial
performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a
franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a
franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing
information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.
We are unable to forecast sales, profits and earnings for any particular franchisee or location.
The actual sales and profits, if any, are a unique combination of the business itself and its
particular location, competition, and management ability. The results of this combination cannot
be predicted in advance and we specifically decline to issue any projected or pro forma results
for a particular franchise or franchised location.
We have prepared this financial performance representation to reflect the Net Royalty Sales of
381 Marco’s Pizza Stores operated by Franchisees (“Franchised Stores”), and 3236 AffiliateManaged Stores (as defined below), that were open during the entire 52-week period ending
December 28, 201427, 2015. This information does not include the performance of 148 new
Stores that were not open for the entire 52-week period in 20152014.
This financial performance representation also reflects certain operating results for 3236 AffiliateManaged Stores that were open and in operation for the entire fiscal year ending December 28,
201427, 2015, based on internally prepared accounting statements. “Affiliate Managed Stores”
include all Stores owned by Cleveland Marco’s LLC, and all other Stores that Cleveland Marco’s,
LLC manages for a fee that are owned by our affiliated entities including Authentic Pizza, LLC,
Marco’s Indiana, LLC and 45 Pizza, LLC (collectively, “Affiliate Managed Stores”). Cleveland
Marco’s, LLC has an equity ownership interest in Authentic Pizza, LLC, Cleveland Marco’s, LLC
and our CEO has an equity interest in Marco’s Indiana, LLC and 45 Pizza, LLC.
OPERATING RESULTS
Chart 1 below provides the ranges of the Net Royalty Sales for the 413546 System-wide Stores
(381510 Franchised Stores and 3236 Affiliate-Managed Stores) which were open for business for
52 weeks in our 20152014 fiscal year ended December 28, 27, 20152014. The categories are
separated by those stores earning less than $500,000, those between $500,000 and the system
average of $671,630683,486, and those stores above the system average.
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Chart 2 below provides the average Net Royalty Sales of the 413546 System-wide Stores
(381510 Franchised Stores and 3236 Affiliate-Managed Stores) which were open for business for
52 weeks in our 20152014 fiscal year ended December 28, 27, 20152014. Also, included in Chart
2 is the comparative results for the 3236 Affiliate-Managed Stores and for Stores operated by the
Founder, the longest operating independently-owned franchisee with 16 Franchised Stores. The
Net Royalty Sales figures after coupons and discounts for the Franchised Stores are based upon
unaudited royalty reports supplied by franchise owners.
Chart 3 below provides information regarding the Net Royalty Sales of the 3236 Affiliate-Managed
Stores that were open for business for 52 weeks in our 20152014 fiscal year.
Chart 4 below provides information regarding the Average Net Royalty Sales for the last 5 years.
The chart list the Average Net Royalty Sales of Stores in operation for at least 1 full year as of the
end of each fiscal year listed in the chart.
Chart 5 below provides information regarding the change in Average Net Royalty Sales for the
last 5 years. The chart list the dollar amount and percent of change from the prior year listed, and
the dollar amount and percent of change from the results of 2010.
Chart 6 below provides information regarding the Number of System-wide Stores with
Net Royalty Sales Over $1,000,000, by Year for the last 5 fiscal years.
Chart 1 – Net Royalty Sales of System-wide Stores – 20152014
173

141

45

$1,000,000 - $1,825,250

17

$900,001 - $1,000,000

38

$800,001 - $900,000

56

$700,001 - $800,000

17

$671,630 - $700,000

99

< $500,000

$500,000-$671,630
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By Ranges

Chart 2 - Net Royalty Sales of Systemwide Stores – 20152014
Average Net Royalty Sales of 413546 System-wide Stores

$671,630683,486

No. of Stores Above the System-wide Store Average

173 (42233 (43%)

No. of Stores Below the System-wide Store Average

240 (58313 (57%)

Highest Volume Store

$1,825,249523,882

Lowest Volume Store

$182,929257,209

Average Net Royalty Sales of 3236 Affiliate-Managed Stores
(see Chart #2 below)

$823,154814,186

No. of System-wide Stores Above the Affiliate-Managed
Store Average

133 (24%)

No. of System-wide Stores Below the Affiliate-Managed
Store Average

413 (76%)

No. of System-wide Stores Above the Affiliate-Managed
Stores Above the System-wide Store Average

88 (2127 (75%)

No. of System-wide Stores Below the Affiliate-Managed
Stores Below the System-wide Store Average

325 (799 (25%)

Average Net Royalty Sales of 16 Franchises Stores operated
by the Founder (the Franchised Stores owned and operated by
the Founder of Marco’s in mature markets – 16 Stores)
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$956,8941,011,906

No. of Founder Stores Above the Founder Store Average

9 (56%)

No. of Founder Stores Below the Founder Store Average

7 (44%)

No. of Founder Stores Above the SystemwideSystem-wide
Store Average

15 (94%)

No. of Founder Stores Below the SystemwideSystem-wide
Store Average

1 (6%)

Chart 3 - Net Royalty Sales of 3236 Affiliate Managed Stores - 20152014
Highest Volume Store

$1,136,604150,571

Lowest Volume Store

$582,698354,889

Average Net Royalty Sales of 3236 Affiliate Managed Stores

$823,154814,186

No. of Affiliate Managed Stores with Net Royalty Sales Above
this Average

12 (3817 (47%)

No. of Affiliate Managed Stores with Net Royalty Sales Below
this Average

20 (6219 (53%)

No. of Affiliate Managed Stores with Net Royalty Sales above
the System-wide Store Average

2627

No. of Affiliate Managed Stores with Net Royalty Sales Below
the System-wide Store Average

69

Chart 4 – Average Net Royalty Sales
Systemwide Stores for Last 5 Years 2010-2015
The chart list the Average Net Royalty Sales of Stores in operation for at least 1one full
year as of the end of each fiscal year listed in the chart.
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$700,000
$671,630
$661,236

$660,483

2012

2013

$650,000
$613,723
$600,000
$567,442
$550,000

$500,000
2010
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2014

Chart 5 – Change in Average Net Royalty Sales
Systemwide Stores for Last 5 Years
Fiscal
Year

Average
Net Royalty
Sales

$ Change
from
Prior Year

% Change
from
Prior Year

$ Change
over 2010

% Change
over 2010

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015

$567,442
$613,723
$670,582
$660,483
$671,000
$683,486

$46,281
$56,859
‐$10,099
$10,517
12,486

8.2%
9.3%
‐1.5%
1.6%
1.9%

$46,281
$103,140
$93,041
$103,558
$116,044

8.2%
18.2%
16.4%
18.2%
20.5%

Chart 6 – Number of Systemwide Stores with
Net Royalty Sales Over $1,000,000 by Year
Total Stores Reported
Stores over $1M
% of Stores Reported

20102011 20122011 20132012 20142013 20142015
174212
212269
269319
319413
413546
311
1122
2225
2545
4562
1.75.2%
58.2%
7.8.2%
7.810.9% 10.911.4%

Chart 7 – Statement of Typical Expenses for
Affiliate Managed Stores at Average Volume Sales
The costs presented in Chart 6 below are the actual averages of the costs incurred by the 3236
Affiliate Managed Stores that were open during the entire 52-week period ending December 28,
27, 20152014. The operating data for these Stores were re-stated to a common format. Certain
revenues and expenses were eliminated which did not directly relate to the operation of Marco’s
Pizza Stores, or the determination of Store earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation
and amortization. Some cost categories are omitted in order not to mislead you as these cost
categories may not necessarily be indicative of the costs you may incur.
Dollars

% of Net Royalty
Sales

$823,154814,186

100.0%

$238,450212,502

29.026.1%

$39,23736,638

4.85%

$192

0.0%

$277,879249,140

33.830.6%

$149,726144,925

18.217.8%

Revenue:
Net Royalty Sales
Direct Costs:
Total Food
Paper
Miscellaneous Shipping
Total Cost of Food, Paper Misc. Shipping
Direct Labor (Note 1)
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Dollars

% of Net Royalty
Sales

$35,40834,196

4.32%

$360,141385,925

43.747.4%

$21,45024,426

2.63.0%

Worker’s Compensation - Notes 1, 3

$6,4213,257

0.84%

Bonuses – Note 1

$8,4905,699

1.0.7%

Insurance & Employee Benefits - Note 1

$6,6698,958

0.81.1%

Total Indirect Labor Expense - Note 2

$43,03042,338

5.2%

$317,111343,587

38.542.2%

24,53335,010

4.3.0%

Bad Debts & FeesRecruiting and Onboarding

$21825

0.01%

Bank Fees

973$866

0.1%

Cash (Over) & Short – Note 1

$468790

0.01%

$10,109584

1.23%

$566775

0.01%

$1,437628

0.2%

$6,7448,142

1.0.8%

$140185

0.0%

Management Salary
Gross Profit (Operations)
Indirect Labor Expense
Taxes on Labor - Notes 1, 3

Adjusted Gross Profit - Note 2
Operating Expenses:
Delivery Expense

Credit Card Fees
Crew Meetings & Special Training
Laundry & Uniforms
Repairs & Maintenance (Note 1)
Online Ordering Fees
Theft & Security

$194273

0.0%

Supplies – General

$5,184699

0.67%

Supplies – Janitorial

$2,7813,257

0.34%

Trash Removal

$1,019816

0.1%

Telephone

$5,141241

0.67%

Utilities (Note 1 & 4)

1.92.0%
$15,73216,284

Total Operating Expenses - Note 2
Gross Controllable Profit - Note 2

MARCO’S PIZZA®
Franchise Disclosure Document ǀ 20152016

75

$75,04290,375

8.811.1%

$242,069253,212

29.731.1%

Dollars

% of Net Royalty
Sales

$29,980311

3.6%

$641814

0.1%

Fixed & Non Controllable Expenses:
Rent - Note 4
Licenses & Taxes
Royalties - Note 5

$20,58019,540

2.54%

Auto Insurance

$2,9103,257

0.4%

Insurance – Business - Note 1

$3,6204,071

0.4.05%

$57,73156,993

7.0%

$8,231142

1.0%

Advertising – Regional - Note 4

$26,65624,426

3.20%

Advertising – Other

$35,37833,382

4.31%

Advertising – Flyers

$2,207442

0.3%

$72,47268,392

8.84%

130,203$125,385

15.84%

111,866$127,827

13.915.7%

Total Fixed Expenses - Note 2
Advertising
Advertising – Brand Development

Total Advertising Expense – Note 2
Total Fixed & Non-Controllable Expenses - Note 2
Store Level Income Before Owners Compensation,
Interest & Administration - Note 2

Chart 8 below provides specific information regarding the Net Royalty Sales for 1 of the 413 Stores
open for business for 52 weeks in our 20152014 fiscal year that shared a building with and
operated in conjunction with, the ownership of a Baymont Inn and Suites hotel (“Hotel Store”) in
Rapid City, SDSouth Dakota. The Hotel Store opened October 2013.
Chart 9 below provides a Statement of Actual Revenue and Expenses for 1 Store Operating in
Conjunction with a Hotel in Rapid City, SDSouth Dakota.
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Chart 8 – Results for 1 Store Operating in
Conjunction with a Hotel - 20152014
Store
1

Weekly
Average Net
Royalty Sales

Total Net Royalty
Sales

4010 $31,65328,960 $1,646,468505,923

Chart 9 - Statement of Actual Revenue and Expenses for 1 Store
Operating in Conjunction with a Hotel in Rapid City, SD
Presented in Chart 9 below are the actual revenues and expenses for the 1 Hotel Store that was
open during the entire 52-week period ending December 28, 27, 20152014. The operating data
for this Store was re-stated to a common format and certain revenues and expenses were
eliminated before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization. We do not collect
expense information from our franchisees and, therefore, we have no reliable information
concerning the number of Stores that achieved or surpassed the Hotel Store’s Level Income
Before OwnersOwners’ Compensation, Interest and Administration levels as reported below.
Some of these cost categories may not necessarily be indicative of the costs you may incur. It
should be noted the local economy in Rapid City, SDSouth Dakota, during 20152014 was
somewhat impacted by the natural gas exploration industry based on advances in fracking and
horizontal drilling in the Great Plains and Upper Midwest energy region. While we believe the
information presented regarding the Hotel Store is accurate, you should keep in mind this
is the result of only 1one store operating in association with a hotel, and there is no way
to predict whether another hotel site for a Marco’s Pizza Store would have a result at all
similar to the Hotel Store.
Dollars

% of Net Royalty
Sales

$1,646,468505.923

100.0%

$505,454405,833

30.726.9%

$59,607565

3.64.0%

$1,201

0.1%

$566,262465,398

34.430.9%

Direct Labor (Note 1)

$445,020305,665

27.020.3%

Management Salary

$35,92166,582

2.24.4%

$599,262668,278

3644.4%

Revenue:
Net Royalty Sales
Direct Costs:
Total Food
Paper
Miscellaneous Shipping
Total Cost of Food, Paper Misc. Shipping

Gross Profit (Operations)
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Dollars

% of Net Royalty
Sales

$62,64343,335

3.82.9%

$3,129728

0.21%

$5300

0.0%

Insurance & Employee Benefits - Note 1

$0

0.0%

Total Indirect Labor Expense - Note 2

$66,30244,063

43.0%

$532,960624,215

3241.4%

Delivery Expense

$40,80636,529

2.54%

Bad Debts & Fees

+$71-82

0.0%

Accounting Fees

$9,1368,938

0.6%

Bank Fees

$1,4732,257

0.1%

Cash (Over) & Short – Note 1

$5,5262,459

0.32%

$29,04428,817

1.89%

$0148

0.0%

$6,000044

0.34%

$10,26012,537

0.69%

$07,338

0.05%

$206

0.0%

Supplies – General

$8,27011,050

0.57%

Supplies – Janitorial

$8,108590

0.56%

$0187

0.0%

$3,6005,043

0.24%

$29,62021,220

1.84%

Total Operating Expenses - Note 2

$151,978153,506

8.210.3%

Gross Controllable Profit - Note 2

$380,981470,709

23.131.2%

Indirect Labor Expense
Taxes on Labor - Notes 1, 3
Worker’s Compensation - Notes 1, 3
Bonuses – Note 1

Adjusted Gross Profit - Note 2
Operating Expenses:

Credit Card Fees
Crew Meetings & Special Training
Laundry & Uniforms
Repairs & Maintenance (Note 1)
Online Ordering Fees
Theft & Security

Trash Removal
Telephone
Utilities (Note 1 & 4)
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Dollars

% of Net Royalty
Sales

$47,95086,642

2.95.8%

$4,814416

0.3%

$90,52783,881

5.5%

$0

0.0%

$3,12215,111

1.0.2%

$146,413190,050

12.68.9%

$36,72315,059

2.21.0%

70,997

4.6%

Advertising – Other

$30,2408,618

1.80.6%

Advertising – Flyers

$8,077

0.5%

$75,04194,674

4.6.2%

$221,453284,724

13.518.8%

$159,527185,985

9.712.4%

Fixed & Non Controllable Expenses:
Rent - Note 4
Licenses & Taxes
Royalties
Auto Insurance
Insurance – Business - Note 1
Total Fixed Expenses - Note 2
Advertising
Advertising – Brand Development
Advertising – Regional - Note 4

Total Advertising Expense – Note 2
Total Fixed & Non-Controllable Expenses - Note
2
Store Level Income Before Owners Compensation,
Interest & Administration - Note 2

NOTES:
The following notes are intended to help you better understand the data that we have included as
well as the data that we have omitted from our averages. While certainly every cost is dependent
upon your actions as a franchisee, certain costs are much more dependent on you or other factors
beyond our ability to control.
1.

This cost category is largely dependent upon your decisions and how you choose to
operate the business. New employers are likely to be charged with a higher experience
rate than us.

2.

These are sub-totals and totals of the column.

3.

These cost categories may be dependent upon local, state, and federal government.

4.

These cost categories are dependent upon local market conditions.

5.

The Affiliate Managed Stores are charged a different Royalty Rate than you. Please
see the applicable Disclosure Document section and Franchise Agreement for your
applicable costs for these categories.

6.

Cost figures provide only a part of the information that you will need to evaluate the
franchise opportunity. We urge you to carefully consider not just these figures but also
the information that you independently verify and develop about the costs that you are
likely to incur. Franchisees will incur business expenses that are likely to be
significant, and those expenses will vary considerably from one franchisee to the next.
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As a franchisee you will be required to pay royalty fees and make local advertising
expenditures, as well as to make contributions to advertising funds and marketing
expenditures. These costs are based upon a number of well-established stores
operated by affiliates of ours in primarily two cities in Ohio and Indiana. Your costs
will depend upon a number of factors which include, but are not limited to, your
expertise in operating a Marco’s Pizza Store, the general level of wages in your area,
the costs of food transported to your area, the overall costs of utilities and other support
costs in your area, governmental issues, and a number of other factors. Among the
additional categories of expenses that you may incur are rent and occupancy costs;
franchisee compensation over and above that earned from the operations of the Store
business (such as the salary that you may draw); employee benefits, such as health,
vacation and pension plan contributions (none of which are included in the payroll
numbers in the chart); debt service; insurance; Store facilities and property
maintenance (and reserves for future maintenance); business and regulatory fees and
licenses; ongoing and supplemental training expenses; recruitment expenses; legal
and accounting fees; and bookkeeping and other professional services.
7.

Your sales may be higher or lower than the average sales levels reflected in the charts
and will depend upon a large number of factors (such as the quality of your Store
location, the number of competitors in the area, the quality of the competition, your
ability to understand and implement the Marco’s Pizza System as explained in the
Manual, and a number of individual factors beyond simple explanation). In addition to
the points noted above, your results will be affected by factors such as prevailing
economic or market area condition, demographics, geographic location, interest rates,
your capitalization level, the amount and terms of any financing that you may secure,
the property values and lease rates, your business and management skills, staff
strengths and weaknesses, and the cost and effectiveness of your marketing activities.
The information presented above does not guarantee that you will or may achieve any
particular level of sales or profits, or that you will experience the same or similar
expenses or costs in the operation of your Store. A new franchisee at a newly-opened
Store should not expect to obtain these results.

8.

We strongly advise you to conduct an independent investigation of this information
and the opportunity to buy a franchise so that you can decide whether or not you think
the franchise will meet your financial needs. Among other things, we recommend that
you contact the current and former franchisees listed in this Disclosure Document and
that you also consult with a qualified attorney, accountant, and other professional
advisors before entering into any agreement with us. We suggest that you develop
and review with your own professional advisors a pro forma cash flow statement,
balance sheet and statement of operations, and that you make your own financial
projections regarding sales, costs, customer base, and business development for your
own Marco’s Pizza Store before you sign any agreement with us.

9.

Written substantiation of the data used in preparing the information in this Item 19 will
be made available to you upon reasonable request.

10.

The information in this Item 19 is an historic representation about the performance of
our outlets. Other than the preceding financial performance representation in this Item
19, we do not make any written or oral representations of statement of sales, profits
or earnings to prospective franchisees. We also do not authorize our employees or
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are
purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of
that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections
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of your future income, you should report it to our management by contacting Debbie
Allen, our Director of Corporate Compliance, at 5252 Monroe St., Toledo, Ohio 43623
(800.262.7267), the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory
agencies.
11.

Some outlets have earned these amounts. Your individual results may differ. There
is no assurance you’ll earn as much.
ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
Table No. 1
Systemwide Outlet Summary
for Years 2012 – 2013 – 20152014 (Note 1)
Year

Outlets at the
Start of the Year

Outlets at the
End of the
Year

Net Change

20132012

245301

301404

+56103

20142013

301404

404537

+103133

20142015

404537

537634

+13397

20132012

29

29

+0

20142013

29

2933

+04

20142015

2933

33

+40

20132012

274330

330433

+56103

20142013

330433

433570

+103137

20142015

433570

570667

+13797

Outlet Type

Franchised

Company Owned

Total Outlets

Table No. 2
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees
to New Owners (Other than the Franchisor)
For Years 20122013 to 20152014 (Note 1)
State
Alabama
Arkansas

Arizona

Florida
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Year

Number of Transfers

20132012
2014
2015
2013
2014
2015
20132012
2013
2014
2015
20132012
2013
2014
2015

0
4
0
0
40
1
0
0
1
0
13
3
9
8
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State
Georgia

Indiana

Louisiana

Oklahoma

Michigan
Nevada

Ohio
Ohio

Tennessee
Texas
Texas
Virginia

Totals
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Year

Number of Transfers

20132012
2013
2014
2015
20132012
2013
2014
2015
20132012
2013
2014
2015
20132012
2013
2014
2015
20132012
2013
2014
20122015
2013
2014
2012
2013
2014
2015
20132012
2013
2014
20122015
2013
2014
20122015
2013
2014
20132012
2013
2014
2015

52
2
5
2
21
1
1
1
0
0
1
0
10
0
0
7
2
2
6
1
0
0
5
3
11
5
1
1
0
14
3
0
1
0
0
2015
15
38
30

82

Table 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
For Years 20122013 to 20152014 (Note 1)

State
AL

AR

AZ

CA

CO

FL

GA

IA

Year
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013

Terminations

NonRenewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operation
s - Other
Reasons

Outlets at
End of
Year

34

0

0

0

0

1418

1418

41

0

0

0

0

1819

1819

16

0

0

0

01

1924

15

41

0

0

0

0

56

56

13

0

0

0

0

69

69

30

0

0

0

0

9

32

0

0

0

0

10

2

2

0

0

0

0

0

2

2

0

0

0

0

0

2

23

10

0

0

0

0

3

3

05

0

0

0

01

37

37

53

02

0

0

10

78

910

14

0

0

0

0

1014

1014

42

0

0

0

01

1415

1415

21

0

0

0

10

1516

2334

1116

0

0

0

0

3450

3450

1611

0

0

0

02

5059

5059

116

0

0

0

23

5962

2332

914

0

0

0

0

3246

3246

1417

0

0

0

0

4663

4663

1722

0

0

0

01

6384

01

12

0

0

0

0

13

13

23

0

0

0

0

36

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

1114
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State

IL

IN

KS

KY

LA

MI

MN

MO

Year
20142
015
20132
012
2013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015

Terminations

NonRenewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operation
s - Other
Reasons

Outlets at
End of
Year

31

0

0

0

0

67

01

14

0

0

0

0

15

15

411

0

0

0

0

516

516

117

0

0

0

0

1623

1316

47

0

0

0

1

1622

1622

7

0

0

0

10

2227

2227

78

0

0

0

01

2734

0

04

0

0

0

0

04

04

43

0

0

0

01

46

46

31

0

0

0

10

67

23

12

0

0

0

0

35

35

23

0

0

0

01

57

57

30

0

0

0

10

7

45

10

0

0

0

0

5

5

01

0

0

0

0

56

56

10

0

0

0

0

6

35

10

0

0

0

12

3533

3533

02

02

0

0

20

33

33

20

20

0

0

0

33

0

02

0

0

0

0

02

02

2

0

0

0

0

24

24

20

0

0

0

0

4

01

12

0

0

0

0

13

13

2

0

0

0

0

35

35

23

0

0

0

0

58

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

36
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State
MS

ND

NE

NC

NJ

NV

NY

OH

OK

Year
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
21042
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012

Terminations

NonRenewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operation
s - Other
Reasons

Outlets at
End of
Year

01

0

0

0

0

01

01

10

0

0

0

0

1

1

01

0

0

0

0

12

1

01

0

0

0

0

12

12

1

0

0

0

0

23

23

1

0

0

0

0

34

0

02

0

0

0

0

02

02

21

0

0

0

0

23

23

12

0

0

0

0

35

8

03

0

0

0

0

811

811

36

0

0

0

0

1117

1117

67

0

0

0

0

1724

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

03

0

0

0

0

03

03

30

0

0

0

01

32

5

0

0

0

0

01

54

54

0

0

0

0

10

4

4

01

0

0

0

0

45

0

01

0

0

0

0

01

01

14

0

0

0

0

15

15

40

0

0

0

0

5

7986

85

0

0

0

10

8691

8691

59

0

0

02

01

9197

9197

911

0

0

20

12

97106

69

34

0

0

0

0

913

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

0
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State

PA

SC

SD

TN

TX

UT

VA

WI

Year
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013

Terminations

NonRenewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operation
s - Other
Reasons

Outlets at
End of
Year

46

0

0

0

0

1319

1319

62

0

0

0

0

1921

0

01

0

0

0

0

01

01

16

0

0

0

0

17

17

61

0

0

0

01

7

16

57

0

0

0

0

613

613

79

0

0

0

0

1322

1322

98

0

0

0

0

2230

0

01

0

0

0

0

01

01

12

0

0

0

0

13

13

21

0

0

0

0

34

7

01

0

0

0

0

78

78

15

0

0

0

0

813

813

56

0

0

0

0

1319

912

312

0

0

0

0

1224

1224

1210

0

0

0

0

2434

2434

108

0

0

0

02

3440

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

02

0

0

0

0

02

02

21

0

0

0

0

23

2

0

0

0

0

0

2

2

01

0

0

0

01

2

2

1

0

0

0

10

23

12

17

0

0

0

01

28

28

7

0

0

0

10

815

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

913
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State

Year
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015
20132
012
20142
013
20142
015

WV

Totals

Terminations

NonRenewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operation
s - Other
Reasons

Outlets at
End of
Year

72

0

0

0

0

1517

01

10

0

0

0

0

1

1

02

0

0

0

0

13

13

20

0

0

0

0

3

245301

60108

0

0

0

45

301404

301404

108147

02

0

04

58

404537

404537

147111

2

0

40

812

537634

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

815

Table No. 4
Status of Affiliate-Owned Outlets
For Years 20122013 to 20142015 (Note 1

State

Indiana

Ohio

Total

Year

Outlets
at Start
of Year

Outlets
Opened

20122013
20142013
20142015
20122013
20142013
20142015
20122013
20142013
20142015

3
3
35
26
26
2628
29
29
2933

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Outlets
Reacquired
from
Franchisees
0
02
20
0
02
20
0
04
40

Outlets
Closed

Outlets Sold
to
Franchisees

Outlets
at End of
Year2

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

3
35
5
26
2628
28
29
2933
33

Notes to Item 20 tables:
1

The numbers for 20122013 to 20142015 are for our fiscal years that ended, December
30, 2012, December 29, 2013, December 28, 2014, and December 28, 2014,27, 2015
respectively. If multiple events occurred affecting a restaurant, the table shows the event
that occurred last in time.

2.

The names of the owners, locations and telephone numbers of all Franchised Stores are
found in Exhibit K.

3.

The following is contact information for the Marco’s Pizza Franchisees that had a
Franchise Agreement terminated, canceled, not renewed, or who otherwise voluntarily or
involuntarily ceased to do business under a Franchise Agreement during 20142015, or
failed to communicate with us within 10 weeks of the issuance date of this Disclosure
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Document.1 If you buy the franchise offered in this disclosure document, your contact
information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system:
Contact Person

Entity Name

City & State

Kenneth Love (3
stores)Chris Moore,
Grady Lee, Tommy
Russell

JK LoveVenice Pizza,
LLC

Montgomery, AL

Michael LaneBrent
Buttrey/Harvey Heck
Anthony CitroJagdish
Singh

Cousins Capital
Management, LLCPure
Pursuit, Inc.
Waltac
ManagementAmar HK,
LLC

Gulf Shores, ALNorth
Little Rock, AR

Current Business
Phone Number
334-356-60004422

404-569-6181501753-8100

Tucson, AZCeres, CA

520-747-3898209531-0400
925-484-44494494440

Deepak Gupta

Star Franchise, LLC

PleasantonLivermore,
CA

Jamie Boone – Nick
Costanza

Slices, LLC

Ft. Collins, CO

Kalpit Patel

M.Tilak, LLC

Clearwater, FL

Kirk Luchman / Louis
Hernandez / Glenn
Ajmo/Julie Sobh

Authentic Pizza of
GainesvilleAltamonte
Springs, LLC

GainesvilleAltamonte
Springs, FL

Brian HallRitesh Patel

Pizza Hermanos
2Soham of Davie, LLC

GainesvilleDavie, FL

Robert Desimone –
Robert Burton
Glenn AjmoKirk
Luchman
Louis Hernandez (2
stores)

T.G.B.T.G. Pizzeria’s,
LLC

Naples, FL

Fab FiveBack 2 Pizza,
LLCInc.

JacksonvilleGreen
Acres, FL

Hiren Patel
PurviSuresh Patel

Authentic Pizza of
OcoeeFour Ten, LLC

OcoeeLutz, FL

Traci SmallGlenn
Ajmo

Authentic Pizza of
Hunters CreekSwagger
Sales, LLC

OrlandoPanama City
Beach, FL

Kevin SmallJanet
Berndt

Colonial BrandsJR & RJ
Enterprise, LLC

OrlandoSanford, FL

407-341-37973287676

KalpitRoshan Patel

TM PUJAJalaram Pizza,
LLC

Palm HarborSunrise, FL

954-741-0003727223-4932

Air Force OneTemple
Terrace Pizza, LLC

TampaTemple Terrace,
FL

Prakash
InvestmentsFresh Start
Pizza, LLC

Atlanta, GATallahassee,
FL

MACC Pizza, LLC

Tampa, FL

Jon Gaudineer
Jeff/Maria Scott
Decker
Prakash PatelKirk
Luchman/Louis
Hernandez (2 Stores)
Christopher
Melendez/Fernando
Melendez

419-349-7468
727-443-7333
407-888-32887861000
251-583-2221954533-2214
239-596-6531
904-771-1313561969-2333

407-521-1515813949-1099
407-888-3288850249-9888

813-840-01239886124
404-428-1322850577-3200
813-887-4500
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Contact Person

Entity Name

City & State

Amin Surani
Siraj AliMeena Patel
Drew Anthony
Michael Grimes
Sandip Amin Andrew
Crawford
Remi TessierMike
Wolf, Ricky Poston,
Vicki Johnson
Jason and Lisa
RenderHenry
Davit/Amber Davit
Courtney Galyan (2
stores)Bryon
Stephens/Brandon
Gorin
Brian Welk
Ritesh Kunvarji
Robert Lawless
Pete Ialacci/ Rico
Ialacci (3 stores)Jong
Man Kim
Chris Meyers/ Joe
Meyers (3
stores)Dhaval Patel,
Durtesh Patel, Samir
Patel

Sisham, Inc.Pramukh
Hari, LLC

Duluth, GA

Pie Squared, LLC

Peachtree, GA

HMCrawford Pizza
Enterprise, LLC

RoswellHampton, GA

Dough Re MiPizza Guys
Southeast, LLC

Warner
RobbinsSavannah, GA

AOM, Inc.A&H, LLC

Ft. WayneAuburn, IN

CG Bear
GeorgetownMP Purdue,
LLC

IndianapolisWest
Lafayette, IN

MPKC 1, LLC
Laknahour Pizza, LLC
Mia’s Pizza, LLC

Overland Park, KS
Nicholasville, KY
Chalmette, LA

P&R Enterprises, LLCJiJi, Inc.

AdrianAnn Arbor, MI

Rodney Hummel
Thomas D’Angelo
Daniel Caskey
(10Scott Arnold (3
Stores)
David Knoles /
Michael NomarRonn
Moore
Jason Gehring
Daniel Cutillo
JohnJack Holroyde
Ferdinand
GozumGary and Ann
Culbertson (2 Stores)
Kevin and Laurel
Wilkerson (7 Stores)
Nirav Patel

Meyers
ManagementOM MP
First Store, LLC

East Lansing,
MIVoorhees, NJ

Hummel & D’Angelo,
LLC
D’Angelo Enterprises,
LLC

Highland, MI
Howell, MI

MTF Pizza Pazzo, LLC

Blue AshAmelia, OH

Flying FishPizzaman,
LLC

CincinnatiMacedonia,
OH

JC Gehring Enterprise,
LLC
Cutillo, Inc.
NorthcoastNorthcoart
FHD, Inc.

Columbus, OH
Delphos, OH
SanduskyNorwalk, OH

Zoom Pacific,
LLCJAGC, Inc.

Hampton, VA
Springboro, OH

MPOK 5001, LLC

Oklahoma City, OK

NIBS Food, Inc.

Norristown, PA
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Current Business
Phone Number
678-701-5544470539-8585
770-486-9900
678-502-75258144866
478-971-4444912335-1230
260-471-77003330994
317-295-0875765764-1414

913-897-1600
513-560-1323
985-640-1197
517-406-1714734998-2600
517-323-3311856874-8747

248-887-7900
517-548-9900
513-793-78007536700
386-566-7609330468-0999
614-471-1441
419-349-3172
419-626-51776635555
868-864-0912937748-2500
918-615-3500
484-322-2144

Contact Person
Kenneth and Darlene
Reinke (4 Stores)
Joel Day
Akash Gupta
Shannon Summit

Entity Name

City & State

First Slice, LLC

Knoxville, TN

Dayco, LLC
AVM Development, Inc.
Summit & Adams
Enterprises, Inc.

Fort Worth, TX
Austin, TX
Texarkana, TX

Current Business
Phone Number
865-357-7780
817-346-1333
512-454-4444
903-792-0159

Note 1. Each franchisee listed above operated one Store unless otherwise noted.
Table 5
Projected Openings
As of January 1, 20142015

State

Franchise
Agreements Signed
But Store Not Open

Arizona
Alabama
Arkansas
California
Colorado
Florida
Georgia
Illinois
Indiana
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maryland
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
New Jersey
New York
Nebraska
North Carolina
North Dakota
Ohio
Oklahoma
Pennsylvania
South Carolina
South Dakota
Tennessee
Texas
Utah
Virginia
West Virginia
MARCO’S PIZZA®
Franchise Disclosure Document ǀ 20152016

1
30
0
31
03
1118
2010
10
10
10
0
3
0
0
01
0
0
0
0
56
0
6
1
0
23
01
74
919
1
1
10
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Projected
Franchised New
Stores In The Next
Fiscal Year
1
4
2
4
3
1819
2521
3
3
2
1
2
2
2
1
2
1
0
1
10
2
14
3
1
56
1
8
1520
2
26
2

Projected New
Affiliate Owned
Openings In Next
Fiscal Year
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
01
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

State

Franchise
Agreements Signed
But Store Not Open

Wisconsin
Total

0
7379

Projected
Franchised New
Stores In The Next
Fiscal Year
1
140150

Projected New
Affiliate Owned
Openings In Next
Fiscal Year
0
01

During the last three fiscal years, we have not signed any confidentiality clauses with current or
former franchisees which would restrict them from speaking openly with you about their
experience with us.
ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Attached as Exhibit C are our audited income statement, balance sheet and accompanying
footnotes as of our fiscal years ended December 30, 201427, 2015, December 29, 201328, 2014,
and December 28, 201229, 2013.
ITEM 22
CONTRACTS
The following contracts are attached to this Disclosure Document as an exhibit:







Development Agreement - Exhibit D
Franchise Agreement - Exhibit E
Form of Authorization Agreement for Direct Withdrawals (ACH Debits) - Exhibit G
Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider - Exhibit H
Before signing the Franchise or Development Agreement, you must complete Exhibit J
(Franchisee Certification). This completed document must be returned to and approved
by us.
Sample General Release – Exhibit L
ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

The last two pages of this Disclosure Document are the receipt pages. Please sign and date
each receipt page as of the date you received this Disclosure Document, and return one copy to
us.
You may also acknowledge receipt of this Disclosure Document through the following website:
www.marcosreceipts.com.
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STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA
FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
1.
The State of California has codified regulations specific to the food service industry. You
may refer to California Plan Check Guide for Retail Food Facilities at
http://www.ccdeh.com/resources/documents/food-safety-guidelines-1/152-california-plan-checkguide-for-retail-food-facilities-2/file. For further requirements, please see the California Retail
Food Code at http://www.cdph.ca.gov/services/Documents/fdbRFC.pdf.
2.

Item 3 is supplemented by the following:
Neither we nor any person identified in Item 2, or an Affiliate or franchise broker offering
franchises under our principal trademark is subject to any currently effective order of any
national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such person
from membership in such association or exchange.

3.

Item 17 is supplemented by the following:
The Franchise Agreement requires you to sign a general release of claims on renewal or
transfer of the Franchise Agreement. California Corporations Code Section 31512
provides that any condition, stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring
any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of that law or any rule or order
thereunder is void.
California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights
to franchisees concerning termination or non-renewal of a franchise. If the Franchise
Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.
The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may
not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et seq.).
The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete that extends beyond the
termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law
but we will enforce it to the extent enforceable.
California Corporations Code, Section 31125 requires us to give you a disclosure
document, in a form containing the information that the commissioner may by rule or order
require, before a solicitation of a proposed material modification of an existing franchise.
The Franchise Agreement requires the application of the laws of Ohio. This provision may
be unenforceable under California law.

4.
THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL
PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED
TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.
5.
OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS OVERSIGHT. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE
CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF
BUSINESS OVERSIGHT at WWW.DBO.CA.GOV.
FOR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS
Item 17 is supplemented by the following:
Section 705/4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987 (the “Act”) provides that any
provision in the Franchise Agreement that designates venue outside of Illinois is void with
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respect to any cause of action that is otherwise enforceable in Illinois; however, the
Agreement may provide for arbitration in a forum outside of Illinois.
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Franchise Agreement and the Development
Agreement that OhioTexas law shall govern, Illinois law shall apply to and govern any claim
between the parties under the Franchise Agreement and the Development Agreement
that alleges violation of the Act.
The conditions under which your franchise can be terminated and your rights on renewal may be
affected by Illinois law, 815 ILCS 705/19 and 705/20.
FOR THE STATE OF MARYLAND
1.
For each table included in Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document, the “Summary”
sections of Item 17(c) and 17(l) are amended by adding the following:
The Code of Maryland Regulations, COMAR 02.02.08.16L., states that a general
release required as a condition of renewal, sale and/or assignment/transfer shall
not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure
Law. This may affect the enforceability of certain provisions in the Franchise
Agreement relating to renewal, sale, assignment or transfer of the Franchise
Agreement.
2.
For each table included in Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document, the “Summary”
section of Item 17(h) is amended by adding the following:
A provision in the Franchise Agreement that provides for termination on your
bankruptcy may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section
101 et seq.).
3.
For each table included in Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document, the “Summary”
section of Item 17(v) is amended by adding the following:
You may sue us in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Law must be brought within three (3) years after the grant of the franchise.
4.
The Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law prohibits a franchisor from
requiring a prospective franchisee to assent to any release, estoppel or waiver of liability as a
condition of purchasing a franchise. Any provisions of the Franchise Agreement which requires a
prospective franchisee to disclaim the occurrence and/or non-occurrence of acts that would
constitute a violation of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law in order to
purchase a franchise are not intended to, nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any
liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.
5.

Exhibit J, “Franchisee Certification,” shall be amended by the addition of the following:
The representations under this Franchisee Compliance Certification are not
intended, nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA
1.

Item 13 is supplemented by the following:
With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with Minn. Stat.
Section 80C.12, Subd. 1(g) which requires us to protect your right to use the trademarks,
service marks and trade names and indemnify you from any loss, costs or expenses
arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of same.
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2.

Item 17 is supplemented by the following:
A.

Renewal and Termination. With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law,
we will comply with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5 which require,
except in certain specified cases, that you be given 90 days’ notice of termination
(with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal of the Agreement.

B.

Choice of Forum. Minn. Stat. Section 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit
the franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside of Minnesota,
requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated
damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the
Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce any of
franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or
franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws
of the jurisdiction.

C.

Releases. Minn. Rule 2860.4400D prohibits us from requiring a franchisee to
assent to a general release. A general release shall not relieve any person from
liability imposed by the Minnesota Franchise Law, Minn. Stat., Chapter 80C,
Sections 80C.22.

D.

Injunctive Relief. Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibits us from requiring a franchisee
to consent to a franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. We may seek injunctive relief.
In addition, a court will determine if a bond is required.

E.

Limitation of Claims. With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we
will comply with Minn. Stat. Section 80C.17, Subd. 5, which requires that no action
may be commenced more than three years after the cause of action accrues.

FOR THE STATE OF NEW YORK
1.
All references made herein to a Disclosure Document shall be amended to Offering
Prospectus.
2.

The following paragraphs are added to the Franchise Disclosure Document Cover Page:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR SOURCES OF
INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW YORK STATE DOES NOT
MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION
IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN THAT ANYTHING IN THIS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND THE NEW
YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF LAW, BUREAU OF INVESTOR PROTECTION AND
SECURITIES, 120 BROADWAY, 23RD FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK, 10271-0332.
WE MAY, IF WE CHOOSE, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE
PROSPECTUS. HOWEVER, WE CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL
UPON A PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS THAT ARE LESS FAVORABLE
THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS PROSPECTUS.
WE REPRESENT THAT THIS PROSPECTUS DOES NOT KNOWINGLY OMIT ANY
MATERIAL FACT OR CONTAIN ANY UNTRUE STATEMENT OF A MATERIAL FACT.
3.

Item 3 is supplemented by the following:
Neither we, our predecessors, any person identified in Item 2, nor an Affiliate offering
franchises under our principal trademark has an administrative, criminal or civil action
pending against it, him, or her alleging a felony; a violation of franchise, antitrust or
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securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property;
unfair or deceptive practices or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations. In addition,
neither we, our predecessors any person identified in Item 2, or an Affiliate offering
franchises under our principal trademark has any pending actions, other than routine
litigation incidental to the business, which are significant in the context of the number of
franchisees and the size, nature or financial condition of the franchise system or its
business operations.
Neither we, our predecessors, any person identified in Item 2, nor an Affiliate offering
franchises under our principal trademark has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo
contendere to a felony charge or, within the 10 year period immediately preceding the
application for registration, has been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a
misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a
franchise, antifraud or securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion or
misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices or comparable allegations.
Neither we, our predecessors, any person identified in Item 2, nor an Affiliate offering
franchises under our principal trademark is subject to a currently effective injunctive or
restrictive order or decree relating to the franchise, or under federal, state or Canadian
franchise, securities, antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a
concluded or pending action or proceeding brought by a public agency; or is subject to
any currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities
exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling
such person from membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a currently
effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of
an action brought by a public agency or department, including, without limitation, actions
affecting a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.
4.

Item 4 is supplemented by the following:
Except as disclosed above, neither we nor any of our Affiliates, predecessors, officers, or
general partners have, during the 10-year period immediately before the date of the
Disclosure Document: (a) filed as debtor (or had filed against it) a petition to start an
action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code; (b) obtained a discharge of its debts under the
U.S. Bankruptcy Code; or (c) was a principal officer of a company or a general partner in
a partnership that either filed as a debtor (or had filed against it) a petition to start an action
under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or that obtained a discharge of its debts under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code during or within 1 year after the officer or general partner of ours held
this position in such company or partnership.

5.

Item 17 is supplemented by the following:
All rights you enjoy and any causes of action arising in your favor from the provisions of
the New York General Business Law, Article 33 and the regulations issued under the Law
shall remain in force. This means that any language in the Franchise Agreement that
states you waive or surrender your rights under the Act is without effect in New York. Any
provision purporting to require you to agree to a waiver or estoppel that would relieve a
person of his/her legal obligations to you under the Act is unlawful in New York.
Under New York law, you have the right to terminate the Franchise Agreement and
Development Agreement on any grounds available by law.
Any provision in a Franchise Agreement that grants a franchisor the right to assign the
Agreement without the prior approval of a franchisee shall be modified to permit an

MARCO’S PIZZA®
Franchise Disclosure Document ǀ 20152016

4

State Specific Addenda

assignment to an assignee who, in the good faith judgment of the franchisor is willing and
able to assume the franchisor’s obligations under the Agreement.
Our choice of law provisions should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred on
either us or on you by the Franchise Sales Act of New York (New York General Business
Law, Article 33).
THE FRANCHISOR REPRESENTS THAT THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT DOES NOT
KNOWINGLY OMIT ANY MATERIAL FACT OR CONTAIN ANY UNTRUE STATEMENT OF A
MATERIAL FACT.
FOR THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
The North Dakota Securities Commissioner has held the following to be unfair, unjust, or
inequitable to North Dakota franchisees (Section 51-19-09, N.D.C.C.):
1.

Restrictive Covenants: Franchise Disclosure Documents which disclose the
existence of covenants restricting competition contrary to Section 9-08-06,
N.D.C.C., without further disclosing that such covenants will be subject to this
statute.

2.

Situs of Arbitration Proceedings: Franchise agreements providing that the parties
must agree to arbitrate disputes at a location that is remote from the site of the
franchisee's business (subject, however, to the possible application of the Federal
Arbitration Act, 9 US Code §§1-14).

3.

Restriction on Forum: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to the
jurisdiction of courts outside of North Dakota.

4.

Liquidated Damages and Termination Penalties: Requiring North Dakota
franchisees to consent to liquidated damages or termination penalties.

5.

Applicable Laws: Franchise agreements which specify that any claims arising
under the North Dakota franchise law will be governed by the laws of a state other
than North Dakota.

6.

Waiver of Trial by Jury: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to the
waiver of a trial by jury.

7.

Waiver of Exemplary and Punitive Damages: Requiring North Dakota franchisees
to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damages.

8.

General Release: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to execute a general
release of claims as a condition of renewal or transfer of a franchise.

FOR THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
In recognition of the restrictions contained in Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising
Act, the Franchise Disclosure Document for Marco’s Franchising, LLC for use in the
Commonwealth of Virginia shall be amended as follows:
The following statements are added to Item 17.h:
Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a
franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or
termination stated in the Franchise Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause”, as
that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that
provision may not be enforceable.
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Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a
franchisor to use undue influence to induce a franchisee to surrender any right given to
him under the franchise. If any provision of the Franchise Agreement involves the use of
undue influence by the franchisor to induce a franchisee to surrender any rights given to
him under the franchise, that provision may not be enforceable.
FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
Item 17, "Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution" is supplemented by the
following:
The state of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180, which may supersede the
franchise/development agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the
areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions
which may supersede the franchise/development] agreement in your relationship with the
franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.
In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall
be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the
arbitration, or as determined by the arbitrator (subject, however, to the possible application
of the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 US Code §§1-14)
In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment
Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW shall prevail.
A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee/developer shall not include rights
under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act except when executed
pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties
are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably
restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, rights or remedies
under the Act such as a right to a jury trial may not be enforceable.
Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor's reasonable
estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer.
FOR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN
Item 17 is supplemented by the following:
For all franchisees residing in the State of Wisconsin, we will provide you at least 90 days’
prior written notice of termination, cancellation, or substantial change in competitive
circumstances. The notice will state all the reasons for termination, cancellation, or
substantial change in competitive circumstances and will provide that you have 60 days in
which to cure any claimed deficiency. If this deficiency is cured within 60 days, the notice
will be void. If the reason for termination, cancellation, or substantial change in competitive
circumstances is nonpayment of sums due under the franchise, you will have 10 days to
cure the deficiency.
For Wisconsin franchisees, Ch. 135, Wisconsin Statutes, of the Wisconsin Fair Dealership
Law, supersedes any provisions of the Franchise Agreement or a related contract that is
inconsistent with the Law.
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EXHIBIT A TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
LIST OF ADMINISTRATORS
This franchise may be registered or exempt from registration in some or all of the following states that
regulate the offer and sale of franchises. The following are the state administrators responsible for the
review, registration, and oversight of franchises in these states:
CALIFORNIA
Commissioner of Business Oversight
Department of Business Oversight
320 West Fourth Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, California 90013-2344
(213) 876-7500;(866) 275-2677 (toll free)
HAWAII
Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs
Bus. Reg. Div., Securities Compliance Branch
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
(808) 586-2722
ILLINOIS
Franchise Bureau
500 South Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706
(217) 782-4465
INDIANA
Secretary of State
Franchise Section
302 West Washington, Room E-111
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(317) 232-6681
NORTH DAKOTA
North Dakota Securities Department
600 Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol
Fifth Floor, Dept. 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712
RHODE ISLAND
Department of Business Regulation
Securities Division
1511 Pontiac Avenue, Building 69-1
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920
(401) 462-9585
SOUTH DAKOTA
Department of Labor and Regulation
Division of Securities
124 S. Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, South Dakota 57501
(605) 773-4823
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MARYLAND
Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division
200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
(410) 576-6360
MICHIGAN
Consumer Protection Div., Franchise Section
525 West Ottawa Street
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor
Lansing, Michigan 48913
(517) 373-7117
MINNESOTA
Commissioner of Commerce
Department of Commerce
85 7th Place East, Suite 500
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101
(651) 296-4026
NEW YORK
Bureau of Investor Protection and Securities
New York State Department of Law
120 Broadway, 23rd Floor
New York, New York 10271
(212) 416-8211
VIRGINIA
Director, Securities and Retail Franchising Div.
State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street
Richmond, Virginia 23219
(804) 371-9051
WASHINGTON
Department of Financial Institutions
General Administration Building
150 Israel Road, 3rd Floor
Tumwater, Washington 98501
(360) 902-8760
WISCONSIN
Office of the Commissioner of Securities
201 West Washington Avenue
Madison, Wisconsin 53703
(608) 261-9555

Exhibit A

EXHIBIT B TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
We intend to register this disclosure document as a “franchise” in some or all of the following states, in
accordance with the applicable state law. If and when we pursue franchise registration (or otherwise comply
with the franchise investment laws) in these states, we will designate the following state offices or officials
as our agents for service of process in these states:
CALIFORNIA
Commissioner of Business Oversight
320 West Fourth Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, California 90013-2344
(213) 576-7500
(866) 275-2677 (toll free)
HAWAII
Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division
Securities Compliance Branch
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
(808) 586-2722
ILLINOIS
Illinois Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706
(217) 782-4465
INDIANA
Indiana Secretary of State
201 State House
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(317) 232-6681
NORTH DAKOTA
North Dakota Securities Commissioner
600 Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol
Fifth Floor
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
RHODE ISLAND
Department of Business Regulation
Securities Division
1511 Pontiac Avenue, Bldg. 69-1
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920
(401) 462-9585
SOUTH DAKOTA
Department of Labor and Regulation
Division of Securities
124 S. Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre SD 57501
(605) 773-4823
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MARYLAND
Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
(410) 576-6360
MICHIGAN
Michigan Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division
Attn: Franchise Section
525 W. Ottawa Street.
G. Mennen Williams Bldg., 1st Floor
Lansing, Michigan 48913
(517) 373-7117
MINNESOTA
Commissioner of Commerce
85 7th Place East, Suite 500
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101
(612) 296-4026
NEW YORK
Secretary of State of the State of New York
One Commerce Plaza
99 Washington Avenue
Albany, New York 12231
VIRGINIA
Clerk of the State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219
(804) 371-9733
WASHINGTON
Director of Department of Financial Institutions
General Administration Building
150 Israel Road, 3rd Floor
Tumwater, Washington 98501
(360) 902-8760
WISCONSIN
Commissioner of Securities
201 West Washington Avenue
Madison, Wisconsin 53703
(608) 261-9555

Exhibit B

EXHIBIT C TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MARCO'S FRANCIDSJNG, LLC
AND SUBSIDIARY
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 28, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Members
Marco's Franchising, LLC and Subsidiary
Toledo, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Marco's Franchising, LLC and
Subsidiary as of December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013, and the related consolidated statements of
income and members' equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair . presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. · The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nqt for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of·
the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Independent Member of Leading Edge Alliance

145 Chesterfield Lane •Maumee, Oh io 43537-220 9 • P 419.891.1040 • F 419.891.1065
www.wvco.com

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Marco's Franchising, LLC and Subsidiary as of December 28, 2014 and
December 29, 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

March 30, 2015

MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLCAND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
ASSETS (Note 4)
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - trade (net of allowance of $24,206 in 2014 and $28,404 in 2013)
Accounts receivable - affiliated companies (Note 7)
Accounts receivable - other
Current portion ofnotes receivable (Note 7)
Inventories (Note 1)
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

$

Net property and equipment (Note 2)
Other assets
Equipment held for sale
Deposits and other assets
Business intelligence project (Note 1)
Notes receivable - net of current portion (Note 7)
Goodwill
Intangible assets - net (Note 3)
Accounts receivable - other
Accounts receivable - affiliated companies (Note 7)
Total other assets
Total assets

$

2014

2013

3,157,825
1,389,313
398,159
63,611
137,555
8,082
546,079
5,700,624

3,314,881
1,552,490
337,022
50,205
225,676
14,314
549,616
6,044,204

1,296,337

625,433

26,000
837,039
1,896,049
1,037,241
6,133,556
827,678
0
44,756
10,802,319
17,799,280

26,000
902,578
60,881
1,117,722
6,133,556
840,354
12,370
0
9,093,461
15,763,098

$

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Current portion oflong-term debt (Note 4)
Accounts payable - trade
Accrued liabilities
Deferred franchise fees

$

Total current liabilities

593,892
2,750,843
314,987
1,707,000
5,366,722

Total long-term liabilities

548,162
5,860,297
6,408,459

476,407
6,464,669
6,941,076

Total liabilities

11,775,181

10,514,994

Total members' equity
Total liabilities and members' equity

6,024,099
6,024,099
17,799,280

5,248,104
5,248,104
15,763,098

Long-term liabilities
Reserve for financing guarantees
Long-term debt - net of current portion (Note 4)

Members' equity
Members' equity (Note 5)
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$

$

508,116
1,639,577
262,725
1,163,500
3,573,918

MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013

Amounts

Percent to Total
Revenues
2013
2014

2014

2013

Total revenues

$ 14,347,493
3,212,751
17,560,244

$ 10,227,393
2,528,256
12,755,649

Total cost of sales
Gross profit

6,560,156
6,560,156
11,000,088

4,534,353
4,534,353
8,221,296

37.36
37.36
62.64

35.55
35.55
64.45

6,915,848

5,806,017

39.38

45.52

4,084,240

2,415,279

23.26

18.93

13,124
(392,897)
(3,848)
2,217,659
1,834,038

13,302
(199,505)
(2,064)
1,543,224
1,354,957

0.07
(2.24)
(0.02)
12.63
10.44

0.10
(1.56)
(0.02)
12.10
10.62

33.70 %

29.55 %

Revenues
Royalties (Note 7)
Franchise and development fees

Cost of sales
Commissions

Operating expenses

Income from operations
Other income (expense)
Interest income
Interest expense
Loss on sale of equipment
Other income

Total other income
Net income
Members' equity
Members' equity, beginning of year
Add: net income
Less: distributions to members
Members' equity, end of year

$

$

5,918,278

5,248,104
5,918,278
(5,142,283)
$ 6,024,099

$ 3,770,236

81.70 %
18.30
100.00

$ 9,977,868
3,770,236
(8,500,000)
$ 5,248,104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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80.18 %
19.82
100.00

MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of assets

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - affiliated companies
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Deposits and other assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Reserve for financing guarantees
Deferred franchise fees
Net cash provided by operating activities

2014

2013

$ 5,918,278

$ 3,770,236

339,323
3,848

279,586
2,064

162,141
(105,893)
6,232
3,537
(1,853,168)

(745,587)
(66,701)
410,958
(199,516)
(521,221)

1,111,264
52,262
71,755
543,500
6,253,079

1,007,989
65,439
(376,893)
249,000
3,875,354

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchases of intangibles
Issuance of notes receivable
Proceeds from notes receivable
Net cash used in investing activities

(831,286)
1,180
0
(133,321)
248,696
(714,731)

(313,076)
10,310
(125,000)
(108,607)
283,242
(253,131)

Cash flows from financing activities
Financing fees
Borrowings on long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt
Distributions to members
Net cash used in financing activities

0
0
(553,121)
(5,142,283)
(5,695,404)

(125,081)
7,147,500
(1,687,607)
(8,500,000)
(3,165,188)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

(157,056)

457,035

3,314,881

2,857,846

$ 3,157,825

$ 3,314,881

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
Note 1-

Significant accounting policies
Nature of business
Marco's Franchising, LLC and Subsidiary (the "Company"), is comprised of two
business units. Marco's Franchising, LLC is an Ohio limited liability company, was
formed in August 2003 for the purpose of acquiring substantially all of the rights to
Marco's Pizza operating system and trademark names from Marco's, Inc. Marco's
Pizza is a system of pizza carryout and delivery stores which operates through a
:franchised network located in thirty-four states throughout the country and one
international location.
The Company is, a :franchisor, and its principal business activity is selling :franchise
agreements, collecting royalties and :franchising fees from :franchisees, and
developing new :franchise locations. Under terms of the licensee agreement, the
Company agrees to provide a specified amount of training, support and ongoing
management assistance to franchisees. At December 28, 2014, the Company had 575
franchised stores. The Company operates as a limited liability company whereby the
liability of its members is limited to the amount of their investment.
Marco's Assurance, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary, was formed in April 2009 for
the purpose of providing certain guarantees to lenders and other capital providers to
assist in obtaining financing for Marco's Franchising, LLC :franchisees.
The purpose of the financing program created by the Company is to reduce the risk of
loss of principal provided by lenders and other capital providers thereby encouraging
the successful financing of Marco's Franchising, LLC :franchisees and ultimately
assisting in the growth of Marco's Franchising, LLC.
Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Marco's Franchising,
LLC and its wholly owned subsidiary, Marco's Assurance, LLC. All material
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The
companies file a consolidated federal tax return.
The following is a summary of the financial position of Marco's Assurance, LLC as
of December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013:

Assets
Liabilities
Member's equity (deficit)
Net income (loss)

2014
Marco's Assurance,
LLC
$
601,826
$
601,826
$
0
$
0

2013
Marco's Assurance,
LLC
$
519,131
$
519,131
$
0
$
0

Fiscal year
The Company's fiscal year is based on a fifty-two/fifty-three week year. The fiscal
year ends on the Sunday closest to the last day of December. The years ended
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013 both contained 52 weeks.
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MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
Note 1-

Significant accounting policies - Continued
Use of estimates
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported revenues and
expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates used.
Accounts receivable
The Company carries its accounts receivable at cost less an allowance for doubtful
accounts. On an annual basis, the Company evaluates its accounts receivable by
examining receivable balances and establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts.
Receivables are written off as uncollectible on a case by case basis as determined by
management.
Revenue recognition
The Company derives its revenues from royalties and franchise and development fees
charged to franchisees. Royalties are charged to franchisees based on sales and are
recognized as revenue when earned. Franchise fees charged to new stores are
deferred until the store opens and the Company has performed all of the initial
services it is required to provide. Development fees are recognized as revenue,
generally, when paid.
Goodwill and other intangible assets
The Company adopted FASB ASC 350, Goodwill and Other, which addresses the
accounting and reporting of goodwill and other intangible assets subsequent to their
acquisition. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired in connection with business acquisitions.
Goodwill has an indefinite life and is not amortized but is reviewed at least annually
for impairment or whenever circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the asset
may be impaired. The Company has evaluated the carrying value of goodwill at
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013 and believes that its carrying.value does
not exceed fair value.
The Company holds rights under franchise agreements with franchisees which are
amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of 10 years. These
agreements will generally provide for an initial franchise fee of $25,000 and
continuing royalty and advertising payments based on a percentage of gross
revenues. Other intangible assets consist primarily of trademarks, trade names, and
recipes. The Company has evaluated and determined that trademarks, trade names
and recipes have indefinite lives and are not subject to amortization but are reviewed
at least annually for impairment or whenever circumstances indicate the carrying
amount of the asset may be impaired.
The Company holds rights to a territory which are amortized on a straight-line basis
over an estimated useful life of 5 years, unless the rights become sold to franchisees
prior to the conclusion of 5 years.
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MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
Note 1-

Significant accounting policies - Continued
Inventories
Inventories consist of supplies and are recorded at the lower of cost or market value.
Cost is determined using a weighted average cost method which is not materially
different from the first-in, first-out method.
Depreciation
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Repair and maintenance costs are
charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets and amounted to
$189,881 and $168,002 for the years ended December 28, 2014 and December 29,
2013, respectively.
Advertising
Advertising expenses are charged to operations during the year in which the related
advertising takes place. Certain advertising costs are capitalized and amortized over
the expected useful life of the advertising/soliciting program. Advertising expense
was $4,116 and $1,942 for the years ended December 28, 2014 and December 29,
2013, respectively. The Company also administers a cooperative advertising
program as an agent for its franchisees. These receipts and disbursements, which
amounted to approximately $12,000,000 in 2014 and $6,600,000 in 2013, are not
reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of short-term highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less. At times the cash held at the various
financial institutions may exceed amounts covered by insurance provided by the U.S.
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The maximum loss that would have resulted
from that risk is the excess of the deposits reported by the bank over the amount that
would have been covered by federal insurance. The Company has not experienced
any losses and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk related to cash
deposits.
Federal income taxes
The Company is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes.
Consequently, all tax effects of the Company's income or loss are passed through to
the Company members. Accordingly, no provision for federal and state income taxes
has been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Tax returns
for all years after 2010 are subject to future examinations by tax authorities. The
implementation of FASB ASC 740 did not have any impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
Note 1-

Significant accounting policies - Continued
Business intelligence and digitale project
In 2013 and continuing in 2014, the Company has devoted a substantial amount of
resources, approximately $1,900,000, to the development of an enterprise-wide
database, on-line ordering platforms, and data transmission interfaces and analysis
tools. The projects will continue into 2015 and beyond. The goals of the projects
range from the analysis of customer ordering information to improve offer
management, to improve ease of customer ordering experiences, and to increase
franchise store level profitability. The costs of these projects are largely accounted
for as "work in progress" and will be capitalized when operational.
Reserves for future guarantees
Marco's Assurance, LLC issues guarantees to banks and other lenders for a portion
of the amount of financing to certain Marco's Pizza Stores to reduce risk to the lender
for making such financing available. As of December 28, 2014, there were forty-two
. guarantees outstanding totaling $1,900,000. As of March 15, 2015 there were fortytwo guarantees outstanding totaling $1,900,000. In addition, Marco's Assurance,
LLC will help fund the relocation of certain Marco's Pizza Stores whose sales are
low. In helping to fund such relocation, Marco's Assurance, LLC further reduces risk
to the lender, to Marco's Pizza franchisees, and to Marco's Franchising, LLC.
The obligation to make such guarantees to lenders and to potentially fund relocations
is evidenced by a "Certificate of Guarantee" issued by Marco's Assurance, LLC. The
form and substance of such certificate resembles an insurance policy but Marco's
Assurance, LLC is not a true insurance company under applicable state or federal
law. In order to fund such guarantees, Marco's Assurance, LLC collects a portion of
each franchise fee, and if the franchisee elects coverage, a portion of royalty fees.
Franchisees whose loans may be guaranteed, or whose stores may be relocated, do
not pay any portion of the cost of covering such guarantees or relocations. During
2014, Marco's Assurance, LLC was not required to perform on any guarantees.
During 2013, Marco's Assurance, LLC was required to perform on two guarantees,
and total cash outflow associated with these three guarantees was $160, 119.
All funds held by Marco's Assurance, LLC are maintained in "reserve", in an escrow
account to honor such future obligations. The obligations generally expire five (5)
years after the date of the certificate, or if there is no certificate, five years after the
receipt of funds. Funding received (from franchise agreement fees or royalty fees) by
Marco's Assurance, LLC into the escrow account will be "paid back" or re-funded to
the contributing entity if the underlying obligation expires and if not otherwise used
to honor such guarantees. Administrative costs (such as bank fees and audit
expenses) which are not offset by interest income are absorbed by the funds reserved
for financing guarantees and are included in Receipts. No administrative costs for
corporate overhead are allocated to Marco's Assurance, LLC.
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MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
Note 1-

Significant accounting policies - Continued
Reserves for future guarantees - Continued
Funding rates for Marco's Assurance, LLC has been actuarially based upon average
historical loan loss and relocation rates for Marco's Pizza stores, plus an allowance
for statistical derivations at the second standard deviation level. Accordingly, funding
received may be in-excess that of what is needed for any particular year's actual
expense level, but over the anticipated five year life of an obligation, will most likely
be spent. If reserves established by Marco's Assurance, LLC prove to be in-excess of
actual expenditures for honoring loan loss guarantees or relocations, then funding of
Marco's Assurance, LLC will be reduced or reserves paid out to the contributing
entity.
Management completed an analysis of its loss history in early 2013 and its
outstanding guarantees to determine if the reserves on account would be sufficient to
honor such outstanding guarantees. Management took into consideration the sales
and profitability of the stores and its guarantees then in effect to make their
determination that reserves more than adequately covered possible or probably loan
defaults and claims to Marco's Assurance. Based on that analysis, Management
determined that it could refund $400,000 to the owners of the liability accounts
without materially impacting the company's ability to honor future guarantees. On
September 12, 2013, a refund of such $400,000 was made to such owners. The
refund was paid, by written direction of the owners, to a new entity, ARGC, LLC
which serves as similar role to the Company. The only relationship between ARGC,
LLC and the Company is by virtue of common ownership. None of each other's
liabilities are guaranteed or cross-guaranteed by each other.
Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2013 financial statements to conform
to the 2014 presentation.

Note 2 -

Property and equipment
Property and equipment is comprised of the following at December 28, 2014 and
December 29, 2013, respectively:

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Computers
Automobiles
Leasehold improvements
Leased equipment (Note 10)

$

Total cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Net property and equipment
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$

2014
79,521
285,007
1,001,890
247,153
535,927
284,578
2,434,076
1,137,739
1,296,337

$

$

2013
52,898
168,301
801,730
139,363
132,118
284,578
1,578,988
953,555
625,433

MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
Note 3 -

Intangible assets
Intangible assets at December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013 consist of the
following:

Franchise agreements
Trademarks and trade names
Deferred loan fees
Territory agreements

$

$

Cost
807,276
527,410
125,081
275,605
1,735,372

2014
Accumulated
Amortization
807,276
$
0
37,524
62,894
907,694
$

Net
$

$

0
527,410
87,557
212,711
827,678

2013

Franchise agreements
Trademarks and trade names
Deferred loan fees
Territory agreement

$

$

Cost
807,276
527,410
125,081
222,378
1,682,145

Accumulated
Amortization
$ 807,276
0
12,508
22,007
$ 841,791

Net
$

0
527,410
112,573
200,371
840,354

$

Amortization expense for the years ended December 28, 2014 and December 29,
2013 amounted to $149,442 and $111,584, respectively. Amortization expense is
expected to be approximately $142,000 for the first two subsequent years, $138,000
for the third subsequent year, $112,000 for the fourth subsequent year, and $76,000
for the fifth subsequent year to December 28, 2014.
Note 4-

Notes payable
Long-term debt
Long-term debt at December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013 consisted of the
following:
2014
Note payable to bank, payable in monthly
installments of $78,458, commencing in August
2013 through June 2018, with a final installment
of all unpaid principal due July 2018, including
interest at a fixed rate of 5.75%. Note is secured
by substantially all assets of the Company,
guarantees of certain affiliated parties, and the
assignment of rights under franchise agreements
and trademarks.
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$

6,423,191

2013

$ 6,972,785

MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
Note 4 -

Notes payable-Continued
Long-term debt - Continued
2014
Note payable Lincoln Automotive Financial
Services payable in monthly installments of $733,
commencing in July 2014 through June 2018,
plus interest at 0.9%. Note is secured by a vehicle
with a net book value of $32,799.
Total
Less current portion
Long-term debt

$

$

2013

30,998
6,454,189
593,892

$

5,860,297

$

0
6,972,785
508,116
6,464,669

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:
Fiscal Year
2015
2016
2017
2018

$

Total

$

Amount
593,892
628,058
666,191
4,566,048
6,454,189

The Company is subject to certain loan covenants that require certain minimum
financial ratios to be maintained.
Note 5 -

Members' equity
In November 2007, Marco's Franchising, LLC began offering preferred membership
units in a private placement memorandum. The Company raised $4,500,000 in new
members' capital as a result of this offering. The proceeds were used to pay the
$2,000,000 outstanding loan balance due to Cleveland Marco's, LLC (an affiliated
company through common ownership). Marco's Franchising, LLC also paid down the
outstanding line of credit, distributed $1,700,000 to common unit holders, and paid
all accounting, legal, and printing cost incurred in this offering. Any remaining funds
were retained for working capital.
The preferred members are provided certain preferences over common members,
including a minimum average cumulative return of 12% per annum, in the form of
distributions. In addition, the preferred members have the right to put up to 25% of
their units back to the company, subject to certain requirements beginning in 2013,
and have preferred rights in the event of liquidation.
On July 31, 2013, the Company made a special distribution of $5,700,000 to its
members. The distribution was funded by a new loan from Lake Forest Bank and
Trust Company in the amount of $7,147,500. The balance of the loan was used to
repay the existing loan with Huntington National Bank and for working capital
purposes. The special distribution allowed the Company to pay its members their
share of earnings on which the members (LLC) had paid taxes on but had not been
paid.
- 14 -
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MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
Note 6-

Retirement plan
The Company has a defined contribution 40l(k) plan which provides for payments
upon retirement, termination of employment, disability, or death to substantially all
full-time employees. The Company's contributions are based on the employee's total
compensation up to a specified level. The Company's expense in the Plan was
approximately $10,165 in 2014 and $6,530 in 2013.

Note 7 -

Related party transactions
The Company recorded revenue of approximately $633,000 in 2014 and $594,000 in
2013 for royalties and the sale of supplies to affiliated companies. In addition, the
Company had accounts payable of $198,996 and $164,979 related to affiliated
companies at December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013, respectively. The amount
of accounts receivable from affiliated companies totaled $442,915 at December 28,
2014 and $337,022 at December 29, 2013. As of December 28, 2014, notes
receivable totaled $1,174,796, of which $892,742 was from affiliated companies.
As of December 29, 2013, notes receivable totaled $1,343,398, of which $1,310,294
was from affiliated companies.
Marco's Pizza Distribution (MPD) is an affiliate by virtue of common ownership
with members of Marco's Franchising, LLC. MPD distributes food and other
products to franchised Marco's Pizza stores. It also sells new and used equipment for
use in Marco's Pizza stores. The Company neither finances nor guarantees the debts
ofMPD.
Prior to the formation of MPD, Marco's Franchising, LLC had previously sold new
and used equipment and store supplies to franchised Marco's Pizza stores. Upon the
formation of MPD, Marco's Franchising, LLC sold to MPD all of its remaining
inventory of store equipment and store supplies and made plans to exit the business
of selling such items. As of December 28, 2014, MPD was current in its obligations
to Marco's Franchising, LLC.

Note 8 -

Variable interest entities
FASB recently issued Accounting Standards Update 2009-17, Improvements to
Financial Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest Entities (VIE), or
ASU 2009-17, which modifies the guidance in the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification, or FASB ASC, Topic 810, "Consolidation." ASU 2009-17 introduces a
more qualitative approach to evaluating whether VIEs require consolidation and
requires a reporting entity to perform an analysis to determine whether its variable
interests give it a controlling financial interest in a VIE.
This analysis identifies the primary beneficiary of a VIE as the entity that has (a) the
power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's
economic performance, and (b) the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive
benefits that could potentially be significant to the VIE.
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MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
Note 8-

Variable interest entities- Continued
Marco's Franchise Services, LLC
In 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with an unrelated party to provide
franchise development and marketing services and also advanced funds to this entity
for operating costs. In November 2005, all rights and obligations under this
agreement were assigned to Marco's Franchise. Services, LLC ("MFS"). The
agreement was extended to December 2011. The Company is responsible to pay
commissions at rates ranging from 10-11 % of franchise fees and royalties for certain
new franchisees. In addition, the Company agreed to pay MFS an annual fee of
$290,000 for franchise support services, beginning in January 2006.
As of December 28, 2014 the company had outstanding notes and accounts
receivable from MFS totaling $43,656, which represents its maximum exposure to
loss as a result of its involvement with MFS. The financial support received by MFS
is in exchange for handling franchise sales activities and related tasks that are not
compensated for by the percentage of franchise and royalty fee arrangement noted
previously.
For the year ending December 28, 2014, the Company has determined that through
the MFS franchise sales representation agreement and receivables resulting from
advances to MFS, MFS is considered to be a variable interest entity. The Company
has also determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of MFS. In making that
determination, the Company has considered the following factors:·
• The managing members and majority owners of MFS (who are unrelated to
the Company and its owners) conduct and manage the business of MFS
including, but not limited to approving operating budgets for the business
operations.
• The Company does not have the ability to direct the activities of MFS that
most significantly impact its economic performance.
• The managing members and majority owners of MFS have personally
guaranteed the debt of MFS totaling approximately $920,000 at December
28, 2014. The Company has provided no such guarantees.
As a result of its relationship with MFS, management does not expect the Company
to absorb any losses related to its operating activities.
The following summarized financial information was derived from the financial
statements of MFS as of and for the year ended December 28, 2014:

Assets
Liabilities
Member's equity
Net income

2014
Marco's Franchise·
Services, LLC
$
1,449,593
$
1,156,496
$
293,097
$
668,097
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MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
Note 9-

Lease commitments
The Company leases its office facility in Toledo, Ohio under a long-term lease with
an unrelated party which provides for monthly payments of $8,500. Beginning in
January 2014, monthly payments increased to $11,146. The lease agreement is for a
three year period and includes two three year renewal terms. The Company is
responsible for 65% of utilities, maintenance, and real estate taxes for all common
areas. The lease provides that either party can terminate the lease with six months
advance notice.
A portion of the office space is subleased to Cleveland Marco's, LLC on a month-tomonth basis. Rental income received from Cleveland Marco's, LLC amounted to
$44,610 and $32,918 for December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013, respectively.
Rent expense amounted to $92,993 and $62,618 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The Company also leases a vehicle under an operating lease agreement with an
unrelated entity. The auto lease provides for a monthly base rate plus a per mile
charge if the total mileage at the end of the lease exceeds an estimated level. During
the years ended December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013, rental under this long
term lease obligation were $5,924 for both years. Future minimum lease payments
under this operating lease will be $1,481 for the first subsequent year to December
28, 2014.

Note 10 -

Leases
Effective November 5, 2012, the Company began leasing restaurant equipment to an
unrelated party for one pizza store location. The terms of the lease include monthly
rentals of $1 per month for the first year, with rents increasing to $1,335 per month
for the remainder of the lease term expiring November 5, 2015. Lease income
amounted to $16,020 and $1,347 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Minimal rental receipts under the operating lease subsequent to fiscal 2014 are as
follows:
Fiscal Year
2015
Total

Note 11-

Rental Income
$
14,685
$
14,685

Cash flow information
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest totaled $394,056 and $167,792 for 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
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MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013
Note 11-

Cash flow information - Continued
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
In 2014, the Company financed transactions with notes payable relating to the
purchase of an automobile totaling $34,525. The Company repurchased a territory
from one of their area representatives through a reduction in advances that had
previously been made to that representative totaling $53,227.
In 2013, the Company repurchased a territory from one of their area representatives
through a reduction in advances that had previously been made to that representative
totaling approximately $15,500.
The Company also reduced one affiliated
company's accounts receivable balance by issuing a note receivable in the amount of
$615,000. The Company reduced a deposit by converting this amount to an account
receivable in the amount of $154,178.

Note 12 -

Subsequent events
The Company has evaluated subsequent.events through March 30, 2015, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. There were no subsequent events
that required adjustment to the consolidated financial statements or additional
disclosures.
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EXHIBIT D TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FORM OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

MARCO’S PIZZA®
Franchise Disclosure Document ǀ 20152016

Exhibit D

MARCO’S FRANCHISING, LLC
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
Franchise Summary
Effective Date: __________________
Developer: ___________________________________________
Business Entity:

Corporation,

Limited Liability Company,

Limited Partnership, or

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into on
this ___ day of _____________, 20__ (“Effective Date”) by and between:
•

Partnership, organized under the laws of the State of ___________, with a domicile of

____________.

List of Persons with 5% or more interest in the Franchisee Entity
(see definition of List of Owners for Franchise Entity):

Name:

% Interest:

Name:

Contact Person:

Title:

Developer Contact Info:

Franchisor Address:

City

State

Zip

% Interest:

Marco’s Franchising, LLC, a Ohio limited
liability company whose principal place of
business is
Attention: General Counsel
5252 Monroe Street, St., 2nd Floor
Toledo, OhioOH 43623 (“Franchisor”); and
(419) 885-7000

County

Office:
Cell:
Email:
(

Term: Last Date Identified in the Development Schedule

1

Number of Stores for Development: ____________________________________________
Development Area: _________________________________________________________
Other Description or Map: ___________________________________________________
Development Schedule
Cumulative Total Number of Stores Which
Developer Shall Have Open and in Operation

By (Date)

•
,
a
[resident of] [corporation/ partnership/limited liability company organized in] _______________
and having offices at ___________________________________________________________
(“Developer”).
FEES:
Development Fee: __________
Transfer Fee

_____________
State Addendums

Not Applicable

New York

California

North Dakota

Illinois

South Dakota

Indiana

Washington

Maryland

Wisconsin

Minnesota

Exhibits to the Franchise Agreement:
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Exhibit A

Guarantee

Exhibit C

Exhibit B

Current Form of Franchise
Agreement

Sample Non-Disclosure and NonCompetition Agreement

Signature Page to Follow

This Area Development Agreement ("Agreement") is between Marco’s Franchising, LLC, an Ohio limited
liability company (“Franchisor” or "we,") and the Developer identified in the Franchise Summary on page
1 of this Agreement, including Your Principal Owners defined below (collectively referred to as “Developer
or “you”). The information stated in the Franchise Summary above is a part of this Agreement for all
purposes and is incorporated into the specific provisions of this Agreement as referenced in the terms
stated below.
The Developer and each of the Principal Owners, jointly and severally, makes all of the representations,
warranties, covenants and agreements set forth in this Agreement and each is obligated to perform
hereunder. In consideration of the mutual undertakings and commitments of each party set forth herein,
the parties have each executed this Agreement to take effect for all purposes on the Effective Date stated
in the Franchise Summary ("Effective Date").

FRANCHISOR:
Marco’s Franchising, LLC

DEVELOPER:
__________________________

By:

By:

Printed Name:
Title:

Printed Name:
Title:
By:
Printed Name:
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Title:

RECITALS:
WHEREAS, Franchisor owns a format and system (the “System”) relating to the
establishment and operation of businesses operating in buildings that bear Franchisor’s interior
and exterior trade dress, under the “Marco’s Pizza” name and marks (“Stores”), and specializing
in the sale of Proprietary Items including a limited menu of pizza and submarine sandwiches and
such other menu items as Franchisor may authorize from time to time, utilizing carry-out and
delivery services (collectively, the “Products”);
WHEREAS, Franchisor identifies the System by means of certain trade names, service
marks, trademarks, logos, emblems, and indicia of origin, including but not limited to the marks
“Marco’s Pizza” and logo, and such other trade names, service marks, and trademarks as are
now designated (and may hereinafter be designated by Franchisor in writing) for use in connection
with the System (the “Marks”);
WHEREAS, Franchisor continues to develop, use, and control the use of such Marks in
order to identify for the public the source of services and products marketed thereunder and under
the System, and to represent the System’s high standards of quality, appearance, and service;
WHEREAS, Developer wishes to obtain certain rights to develop “Marco’s Pizza” stores
under Franchisor’s System, within the Development Area specified in this Agreement and
according to the Development Schedule specified in this Agreement; and Developer and
Franchisor wish to enter into this Agreement in order to reflect the understandings and
agreements that they have reached with respect to the foregoing points and the other matters
that are addressed herein.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the undertakings and commitments
of each party to the other party set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, agree as follows:
1.

GRANT

1.1
Franchisor hereby grants to Developer the right (and Developer hereby accepts
the obligation), pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, to develop
____________(__)the Stores described on the Summary Page. In this regard, the parties further
agree that:
1.1.1 The Stores shall be developed by Developer pursuant to the development
schedule set forth in Paragraph 2 of Exhibit A, attached heretoas described on the Summary
Page (the “Development Schedule”).
1.1.2 Each Store shall be developed under this Agreement and operated
pursuant to a separate Marco’s Franchising, LLC Franchise Agreement (a “Franchise
Agreement”) that shall be executed as provided in Section 3.1 below.
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Each Store developed hereunder shall be located in the area described in Paragraph 1 of
Exhibit A, attached heretoon the Summary Page (the “Development Area”); however, the
parties hereto expressly acknowledge and agree that the Development Area shall not
include any toll road or interstate highway, Captive Market Locations (the “Special Venue”)
(as defined below), for example, hotels and resorts (where the Store is enclosed within the
confines of a hotel or resort structure); airports and other travel facilities; federal, state, or local
government facilities (including military bases); theme and amusement parks; recreational
facilities; colleges and other academic facilities; seasonal facilities; shopping malls; theaters; train
stations; toll roads; hospitals; cafeterias; snack bars; truck stops; casinos; department stores;
supermarkets; gasoline convenience stores; and sporting event arenas and centers; and retail
restaurant locations being sublet under a lease to a master concessionaire.
1.1.3 Each Store for which a development right is granted hereunder shall be
established and operated pursuant to a separate Franchise Agreement to be entered into
between Developer and Franchisor in accordance with Section 3.1. hereof.
1.2
If Developer is in compliance with its obligations under this Agreement and all of
the Franchise Agreements between Developer (including any affiliate of Developer) and
Franchisor, then Franchisor shall not establish, nor license anyone other than Developer to
establish, a Store in the Development Area until the last date specified in the Development
Schedule, except as otherwise provided under Sections 1.3 and 1.4 below.
1.3
Except as otherwise specifically provided under Section 1.2 above, Franchisor
retains all other rights, and therefore Franchisor shall have the right (among others) on any terms
and conditions Franchisor deems advisable, and without granting Developer any rights therein,
to:
1.3.1 operate (directly or through an affiliated entity) and grant to others the right
to operate within the Development Area and elsewhere:
1.3.1.1 Marco’s Pizza stores or other food service businesses using any
part or all of the System and/or the Marks at any Special Venue Store; and

restaurants or other food service businesses that we purchase (or
as to which we purchase the rights as franchisor) that are part of another franchise system or
chain, regardless of whether such businesses are converted to operate using any of the Marks or
any of the System or whether such businesses operate under other trademarks, service marks or
trade dress and/or other operating systems;
1.3.1.2

1.3.2 offer and sell (directly or through an Affiliate) and grant to others the right
to offer and sell within the Development Area and elsewhere, at wholesale or through channels
of distribution distinct from those of a Store, products and services that comprise or may in the
future comprise a part of the System, which products and services may be resold at retail to the
general public (including, but not limited to, sales made to purchasers through supermarkets,
gourmet shops, mail order, and on the Internet); and/or
1.3.3 establish, and license others to establish, Stores at any location outside the
Development Area notwithstanding their proximity to the Development Area or any Store operated
by Developer.
1.4
In addition to the rights retained by Franchisor, as described in Section 1.3 above,
Developer acknowledges and agrees that:
1.4.1 Franchisor and certain of Franchisor’s affiliates and designees now sell and
shall have the right to sell Products (and items of a similar nature) to wholesale accounts (such
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as stores), retail accounts (such as groceries and supermarkets), or otherwise, to any account
and at any location.
1.4.2 Franchisor shall not prohibit other “Marco’s Pizza” Stores (whether owned
or franchised by Franchisor) from providing delivery or catering service to customers at any
location, whether within or outside the Development Area.
1.5
This Agreement is not a franchise agreement, and does not grant to Developer
any right to use in any manner the Marks or System. Developer shall have no right under this
Agreement to license others to use in any manner the Marks or System, and any such rights will
be granted only under, and subject to the terms of a Franchise Agreement.

2.

DEVELOPMENT FEE

2.1
In consideration of the development rights granted herein, Developer shall pay to
Franchisor a development fee of ____________Dollars ($_________)as described in the
Franchise Summary (the “Development Fee”), to be paid to Franchisor on or before the date of
this Agreement.
2.2
If Developer is in compliance with its obligations under this Agreement, then upon
execution of each Franchise Agreement, Franchisor shall credit to Developer the sum of Five
Thousand Dollars ($5,000) toward the initial franchise fee payable under said Franchise
Agreement with respect to each Store that Developer is required to open under this Agreement;
provided that in no circumstances will Franchisor grant credits in excess of the total Development
Fee that Developer has actually paid to Franchisor.
2.3
The Development Fee shall be fully earned when received by Franchisor and shall
be non-refundable in consideration of administrative and other expenses incurred by Franchisor
and for the development opportunities lost or deferred as a result of the rights granted Developer
herein.

3.

DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS

3.1
Developer shall execute a Franchise Agreement for each Store. Each Store shall
be located at a site permitted by Franchisor, within the Development Area, as provided below (the
“Permitted Location Letter”). The Franchise Agreement for the first Store developed hereunder
shall be in the form of the Franchise Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit DB. The Franchise
Agreement for each additional Store developed hereunder shall be the form of Franchise
Agreement being offered generally by Franchisor at the time each such Franchise Agreement is
executed. Upon receipt of Franchisor’s written notice for each Permitted Location and the
execution of the Permitted Site AddendumLetter, the Franchise Agreement shall be executed by
Developer and submitted to Franchisor for countersignature within fifteen (15) days of receipt.
3.1.1 If Developer is in full compliance with this Agreement, then, notwithstanding
anything to the contrary in any of the Franchise Agreements, for each Franchise Agreement for a
Store required to be established under Section 1.1 above, the initial franchise fee, royalty fee, and
advertising contribution shall be as set forth in the form of Franchise Agreement appended hereto
as Exhibit DB; and

If Developer does not meet the Development Schedule criteria, at
Developer’s discretion, in lieu of termination of this Development Agreement, the Developer may
continue this Development Agreement by payment of a fee each week to Franchisor
(“Continuation Fee”) equal to 75% of the weekly Average System-wide Sales (as defined in
Franchisor’s then-current Franchise Disclosure Document for the previous fiscal year), for each
Store not in compliance with the Development Schedule, multiplied by 5.5%. The Continuation
Fee will be paid until such time as Developer is in compliance with the Development Schedule or
3.1.2

MARCO’S PIZZA®
Development Agreement ǀ 2015

5

6 months, whichever time is lesser. If Developer is not in compliance with the Development
Schedule within 6 months of the failure to open the scheduled Store, Franchisor may exercise the
right to terminate this Development Agreement and all rights of Developer to any benefits provided
hereunder.
3.2
For each proposed site for a Store, Developer must submit to Franchisor, in a form
specified by Franchisor, a completed Site Acquisition Request Form and such other information
or materials as Franchisor may require as provided in the Manuals. Developer must submit the
Site Acquisition Request Form, information, and materials by no later than 180 days before the
date on which the Store must open, as listed in the Development Schedule. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Developer must receive consent for a Permitted Location Letter from Franchisor for
the first Store to be developed hereunder within 8 months of the date of this Agreement. If
Franchisor gives its written permission for a proposed site, Franchisor shall send written notice of
permissiona Permitted Location Letter to Developer within 30 days of Franchisor’s receipt of the
completed Site Acquisition Request Form. If Franchisor does not send such notice to Developer
within the said 30-day period, then the site shall be deemed rejected by Franchisor.

You understand and agree that by virtue of utilizing our business model to open
the Store, we will make an intangible investment in the location whose value cannot be calculated.
As a result, and in order to protect that investment, you agree to lease the premises for the Store,
using the Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider.
3.3

The Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider must be made a part of the lease and
provided to us for our execution at the time of execution of the lease. We agree to not charge you
any fees for leasing using the Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider.
3.4
Recognizing that time is of the essence, Developer agrees to satisfy the
Development Schedule. Failure by Developer to adhere to the Development Schedule, or failure
by Developer to submit a completed Site Acquisition Request Form and obtain Franchisor’s
permission thereof within the time specified in Section 3.2 hereof shall constitute a default under
this Agreement as provided in Section 6.2 hereof.

4.

TERM

The term of this Agreement and all rights granted hereunder shall expire on the last date
specifiedas described in the Development ScheduleFranchise Summary, unless this Agreement
is earlier terminated in accordance with the terms set out in this Agreement.
5.

DUTIES OF THE PARTIES

5.1
For each Store developed under this Agreement Franchisor shall furnish to
Developer the following:
5.1.1 Site selection guidelines, including Franchisor’s minimum standards for a
location for the Store, and such site selection counseling and assistance as Franchisor may deem
advisable.
5.1.2 Such on-site evaluation as Franchisor may deem advisable in response to
Developer’s request for site permission; provided, however, that Franchisor shall not provide
on-site evaluation for any proposed site prior to the receipt of a completed Site Acquisition
Request and all information relating to the site as required under Section 3.2 above. Franchisor
shall provide one (1) on-site evaluation at no charge to Developer for each Store required to be
developed pursuant to the Development Schedule. For any additional on-site evaluation,
Developer shall reimburse Franchisor for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by
Franchisor in connection with such on-site evaluation, including, without limitation, the costs of
travel, lodging, wages, and meals.
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5.2

Developer accepts the following obligations:

5.2.1 If Developer is a corporation, a partnership, or a limited liability company,
then it shall comply, except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, with the following
requirements throughout the term of this Agreement:
5.2.1.1 Developer shall furnish Franchisor with its Articles of
Incorporation/Certificate of Organization or other formation documents, its Bylaws and/or other
governing documents, and any other documents Franchisor may reasonably request, and any
amendments thereto.
5.2.1.2 Developer shall confine its activities, and its governing
documents, if any, shall at all times provide that its activities are confined, exclusively to the
management and operation of the business contemplated hereunder, including the establishment
and operation of the Stores to be developed hereunder.
5.2.1.3 Developer shall maintain stop transfer instructions against the
transfer on its records of any voting securities; and shall issue no certificates for voting securities
upon the face of which the following printed legend does not legibly and conspicuously appear:

The transfer of this stock is subject to the terms and conditions of a
Development Agreement with Marco’s Franchising, LLC, dated
.
Reference is made to the provisions of the said Development Agreement
and to the Articles and Bylaws of this Corporation.
5.2.1.4 Developer shall maintain a current list of all owners of record and
all beneficial owners of any class of voting stock of Developer and shall furnish the list to
Franchisor upon request.
5.2.1.5 Such owners of a beneficial interest in the corporation as
Franchisor may request shall execute a guarantee of the performance of Developer’s obligations
under this Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit BA.
5.2.2 If Developer is a partnership or limited liability entity of any sort (a “LLC”),
then it shall comply, except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, with the following
requirements throughout the term of this Agreement:
5.2.2.1 Developer shall furnish Franchisor with its partnership
agreement, operating agreement, and/or organizational documents, as well as such other
documents as Franchisor may reasonably request, and any amendments thereto.
5.2.2.2 Developer shall prepare and furnish to Franchisor, upon request,
a list of all general and limited partners, and/or members, in Developer.
5.2.2.3 Such partners in the partnership, or such members in the limited
liability company, as Franchisor may request shall execute a guarantee of the performance of
Developer’s obligations under this Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit BA.
5.2.3 Developer shall at all times preserve in confidence any and all materials
and information furnished or disclosed to Developer by Franchisor, and shall disclose such
information or materials only to such of Developer’s employees or agents who must have access
to it in connection with their employment. Developer shall not at any time, without Franchisor’s
prior written consent, copy, duplicate, record, or otherwise reproduce such materials or
information, in whole or in part, nor otherwise make the same available to any unauthorized
person.
5.2.4 Developer shall comply with all requirements of federal, state, and local
laws, rules, and regulations. To the extent that the requirements of said laws are in conflict with
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the terms of this Agreement or other instructions of Franchisor, Franchisee shall: (a) comply with
said laws; and (b) immediately provide written notice describing the nature of such conflict to
Franchisor.
5.2.5 Franchisor shall have the right to require Developer to employ one or more
district managers (who shall be individuals reasonably acceptable to Franchisor) to supervise the
day to day operations of Developer’s stores. Any such district managers shall be required to
attend and successfully complete (to Franchisor’s reasonable satisfaction) such training course
as Franchisor may reasonably require.

6.

DEFAULT

6.1
Developer shall be deemed to be in default under this Agreement, and all rights
granted herein shall automatically terminate without notice to Developer, if Developer shall
become insolvent or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or if a petition in
bankruptcy is filed by Developer or such a petition is filed against and not opposed by Developer;
or if Developer is adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent; or if a bill in equity or other proceeding for
the appointment of a receiver of Developer or other custodian for Developer’s business or assets
is filed and consented to by Developer; or if a receiver or other custodian (permanent or
temporary) of Developer’s assets or property, or any part thereof, is appointed by any court of
competent jurisdiction; or if proceedings for a composition with creditors under any state or federal
law should be instituted by or against Developer; or if a final judgment remains unsatisfied or of
record for 30 days or longer (unless unappealed or a supersedeas bond is filed); or if Developer
is dissolved; or if execution is levied against Developer’s business or property; or if suit to
foreclose any lien or mortgage against the premises or equipment of any Store developed
hereunder is instituted against Developer and not dismissed within 30 days; or if the real or
personal property of Developer shall be sold after levy thereupon by any sheriff, marshal, or
constable.
6.2
If Developer fails to meet its obligations under the Development Schedule, such
action shall constitute a default under this Agreement, upon which Franchisor, in its discretion,
may terminate this Agreement and all rights granted hereunder without affording Developer any
opportunity to cure the default, effective immediately upon the delivery of written notice to
Developer (in the manner set forth in Section 9 of this Agreement).

Except as otherwise provided in Sections 6.1 and 6.2, above, if Developer fails to
comply with any material term and condition of this Agreement, or fails to comply with the terms
and conditions of any Franchise Agreement or other development agreement between the
Developer (or a person or entity affiliated with or controlled by the Developer) and Franchisor,
such action shall constitute a default under this Agreement. Upon the occurrence of any such
default, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice of termination stating
the nature of such default to Developer at least 15 days prior to the effective date of termination;
provided, however, that Developer may avoid termination by immediately initiating a remedy to
cure such default, curing it to Franchisor’s satisfaction, and by promptly providing proof thereof to
Franchisor within the fifteen-day period (or such longer period as applicable law may require). If
any such default is not cured within the specified time (or such longer period as applicable law
may require), this Agreement and all rights granted hereunder (including but not limited to, the
right to develop any new Stores) will terminate without further notice to Developer, effective
immediately upon the expiration of the 15 day period (or such longer period as applicable law
may require).
6.3

In lieu of termination, Franchisor shall have the right to reduce or eliminate all or
only certain rights of Developer under this Agreement; and if Franchisor exercises said right,
6.4
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Franchisor shall not have waived its right to, in the case of future defaults, exercise all other rights,
and invoke all other provisions, that are provided in law and/or set out under this Agreement.
6.5
Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, Developer shall have no right to
establish or operate any Stores for which a Franchise Agreement has not been executed by
Franchisor at the time of termination. Thereafter, Franchisor shall be entitled to establish, and to
license others to establish, Stores in the Development Area (except as may be otherwise provided
under any Franchise Agreement that has been executed between Franchisor and Developer)
without Notice or compensation to Developer.

No default under this Development Agreement shall constitute a default under any
Franchise Agreement between the parties hereto.
6.6

6.7
No right or remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Franchisor is exclusive of
any other right or remedy provided or permitted by law or equity.

7.

TRANSFERS

7.1
Franchisor shall have the right to transfer or assign this Agreement and all or any
part of its rights or obligations under this Agreement to any person or legal entity, and any
assignee of Franchisor shall become solely responsible for all obligations of Franchisor under this
Agreement from the date of assignment. Developer understands and agrees that certain of
Franchisor’s responsibilities hereunder may be met by any duly authorized Area Representative
or other agent of Franchisor.
7.2
If Developer is a corporation, partnership, or limited liability company, each
principal of Developer (“Principal”), and the interest of each Principal in Developer, is identified in
Exhibit C hereto.the Summary Page. Any person or entity which owns a direct or indirect interest
in Developer may be designated as a Principal by Franchisor in its sole discretion, and Exhibit
Cthe Summary Page shall be so amended automatically upon notice thereof to Developer.

Franchisor shall have a continuing right to designate as a Principal any person or
entity which owns a direct or indirect interest in Developer.
7.3

7.4
Developer understands and acknowledges that the rights and duties set forth in
this Agreement are personal to Developer, and that Franchisor has granted the rights described
in this Agreement in reliance on Developer’s or Developer’s Principals’ business skill, financial
capacity, and personal character. Accordingly:

Developer shall not, without the prior written consent of Franchisor,
transfer, pledge or otherwise encumber: (a) the rights and obligations of the Developer under this
Agreement; or (b) any material asset of Developer.
7.4.1

If Developer is a corporation, a partnership, or a limited liability company,
Developer shall not, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, issue any voting securities or
securities convertible into voting securities, and the recipient of any such securities shall become
a Principal under this Agreement, if so designated by Franchisor.
7.4.2

7.4.3 If Developer is a partnership or LLC, the partners of the partnership or
members of the LLC shall not, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, admit additional
general partners or managing members, remove a general partner or managing member, or
otherwise materially alter the powers of any general partner or managing member. Each general
partner or member of a partnership or LLC shall automatically be deemed a Principal of
Developer.
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7.4.4 A Principal shall not, without the prior written consent of Franchisor,
transfer, pledge or otherwise encumber any interest of the Principal in Developer as shown in
Exhibit Cthe Franchise Summary.
7.4.5 Developer understands and agrees that it may not sell, exchange, give,
bequest, trade, or otherwise transfer the Development Area rights, fees, deposits or other benefits
conferred by this Agreement to any other entity or person, and that any such transfer shall be
deemed void and a default of this Agreement. Parties hereto understand that the aforesaid
restriction on selling any sub-rights conferred by this Agreement shall not preclude a transfer of
this Agreement or an ownership interest of a Principal to an approved purchaser as provided
below.
7.5
Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold any consent required by Section 7.4;
provided, if Developer proposes to transfer this Agreement or any interest therein, Franchisor
shall have absolute discretion to require any or all of the following as conditions of its approval:
7.5.1 The transferor shall have executed a general release, in a form satisfactory
to Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor and its affiliates, successors, and assigns,
and their respective directors, officers, shareholders, partners, agents, representatives, servants,
and employees in their corporate and individual capacities including, without limitation, claims
arising under this Agreement, any other agreement between Developer and Franchisor or its
affiliates, and federal, state, and local laws and rules;
7.5.2 The transferee of a Principal shall be designated as a Principal and each
transferee who is designated a Principal shall enter into a written agreement, in a form satisfactory
to Franchisor, agreeing to be bound as a Principal under the terms of this Agreement as long as
such person or entity owns any interest in Developer; and, if the obligations of Developer were
guaranteed by the transferor, the Principal shall guarantee the performance of all such obligations
in writing in a form satisfactory to Franchisor;
7.5.3 After the transfer, the Principals of the Developer shall meet Franchisor’s
educational, managerial, and business standards; each shall possess a good moral character,
business reputation, and credit rating; have the aptitude and ability to operate the business of
Developer, as may be evidenced by prior related business experience or otherwise; and have
adequate financial resources and capital to operate the business;
7.5.4 If a proposed transfer would result in a change in control of the Developer,
at Franchisor’s option, the Developer shall execute, for a term ending on the expiration date of
this Agreement the form of area development agreement then being offered to new System
Developers, and such other ancillary agreements required by Franchisor for the business
contemplated hereunder, which agreements shall supersede this Agreement and its ancillary
documents in all respects, and the terms of which may differ from the terms of this Agreement;

The transferor shall remain liable for all of the obligations to Franchisor in
connection with this Agreement that arose prior to the effective date of the transfer, and any
covenants that survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement, and shall execute any and
all instruments reasonably requested by Franchisor to evidence such liability;
7.5.5

7.5.6 At Developer’s expense, one Principal designated by Franchisor shall
successfully complete all training programs required by Franchisor upon such terms and
conditions as Franchisor may reasonably require;
7.5.7 Developer shall pay a transfer fee of the greater of: (a) $10,000 or (b) 3%
of the gross selling price, plus (c) an additional 2% of the gross selling price if Developer requested
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Franchisor’s assistance in re-marketing the rights under this Agreement, which assistance results
in a transfer.
7.5.8 The transferor must acknowledge and agree that the transferor shall
remain bound by the covenants contained in Section 8.2 and Section 8.3 of this Agreement; and
7.5.9 Developer shall have paid Franchisor all of remaining installments of the
Development Fee, if any, that Developer has not yet paid to Franchisor under Section 2.2 above.
7.6

Right of First Refusal.

7.6.1 If Developer or any Principal desires to accept any bona fide offer from a
third party to purchase Developer, any material assets of Developer, or any direct or indirect
interest in Developer, Developer or such Principal shall promptly notify Franchisor of such offer
and shall provide such information and documentation relating to the offer as Franchisor may
require. Franchisor shall have the right and option, exercisable within 30 days after receipt of all
such information, to send written notice to the seller that Franchisor intends to purchase the
seller’s interest on the same terms and conditions offered by the third party. If Franchisor elects
to purchase the seller’s interest, the closing on such purchase shall occur within 30 days from the
date of notice to the seller of the election to purchase by Franchisor.
7.6.2 Any material change in the terms of the offer prior to closing shall constitute
a new offer subject to the same rights of first refusal by Franchisor as in the case of the third
party’s initial offer. Failure of Franchisor to exercise the option afforded by this Section 7.6 shall
not constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement, including all of the requirements
of this Section 7, with respect to a proposed transfer.

In the event the consideration, terms, and/or conditions offered by a third
party are such that Franchisor may not reasonably be required to furnish the same consideration,
terms, and/or conditions, then Franchisor may purchase the interest proposed to be sold for the
reasonable equivalent in cash. If the parties cannot agree within a reasonable time on the
reasonable equivalent in cash of the consideration, terms, and/or conditions offered by the third
party, they shall attempt to appoint a mutually acceptable independent appraiser to make a
binding determination. If the parties are unable to agree upon one independent appraiser, then
an independent appraiser shall be promptly designated by Franchisor and another independent
appraiser shall be promptly designated by Franchisee, which two appraisers will, in turn, promptly
designate a third appraiser; all three appraisers shall promptly confer and reach a single
determination, which determination shall be binding upon Franchisor and Franchisee. The cost
of any such appraisal shall be shared equally by Franchisor and Franchisee. If Franchisor elects
to exercise its right of first refusal, it shall have the right to set off all amounts due from Franchisee,
and one-half of the cost of the appraisal, if any, against any payment to the Seller.
7.6.3

7.7
Upon the death of a Principal, the deceased’s executor, administrator, or other
personal representative shall transfer the deceased’s interest to a third party approved by
Franchisor within twelve (12) months after the death. If no personal representative is designated
or appointed or no probate proceedings are instituted with respect to the deceased’s estate, then
the distributee of such interest must be approved by Franchisor. If the distributee is not approved
by Franchisor, then the distributee shall transfer the deceased’s interest to a third party approved
by Franchisor within twelve (12) months after the deceased’s death.
7.8
Upon the permanent disability of any Principal with a controlling interest in
Developer, Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, require such interest to be transferred to a third
party in accordance with the conditions described in this Section 7 within six (6) months after
notice to Developer. “Permanent Disability” shall mean any physical, emotional, or mental injury,
illness, or incapacity that would prevent a person from performing the obligations set forth in this
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Agreement for at least six (6) consecutive months and from which condition recovery within six
(6) months from the date of determination of disability is unlikely. Permanent disability shall be
determined by a licensed practicing physician selected by Franchisor upon examination of such
person or, if such person refuses to be examined, then such person shall automatically be
deemed permanently disabled for the purposes of this Section 7.8 as of the date of refusal.
Franchisor shall pay the cost of the required examination.
7.9
Upon the death or permanent disability of any Principal of Developer, such person
or his representative shall promptly notify Franchisor of such death or claim of permanent
disability. Any transfer upon death or permanent disability shall be subject to the same terms and
conditions as any inter vivos transfer.
7.10
Franchisor’s consent to a transfer which is the subject of this Section 7 shall not
constitute a waiver of any claims it may have against the transferring party, nor shall it be deemed
a waiver of Franchisor’s right to demand exact compliance with any of the terms of this Agreement
by the transferor or transferee.
7.11
If Developer or any person holding any interest (direct or indirect) in Developer
becomes a debtor in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or any similar law in the U.S.
or elsewhere, it is the parties’ understanding and agreement that any transfer of Developer,
Developer’s obligations and/or rights hereunder, any material assets of Developer, or any indirect
or direct interest in Developer shall be subject to all of the terms of this Section 7, including without
limitation the rights set forth in Sections 7.4, 7.5, and 7.6 above.
7.12
All materials for an offering of stock or partnership interests in Developer or any
affiliate of Developer which are required by federal or state law shall be submitted to Franchisor
for review as described below before such materials are filed with any government agency. Any
materials to be used in any exempt offering shall be submitted to Franchisor for such review prior
to their use. No offering by Developer or any affiliate of Developer shall imply (by use of the Marks
or otherwise) that Franchisor is participating in an underwriting, issuance, or offering of the
securities of Developer or Developer’s affiliates; and Franchisor’s review of any offering shall be
limited solely to the relationship between Franchisor and Developer and any subsidiaries and
affiliates, if applicable. Franchisor may, at its option, require the offering materials to contain a
written statement prescribed by Franchisor concerning the limitations stated in the preceding
sentence. Developer (and the offeror if not Developer), the Principals, and all other participants
in the offering must fully indemnify Franchisor, its subsidiaries, affiliates, successor, and assigns,
and their respective directors, officers, shareholders, partners, agents, representatives, servants,
and employees in connection with the offering. For each proposed offering, Developer shall pay
Franchisor a non-refundable fee of Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($7,500) or such
greater amount as is necessary to reimburse Franchisor for its reasonable costs and expenses
(including legal and accounting fees) for reviewing the proposed offering. Developer shall give
Franchisor written notice at least 30 days before the date that any offering or other transaction
described in this Section 7.12 commences. Any such offering shall be subject to all of the other
provisions of this Section 7, including without limitation those set forth in Sections 7.4, 7.5, and
7.6; and further, without limiting the foregoing, it is agreed that any such offering shall be subject
to Franchisor’s approval as to the structure and voting control of the offeror (and Developer, if
Developer is not the offeror) after the financing is completed.

8.

COVENANTS

8.1
Developer covenants that during the term of this Agreement, except as otherwise
approved in writing by Franchisor, Developer (or one (1) designated management employee who
will assume primary responsibility for the operations of Developer and shall have been previously
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approved in writing by Franchisor) shall devote full time, energy, and best efforts to the
management and operation of the business contemplated hereunder.
8.2
Developer specifically acknowledges that, pursuant to this Agreement, Developer
will receive valuable specialized training and confidential information, including, without limitation,
information regarding the operational, sales, promotional, and marketing methods and techniques
of Franchisor and the System. Developer covenants that during the term of this Agreement,
except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, Developer shall not, either directly or
indirectly, for itself, or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person, persons,
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other entity:
8.2.1 Divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the Store or of any
Store using the System to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or
perform, directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with
Franchisor’s Marks and the System.
8.2.2 Unless released in writing by the employer, employ or seek to employ any
person who is at that time employed by Franchisor or by any other franchisee or developer of
Franchisor, or otherwise directly or indirectly induce such person to leave his or her employment.
8.3
Developer covenants that, except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor,
it shall not, during the term of this Agreement, either directly or indirectly, for itself, or through, on
behalf of, or in conjunction with any person, persons, corporation, partnership, limited liability
company, or other entity, own, maintain, operate, engage in, or have any interest in any business
which is the same as or similar to the Store; and shall not for a continuous uninterrupted period
of two (2) years from the date of: (a) a transfer permitted under Section 7 above; (b) expiration
or termination of this Agreement (regardless of the cause for termination); or (c) a final order of a
duly authorized arbitrator, panel of arbitrators, or a court of competent jurisdiction (after all appeals
have been taken) with respect to any of the foregoing or with respect to the enforcement of this
Section 8.3; either directly or indirectly (through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any persons,
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other entity), own, maintain, operate, engage
in, or have any interest in any business which is the same as or similar to the business operated
under this Agreement or the Stores required to be developed under this Agreement and which
business is, or is intended to be, located: (i) within the Development Area; (ii) within a 5-mile
radius of any Store developed under this Agreement; or (iii) within a 5-mile radius of any Store
operating under the System at the time the obligations under this Section 8.3 commenced. As
used in this Agreement, the term “same as or similar to the business operated under this
Agreement or the Stores required to be developed under this Agreement” shall mean any other
business featuring the sale of pizza products.
8.4
Section 8.3 above shall not apply to ownership by Developer of less than five
percent (5%) beneficial interest in the outstanding equity securities of any publicly-held
corporation. As used in this Agreement, the term “publicly -held corporation” shall be deemed to
refer to a corporation which has securities that have been registered under the federal Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.
8.5
At Franchisor’s request, Developer shall require and obtain execution of covenants
similar to those set forth in Sections 7 and 8 of this Agreement (as modified to apply to an
individual) from any or all of the following persons: Developer’s Principals and senior level
management personnel. The covenants required by this Section 8.5 shall be in the form provided
in Exhibit EC to this Agreement. Failure by Developer to obtain execution of a covenant required
by this Section 8.5 shall constitute a default under Section 6.3 above.
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8.6
The parties agree that each of the foregoing covenants shall be construed as
independent of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement. If all or any portion of a
covenant in this Section 8 is held unreasonable or unenforceable by a court or agency having
valid jurisdiction in an unappealed final decision to which Franchisor is a party, Developer
expressly agrees to be bound by any lesser covenant subsumed within the terms of such
covenant that imposes the maximum duty permitted by law, as if the resulting covenant were
separately stated in and made a part of this Section 8.
8.7
Developer understands and acknowledges that Franchisor shall have the right, in
its sole discretion, to reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in Sections 8.2 and 8.3 in this
Agreement, or any portion thereof, without Developer’s consent, effective immediately upon
receipt by Developer of written notice thereof; and Developer agrees that it shall comply forthwith
with any covenant as so modified, which shall be fully enforceable notwithstanding the provisions
of Section 13 hereof.
8.8
Developer expressly agrees that the existence of any claims it may have against
Franchisor, whether or not arising from this Agreement, shall not constitute a defense to the
enforcement by Franchisor of the covenants in this Section 8. Developer agrees to pay all costs
and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) incurred by Franchisor in connection with
the enforcement of this Section 8.

Developer acknowledges that Developer’s violation of the terms of this Section 8
would result in irreparable injury to Franchisor for which no adequate remedy at law may be
available, and Developer accordingly consents to the issuance of an injunction prohibiting any
conduct by Developer in violation of the terms of this Section 8.
8.9

9.

NOTICES

Any and all notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall
be personally delivered, sent by registered mail, or by other means which affords the sender
evidence of delivery, or of rejected delivery, to the respective parties at the addresses shown on
the signature page of this Agreement, unless and until a different address has been designated
by written notice to the other party. Any notice by a means which affords the sender evidence of
delivery, or rejected delivery, shall be deemed to have been given at the date and time of receipt
or rejected delivery.
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10.

PERMITS AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

10.1
Developer shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, and
regulations, and shall timely obtain any and all permits, certificates, or licenses necessary for the
full and proper conduct of the business contemplated under this Agreement.
10.2
Developer shall notify Franchisor in writing within 5 days of the commencement of
any action, suit, or proceeding, and of the issuance of any order, writ, injunction, award, or decree
of any court, agency, or other governmental instrumentality, which may adversely affect the
operation or financial condition of Developer and/or any Store established pursuant to this
Agreement.

11.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND INDEMNIFICATION

11.1
It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement does not
create a fiduciary relationship between them, that Developer shall be an independent contractor,
and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to constitute either party an agent, legal
representative, subsidiary, joint venturer, partner, employee, or servant of the other for any
purpose whatsoever.
11.2
At all times during the term of this Agreement, Developer shall hold itself out to the
public as an independent contractor operating pursuant to this Agreement. Developer agrees to
take such action as may be necessary to do so, including, without limitation, exhibiting a notice of
that fact in a conspicuous place in the Developer’s offices, the content of which Franchisor
reserves the right to specify.
11.3
It is understood and agreed that nothing in this Agreement authorizes Developer
to make any contract, agreement, warranty, or representation on Franchisor’s behalf, or to incur
any debt or other obligation in Franchisor’s name; and that Franchisor shall in no event assume
liability for, or be deemed liable hereunder as a result of, any such action; nor shall Franchisor be
liable by reason of any act or omission of Developer in Developer’s operations hereunder, or for
any claim or judgment arising therefrom against Developer or Franchisor.
11.4
Developer shall indemnify and hold Franchisor, Franchisor’s owners and affiliates,
and their respective officers, directors, employees, and agents, harmless against any and all
claims arising directly or indirectly from, as a result of, or in connection with Developer’s operation
of the business contemplated hereunder, as well as the costs, including attorneys’ fees, of
defending against them.

12.

APPROVALS AND WAIVERS

12.1
Whenever this Agreement requires Franchisor’s prior approval or consent,
Developer shall make a timely written request to Franchisor therefor, and such approval or
consent must be obtained in writing.
12.2
Developer acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor makes no warranties or
guarantees upon which Developer may rely, and assumes no liability or obligation to Developer,
by providing any waiver, approval, consent, or suggestion to Developer in connection with this
Agreement, or by reason of any neglect, delay, or denial of any request therefor.
12.3
No delay, waiver, omission, or forbearance on the part of Franchisor to exercise
any right, option, duty, or power arising out of any breach or default by Developer under any of
the terms, provisions, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement, shall constitute a waiver by
Franchisor to enforce any such right, option, duty, or power as against Developer, or as to
subsequent breach or default by Developer. Subsequent acceptance by Franchisor of any
payments due to it hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Franchisor of any preceding
breach by Developer of any terms, provisions, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement.
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13.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENT

This Agreement and the exhibits referred to herein constitute the entire, full, and complete
Agreement between Franchisor and Developer concerning the subject matter hereof, and
supersede all prior agreements, no other representations having induced Developer to execute
this Agreement. No amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on
either party unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed by their authorized officers or
agents in writing. Nothing in this Agreement or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim
the representations we made in the franchise disclosure document.
14.

SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION

14.1
Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, each portion, section, part,
term, and/or provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable; and if, for any reason,
any section, part, term, and/or provision herein is determined to be invalid and contrary to, or in
conflict with, any existing or future law or regulation by a court or agency having valid jurisdiction,
such shall not impair the operation of, or have any other effect upon, such other portions, sections,
parts, terms, and/or provisions of this Agreement as may remain otherwise intelligible; and the
latter shall continue to be given full force and effect and bind the parties hereto; and said invalid
portions, sections, parts, terms, and/or provisions shall be deemed not to be a part of this
Agreement.
14.2
Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, nothing in this Agreement is
intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer upon any person or legal entity other than Developer,
Franchisor, Franchisor’s officers, directors, and employees, and such of Developer’s and
Franchisor’s respective successors and assigns as may be contemplated (and, as to Developer,
permitted) by Section 7 hereof, any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement.
14.3
Developer expressly agrees to be bound by any promise or covenant imposing the
maximum duty permitted by law which is subsumed within the terms of any provision hereof, as
though it were separately articulated in and made a part of this Agreement, that may result from
striking from any of the provisions hereof any portion or portions which a court may hold to be
unenforceable in a final decision to which Franchisor is a party, or from reducing the scope of any
promise or covenant to the extent required to comply with such a court order.
14.4
All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them
in the Franchise Agreement.
14.5
All captions in this Agreement are intended solely for the convenience of the
parties, and none shall be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any provision hereof.

All provisions of this Agreement which, by their terms or intent, are designed to
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement, shall so survive the expiration and/or
termination of this Agreement.
14.6

15.

APPLICABLE LAW

15.1
This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisor, and
shall be interpreted and construed exclusively under the laws of the State of Ohio, which laws
shall prevail in the event of any conflict of law (without regard to, and without giving effect to, the
application of Ohio choice of law rules); provided, however, that if the covenants in Section 8 of
this Agreement would not be enforceable under the laws of Ohio, and Developer is located outside
of Ohio, then such covenants shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the state in
which the Developer’s principal place of business is located. Nothing in this Section 15.1 is
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intended by the parties to subject this Agreement to any franchise or similar law, rule, or regulation
of the State of Ohio to which this Agreement would not otherwise be subject.
15.2
Subject to the provisions of Sections 15.4 and 15.6 below, any other controversy
or claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or any breach thereof, including, without
limitation, any claim that this Agreement or any portion thereof is invalid, illegal or otherwise
voidable, shall be submitted to Arbitration before and in accordance with the then-Current
Commercial Arbitration rules of the American Arbitration Association and judgment upon the
award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. Any such action shall be conducted
on an individual basis, and not as part of a consolidated, common, or class action.
15.3
All litigation, court proceedings, lawsuits, arbitration proceedings and other
hearings must and will be venued exclusively in Toledo, Ohio. Franchisor and Developer do
hereby agree and submit to personal jurisdiction in Lucas County, Ohio or the U.S. courts that
have jurisdiction in that county for the purposes of any suit, proceeding, arbitration or hearing
permitted to be brought to enforce or construe the terms of this Agreement or to resolve any
dispute or controversy arising in connection with this Agreement. Franchisor and Developer
waive any right to contest such venue and jurisdiction and any claims that such venue and
jurisdiction are invalid.
15.4
Before any party may bring an action in court against the other (except as provided
in Section 15.6 below), the parties must first meet to mediate the dispute (except as otherwise
provided below). Any such mediation shall be non-binding and shall be conducted by the
American Arbitration Association in accordance with its then-current rules for mediation of
commercial disputes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, this Section 15.4 shall not bar
either party from obtaining injunctive relief against threatened conduct that will cause it loss or
damages, under the usual equity rules, including the applicable rules for obtaining restraining
orders and preliminary injunctions, without having to engage in mediation.
15.5
No right or remedy conferred upon or reserved to Franchisor or Developer by this
Agreement is intended to be, nor shall be deemed, exclusive of any other right or remedy herein
or by law or equity provided or permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or
remedy.
15.6
Nothing herein contained shall bar Franchisor’s right to obtain injunctive relief
against threatened conduct that will cause it loss or damages, under the usual equity rules,
including the applicable rules for obtaining restraining orders and preliminary injunctions.
15.7
Franchisor and Developer irrevocably waive trial by jury in any action, proceeding,
or counterclaim, whether at law or in equity, brought by either of them against the other, whether
or not there are other parties in such action or proceeding.
15.8
Any and all claims and actions arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the
relationship of Developer and Franchisor, or Developer’s operation of the business contemplated
hereunder, brought by any party hereto against the other, shall be commenced within one (1) year
from the occurrence of the facts giving rise to such claim or action, or such claim or action shall
be barred.
15.9
Franchisor and Developer hereby waive to the fullest extent permitted by law any
right to or claim of any punitive or exemplary damages against the other, and agree that in the
event of a dispute between them each shall be limited to the recovery of any actual damages
sustained by it.
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16.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

16.1
Developer acknowledges that it has conducted an independent investigation of the
business contemplated hereunder, recognizes that the business venture contemplated by this
Agreement involves business risks, and that its success will be largely dependent upon the ability
of Developer and if a corporation, partnership, or limited liability company, its owners as
independent businesspersons. Franchisor expressly disclaims the making of, and Developer
acknowledges that it has not received, any warranty or guarantee, express or implied, as to the
potential volume, profits, or success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement.

Developer acknowledges that it received a copy of this Agreement, and has read
and understood this Agreement the exhibit(s) hereto, and agreements relating hereto, if any, with
all of the blank lines therein filled in, prior to the date on which this Agreement was executed, and
with sufficient time within which to review the Agreement and to consult with advisors of
Developer’s own choosing about the potential benefits and risks of entering into this Agreement.
Developer further acknowledges that it received Franchisor’s franchise disclosure document
required by the Federal Trade Commission Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 436, at least fourteen
(14) calendar days prior to the date on which this Agreement was executed.
16.2

16.3
Developer acknowledges that it has read and understood this Agreement, the
exhibits hereto, and agreements relating thereto, if any, and that Franchisor has accorded
Developer ample time and opportunity to consult with advisors of Developer’s own choosing about
the potential benefits and risks of entering into this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly signed, sealed, and delivered this
Agreement in duplicate on the day and year first above written.
Marco’s Franchising, LLC
Franchisor

Developer

By:
Name:
Title:

By:
Name:
Title:

Address for Notices:
President
Marco's Franchising, LLC
5252 Monroe Street
Toledo, Ohio 43623
Fax (419) 885-5215

Address for Notices:

Telephone:
Fax:
Attn:

[Remainder of Page is Blank]
Exhibits to Follow on Next Page
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MARCO’S FRANCHISING, LLC
EXHIBIT A TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
Development Area and Development Schedule
1.
Development Area. All Stores developed under this Development Agreement shall
be located within the boundaries of the following area:

2.
Development Schedule. Recognizing that time is of the essence, Developer
agrees to satisfy the development schedule set forth below:
By (Date)

Cumulative Total Number of Stores Which
Developer Shall Have Open and in Operation

Initialed
Developer

Franchisor
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MARCO’S FRANCHISING, LLC
EXHIBIT B TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
Guarantee
As an inducement to Marco’s Franchising, LLC (“Franchisor”) to execute the Marco’s
Franchising, LLC Development Agreement between Franchisor and
(“Developer”) dated ___________, 20________________________ (the “Agreement”), the
undersigned hereby agree to defend, indemnify and hold Franchisor, Franchisor’s affiliates, and
their respective officers, directors, employees, and agents harmless against any and all losses,
damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees,
reasonable costs of investigation, court costs, and arbitration fees and expenses) resulting from,
consisting of, or arising out of or in connection with any failure by Developer to perform any
obligation of Developer under the Agreement, any amendment thereto, or any other agreement
executed by Developer referred to therein.
The undersigned hereby acknowledge and agree to be individually bound by all of the
covenants contained in Section 8 of the Agreement.
This Guarantee shall terminate upon the termination or expiration of the Agreement,
except that all obligations and liabilities of the undersigned which arose from events which
occurred on or before the effective date of such termination shall remain in full force and effect
until satisfied or discharged by the undersigned, and all covenants which by their terms continue
in force after the expiration or termination of the Agreement shall remain in force according to
their terms. Upon the death of an individual guarantor, the estate of such guarantor shall be
bound by this Guarantee, but only for obligations hereunder existing at the time of death; and the
obligations of the other guarantors will continue in full force and effect.
Unless specifically stated otherwise, the terms used in this Guarantee shall have the same
meaning as in the Agreement, and shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with
Section 15 of the Agreement. This Guarantee shall be interpreted and construed under the laws
of the State of Ohio. In the event of any conflict of law, the laws of Ohio shall prevail (without
regard to, and without giving effect to, the application of Ohio conflict of law rules).
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has signed this Guarantee as of the
date of the Agreement.
Guarantors

Printed Name

Printed Name

Printed Name

By:
In his/her personal capacity

By:
In his/her personal capacity

By:
In his/her personal capacity
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MARCO’S FRANCHISING, LLC
EXHIBIT C TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
List of Principals

Name of Principal

Address

Interest (%)

INITIALED:
FRANCHISOR: ______DEVELOPER: ___
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MARCO’S FRANCHISING, LLC
EXHIBIT DB TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
Franchise Agreement
The form of Franchise Agreement currently offered by Franchisor is attached.
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MARCO’S FRANCHISING, LLC
EXHIBIT EC TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
SAMPLE
NON-DISCLOSURE AND NON-COMPETITON AGREEMENT
THIS NON-DISCLOSURE AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is
made this _____ day of _________, 20___,__________________________, by and between
___________________________ (the “Developer”), and ___________________________, who
is a Principal, manager, supervisor, member, partner, or a person in a managerial position with,
Developer (the “Individual”).
RECITALS:
WHEREAS, Marco’s Franchising, LLC (“MFLLC”) owns a format and system (the
“System”) relating to the establishment and operation of businesses operating in buildings that
bear Franchisor’s interior and exterior trade dress, under the “Marco’s Pizza” name and marks
(“Stores”), and specializing in the sale of Proprietary Items including a limited menu of pizza and
submarine sandwiches and such other menu items as Franchisor may authorize from time to
time, utilizing carry-out and delivery services (collectively, the “Products”);
WHEREAS, MFLLC and Developer have executed a Development Agreement
(“Development Agreement”) granting Developer the right to develop “Marco’s Pizza” Stores and
to use the Marks in connection therewith under the terms and conditions of the Development
Agreement;
WHEREAS, the Individual, by virtue of his or her position with Developer, will gain access
to certain of MFLLC’s Confidential Information, as defined herein, and must therefore be bound
by the same confidentiality and non-competition agreement that Developer is bound by.
IN CONSIDERATION of these premises, the conditions stated herein, and for other good
and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, the
parties agree as follows:
1.
Confidential Information. Individual shall not, during the term of the Development
Agreement or thereafter, communicate, divulge, or use for the benefit of any other person,
persons, association, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other entity, any
confidential information, knowledge, or know-how concerning the methods of operation of the
business franchised thereunder which may be communicated to Individual or of which Individual
may be apprised by virtue of Developer’s operation under the terms of the Development
Agreement. Any and all information, knowledge, know-how, and techniques which MFLLC
designates as confidential shall be deemed confidential for purposes of this Agreement, except
information which Developer can demonstrate came to its attention prior to disclosure thereof by
MFLLC; or which, at or after the time of disclosure by MFLLC to Developer, had become or later
becomes a part of the public domain, through publication or communication by others.
2.

Covenants Not to Compete.

(a)
Individual specifically acknowledges that, pursuant to the Development
Agreement, and by virtue of its position with Developer, Individual will receive valuable specialized
training and confidential information, including, without limitation, information regarding the
operational, sales, promotional, and marketing methods and techniques of MFLLC and the
System.
(b)
Individual covenants and agrees that during the term of the Development
Agreement, except as otherwise approved in writing by MFLLC, Individual shall not, either directly
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or indirectly, for itself, or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person, persons,
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other entity:
(i)
Divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the Store or of any
Store using the System to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or
perform, directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with
MFLLC’s Marks and the System.
(ii)
Employ or seek to employ any person who is at that time employed by
MFLLC, Developer, any other developer, master franchisee, franchisee, or development agent,
or otherwise directly or indirectly induce such person to leave his or her employment; or
(iii)
Either directly or indirectly for him/herself or on behalf of, or in conjunction
with any person, persons, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other entity, own,
maintain, operate, engage in, or have any interest in any business which is the same as or similar
to the Store.
(c)
Individual covenants and agrees that during the Post-Term Period (defined below),
except as otherwise approved in writing by MFLLC, Individual shall not, either directly or indirectly,
for itself, or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person, persons, corporation,
partnership, limited liability company, or other entity, own, maintain, operate, engage in, or have
any interest in any business which is the same as or similar to the business operated under the
Development Agreement or the Stores required to be developed under the Development
Agreement and which business is, or is intended to be, located (i) within the Development Area;
(ii) within a 5-mile radius of any Store developed under the Development Agreement; or (iii) within
a 5-mile radius of any Store under the System at the time the obligations under this Section 2(c)
commenced.
(d)
As used in this Agreement, the term “same as or similar to the business operated
under this Agreement or the Stores required to be developed under the Development Agreement”
shall mean any other retail business that features pizza as a main menu item.
(e)
As used in this Agreement, the term “Post-Term Period” shall mean a continuous
uninterrupted period of two (2) years from the date of: (a) a transfer permitted under Section 7 of
the Development Agreement; (b) expiration or termination of the Development Agreement
(regardless of the cause for termination); (c) termination of Individual’s employment with
Developer; and/or (d) a final order of a duly authorized arbitrator, panel of arbitrators, or a court
of competent jurisdiction (after all appeals have been taken) with respect to any of the foregoing
or with respect to the enforcement of this Agreement; either directly or indirectly (through, on
behalf of, or in conjunction with any persons, corporation, partnership, limited liability company,
or other entity).
3.
Injunctive Relief. Individual acknowledges that any failure to comply with the
requirements of this Agreement will cause MFLLC irreparable injury, and Individual agrees to pay
all court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by MFLLC in obtaining specific
performance of, or an injunction against violation of, the requirements of this Agreement.
4.
Severability. All agreements and covenants contained herein are severable. If
any of them, or any part or parts of them, shall be held invalid by any court of competent
jurisdiction for any reason, then the Individual agrees that the court shall have the authority to
reform and modify that provision in order that the restriction shall be the maximum necessary to
protect MFLLC’s and/or Developer’s legitimate business needs as permitted by applicable law
and public policy. In so doing, the Individual agrees that the court shall impose the provision with
retroactive effect as close as possible to the provision held to be invalid.
MARCO’S PIZZA®
Development Agreement ǀ 2015

Solo Page
EXHIBIT E

5.
Delay. No delay or failure by MFLLC or Developer to exercise any right under this
Agreement, and no partial or single exercise of that right, shall constitute a waiver of that or any
other right provided herein, and no waiver of any violation of any terms and provisions of this
Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of any succeeding violation of the same or any other
provision of this Agreement.
6.
Third-Party Beneficiary. Individual hereby acknowledges and agrees that MFLLC
is an intended third-party beneficiary of this Agreement with the right to enforce it, independently
or jointly with Developer.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Developer and the Individual attest that each has read and
understands the terms of this Agreement, and voluntarily signed this Agreement on this
day
of
, 201 .
DEVELOPER

INDIVIDUAL

By:

By:

Name:

Name:

Title:

Title:
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MARCO'S FRANCHISING, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
Franchise Summary
Effective Date: __________________
Franchisee: ____________________________________
Business Entity:

Corporation,

Limited Liability Company,

Store # ___________
Limited Partnership, or

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made
201
(the “Effective Date”) by and between:

,

Marco's Partnership, organized under the laws of the State of ___________, with a domicile of
____________.

List of Persons with 5% or more interest in the Franchisee Entity
(see definition of List of Owners for Franchise Entity):

Name:

% Interest:

Name:

% Interest:

Contact Person:

Title:

Franchisee Contact Info:

Franchisor Address:

City

State

Zip

Marco’s Franchising, LLC (“Franchisor” or
“we”), an Ohio limited liability company, with
its principal place of business located at
Attention: General Counsel
5252 Monroe Street, St., 2nd Floor
Toledo, OhioOH 43623; and
(419) 885-7000

County

Office:
Cell:
Email:
(

Term: 10 Years

Term Ending Date:
____________________

Renewal Notice Date:
____________________

Permitted Site:



;

(“Franchisee” or “you”), a [resident
of]/[corporation organized in]/[limited
liability company organized in]

for Store #
is
(or

and having offices at
1

, which location

City

State

Zip

and signed by Franchisor, if not determined as
As specified in the Permitted Site Addendum of the Effective Date.
referred to in Section 2.9 belowLetter issued
Area of Responsibility:
1 ½ Mile Radius
).
Other Description or Map: ___________________________________________________

Fees (all % refer to percentage of Net Royalty Sales):
Initial Franchise Fee $___________
Special Venue
Transfer Fee $_________
Other: ______________________________

Advertising and Promotions:
Total Marketing Spend:

7%

Brand Development Fee

1% / 1.5% Max

Local Store Marketing, Advertising Co-op, and
Geography Based Advertising not to exceed 6%
of Net Royalty Sales

Royalty:
5.5% Initial / 6.0% Maximum
Other: ______%

Technology Fee $110.56 per Period (beginning)

Brand Launch Program Fee:
$30,000 ($5,000 Initial Deposit and installments)

State Addendums
Not Applicable

New York

California

North Dakota

Illinois

South Dakota

Indiana

Washington

Maryland

Wisconsin

Minnesota

Exhibits to the Franchise Agreement:
Exhibit A
and
Exhibit B
Numbers

Guarantee, Indemnification,
Acknowledgment
Assignment of Telephone
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Exhibit C

Franchise Information Disclosure
Agreement

Exhibit D

Amendment for Special Venue
Locations
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This Franchise Agreement ("Agreement") is between Marco’s Franchising, LLC, an Ohio limited liability
company (“Franchisor” or "we,") and the Franchisee identified in the Franchise Summary on page 1 of
this Agreement, including Your Principal Owners defined below (collectively referred to as “Franchisee
or “you”). The information stated in the Franchise Summary above is a part of this Agreement for all
purposes and is incorporated into the specific provisions of this Agreement as referenced in the terms
stated below.
The Franchisee and each of the Principal Owners, jointly and severally, makes all of the representations,
warranties, covenants and agreements set forth in this Agreement and each is obligated to perform
hereunder. In consideration of the mutual undertakings and commitments of each party set forth herein,
the parties have each executed this Agreement to take effect for all purposes on the Effective Date stated
in the Franchise Summary ("Effective Date").
FRANCHISOR:
Marco’s Franchising, LLC

FRANCHISEE:
__________________________

By:

By:

Printed Name:
Title:

Printed Name:
Title:
By:
Printed Name:
Title:
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1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1.
The System.Franchise Offered. Franchisor has developed, owns and operates through
its Affiliates, and franchised Marco’s Pizza Stores, (a “Franchise Business”), which feature a
select menu of pizza, sandwiches, salads, chicken wings, soft drinks, CheezyBread and such
other menu items as we may authorize from time to time, utilizing carry-out, delivery, dine-in and
catering services. Franchisor has developed, owns and operates a comprehensive system for
developing and operating Stores, which includes trade secrets, trade names, trademarks, service
marks, store designs and layouts, image, equipment, ingredients, recipes, specifications,
advertising, marketing and promotional programs, methods of inventory control and other
operational and business standards, policies and procedures, all of which we may improve, further
develop or otherwise modify from time to time (the “System”).dine-in and catering services using
our System, defined below.
2.

DEFINITIONS

2.1.
Accounting Period or Period.
A period of time we establish periodically for which
you will report sales, financial results and other required reporting information. Typically, each
Accounting Period will start on a Monday and run for 28 consecutive days (4 weeks). We may
revise the defined Accounting Period, Quarter or Year by sending you notice of a change. If we
change the Accounting Period, then any payments in this Agreement that are set on a perAccounting-Period basis shall automatically be adjusted on a per diem basis to match the change
in the number of days in an Accounting Period.
2.2.
Accounting Quarter or Quarter. A group of consecutive Periods according to the
calendar we publish each year. Quarters 1, 2 and 4 will have 3 Periods. Quarter 3 will have 4
Periods.
2.3.
Accounting Week, Week or Weekly. 7 consecutive days beginning on Monday and
continuing through the following Sunday.
2.4.
Accounting Year or Year. A fiscal year consisting of 13 Accounting Periods defined by
us. Approximately every 5 years, we use a 53-Week Year instead of the normal 52 Weeks in
order to conform to various accounting conventions and tax regulations.
2.5.
Affiliates. Any person, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other
business entity that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is
controlled by, or is under common control with such party; and, with respect to Franchisor, the
term “Affiliate” shall also include, without limitation, any advertising fund or cooperative operating
under the System.
2.6.
Agreement. This franchise agreement that has been signed by both you and Franchisor,
including all Exhibits and any materials incorporated by reference and any subsequent
amendments.
2.7.
Appraiser. That natural person or business entity which is qualified to estimate the “Fair
Market Value” of any Store equipment and other physical assets in their “as-is” present condition,
place and purpose.
2.8.
Approved Products. Pizza, chicken wings, salads, Cheezybread®,™, and sandwiches
made in accordance with the System, and soft drinks plus any other products that we may
periodically approve for your Store and for which we publish specifications in the Manuals, are
approved for sale by you in your Store.
2.9.
Permitted Site Addendum. An Addendum to this Agreement granting permission for a
specific site by the Franchisor if the Site was not determined as of the Effective Date and
MARCO’S PIZZA®
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designated on page 1 of this Agreement. The form and substance for this addendum shall be as
provided in Exhibit F.
2.10.2.9.
Area of Responsibility. We provide you a specific exclusive area adjacent to the
Site for the development and operation of your Store identified as the Area of Responsibility.
Typically, the Area of Responsibility is a circle that has its center at the front door of the Store and
a radius of 1.5 miles. In some circumstances, the Area of Responsibility may be an irregular shape
and will be described as set forth in Exhibit “A”the Franchise Summary to this Agreement. If an
irregularThe Franchise Summary will designate the applicable Area of Responsibility is not
described in Exhibit “A” the 1.5 mile radius will apply.. (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
2.11.2.10.
Brand Development Fund. A fund under the administration and management of
Franchisor that will be allocated, and spent, toward all activities of brand development, including
producing creative content for all national, regional and local marketing, designing and producing
marketing materials, developing and maintaining social media and internet “web” sites,
franchisee-accessible intranets, promotional activities, product development and consumer
research, franchise conferences, motivational or leadership programs, and any other program or
activity we determine will enhance the recognition and value of the brand. This fund may purchase
media occasionally, but that is not the general purpose of the Brand Development Fund.
Expenditures by the fund are intended to benefit all or substantially all Stores. (Special Venue
Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
2.11. Brand Launch Program. The advertising program for the Store conducted by Franchisor
for the first four (4) to six (6) months of Store operations (further defined in Section 11.6). (Special
Venue Stores refer to Exhibit D.)
2.12. Collateral. Includes all of your business assets now owned or hereafter acquired in
connection with the Store and wherever located, together with all substitutions, replacements,
additions and accessions thereto, all products thereof and all cash and non-cash proceeds thereof
including, but is not limited to, notes, checks, instruments or, and insurance proceeds, to provide
Franchisor and its Affiliates a security interest in your assets to provide for payment of all amounts
owing by you under this Agreement (further defined in Section 4.6)..
2.13. Confidential Data. All information about the business of either the Franchisee or
Franchisor which is not in the public domain is considered confidential. Some information about
the business systems of Franchisor (for example, the System), which is confidential, is also
protected under copyright and other federal laws and regulations.
Declaration of List of Owners Addendum. The person or persons, or legal entity that signs the
Agreement as Franchisee with beneficial interest of five percent (5%) or greater of the equity of
this Agreement must sign the Declaration of List of Owners Addendum (Exhibit D).
2.14. Delivery Area. The area designated by Marco’s within which you must offer delivery
service for sale of the Approved Products as provided in Section 12.13.3. (Special Venue Stores
refer to Exhibit HD.)
2.15. Designated Franchise Representative. The natural person(s) designated by you,
subject to our approval, to manage the Franchise Business, engage in all communications with
us, and assume responsibility for the compliance of all franchise related business and operational
activities under the terms of this Agreement and all Manuals unless an individual is fully identified
on Exhibit “D” as the Designated Franchise Representative. Unless otherwise indicated, the first
natural person listed indicating the most senior management authority for the entity in the List of
Owners, on Exhibit D, for Franchise Entity will serve in that capacity.
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2.16. DMA. The specific Designated Marketing Area in which the Store is located, as defined
by the Nielsen Media Research Company, or such other reference we may adopt from time to
time for determining market areas.
2.17.

Effective Date. The date identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement.

2.18. Electronic Funds Transfer. (EFT). A system in which funds are transferred from your
bank account to our bank account (“Account”) using pre-authorized electronic bank debits rather
than paper-based checks.
2.19. Electronic Reporting. A system devised or, developed or implemented by us to report
operational data, such as Net Royalty Sales, Royalty Fees or other information in an electronic
format or file using e-mail,designated internet, fax or other meanscommunication protocol not
requiring a paper-based report.
2.20. Electronic Signature. A method determined by us which provides evidence that the
Franchisee or its authorized representative certifies to us the accuracy and authenticity of any
information reported under any Electronic Reporting system. We may consider such Electronic
Signature as valid as any other certification required by this Agreement.
2.21. Equipment. All original and replacement equipment, fixtures, furniture, and signs used
by you in connection with the operation of the Store.
2.22. Exhibit. Any of the various exhibits, which may be attached to this Agreement, all of which
constitute an integral part of this Agreement.
2.23. Fair Market Value. The estimated value at which an asset will usually change hands
between a willing buyer and willing seller with both have access to all the facts and both given an
opportunity to investigate alternatives. In the absence of a willing buyer and willing seller, Fair
Market Value may be estimated by professional appraisers who have first-hand knowledge of
prior sales between willing buyers and willing sellers and who can extrapolate to the current
circumstances the situation at hand. Any price or set of terms and conditions of sale accepted by
a seller and buyer, or, as established by the Three Appraiser Method, is the Fair Market Value.
2.24. Franchise Disclosure Document (FDD). The complete and current document required
by the Trade Regulation Rule of the Federal Trade Commission and any applicable state laws
and regulations (further defined in Section 5.4).
2.25. Franchisee Owner(s). If you are a partnership, all the partners; if you are a corporation,
all of the shareholders; and/or if you are a limited liability company, all of the members. All of the
Franchisee Owners are required to sign Exhibits “A” and “B” to this Agreement.
2.26.

Franchisor.

(Defined in the identification of parties, above.)

2.27. Geography Based Advertising Funds. A fund established for a particular geographic
region in which the Store is located for the payment of certain coordinated national, statewide,
and/or regional advertising and promotional programs and expenses. (Special Venue Stores refer
to Exhibit HD.)
2.28. Gift Card Program. A program administered by a third party approved by us which
permits retail customers to purchase stored value tokens or cards which are sold and redeemed
throughout the System.
2.29. Good Standing. "Good Standing" means that you and all of your Owners (if you are a
business entity): (i) are in compliance with all applicable System standards; (ii) have satisfied all
monetary obligations owed to us and our affiliates as well as all suppliers and government
authorities; (iii) are not in default of any provision of the Franchise Agreement, including the
required attendance at the Franchise Annual Conference, or any other agreement with us or with
MARCO’S PIZZA®
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any of our Affiliates; (iv) have not been notified, in writing, on 2 or more occasions during the last
2 years that you are in default or otherwise not in compliance with any provision of the Agreement;
and (v) have not been notified on 2 occasions in the last 2 years that you are “past due” on sums
of money owed to us, our Affiliates, suppliers, landlords, lenders or governmental taxing
authorities. Failure to maintain all the requirements of good standing may result in loss of any
discounts we may provide you on any programs we offer to other franchisees and your pro-rata
share of any voluntary payment by us of rebates or other supplier incentives which we receive
from suppliers In order to be in “Good Standing” you and your Owners (if you are a business
entity) must be in Good Standing under your Franchise Agreement and also the franchise
agreement for any other Store in which the Owners have more than a 25% ownership interest or
otherwise control the Store’s operations.
2.30. Index. The Consumer Price Index (1982 84=100; all items; CPI-U; all urban consumers)
as published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (or if the CPI is no longer published, another
substitute reference reasonably designated by Franchisor).
2.31. Initial Franchise Fee. The fee calculated and paid in accordance with Section 4.1 of this
Agreement. (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
2.32. Interest. As used in Section 20, refers to any right, title or other interest, either direct or
indirect, in the entity identified as the Franchisee Owner or in the assets used in connection with
the operation of the Store or held by any Franchisee Owner with respect to the franchise entity or
any assets used “Franchise Assets.”
2.33. License. The rights given to you to use the System and the Marks for the operation of a
Store (further defined in Section 3.1).
2.34. List of Owners for Franchise Entity Declaration of List of Owners Addendum. The
person or persons, or legal entity that signs the Agreement as Franchisee with beneficial interest
of five percent (5%) or greater of the equity as defined in the Franchise Summary of this
Agreement.
2.34.2.35.
Manuals. The "Marco's Operations Manuals" and all other handbooks, lists, and
written or digital format communications containing specifications or standards for the operation
of a Store. Franchisor may from time to time and in its sole discretion, amend or supplement the
Manuals, which are incorporated by reference into this Agreement.
Marks. Current and future trademarks, service marks, trade names and trade
2.35.2.36.
dress used to identify the services or products offered by Stores operated under the System,
including the marks “Marco’s”, “Chef Marco’s”, and “Marco’s Pizza” and Franchisor’s distinctive
building designs and color schemes.
Net Royalty Sales. The total gross amount of all revenues, excluding only (1)
2.36.2.37.
sales tax or other receipts you collect and remit to the proper taxing authorities and (2) authorized
coupon or other promotional discounts you provide to your customers. Included in the definition
is revenue from whatever source derived (whether in the form of cash, credit, agreements to pay,
or other consideration (such as bartering), and whether or not payment is received at the time of
sale or any of those amounts prove uncollectible. Also included is revenue that in any manner at
all arises from or is derived by you or by any other business conducted or which originate in, on,
from or through the Site or the Store. This includes, revenue you derive through the Store, from
the sale of products associated with the Store, and revenue derived from your use of the Marks,
whether or not you conduct those operations in compliance with or in violation of this Agreement.
2.37.2.38.
“On-Line Order Entry. A method of taking orders for pizza and other food items
from consumers through the “Marco’s” website (currently www.marcos.com) and routing such
MARCO’S PIZZA®
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orders by digital format to the Store (further defined in Section 13.15). (Special Venue Stores refer
to Exhibit HD.)
2.38.2.39.
Online Site. One or more related documents, designs, pages, or other
communications that can be accessed through digital format, including, but not limited to, the
Internet, World Wide Web, webpages, microsites, social networking sites (e.g., Facebook, Twitter,
LinkedIn, You Tube, Google Plus, Pinterest, etc.), blogs, vlogs, applications to be installed on
mobile devices (e.g., iPad or Droid apps), and other applications we elect.
Options to Renew. Two additional 10 year periods based on the terms and
2.39.2.40.
conditions of the then-current form of Franchisor franchise agreement then being offered to new
franchisees and commencing upon the expiration of the initial Term, or the first Renewal Term
(further defined in Section 3.87), as the case may be. (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
2.41. Permitted Site Letter.
A Permitted Site Letter will be provided to you by Franchisor
granting permission for a specific site by the Franchisor if the Site was not determined as of the
Effective Date and designated on page 1 of this Agreement.
2.40.2.42.
Royalty Fees. A fee computed as a percentage of Net Royalty Sales, paid weekly
for Net Royalty Sales achieved the preceding week, unless otherwise directed, as additional
consideration for Franchisor granting you the License (further defined in Section 4.2). (Special
Venue Stores refer to Exhibit Royalty Fees. A fee computed as a percentage of Net Royalty
Sales, paid weekly for Net Royalty Sales achieved the preceding week, unless otherwise directed,
as additional consideration for Franchisor granting you the License (further defined in Section
4.2). (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
2.41.2.43.
operated.

Site. The location (permitted by Franchisor) at which the Store is or will be

2.42. Brand Launch Program. The advertising program for the Store conducted by Franchisor
for the first three (3) to four (4) months of Store operations (further defined in Section 11.6).
(Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit H.)
2.44. Store. The business location, at which you are permitted to conduct the Franchise
Business contemplated under this Agreement, using the Marks and the System, at the Site.
2.45. Supplies. All ingredients, cooking materials, containers, packaging materials, and other
paper and plastic products, utensils, employee uniforms, forms, menus, cleaning and sanitation
supplies, and any other materials used in the operation of the Store.
2.43.1.1.
System. franchised Business contemplated under this Agreement, using the
Marks and the System, at the Site.
2.44.1.1.
Supplies. All ingredients, cooking materials, containers, packaging materials, and
other paper and plastic products, utensils, employee uniforms, forms, menus, cleaning and
sanitation supplies, and any other materials used in the operation of the Store.
2.45.

System. (Defined in Section 1.1).

2.46. Franchisor’s comprehensive system for developing and operating Stores, which includes
trade secrets, trade names, trademarks, service marks, store designs and layouts, image,
equipment, ingredients, recipes, specifications, advertising, marketing and promotional programs,
methods of inventory control and other operational and business standards, policies and
procedures, all of which we may improve, further develop or otherwise modify from time to time .
2.47. Technology. The Technology systems offer a customer relationship management system
(CRM) that enables, among other things, email advertising to customers, customer surveying,
tracking of responses made to customers, and tools to measure customer satisfaction.
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2.46.2.48.
Term. A period of 10 years stated in the Franchise Summary, commencing on the
Effective Date, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.
(Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
2.47.2.49.
Termination Fee. The fee paid to Franchisor as described in Section 19.2 below
should you wish to terminate this Agreement at any time subsequent to completion of the initial
training program.
Three Appraiser Method. The Three Appraiser method is a manner in which Fair
2.48.2.50.
Market Value of assets or the value of real estate for calculating a fair rental value shall be
determined. In this manner, Franchisor shall employ an Appraiser who shall appraise the value
of the assets to be purchased or rental value of the real estate to be leased. That appraiser shall
submit its report of value to both Franchisor and the Franchisee within fourteen (14) days of the
Notice of Appraisal being delivered to the Franchisee. If both Franchisor and the Franchisee
agree to the value(s), then the value shall be the Fair Market Value, as that term is defined herein,
under the terms and conditions then applied in the Appraisal. If the parties do not agree, then the
Franchisee shall employ an Appraiser, who shall provide to Franchisor and the Franchisee his
report of the value of the assets to be purchased or rental value of the real estate to be leased. If
both Franchisor and the Franchisee agree to that value(s), then the value(s) shall be the Fair
Market Value under the terms and conditions then applied in the Appraisal. If the parties do not
agree to that value(s), then the two appraisers shall mutually agree as to the hiring of a third
appraiser who shall deliver a report of value(s) as to the assets to be purchased or the real estate
to be leased. Said Third appraiser shall determine a value not lower than the lowest previously
calculated estimate of value(s) or higher than the highest previously calculated estimate of
value(s) by the other two appraisers. Said Third Appraiser’s estimate of Fair Market Value shall
be binding on both Franchisor and the Franchisee.
2.49.2.51.
Trade Secret. Any information about the System that is confidential, which may
be explained in the Manuals or otherwise, and is not in the public domain, is a Trade Secret and
protected under various US and state laws.
Transferee. A third party approved by Franchisor to purchase any Interest in you
2.50.2.52.
or any Franchisee Owner in connection with any transfer referred to in Section 20.
Una Fonte. Una Fonte is a customer relationship management system (CRM) and an extension
of “CiaoNet” that enables, among other things, email advertising to customers, customer
surveying, and tracking of responses made to customers.
3.
GRANT OF LICENSE; RENEWAL OPTIONS
3.1.
Grant of License. Franchisor grants to you a License to use the System and the Marks
(the "License") for the operation of one Store at the Site during the Term of this Agreement,
pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. If the initial authorization for your
Site and design criteria is for a Limited Seating Store, you may request authorization to remodel
your Store to an Expanded Seating Store in the future. You accept the License and agree to
exercise your rights under this Agreement in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. If the
location provided on page 2 of this Agreement is not specified then you agree this license shall
expire in 6 months unless theyou are provided a Permitted Site Addendum (Exhibit F) is mutually
executedLetter by Franchisor within said 6 month time period. If this Agreement is executed to
document the transfer of rights conveyed by a prior franchise agreement, this Agreement shall be
modified by a transfer addendum identifying certain provisions not applicable to the transferee or
necessary to meet the current circumstances, including an expiration date of the Agreement which
is 10 years from the date of the execution of the previous franchise agreement under which the
Store was being operated when the transfer occurred and an Initial Franchise Fee was paid.
(Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
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3.2.
Our Commitment to You Concerning the Area of Responsibility and Exclusions.
During the term of this Agreement, we agree not to establish, and not to license any other person
to establish, another Store at any location within the Area of Responsibility, except as otherwise
provided in this Agreement (including for example, the provisions in Sections 3.2.1 – 3.2.7 below).
Your Area of Responsibility is specified in Exhibit A to this Agreementthe Franchise Summary,
but it does not include Captive Market Locations (“Special Venues”), subject to the requirements
of Section 3.2.7. We retain all other rights, and may, among other things, on any terms and
conditions we deem advisable, and without granting you any rights in these matters, do any or all
of the following:
3.2.1. We have the right to establish, and license others to establish, Stores at
any location outside the Area of Responsibility, notwithstanding their proximity to the Area
of Responsibility or the Site or their actual or threatened impact on sales at the Store.
3.2.2. We have the right to establish, and license others to establish, Stores at
any Special Venue (as defined below) inside or outside of your Area of Responsibility,
despite those Stores’ proximity to the Site or their actual or threatened impact on sales at
the Store. We will restrict the sales from any Special Venue from the delivery of food
products outside the confines of the immediate building and adjoining structures of the
venue.
3.2.3. We have the right to establish, and license others to establish, businesses
that are not operated under the System and that do not use the Proprietary Marks licensed
to you under this Agreement, even if those businesses offer or sell products that are the
same as or similar to the Products offered from the FranchisedFranchise Business,
whether those businesses are located inside or outside the Area of Responsibility, despite
those businesses’ proximity to the Site or their actual or threatened impact on sales at the
Store.
3.2.4. We have the right to acquire (or be acquired) and then operate any
business of any kind, whether located inside or outside the Area of Responsibility, despite
those businesses’ proximity to the Site or their actual or threatened impact on sales at the
Store provided such businesses do not us the Marks.
3.2.5. So long as sales are not made from a Store located inside the Area of
Responsibility (excluding a Special Venue Store), we have the right to sell and distribute
(or license others to sell and distribute) directly or indirectly, any Products or Proprietary
Items, from any location or to any purchaser (including, but not limited, to sales made to
purchasers in the Area of Responsibility through supermarkets, gourmet shops, mail order,
and on the Internet).
3.2.6. If a Special Venue Store is located within your Area of Responsibility, or is
located within your designated Delivery Area, certain guidelines must be followed before
we will license to any third party the right to use the Marks, to sell Marco’s branded
products, or operate a Store within such Special Venue. We will first determine if you are
in compliance with the Development Criteria Standards. If you are in compliance, we will
provide you the right of first refusal, following the procedure stated in the Development
Criteria Standards, for the exclusive rights to distribute Marco’s Approved Products in such
Special Venue. If you are not in compliance at the time another party has requested such
rights, we may proceed to license such party for exclusive rights to use the Marks, to sell
Marco’s branded products, or operate a Store within such Special Venue. (Special Venue
Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
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3.3.
Limits on Where You May Sell. You may offer and sell Products only: (a) from the
Franchised Business; (b) in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and the
procedures set forth in the Manual; and (c) to retail customers for personal consumption at the
Store’s premises, carry-out consumption, delivery or catering services. You agree not to offer or
sell Products through any means other than those provided above, for example, you agree not to
offer or sell Products from satellite locations, temporary locations, carts or kiosks, by use of
catalogs, the Internet, or through any other digital format or print media without our prior written
approval. You agree not to sell Products to retail establishments for re-sale, without our prior
written consent. (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
3.4.
Delivery and Catering. You agree to conduct all delivery activities in accordance with
the procedures that we have specified in the Manual or otherwise in writing, and the revenue from
those orders will be considered to be part of your Store’s Net Royalty Sales. Among other things,
you agree not to engage in catering or delivery services outside of the Area of Responsibility
unless you have obtained our prior written consent as to each such proposed delivery order. By
granting approval to any one or more proposals to provide catering or delivery service outside of
your Area of Responsibility, we will not have waived our right to later approve or disapprove any
other proposed catering or delivery services. (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
3.5.
Definitions. “Captive Market Location” includes, among other things, non-foodservice
businesses of any sort within which a Store or a “Marco’s Pizza” branded facility is established
and operated, including, for example, hotels and resorts (where the Store is enclosed within the
confines of a hotel or resort structure); airports and other travel facilities; federal, state, or local
government facilities (including military bases); theme and amusement parks; recreational
facilities; colleges and other academic facilities; seasonal facilities; shopping malls; theaters; train
stations; toll roads; hospitals; cafeterias; snack bars; truck stops; casinos; department stores;
supermarkets; gasoline convenience stores; and sporting event arenas and centers; and retail
restaurant locations being sublet under a lease to a master concessionaire.
3.6.
Right of First Refusal. In the event we desire to license any other third party to operate
a Special Venue Store in your Area of Exclusive Responsibility, we will provide you with a Right
of First Refusal to operate or manage such facility as provided in this Section.
3.6.1. This Right of First Refusal will not apply to any facility which you are not
qualified to operate due to a) your Lack of Good Standing with us, b) your financial condition
and inability to obtain financing for properly equipping or building such Store, c) your lack
of security clearances or inability to obtain such, d) any other lack of qualification that would
deny you the ability to operate any other Store in any other location, or e) in any facility
whose food service operations are controlled by a third party contract for which you are not
qualified by such third party.
3.6.2. We will provide you with all relevant details concerning any such Special
Venue Store and provide you with 30 days written notice to allow you to exercise your Right
of First Refusal as provided in this Section. Should you not respond within said time period
or if you are unable to fully commit to exercising your Right of First Refusal, then we will
have satisfied our obligations to you under this Section.
3.6.3. In the event you are not qualified to operate said Special Venue Store or if
you elect not to operate said location for any reason, and we license a third party to so
operate the location, we agree to pay you a “Area Usage Fee” equal to forty (40%) percent
of any “net royalties” which we collect from the location. The term “net royalties” shall mean
the gross amount we collect, less any fees paid to any applicable Area Representative
Agreements, and our direct costs in supporting such location.
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3.7.
Option to Renew. If this document is a new license agreement, and not a renewal of a
former Franchise Agreement, then you may, at your option, renew this License for up to 2
additional terms of 10 years each (a “Renewal Term”) on the terms and conditions of our then
current form of franchise agreement commencing upon the expiration of the Term, provided that:
3.7.1. You must have delivered to Franchisor written notice of your request to
renew your Franchise, no earlier than 1 year or later than 6 months, prior to the expiration
of the Term or the Renewal Term; (“Renewal Notice Date”);
3.7.2. You must remodel your Store to the then current standards for new Stores
including, but not limited to, replacement of any signage, equipment, store decor and other
trade items required by Franchisor (all such required remodeling must be completed prior
to the effective date of the renewal term). For such required remodeling, Franchisor agrees
not to require you to spend within 5 years more than 25% of the average cost to construct
a new Store as provided in your Franchise Disclosure Document;
3.7.3. You must have delivered satisfactory evidence, as part of the notice
referred to in Section 3.7.1 above, that you have the right to remain in possession of the
premises at which your Store is located for the duration of the term of the New Franchise;
3.7.4. You, and all of your Franchisee Owners, must have executed and delivered
to Franchisor a general release of any and all claims against Franchisor and its Affiliates,
in a form prescribed by us, accruing for all claims prior to the Effective Date of the New
Franchise;
3.7.5. You, and all of your Franchisee Owners, have executed and delivered to
Franchisor the then-current form of Franchisor franchise agreement (and all related
documents) then being offered to new franchisees, which shall supersede the terms of the
Agreement in all respects, and which terms may differ substantially from the terms of the
Agreement including, without limitation, increased Royalty Fees, Brand Awareness and/or
Geography Based Advertising Funds contributions;
3.7.6. You must pay to Franchisor, contemporaneously with the execution of the
agreement for the renewal option, a renewal fee equal to the greater of: (a) Six Thousand
Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($6,250); or (b) 25% of the then-current Initial Franchise Fee
whichever sum is greater; and
3.7.7. You and all of your Franchisee Owners must be in compliance with the
Development Criteria Standards as are stated in the Manual at the time of your request.
(Special Venues Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
3.8.
Further Options to Renew. At the end of the Renewal Terms, if you and all of your
Franchisee Owners are in Good Standing under this Agreement and any other agreement
between you and your Franchisee Owners (and any Affiliates) and Franchisor and our Affiliates,
then we will discuss with you additional renewal rights; provided that neither you nor we shall be
under any obligation to one another with respect to the nature and detail of any such discussions,
or as to whether or not to enter into an agreement for any additional terms or extensions of this
Agreement.
4.

FEES

4.1.
Initial Franchise Fee. You agree to pay to Franchisor the sum of Twenty Five Thousand
Dollars ($25,000)as stated in the Franchise Summary as the Initial Franchise Fee and it is due
and payable when you sign this Agreement. Subject to the provisions of Section 19.1 below, the
Initial Franchise Fee shall be deemed fully earned and non-refundable upon the execution of this
Agreement. (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
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4.2.
Royalty Fees. By Thursday of each week we must receive a report of the Net Royalty
Sales and information along with your calculation of Royalty Fees, Advertising contributions, and
other fees payable to us or our Affiliates that were achieved by the Store through Sunday of the
preceding week. You must timely complete and submit all information requested on the approved
forms or to submit such data by Electronic Reporting with Electronic Signature upon request. We
will debit your account for the proper amount of Royalty Fees and Advertising amount that you
owe to us, based on the sales reports that you provide to us. If you fail to report your Net Royalty
Sales for the week as required, we can debit your account on Friday for an estimated Royalty Fee
and Advertising amount. You shall file a Royalty Fee Report every four (4) weeks for the
preceding Accounting Period on or before the tenth (10th) day following the end of the Accounting
Period. If the Royalty Fee we have debited from your account is greater than the Royalty Fee
you actually owe us (once we have determined your true and correct Net Royalty Sales for the
Accounting Period from your Royalty Fee Report), we will credit the excess against the amount
we otherwise would debit from your account on the following Friday. If the Royalty Fee we have
debited from your account is less than the Royalty Fee you actually owe us, we will debit your
account for the balance of the Royalty Fee due on the following Friday.
4.2.1. We can require you pay the Royalty Fee by means other than automatic
debit (e.g. by check) whenever we deem appropriate, and you promise to comply with our
payment instructions.
4.2.
Royalty Fee. The Royalty Fee is initially set as a percentage of Net Royalty Sales as
stated in the Franchise Summary. (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit E.) The Royalty Fees
may be modified by Franchisor under the following conditions: (a) an increase is consistently
applied across all franchisees on a system wide basis (to the extent permitted by each franchise
agreement); (b) an aggregate increase in the Royalty Fee rate will not exceed a total of six percent
(6%) of Net Royalty Sales; (c) 90 days prior written notice must be provided to you. Franchisor
may modify the Royalty Fee rate to a lower percentage and then increase the rate again to the
highest previous rate applied under this Agreement. All Royalty Fee modifications will continue
until you are notified otherwise by Franchisor.
4.2.2.4.2.1.
You must sign and deliver to us, before the Store opens, the
documents we require to authorize us to automatically debit your business checking
account each Fridayweek for the Royalty Fee and other amounts due from you during the
preceding week. If you change your bank or bank account number, you agree to provide
us with timely updated documentation to ensure there is no lapse in the ACHEFT debit
schedule.
4.2.2. You agree to install and maintain an approved POS system that provides
the data for Net Royalty Sales and related information directly to Franchisor in order to
assimilate and report Net Royalty Sales on a weekly basis. The sales data collected by
Franchisor will be used to calculate Royalty Fees, advertising fees, and other fees payable
to us or our Affiliates. We will debit your bank account for the proper amount of Royalty
Fees, advertising fees and other fees in the amount you owe to us, based on the sales data
collected. If the Net Royalty Sales data is not collected for any reason, we can debit your
bank account on the designated day in an amount estimated based on previous Royalty
Fee, Advertising amount.
4.2.3. At the end of each Accounting Period, Net Royalty Sales and all fees and
charges will be reconciled. Any outstanding adjustments, whether debits or credits, will be
included with the ACH for the final week at the Period close.
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4.2.4. We can require you to pay all fees and other charges by means other than
EFT (e.g. by check) whenever we deem appropriate, and you must comply with our
payment instructions.
4.2.3.4.2.5.
Franchisor may from time to time, in its sole discretion, expand,
contract or change the lengthstructure of any or all Accounting Periods.
4.2.3.1. Unless reduced or increased in accordance with the terms of this section,
Royalty Fees shall be 5.5% of Net Royalty Sales. (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit
H.)
4.2.3.2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Royalty Fees for all franchisees may be
increased system wide (to the extent permitted by each franchise agreement) by one-half
of a percentage point (1/2%) upon 90 days prior written notice to you. In such event, the
percentages set forth in Sections 4.2.3.1, above shall be increased by one-half percent
(1/2%) of Net Royalty Sales. Such increases will continue until you are notified otherwise
by Franchisor. Franchisor may, at its discretion, reverse the increase, and at any time
reinstate the increase, but not to effect an aggregate increase in the Royalty Fee rate above
six percent (6%) of Net Royalty Sales.
4.3.
Performance Deficiencies Service Fee. The value of the Marco’s Brand and the System
depends on all Stores and personnel maintaining the highest level of performance standards set
out in the Manual. You will be charged $500 for each Store Visitation Report that you receive a
score of 2 or less asfail to adequately perform a performance measurement for one or more
categories of performance and you fail to correct all the non-compliant items before the next Store
Visitation. You will have a minimum of 30 days to comply with the deficient performance standard,
unless the item is a serious health exposure to the customers or your employees, or if failure to
correct the item could result in a material negative impact on the Marco’s brand (“Extreme
Deficiency”). You will have 48 hours to correct any Extreme Deficiency before the Performance
Deficiencies Service Fee is charged to you.
4.3.1

Financial Reporting Fee – If you fail to submit the financial reports as required by
this Agreement within 30 days of the due date, a Financial Reporting Fee of $100
per violation will be charged to you and collected by EFT to your bank account.
Refer to Section 14.2.

4.4.
Interest and Additional Expense Fee on Late Payments. All amounts that you owe to
Franchisor or any of its Affiliates pursuant to this Agreement shall bear interest after their due
date at the highest applicable legal rate for open account business credit, not to exceed 1.5% per
Accounting Period.
4.4.1. You acknowledge that acceptance of late payments and interest by
Franchisor does not constitute Franchisor agreement to accept future payments after they
are due or a commitment by Franchisor to extend credit to or otherwise finance your
operation of the Store. Further, you acknowledge that failure to pay any amounts when
due shall constitute grounds for termination of this Agreement as provided in Section 19.3,
notwithstanding the provisions of this section.
4.4.2. In addition to interest as provided above, Franchisor may charge you an
Additional Expense Fee on late payments of 5% of the amount due for any amounts not
paid within 10 business days of the due date. The parties hereto agree that such late fees
are to compensate Franchisor for its additional expenses incurred due to such late
payments.
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4.5.
Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer. (EFT). You agree to participate in an electronic
funds transfer program authorizing Franchisor or any of its Affiliates to utilize a weekly preauthorized bank draft system to facilitate the payment of all Royalty Fees and other fees due and
payable to Franchisor or its Affiliates pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or any other
agreement between Franchisor or its Affiliates and you. The most common program utilized by
the Franchisor is often called “ACH”, which stands for a US Federal Reserve Banking system
called the “Automated Clearing House” system (although we reserve the right to adopt a program
other than ACH if we deem it necessary or more efficient).
4.5.1. In addition, we may specify a periodic amount for regular transfer to our
accounts based on past reports of Net Royalty Sales and reasonable expectations of
Royalty Fees and other amounts to become due from you. We may, in our discretion,
require that you participate in an Electronic Reporting and Electronic Signature program for
any information required to be reported by you under this Agreement.
4.5.2. You agree to execute the attached Authorization Agreement for Direct
Withdrawals and to reasonably provide Franchisor with notice of any changes in your
banking relationships in order to faithfully comply with the requirements of this section. You
agree that your failure to permit us to draft funds from your bank account as evidenced by
execution of Exhibit E shall be a default as if non-payment of any such obligation for which
we are due and permitted payment hereunder.
4.5.3. If funds are not available at the time the ACH is drafted, you will be charged
a $35 non-sufficient funds fee for each occurrence. The Interest and Additional Expense
Fee will be charges where applicable.
4.5.4. If you request to have your ACH draft deferred, you will be charged a fee
of $35 plus $5 per day until the amount due to us is paid, for a maximum of 10 days without
incurring the Interest and Additional Expense Fee. All deferral requests must be made prior
to the date the payment is due according to the Marco’s Accounting and Reporting Policies.
4.6.
Grant of Security Interest. For valuable consideration, as security for the payment of all
amounts owing by you to Franchisor or its Affiliates under this Agreement and any other
agreements, and performance of all of the obligations to be performed by you, you hereby grant
to Franchisor and its Affiliates a security interest in all of your business assets now owned or
hereafter acquired in connection with the Store and wherever located, together with all
substitutions, replacements, additions and accessions thereto, all products thereof and all cash
and non-cash proceeds thereof including, but not limited to, notes, checks, instruments, and
insurance proceeds (the “Collateral”).Collateral. You warrant and represent that the security
interest granted is prior to all other security interests in the Collateral, except bona fide purchase
money security interests and the security interest granted to a third party in connection with your
original financing for the Store, if any, or lease for the Store from any third party and unaffiliated
Lessor.
4.6.1 You agree not to remove the Collateral or any portion thereof without the
prior written consent of Franchisor. Upon the occurrence of any event entitling termination
of this Agreement or any other agreement with Franchisor or any of its Affiliates,
Franchisor and its Affiliates shall have the rights and remedies of a secured party under
the Uniform Commercial Code of the jurisdiction in which the Store is located, including,
without limitation, the right to take possession of the Collateral.
4.6.2 You agree to execute and deliver to Franchisor financing statements or
such other documents as Franchisor reasonably deems necessary to perfect security
interests in the Collateral within 10 days of receipt by you of such documents from
MARCO’S PIZZA®
Franchise Agreement ǀ 2015

12

Franchisor. You irrevocably and unconditionally appoint Franchisor and Franchisor
designees as your true and lawful attorneys-in-fact to act in your name and place to
execute, deliver and file all financing statements or such other documents as Franchisor
deems reasonably necessary to perfect Franchisor security interest in the Collateral. You
irrevocably and unconditionally grant to Franchisor and its designees, as its attorney-infact, full power and authority to perform every act necessary to be done in the exercise of
the foregoing power as fully as you could do if personally present or acting, with full power
of substitution, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney shall lawfully do or
cause to be done by virtue of this appointment. This power of attorney is coupled with an
interest and is irrevocable prior to the full performance of the obligations of you and all
Franchisee Owners.
4.6.4.7.
Web Based Training. You agree to pay to Franchisor the sum of Three Hundred
Sixty Five Dollars ($365) per year, which will be billed quarterly, for the use of theYou agree to
participate in Franchisor’s web based training system. Such system is presently known as
“Marco’s University” but may be changed in the future. You agree to pay us the apportioned fee
we charge each franchisee for this system as part of the Technology Fee or otherwise as we
asses you. As we identify additional applications and technical services, we reserve the right to
increase the fees for such services.
4.7.4.8.
Gift Cards. You agree to participate in any Gift Card Program which we so
designate provided the costs of such are commercially reasonable. You agree not to sell from
your Store, or on the internet, or in any other manner, any gift cards or other Store value tokens,
certificates or cards using the Marks which are not approved by us. (Special Venue Stores refer
to Exhibit HD.)
5.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND REPRESENTATIONS.

5.1.
Independent Investigation. You and each Franchisee Owner acknowledge that each of
you has conducted an independent investigation of the business contemplated by this Agreement
and recognize that it involves business risks making the success of the venture largely dependent
upon your business abilities. Franchisor expressly disclaims the making of, and you and each
Franchisee Owner acknowledges that you have not received or relied upon, any warranty or
guarantee, expressed or implied, as to the potential volume, profits or success of the business
venture contemplated by this Agreement.
5.2.
No Conflicting Representations. You and each Franchisee Owner acknowledge that
each of you has no knowledge of any representations by Franchisor or its officers, directors,
shareholders, employees or agents about the business contemplated by this Agreement that are
contrary to the terms of this Agreement.
5.3.
No Misrepresentations. You and each Franchisee Owner represent and warrant to
Franchisor that:
5.3.1. Neither you nor any Franchisee Owner has made any untrue statement of
any material fact or has omitted to state any material of fact in obtaining the rights granted
hereunder.
5.3.2. Neither you nor any Franchisee Owner has any direct or indirect legal or
beneficial interest in any business that may be deemed a competitive business, except as
otherwise completely and accurately disclosed in your franchise application.
5.3.3. The execution and performance of this Agreement will not violate any other
agreement to which you or any Franchisee Owner may be bound. You and each
Franchisee Owner acknowledge that the franchise application has been approved in
MARCO’S PIZZA®
Franchise Agreement ǀ 2015

13

reliance on all of the statements made by you and any Franchisee Owner in connection
therewith.
5.4.
Receipt of Agreement and Franchise Disclosure Document. You and each Franchisee
Owner acknowledge that each of you has received, read and understood this Agreement at least
7 days before signing it, including the attachments hereto, and the complete and current
Franchise Disclosure Document required by the Trade Regulation Rule of the Federal Trade
Commission, and any applicable state laws and regulations, regarding the “Marco's Pizza”
franchise at least 14 days prior to the date on which this Agreement was executed. You and each
Franchisee Owner further acknowledge that Franchisor has fully and adequately explained the
provisions of each to your satisfaction; and Franchisor has accorded to each of you ample time
and opportunity to consult with advisors of your own choosing about the potential benefits and
risks of entering into this Agreement.
5.5.
Different Agreements. You acknowledge that you have been made aware of the fact
that some franchisees of Franchisor may operate under different forms of franchise agreements
and, consequently, that Franchisor obligations and rights in respect to its various franchisees may
differ materially in certain circumstances.
5.6.
Confidential Information. Both you and Franchisor understand and respect the need to
keep private all Confidential Information about each other, and agree not to share, discuss, or
divulge such information to others without the permission of the other party. You understand and
agree that Franchisor has a business need to know and understand local sales, product mix,
coupon usage, and other information about your business in order to maximize sales and
marketing efficiencies.
5.6.1. You agree that you will take any steps Franchisor feels reasonably
necessary to provide such information to Franchisor, including, but not limited to,
Franchisor access to your point of sale computer data. Further, you grant all your suppliers
a license to provide any such information relating to your business to Franchisor without
any additional notice or agreement. Franchisor agrees not to divulge any such confidential
information to others without your prior permission except as provided herein.
5.6.2. You further understand that in addition to the aforesaid understanding and
agreement concerning Franchisor confidential information, certain of Franchisor
confidential information is protected as a Trade Secret. Trade Secrets are protected under
various US and state laws, and that unauthorized divulging of such information may result
in substantial penalties.
5.7.
Anti-Terrorism Laws. You and the Franchisee Owners agree to comply with and/or to
assist Franchisor to the fullest extent possible in Franchisor efforts to comply with Anti-Terrorism
Laws (as defined below). In connection with such compliance, you and your Franchisee Owners
certify, represent, and warrant that none of your respective property or interests are subject to
being “blocked” under any of the Anti-Terrorism Laws and that neither you nor any of your
Franchisee Owners are otherwise in violation of any of the Anti-Terrorism Laws.
5.7.1. For the purposes of this Section 5.7, the term “Anti-Terrorism Laws” shall
mean Executive Order 13224 issued by the President of the United States (“Executive
Order 13224”), the Terrorism Sanctions Regulations (Title 31, Part 595 of the U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations), the Foreign Terrorist Organizations Sanctions Regulations (Title 31,
Part 597 of the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations), the Cuban Assets Control Regulations
(Title 31, Part 515 of the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations), the USA PATRIOT ACT, and
all other present and future federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, policies,
lists and any other requirements of any other requirements of any governmental authority
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(including, without limitation, the United States Department of Treasury Office of Foreign
Assets Control, and any other government agency with jurisdiction over the parties to this
Agreement and/or their actions) addressing or in any way relating to terrorist acts and/or
acts of war.
5.7.2. You and your Franchisee Owners certify that none of you or your respective
employees, or anyone associated with any of you is listed in the Annex to Executive Order
13224
(the
“Annex”),
which
is
available
at:
<http://www.treas.gov/offices/enforcement/ofac/sdn/>. You agree not to knowingly hire
any individual who is listed in the Annex (or, if he or she is already employed, retain the
employment of that individual). You also agree not to knowingly: (a) establish a new
relationship with a person as an employee, principal, banker, or otherwise who is listed in
the Annex (whether or not Franchisor has consented to a transfer involving such new
principal); and (b) maintain a business relationship (whether with an employee, a principal,
banker, or otherwise) with a person who is added to the Annex.
5.7.3. You certify that you have no knowledge or information that, if generally
known, would result in you and/or your Franchisee Owners, employees, or anyone else
associated with you to be listed in the Annex to Executive Order 13224.
5.7.4. 5.7.4 You understand that you are solely responsible for ascertaining what
actions you must take to comply with the Anti-Terrorism Laws, and you further acknowledge
and agree that your indemnification responsibilities set forth in Section 18.1 of this
Agreement also apply to your obligations under this Section 5.7.
5.7.5. 5.7.5 Any misrepresentation by you under this Section or any violation of
the Anti-Terrorism Laws by you, your Franchisee Owners, employees, and/or your
respective Affiliates shall constitute grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement,
and any other Agreement you have entered into with Franchisor or one of Franchisor
Affiliates.
5.8.
Area Representative.
Franchisor sellsutilizes a type of franchise agreement
knownrelationship with parties know as an Area Representative AgreementRepresentatives
within a defined territory that permits the holder, which we call the Area Representative, to assist
in the selling of franchises for Marco’s Pizza stores. In addition, the Area Representative also
agrees to perform the servicing of such Stores in compliance with what is required of Franchisor
in the Stores franchise agreement and Manuals. All Area Representatives are Independent
Contractors and must complete a training program to our satisfaction before they are permitted
to assume their duties. We compensate the Area Representatives for services rendered by paying
them a percentage of the Initial Franchise Fee (which fee is currently $25,000) and a percentage
of normal on-going royalty fees collected (which is currently 5.5%).. Area Representatives do not
collect these fees directly and do not share in any payments you would make for advertising fund
contributions.
5.8.1. You and each Franchisee Owner acknowledge that if your Store is located
in a defined territory of an Area Representative, that a substantial amount of the services
required to be provided to you by Franchisor may be provided by an Area Representative
who is not an employee of ours. Franchisor remains obligated to you for the performance
of its obligations under this Agreement even when such of its required services are provided
by the Area Representative.
5.8.2. You and each Franchisee Owner further acknowledge and agree that you
will permit the Area Representative and its approved employees the same access to your
store and all store data no matter where maintained for inspections and other permitted
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store visits under this Agreement as if the Area Representative were an employee of ours.
You agree not to claim any defense of in-adequate notice or other issue relating to an Area
Representative in attempting to deny the Area Representative admittance in reasonable
pursuit of its duties that are permitted or required of us in this Agreement.
5.8.3. You and each Franchisee Owner further acknowledge that Franchisor’s
liability for the actions of its Area Representatives are limited to those actions performed
by the Area Representatives solely as a result of required obligations under this Agreement.
Further, you agree to seek damages solely from the Area Representative and to hold us
harmless for any action, omission, error, either oral or in performance by an Area
Representative which: a) is contrary to law or public policy, b) is inconsistent with any
Manual or other written direction or policy of ours, c) related in whole or in part due to a
commercial relationship you enter into with the Area Representative directly.
6.

GUARANTY OF PERFORMANCE BY FRANCHISEE OWNERS.

If you are a corporation or partnership, each Franchisee Owner shall complete, execute
and deliver the Guaranty attached as Exhibit “B” contemporaneously with the execution and
delivery of this Agreement. Execution and delivery of the guaranty shall not diminish your primary,
joint and several obligations under this Agreement.
7.

SITE SELECTION

7.1.
Site Acquisition. If no location is indicated on the Summary Page 2 of this Agreementfor
a specific Site, you agree, subject to the terms of this Agreement, to acquire a suitable Site within
the Area of Responsibility for operation of the Store, within six months from the Effective Date.
The location shall be contained within the following area:
____________
___________________________________________________
(the ”Site Selection Territory”). The Site Selection Territory is described solely for the
purpose of selecting a Site for the Store and is not exclusive.
7.2.
Franchisor Assistance in Site Acquisition. Franchisor shall furnish to Franchisee the
following:
7.2.1. Site selection guidelines, including Franchisor's minimum standards for a
location for the FranchisedFranchise Business, and such Site selection counseling and
assistance as Franchisor may deem advisable.
7.2.2. Such on-site evaluation as Franchisor may deem advisable in response to
Franchisee's requests for Site acquisition. Franchisor shall not provide on-site evaluation
for any proposed Site prior to the receipt of a completed site acquisition request form for
such Site prepared by Franchisee.
7.2.3. Franchisor shall provide one on-site evaluation at no charge to Franchisee.
For any additional on-site evaluation requests, Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor an
amount equal to Franchisor’s costs incurred in connection with additional on-site evaluation
(including, without limitation, the costs of travel, lodging, wages, and meals), but not less
than Five Hundred Dollars ($500).
7.2.4. As prescribed by Franchisor and contained in the Manuals, Franchisee
may be required to utilize a specified real estate consultant to assist with the lease
negotiations for the Site.
7.3.
Franchisor’s Permission No Warranty. Neither Franchisor’s permission to develop a
Site, nor any information communicated by us to you regarding our standard site selection criteria
for stores and publicly date we provide to you nor publicly available data for the Site constitutes
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a warranty or representation of any kind, expressed or implied, as to; the suitability of the Site for
a Store. or that you can expect to achieve a particular level of sales or profits from operating a
Store at the Site. Franchisor’s permission to operate at the Site merely signifies that we are willing
to grant a franchise for a Store at that location. Your decision to develop and operate a Store at
the Site is based solely on your own independent investigation of the suitability of the Site.
7.4.
Franchisee Release of Franchisor. In consideration of Franchisor permission for the
Site, you and each Franchisee Owner release Franchisor and its Affiliates, officers, directors,
employees and agents from any and all loss, damages and liability arising from or in connection
with the selection or permission for the Site for development as a Store and agree to hold said
released parties harmless for such Site permission. In connection with your proposed site for the
operation of your Store, you acknowledge and agree that: Any Franchise Owner that is not going
to be on guaranty to get releases.
7.4.1. Whether you choose to proceed ahead with a particular site depends on
your confidence in the site after completing your analysis, carefully investigating all of the
concerns (in addition to any raised by Franchisor), and investigating whether proper
signage can be used at the Site. If you decide to proceed ahead with a proposed site, you
will still have to determine whether you can obtain a lease on favorable terms.
7.4.2. There is no way to know whether a particular Site is likely to be successful
or not, or whether you have considered every important factor. Factors you cannot predict
may also play a role (for example, a construction project that impedes the flow of traffic).
7.4.3. If you decide to go ahead with a proposed site and Franchisor provides
“permission” for that site, you should know that our “go ahead” or even our “permission”
does not mean that we have reached any conclusion as to whether or not you will be
successful at this site. The review we conduct is for our own benefit just to make sure that
a site meets certain selection characteristics.
7.4.4. Our review and permission for the proposed site, rental rate and other
occupancy terms is not a recommendation or endorsement, and obviously not a guarantee
that the site or lease terms are suitable. You are responsible for making the decision and
you must take the steps you think are needed to determine whether the site is beneficial to
you and whether the terms of the proposed lease make sense.
7.4.5. You understand and agree that by virtue of utilizing our business model to
open the Store, we will make an intangible investment in the location for which a value
cannot be calculated. As a result, and in order to protect that investment, you agree to
lease the premises for the Store, using the Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider
7.4.6. The Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider is used on all leases and must
be made a part of the lease and provided to us for our execution at the time of execution
of the lease. We agree to not charge you any fees for leasing using the Marco’s Pizza
Standard Lease Rider.
7.5.
Franchisor Right to Occupancy for Owned Site. If you desire to own the real estate at
which the Store is located, or if you purchase the real estate at which the Store is located, you
agree to provide us with any documentation which we reasonably require which would permit us
or our designee to obtain occupancy of the premises upon the termination of the Agreement. Such
occupancy would provide for us to lease the premises at fair market value for an initial term of 5
years and at least 1 renewal term of 5 years, using a standard commercial real estate lease form
offered by a local Board of Realtors or similar association in your state, or reasonable equivalent
to that form. You agree that the lease would be amended by the Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease
Rider which was made a part of the Disclosure Document that was applicable when the
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Agreement was signed. The rental provided in the lease, as applicable, will be determined by the
Fair Market Value Appraiser for the Purchased Assets if Franchisor and you are unable to agree
upon terms within 15 days after receipt of the Franchisor notice of intent to exercise this right.
7.6.
Permitted Site Permission Addendum.Letter. If no address is listed on page 1 of this
Agreement forin the Franchise Summary as the Permitted Site to designate the location of the
Site, within 120 days after the execution of this Agreement, you agree to submit to Franchisor, in
the form specified by Franchisor, a completed Site acquisition request form prescribed by
Franchisor and contained in the Manuals, and such other information or materials as Franchisor
may reasonably require, together with an option contract, letter of intent, or other evidence
satisfactory to Franchisor which confirms your favorable prospects for obtaining the Site.
Franchisor and Franchisee mutually agree that time is of the essence. Franchisor shall have 10
days after receipt of all suchrequested information and materials from you to permit or deny, in
Franchisor’s sole discretion, the proposed Site as the location for the Store. In the event
Franchisor does not permit a proposed Site by written notice to you within said 10 days, such Site
shall be deemed denied. Upon our permission for a Site, both the Franchisor and Franchisee will
document their mutual acceptance of such Site on Exhibit F,through a site approval letter provided
by Franchisor (“Permitted Site AddendumLetter”) and such Site shall be the permitted Site.
7.7.
Cross Default of Sub-Lease and Franchise Agreement. Franchisee understands,
acknowledges, and agrees, that any default of its lease that is not remedied within the terms of
said lease, or in the event that the underlying real estate lease is in a state of default due to any
non-payment or other action by Franchisee that not remedied within the terms of cure of said
underlying real estate lease, then such default(s) are cause for default and immediate termination
of this Agreement.
7.8.
Lease Document Requirements. Franchisee will submit to Franchisor the proposed
terms of the underlying real estate lease for the Site for its review and possible editing prior to
making any binding commitments for said Site to the owner of said Site. You understand and
agree that by virtue of utilizing our business model to open the Store, we will make an intangible
investment in the location for which a value cannot be calculated. As a result, and in order to
protect that investment, you agree to lease the premises for the Store using the Marco’s Pizza
Standard Lease Rider, which must be provided to us for our execution at the time of execution of
the lease.
7.8.1. You agree not to execute any lease in your name for the Store that it is not
amended by the Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider.
7.8.2. You agree not to make any deletions or changes to the language in the
Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider without our approval. You may add any other
language which you or your legal adviser proposes which does not reduce our rights as set
forth in the Marco’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider. You understand we have the right to reject
any lease or lease rider or amendment which does not have sufficient protections for us, in
our sole discretion, for our intangible investment in the Store.
7.9.
Location Restriction. You may only operate the Store at the permitted Site. You may
not relocate the Store without Franchisor prior written consent. If the underlying real estate lease
for the Site expires or terminates for reasons other than your fault or negligence, or if the Site is
destroyed as the result of casualty loss or condemned pursuant to eminent domain proceedings,
or in Franchisor judgment is otherwise rendered unsuitable for operation of a Store, we will
consent to the relocation of the Store to an alternate Site located within the Area of Responsibility,
subject to the following conditions:
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7.9.1. The alternate Site must comply with our site selection criteria and be
permitted in writing by Franchisor;
7.9.2. The alternate Site must not infringe upon any other Store’s Area of
Responsibility; and
7.9.3. You must commence full-time operation of the Store at the alternate Site
within 180 days following the date that the Store ceases to operate at the Site.
7.9.4. You will bear all costs associated with any such relocation. In addition, you
agree to reimburse Franchisor upon our presentation to you of an invoice for any costs we
incur in connection with any proposed or actual relocation of the Store.
7.10. Store Development-Decor. Franchisor shall provide you with general design and decor
plans and a basic layout for the Equipment to be installed at the Store. These plans shall include
dimensions, exterior design, materials, interior layout, and Equipment plans, and decorating
specifications. Subject to our approval, you may modify our basic plans and specifications only
to the extent required to comply with various applicable local ordinances, building codes and
permit requirements. We must approve all final drawings and specifications drafted by your
architect and once approved you must construct and finish the Store according to the drawings
we approve. You will provide us with a certificate from the architect or general contractor that the
building as constructed conforms to the approved drawings.
7.11. Store Development-Equipment. You shall purchase or lease Equipment meeting
specifications provided by Franchisor from any approved source. If you desire to purchase or
lease any item of Equipment not previously approved by Franchisor, you will notify Franchisor
and provide sufficient specifications, photographs, drawings or other information and samples, in
order that Franchisor may determine whether the Equipment meets our specifications. Franchisor
shall approve or disapprove any item of Equipment within a reasonable time. You shall not enter
into an agreement to purchase unapproved Equipment without Franchisor prior written approval.
From time to time, Franchisor may modify the types, brands or models of Equipment and you may
not, after receipt of notice of such modification, reorder any type, brand or model of Equipment,
which is no longer approved.
7.12. Store Development-Assistance. Franchisor shall render reasonable assistance to you
in obtaining the Equipment and Supplies required by the Manuals; provided, however, any
financing assistance as may be required shall be arranged by separate agreement between you
and a lending institution of your choice.
7.13. Maintenance. You agree to maintain the Store, the Site and Equipment in good and
serviceable condition meeting the maintenance standards set forth in the Manuals. You agree to
replace worn out or obsolete Equipment and to repair and maintain the Site and the interior and
exterior of the Store, including the parking lot. Upon your failure to maintain or replace the Store,
or any Equipment to Franchisor satisfaction, Franchisor may enter the Store to perform the
required maintenance or replacements. You agree to pay to Franchisor for any and all costs
associated with such maintenance and repairs made by Franchisor, or contractors retained by
Franchisor which shall become immediately due and payable upon your receipt of Franchisor
invoice for such costs. Franchisor agrees not to require you to reimburse Franchisor for more
than 25% of the average cost to construct a new Store as provided in your Franchise Disclosure
Document for any such Maintenance under this Section within any 5-year period.
8.

TRAINING AND INSTRUCTION.

8.1.
Initial Training. The Designated Franchise Representative will commence and continue,
until completion, the Franchisor initial training program scheduled by us. If your Designated
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Franchise Representative has previously completed the initial training program, we will provide to
such Designated Franchise Representative the initial training we, in our sole discretion, deem
appropriate, including supervisory training. If your Designated Franchise Representative does
not begin training before the later of: 90 days after the Effective Date of this Franchise Agreement,
or 15 days after you acquire possession of the premises in which the Store will be operated, we
may schedule a final training class, and if the Designated Franchise Representative does not
begin the training as scheduled, terminate this Agreement upon written notice to you.
8.2.
Completion of Initial Training. The Designated Franchise Representative must
complete the initial training program to our satisfaction prior to opening the Store. If your
Designated Franchise Representative fails to complete the initial training program to our
satisfaction, or if we, in our sole discretion at any time, determine that your Designated Franchise
Representative is not capable of satisfactorily completing the initial training program, then we
may, in our sole discretion, terminate this Agreement upon written notice to you. Franchisor will
not terminate this Agreement without providing you an opportunity to designate (one-time) an
alternative Designated Franchise Representative within 30 days from the date which we
determine the initial Designated Franchise Representative is unacceptable. Franchisor will not
charge for training for the alternative Designated Franchise Representative. (Special Venue
Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
8.3.
Expenses of Training. You shall bear all cost of travel, living expenses and
compensation, and any other expenses of the Designated Franchise Representative during the
duration of any training program.
8.4.
Initial Training Program. Franchisor will provide various training and instruction related
to the operations of your store and conduct the initial training program. - The initial training
program shall consist of six (6) to eight (8) weeks at our training center in Toledo, Ohio, or, at
such other locations as we deem appropriate; provided, however, that the final week may be
conducted at the Store. You must comply with all additional training requirements as reasonably
instructed by Franchisor. (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
8.5.
Continuous Training. You shall, upon opening the Store for business, implement and
maintain a continuous training program for your employees in accordance with applicable training
standards and procedures prescribed by Franchisor in the Manuals or any subsequently
published notices or memorandum. All team members at the store must be successfully trained
for the position for which they serve. You shall purchase from Franchisor and utilize all training
aids which we may require from time to time, including printed or digital format materials. You
may not employ in a position any employee who fails to successfully complete training for the
designated position.
9.

STORE COMPLETION AND OPENING CERTIFICATE

9.1.
Permits. You must obtain all required zoning changes and permits; all required building,
utility, health department, and sign permits; and any other permits required to open and operate
the Store at the Site. You shall be responsible for the construction and/or remodeling of the Store
and the installation of all Equipment. All construction, materials and Equipment shall fully comply
with plans and specifications previously approved by Franchisor, as well as all applicable local
ordinances, building codes and permit requirements.
9.2.
Completion and Opening of Store. You agree to complete construction or remodeling
of the Store and open for business within a reasonable time after you have obtained possession
of the Site, not to exceed 180 days following the Effective Date. If you have not successfully
completed all required training and opened the Store within 180 days following the Effective Date,
then we may, in our sole discretion, terminate this Agreement and the License granted herein
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effective upon your receipt of written notice, in which event Franchisor shall be released from all
obligations hereunder.
9.3.
Store Opening Authorization. You agree not to open or attempt to open the Store or to
use the Marks until Franchisor issues a Store Opening Authorization Certificate (“Store Opening
Certificate”). You understand and acknowledge that the Store Opening Authorization shall not be
issued by Franchisor until you have demonstrated, to Franchisor satisfaction, the following:
9.3.1.

Knowledge and skill in the System;

9.3.2.

Successful completion of all training required by Franchisor; and

9.3.3. Completion of such store improvements, store layouts and trade dress in
accordance with Franchisor standards.
9.4.
Limits on Our Approval of Plans. You and any Franchisee Owner acknowledge that
there shall be no liability on the part of Franchisor to you, any Franchisee Owner or any of your
respective successors as the result of our approval of the plans and specifications or the issuance
of the Store Opening Certificate.
10.

CONTINUING ASSISTANCE

10.1. Franchisor Assistance. Franchisor shall provide continuing advice, guidance and
assistance to you, as we determine to be reasonably necessary with respect to the System. Such
guidance, at our discretion, will be furnished in the form of bulletins and other written materials,
consultations by telephone or in person, or by any other means of communications.
10.2. Additional Training. Franchisor shall furnish additional training courses that we make
available from time to time to you and your employees on an “as available” basis, upon our thencurrent terms for providing such additional training (including but not limited to your payment of
our then-current fees for such training).
10.3. Operating Problems. Franchisor may advise you of operating problems encountered
during any inspection of the Store or through reports, which you submit to us.
10.4. On-Site Assistance. If the Store is not the first Store which you have operated and we
determine that you require assistance beyond that which is provided in the initial training program,
then Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, provide supplemental on-site assistance to you for a
period not to exceed two (2) weeks. Any such supplemental assistance shall be provided at your
cost and include your agreement to pay us an amount to compensate us for our staff’s salaries,
travel, lodging and all other reasonable expenses. All such fees shall be immediately due and
payable to us upon presentation of our invoice for such services.
10.5. Charges for Supplies or Supplemental Services. Franchisor reserves the right to
impose reasonable charges for Supplies and supplemental services, including extraordinary
operating assistance, which we, in our sole judgment, deem necessary or appropriate in order to
ensure that the Store will be operated in accordance with terms of this Agreement.
11.

ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)

11.1. Advertising and Promotion. Franchisor shall, from time to time, formulate, develop,
produce, and conduct advertising and promotional programs. We shall determine, in our sole
discretion, the content and format of all advertising and promotional programs and the geographic
territories and market areas for such programs. You shall not use any marketing or advertising
materials without our prior approval, and otherwise conform to the Marco’s Marketing Guidelines
in the Manual.
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11.1.1. You must spend a minimum of 7% of your Net Royalty Sales in the form of
fees, payments, and expenditures related to our advertising, marketing and promotional
programs. We have the authority to determine what percentage of your required
advertising related expenditures will be paid to us (up to a maximum of 6.5% and we will
manage those expenditures through a combination of funds, including a Brand
Development Fund and various Geography Based Advertising Funds.
11.1.2. You may also be required to contribute to a Market Advertising Cooperative
(“Ad Co-op”), and/or initiate advertising, marketing and promotional activities at your local
Store level (“Local Store Marketing” or “LSM”). The combined amount of required
advertising marketing and promotional expenditures for your Store, calculated as a
percentage of your Net Royalty Sales (“Total Marketing Spend”), is summarized below.
11.2. Brand Development Fund. In order to fund the advertising and promotional programs
established in Section 11.1, you must pay us an amount equal to 1% of Net Royalty Sales.
11.2.1. We have the right to increase the Brand Development Fund contribution up
to a maximum of 1.5% of Net Royalty Sales. We will give you at least 90 days prior written
notice if we choose to increase the required contribution. Brand Development Fund
payments must be reported and paid to us at the same time and in the same manner that
the Royalty Fees are reported and paid. The Brand Development Fund will not otherwise
inure to our benefit. The Brand Development Fund is not and will not be our asset.
11.2.2. We have the right to determine how the Brand Development Fund will be
allocated, and spent, toward all activities of brand development, including producing
creative content for all national, regional and local marketing, designing and producing
marketing materials, developing and maintaining social media and internet “web” sites,
franchisee-accessible intranets, promotional activities, product development and consumer
research, franchise conferences, motivational or leadership programs, and any other
program or activity we determine will enhance the recognition and value of the brand. This
fund may purchase media occasionally, but that is not the general purpose of the Brand
Development Fund.
11.3. Geography Based Advertising Funds. You must contribute to a Geography Based
Advertising Fund (“GBF”) in amounts that we designate, but not to exceed a total of 5% of the Net
Royalty Sales of the Store. The designated GBF may be a National Advertising Fund or a
Regional Advertising Fund, or you may be required to contribute to both. We may initiate a
Geography Based Advertising Fund or change a region’s boundaries upon 30 days prior written
notice to you.
11.3.1. We may increase or decrease your Geography Based Advertising Fund
payments upon 30 days prior written notice to you, but we cannot make your combined
GBF payments greater than 5% of Your Net Royalty Sales. All modifications will continue
in effect until we or our designee send you written notice of any change.
11.3.2. These Geography Based Advertising Funds support advertising, marketing
and promotional programs throughout the United State or for a designated region, including
the placement and purchase of advertising in various media. We have the exclusive right
to determine how the National Advertising Fund and Regional Advertising Funds will be
allocated, and spent, toward all advertising, marketing and promotional activities on a
national or regional basis, respectively. The Geography Based Advertising Fund payments
must be reported and paid to us or our designee, each Period. The National Advertising
Fund will be available for use by us across the entire United States. We will spend all your
Regional Advertising Fund contributions within the region where your Store is located.
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However, you understand that we have no obligation to insure that you will benefit directly
or on a proportionate basis with other stores from the placement of any type of Geography
Based advertising, either nationally or regionally. It is our intention, but we are not required,
to form a Regional Advertising Fund for any market area when a certain number of stores
are established in that market to allow sufficient advertising efficiency and market
penetration. The region boundaries may include all or part of a single Designated Market
Area (“DMA”), or multiple DMA’s.
11.4. Advertising Cooperatives. We may require that you join and participate in a Market
Advertising Cooperative (“Ad Co-op”) formed by the owners of a majority of the Marco's Pizza
Stores located within the designated market where your Store is located. Before any Market
Advertising Cooperative is formed, the by-laws of that organization must be submitted to us and
we must approve them. Once approved and formed by the majority of the owners of the Marco's
Pizza Stores in the designated market (including any Store owned by us or one of our affiliates),
all Marco’s Pizza Stores within the designated geographical area must participate. Any payment
required by the membership of the Ad Co-op will be an obligation you must fulfill under the terms
of this Agreement. All advertising, marketing and promotional activities of the Market Advertising
Cooperative will be managed by the membership of each specific Ad Co-op according to the
individual By-laws. We may determine that some, all or none of the contributions you make to an
Ad Co-op will be allowed to fulfill a portion of the required payments to a Geographic Based
Advertising Fund. If we do not require you to participate in any GBF, all amounts you contribute
to an Ad Co-op will reduce the amount you must spend as Local Store Marketing.
11.5. Local Store Marketing. You will also be required to spend a portion of the Net Royalty
Sales of Your Store on advertising, marketing and promotional activities within the market and
community where Your Store is located. You may be required to spend up to 6% of the Net
Royalty Sales. The exact percentage is determined by the formula: 7% minus the amounts you
pay to us for the Brand Development Fund, any Geography Based Advertising Fund you
contribute to, and any amount we determine is allowable for your payments to a Market
Advertising Cooperative. If we do not require you to participate in any GBF or Ad Co-op, you will
be required to spend the remaining 6% of the Total Marketing Spend for Local Store Marketing
that you must manage. Any amount we require you to spend on a GBF, as a percentage of Your
Net Royalty Sales, will reduce the amount you must spend as LSM. If we do not require you to
participate in any GBF, all amounts you contribute to an Ad Co-op, as a percentage of your Net
Royalty Sales, will reduce the amount you must spend as LSM.
11.5.1. Certain items that may be a benefit to the marketing of your Store are
excluded for the calculation of the amount you spend for your Local Store Marketing
requirement: (a) the value of any promotions and deductions (for example coupons, buy
one-get one free) or other promotional allowances which are excluded from the definition
of Net Royalty Sales; and (b) expenditures for supplies which bear any of the Marks (for
example pizza boxes, uniforms, etc.)
11.5.2. You must submit evidence of all qualifying expenditures for local
advertising, marketing and promotional activities to us on a quarterly basis. If you do not
meet the Local Store Marketing requirement for any year, we may, immediately upon notice
provided to you, assess you for any deficiency, which will be contributed, at our sole
discretion, to the Brand Development Fund, any Geography Based Advertising Fund or Ad
Co-op.
11.6. Brand Launch Program. You agree to participate in and pay for a Brand Launch Program
(the “Brand Launch Program”) up to an amount not to exceed $38,000.”), The Brand Launch
Program Fee is stated in the Franchise Summary and covers the expected costs of local store
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marketing for the first 4-6 Periods the store is open plus the Grand Opening event expenses. The
actual cost of your Brand Launch Program may be more or less based upon the size of your
targeted marketing area. Upon execution of the Agreement, you shall deposit $5,000 (the “Initial
Deposit”) with Franchisor to be used for the Brand Launch Program and specifically for the
purchase of the Brand Launch Program kit items. At the time you receive building permits for
construction of your Store, you will pay an additional $10,000 and the remaining $15,000 balance
of the Brand Launch Program will be paid through a weekly ACH deduction of $937.50 per week
for the 16 weeks following the Store opening date. Additionally, you If the total cost paid out on
your behalf is more than $30,000, the additional amount due will reimburse us for all Grand
Opening event expensesbe collected by ACH deduction at the end of week 4 following your Store
opening date.the Brand Launch Program. If total costs are moreless than $3830,000, then you
must pay the differencewe will refund to us or to the product or service provider, as applicable,
upon receiptyou the balance by ACH payment at the end of an invoicethe Brand Launch Program.
11.6.1. The Brand Launch Program is designed to help establish a base level of
market awareness of your Store in your primary marketing area. This marketing area may
be greater than your Area of Responsibility, but will not be greater than your Delivery Area.
Advertising media used include, but are not limited to, individually mailed direct mail
advertising pieces of letters and postcards, “shared mail” such as “RedPlum” and similar,
and other direct mail type programs. The expenditures for the Brand Launch Program are
directed by us.
11.6.2. You must participate in the Brand Launch Program for at least the opening
of your first Marco’s Pizza store. Once you have opened a Store under the Brand Launch
Program you may request a waiver from participation for your second or future stores. We
do not intend to grant such a waiver unless you have demonstrated a high level of expertise
in advertising in your existing store. The Brand Launch Program is directed by us with
significant assistance from the Area Representative (if one is appointed for your area).
11.6.3. You specifically agree that you will not attempt to open your Store until at
least $15,000 of the $30,000 deposit for the Brand Launch Program has been paid, even
if you experience unforeseen difficulties in closing the loan or obtaining other financing for
your Store and that any such action on your part is grounds for immediate termination of
this Agreement.
11.6.4. With respect to the reach of the Brand Launch Program, we mutually agree
and understand that the program is designed to target a primary marketing area of 12,000
households. This target area will be mutually established and at least the size of your Area
of Exclusive Responsibility but not greater than your Delivery Area. The actual cost of your
Brand Launch Program will be between $33,500 and $38,000 (based upon 12,000
households During the Brand Launch Program, we agree to waive any other requirements
for local store marketing as provided in Section 11.95.
11.6.5. You understand and agree that we make no guarantee of sales projection
and do not assume any responsibility or liability for any level of sales or profits for your
store due to your participation in the Brand Launch Program. You further understand and
agree that unless we are guilty of gross malfeasance in its conduct with respect to the
safety and security of your funds or our conduct of your Brand Launch Program, you agree
to indemnify and hold us harmless for the sales results of your Brand Launch Program
because actual sales are a highly complex function of a large number of factors beyond
our control which include but are not limited to the actual number of households in your
targeted marketing and Delivery Area, customer’s predilection to purchase pizza in general
and Marco’s Pizza in particular, the number and quality of other pizza competitors in your
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area, the price you establish for your products, the physical site characteristics of your
Store, the number and type of other food service businesses in your area which compete
for the food service dollar, the quality of products, service and image of your Store and the
courtesy of your employees, and a number of other factors beyond our scope to control,
organize or predict. You understand and agree that we would not have executed this
Agreement with you were it not for your warranty stated in this Section 11.6.5.
11.6.6. We agree to provide you access to an accounting report approximately 4
months after your Store opens ofstatement showing expenditures made on your behalf
during approximately the first 3 months duration of the Store was open, and again an
additional report approximately 7 months after the Store was open of the total expenditures
of the FundingBrand Launch Program. If the report shows When all expenses have been
paid, we will perform an audit of the fund to determine if any funds remaining at the end of
the program we agree, at your option, to pay for future advertising with said funds additional
monies are due to Franchisor to cover the costs paid on your behalf or if a refund the
balance upon your requestis due to Franchisee.
11.6.7. We mutually agree that the requirements of this Section 11.6.7 may not be
modified except in writing by a duly authorized officer of Franchisor and you.
11.7. Franchisor’s Review and Right to Approve All Proposed Marketing. For all proposed
advertising, marketing, and promotional plans. Franchisee (or the Geography Based Advertising
Funds, where applicable) shall submit samples of such plans and materials to Franchisor (by
means described in Section 21.12 below), for Franchisor’s review and prior written approval. If
written approval is not received by Franchisee or the Geography Based Advertising Funds from
Franchisor within 15 days of the date of receipt by Franchisor of such samples or materials,
Franchisor shall be deemed to have disapproved them. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees
that any and all copyright in and to advertising, marketing materials, and promotional plans
developed by or on behalf of Franchisee shall be the sole property of Franchisor, and Franchisee
agrees to execute such documents (and, if necessary, require its independent contractors to
execute such documents) as may be deemed reasonably necessary by Franchisor to give effect
to this provision.
11.8. Advertising Expenses. All costs of the development and production of any such
advertising and media promotion (including without limitation, the ratable compensation and
indirect costs of employees of Franchisor who render services in the production and development
of such advertising and promotional programs, (or by the administration of the funds used
therefor) will be paid from the Brand Development Fund or Geography Based Advertising Funds
as outlined below. Franchisor reserves the right to engage the services of an advertising source
outside of Franchisor to develop, produce and conduct any and all advertising and promotional
programs, with the cost of said services to be payable from the Brand Development Fund and/or
the Geography Based Advertising Funds.
11.9. Franchisor Discretion. Franchisor shall have the right to determine, at its sole discretion,
how Brand Development Funds and all of the Geography Based Advertising Funds shall be
allocated and spent and to determine whether collection of the funds is required in advance of or
following any advertising expenditures. You acknowledge and also understand further that
Franchisor undertakes no obligation in developing, implementing or administering such
advertising efforts to insure that amounts equal or proportionate to your fees paid to the Brand
Development Fund are spent in developing marketing materials or in placement of advertising in
the market area in which the Store is located, or that you will benefit directly or on a proportionate
basis from the development or placement of any type of advertising.
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11.9.1. Franchisor shall spend all your Geography BasedRegional Advertising
FundsFund contributions within your DMA, however, you understand that Franchisor
undertakes no obligation to insure that you will benefit directly or on a proportionate basis
with other stores from the placement of any type of such Geography BasedRegional
Advertising FundsFund advertising expenditures within that DMA.
11.9.2. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this section, Franchisor
assumes no direct or indirect liability or obligation with respect to the maintenance,
discretion or administration of the Brand Development Fund or any of the Geography Based
Advertising Funds, except to insure the security of such funds. Franchisor may maintain
the Brand Development Fund and/or any of the Geography Based Advertising Funds in
bank accounts administered by separate advertising companies and does not act as
Trustee or in any other fiduciary capacity with respect to any advertising fund.
11.9.3. We are not obligated to develop, implement or administer any advertising
efforts to insure that amounts equal or proportionate to your fees paid to the Brand
Development Fund, any of the Geography Based Advertising Funds, or any amounts by
us, are spent in developing marketing materials or in placement of advertising in the market
area in which the Store is located, or that you will benefit directly or on a proportionate basis
from the development or placement of any type of advertising. The Brand Development
Fund will not make expenditures principally to solicit new franchisees. We do not audit the
Brand Development Fund and do not make its financial records available to franchisees
generally, but summaries of the financial performance are reported to the representatives
of the Marco’s Franchise Advisory Board (“MFAB”). Members of the MFAB are elected by
all franchisees in Good Standing, and serve staggered terms of 3 years.
11.9.4. We are not obligated to maintain or administer the Brand Development
Fund or any of the Geography Based Advertising Funds in any manner except to insure
the security of these funds. We may maintain the Brand Development Fund and any of the
Geography Based Advertising Funds in bank accounts administered by us. The funds may
be comingled with other of our monies, but the Brand Development Fund and all Geography
Based Advertising Funds will be accounted for separately. We may engage separate
advertising companies to hold and maintain the funds, and we do not act as trustee or in
any other fiduciary capacity with regard to any advertising fund.
11.9.5. The Brand Development Fund will not be our asset. The Brand
Development Fund will not otherwise inure to our benefit. Although the Brand Development
Fund is intended to be of perpetual duration, we maintain the right to terminate the Brand
Development Fund. The Brand Development Fund will not be terminated, however, until
all monies in the Brand Development Fund have been spent for marketing or promotional
purposes.
11.10. Restrictions on Local Mailings and Handouts. You agree to restrict all mail and/or
handout advertising to the Area of Responsibility, except as permitted by Franchisor per Section
12.13.3 below into areas that are not in the Area of Responsibility of another Store.
11.11. Additional Marketing Expenditure Encouraged. Franchisee understands and
acknowledges that the required contributions and expenditures are minimum requirements only,
and that Franchisee may, and is encouraged by Franchisor to expend additional funds for local
marketing and promotion of a local nature which will focus on disseminating marketing directly
related to Franchisee’s Store.
11.12. Una FonteTechnology. Upon Franchisor’s request, and as specified by Franchisor,
Franchisee agrees to pay Fifty Dollars ($50)the amount of the Technology Fee stated in the
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Franchise Summary each Accounting Period, toward the Store’s proportionate share of the cost
of the Una Fonte system.Technology systems and services provided by Franchisor. If you belong
to a Geography Based Advertising Fund, a portion of this fee will typically be paid by that fund. If
your Store does not participate in a Geography Based Advertising Fund, then you must pay the
Una Fonteentire Technology Fee, in the manner we specify, no later than the first day of each
Accounting Period. As we identify additional applications and technical services, we reserve the
right to increase the fees for such services.
12.

STANDARDS AND UNIFORMITY OF OPERATIONS

12.1. Manuals. In order to protect the reputation and goodwill of the System and to maintain
the standards of operation under the Marks, you shall operate the Store in accordance with the
various written instructions and confidential Manuals, including any amendments thereto, as
Franchisor may publish in paper or digital format from time to time (the “Manuals”), all of which
you acknowledge belong solely to Franchisor and shall be on loan from Franchisor during the
Term. When any provision of this Agreement requires that you comply with any standard,
specification or requirement of Franchisor, unless otherwise indicated, such standard,
specification, or requirement shall be such as set forth in this Agreement or as may from time to
time, be set forth in the Manuals, or otherwise in writing by Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the
right from time to time and in its sole discretion, to add to, delete from, and otherwise modify the
Manuals, and to modify standards of service or quality for the efficient operation of the Store, to
maintain the good will associated with the Marks, or to meet competition.
12.2. Use of Manuals. You acknowledge receipt of or will receive access to a current copy of
the Manuals andafter the Franchise Agreement has been signed through digital format or our elearning system. You agree that adherence to the System and the provisions of the Manuals are
reasonable, necessary and essential to the image and success of all Stores.
12.3. Compliance with Standards. You agree to comply with all specifications, standards and
operating procedures, rules, and notices set forth in the Manuals, including without limitation,
specifications, standards and operating procedures, rules, and notices relating to:
12.3.1.
The safety, maintenance, cleanliness, sanitation, function and
appearance of the Site and the Equipment;
12.3.2.
Your qualifications, dress, grooming, general appearance and
demeanor of you and all of your employees;
12.3.3.

The menu items to be offered at the Store;

12.3.4.
Quality, taste, portion control and uniformity, the manner of preparation,
packaging and sale of all food and beverage products and all ingredients, Supplies and
materials used in the preparation, packaging and sale thereof;
12.3.5.
customer orders;

Methods and procedures relating to receiving, preparing and delivering

12.3.6.

Delivery services (including minimum and maximum distances);

12.3.7.

Hours and days during which the Store will be open for business;

12.3.8.

Advertising and promotion;

12.3.9.

Use of standard forms;

12.3.10.
Use and illumination of exterior and interior signs, posters, displays,
menu boards and similar items;
12.3.11.
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12.3.12.
The posting of signs identifying you as the owner of the Store in
accordance with our requirements.
12.4. Confidentiality. You shall, at all times, use your best efforts to keep the Manuals and all
other materials, goods, and information created or used by Franchisor and designated for
confidential use within the System and the information contained therein as confidential, and shall
limit access to your employees on a need-to-know basis. You shall not, without Franchisor prior
written consent, disclose, use or permit the use of to copy, duplicate, record, transfer, transmit or
otherwise reproduce such information, in any form or by any means, in whole or in part, or
otherwise make the same available to any unauthorized person or source. Any and all
information, knowledge, and know-how not generally available outside of the System regarding
Franchisor products, services, standards, procedures, techniques and such other information or
material as Franchisor may designate as confidential shall be deemed confidential for the
purposes of this Agreement.
12.5. MaintainingLocation of Manuals. You agree that the Manuals shall be kept securely at
the Store. If you own more than one Store and maintain a separate office, one additional copy of
the Manuals, if supplied by Franchisor, may be kept in that office. If we determine that your copy
of the Manuals is incomplete or the Manuals are not located within the Store (or an additional
copy at a separate office if you own more than one Store) then we may, at our election, require
that you immediately update and obtain replacement Manuals from Franchisor. You agree to
maintain all digital updates to the Manuals as provided by Franchisor.
12.6. Improvements. All ideas, concepts, methods, techniques useful to a food service
business, whether or not constituting protectable intellectual property that you or your employees
create, or that are created on your behalf, must be promptly disclosed to us. If we adopt any of
them as part of the System, they will be deemed to be Franchisor sole and exclusive property and
works made-for-hire for Franchisor. You and each Franchisee Owner agrees to sign whatever
assignment or other documents Franchisor requests to evidence Franchisor ownership and to
assist Franchisor in securing intellectual property rights in such ideas, concepts, techniques or
materials.
12.7. Supplies. All Supplies must comply with the specifications and standards set forth in the
Manuals. To the extent feasible, Franchisor will issue minimum specifications for quality and
uniformity of all Supplies. You may purchase Supplies from any supplier who provides current
proof of specification achievement to us.
12.8. Spice and Dough Packs. You agree, in order to maintain strict uniformity of taste
throughout the System, to use only the spice packs and the dough packs supplied by Franchisor
or Franchisor’s designated suppliers for preparing pizza sauce and pizza dough.
12.9. Qualification of Equipment and Supplies. Any Equipment or Supplies not previously
approved by Franchisor as conforming to our specifications or quality standards must be
submitted for testing by Franchisor and approved by Franchisor prior to use of any such
Equipment or Supplies in the Store. Franchisor may waive, in the Manuals or otherwise in writing,
the requirement for approval of certain Supplies, Equipment or suppliers, however, any such
waiver may be retracted at any time by Franchisor, in which event all future purchases must
comply with the requirement established by Franchisor.
12.10. Examination of Suppliers. Franchisor shall have the right, from time to time and without
notice, to examine the facilities of any supplier and to test or inspect the Equipment, ingredients,
materials or Supplies to determine whether they meet Franchisor standards and specifications.
Franchisor shall have the right to charge fees for testing and evaluating proposed suppliers as a
condition to approval of any supplier, Equipment or Supplies.
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12.11. Use of Marks. You shall use only boxes, containers, and other paper and plastic products
imprinted with the Marks as prescribed by Franchisor in the Manuals or otherwise in writing.
12.12. Store Remodeling/Trade Dress Maintenance. Prior to the sixth (6th) anniversary of this
Agreement, you agree to perform such remodeling, trade dress maintenance necessary to meet
current trade dress and equipment standards. New equipment may be required at any time upon
90 days’ notice in order to meet changes in Franchisor’s product or service requirement. For such
remodeling or equipment additions required, Franchisor agrees not to require you to spend within
5 years more than 25% of the average cost to construct a new Store as provided in your Franchise
Disclosure Document.
12.12.1.
Before any renewal of this Franchise Agreement and within every 10
year anniversary of the establishment of any store (even if you purchased the store and
were not the original owner), every Store must be brought up to all current standards for
equipment, trade dress, store décor and recommended appearance of a “new” Store. For
such remodeling, Franchisor agrees not to require you to spend more than 25% of the
average cost to construct a new Store as provided in your Franchise Disclosure Document.
These expenditures are in addition to any expenditures you may have been required to
make prior to the sixth (6th) anniversary of this Agreement. Evidence of such remodeling
and renovation will be required for renewal of the Franchise Agreement.
12.12.2.
Franchisees acknowledge and understand that failure to do so adhere
to these image standards are grounds for non-renewal of the Franchise Agreement, or for
non-issuance of any new franchise agreement for the site.
12.13. Delivery Service (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
12.13.1.
Vehicles. You agree to provide a sufficient number of vehicles and
personnel to provide satisfactory delivery service, as determined from time to time by
Franchisor, at all times during approved hours of operation, to all customers located within
the Area of Responsibility. You agree to purchase or lease a suitable number of delivery
vehicles if, in Franchisor sole discretion, the same is required to meet your delivery service
obligations.
12.13.2.
Quality of Delivery Service. You further agree that in order to maintain
the quality of service required of a Store, you will not offer delivery service to any customer
whose order cannot be delivered safely and lawfully normally within approximately 30
minutes of the time when such order is placed, taking into consideration the then-existing
weather and road conditions. In the event of inclement weather and the estimated delivery
time exceeds 30 minutes, you shall honestly inform the customer of such and quote best
estimates of such time before accepting the order for delivery. In no event shall Franchisor
normal service standard of 30 minutes be utilized in any manner, except as a standard for
delivery performance. You agree not to offer any “delivery time guarantee,” but you shall
adequately staff and equip the Store with a suitable number of vehicles so as to offer
competitive and timely delivery service.
12.13.3.
Boundaries of Delivery Service. You must offer delivery service
throughout the Delivery Area. Franchisor will not reduce your Delivery Area to anything
less than the Area of Responsibility. Franchisor may, from time to time, grant to you a nonexclusive, revocable license to provide delivery services to specific areas outside of the
Area of Responsibility. The expanded area beyond the Area of Responsibility may only be
established in writing by the President or an authorized vice-president of Franchisor. You
acknowledge that the license to provide delivery service to any expanded area is temporary
in nature and may be revoked at any time by Franchisor; that your advertising and other
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marketing or service efforts in the expanded area accrue only to the benefit of Franchisor;
and that your efforts within the expanded area do not entitle you to any continuing rights in
the expanded area, whatsoever.
12.14. Operating Standards.
12.14.1.
You agree to devote your best efforts to operate the Store at maximum
capacity and efficiency. You shall also maintain a high quality of work and services, provide
suitable staffing and delivery vehicles, employ sufficient help to do same, and continuously
remain open for business seven (7) days per week throughout the year, with the exception
of certain holidays and during business hours as specified in the Manuals (except when
the Store is rendered untenantable due to excessive casualty for a period not to exceed
120180 days by reason of fire or other casualty). (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit
HD.)
12.14.2.
You agree to perform such tasks as Franchisor deems reasonably
necessary to adhere to the minimum performance standards established by Franchisor for
the operation of the Store. You further agree to immediately correct any deficiencies in
connection with the operation of the Store that may be disclosed in the course of any
inspection, which we may conduct.
12.15. Sole Operation. If the Store is owned or operated by a corporation, a limited liability
company or similar organization, such entity may not be engagedengage in any other line of
business other than a Store, without the prior written consent of Franchisor.
12.16. Approved Products and Relationship to Other Obligations. You agree to only sell
Approved Products. You are required to always sell pizza made in accordance with the System
and soft drinks. Unless otherwise provided to you in writing, you are required to sell all other
Approved Products whose production specifications are contained in the Manuals unless you are
restricted from doing so as a result of a legally binding non-competition agreement or other
restriction which you had entered into prior to your execution of this Agreement. You agree to
notify the Company in writing if you are subject to any restriction on the sale of any food products
and the terms thereof prior to execution of this Agreement and unless the Company receives such
notification, you warrant that you are not subject to any limitation on the sale of Approved
Products. Upon your execution of this Agreement, you agree not to execute any other agreements
which would have the effect of denying you the ability to sell Approved Products at your Store
without the prior written permission of Franchisor. You understand that Franchisor is relying on
your covenants contained in this Section to avoid added expense and would not be entering into
this Agreement with you were it not for the covenants you have given under this Section.
13.

STORE MANAGEMENT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS

13.1. Responsibility for Franchise Operations. The Designated Franchise Representative
shall control and be responsible for all business activities of the Store. The Designated Franchise
Representative may be replaced only with the written consent of Franchisor, which consent will
not be unreasonably withheld, provided the replacement meets Franchisor’s guidelines. The
Designated Franchise Representative must undertake and successfully complete any initial or
any future training required by Franchisor.
13.2.
Direct Supervision. The Store shall be under the direct, on premises, supervision of
the Designated Franchise Representative. At least one (1) Designated Franchise Representative
shall devote his/her entire working time (excluding reasonable vacation periods), which shall be
no less than 40 hours per week, to the on-site management and/or supervision of the
Store.maintain a competent, conscientious, trained staff and to take such steps as are necessary
to ensure that its employees preserve good customer relations and comply with any dress code
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Franchisor may prescribe. The Franchisee Parties acknowledge and agree that these
requirements are necessary to preserve the goodwill identified by the Marks. The Franchisee
Parties further acknowledge and agree that Franchisor neither dictates nor controls labor or
employment matters for Franchisee or Franchisee’s employees. Franchisee is exclusively
responsible for hiring personnel, for determining the number of jobs offered or job vacancies to
be filled, for determining and changing employee wages and benefits and work hours, and for
disciplining and discharging Franchisee’s employees. Franchisee is exclusively responsible for
labor relations with Franchisee’s employees. Franchisee shall defend, indemnify, and hold
harmless Franchisor from and against all claims, liability, and damages arising out of or related
to your employment practices and labor relations.
13.3.

Multiple Franchise Supervision.
13.3.1. If you own more than one (1) Store, or have signed a Development
Agreement, at least one Designated Franchise Representative shall devote his or her entire
time (as outlined above) to the supervision and management and/or supervision of the
Stores. The Designated Franchise Representative must satisfactorily complete such
additional supervisory training as may be required by Franchisor.
13.3.2. Each Store shall be under the direct on-premises supervision of a manager
at all times the Store is open for business, supervising and performing on premises store
operation management duties. The Designated Franchise Representative shall accordingly
supervise all such certified Store managers. as defined in the Manuals.

13.4.

Non-Competition.
13.4.1. During the Term of this Agreement, you and any Franchisee Owner may
not have any interest, financial or otherwise, either directly, as owner, consultant, joint
venture, partner, stockholder (except in a publicly traded corporation), or employee in any
other food service business where pizza represents more than 10% of the sales without
the prior written consent of Franchisor.
13.4.2. Upon termination or a transfer of this Agreement as set forth in Section
20.2 hereof, you and any Franchisee Owner may not have any interest, financial or
otherwise, either directly or indirectly, as owner, consultant, joint venturer, partner,
stockholder, or employee in any other business featuring the sale of more than 10% pizza
products for a period of 24 months from the effective date of said termination, and within a
distance of 5 miles of the Site, or any Store then-operating in the System.
13.4.3. If you are a corporation or a partnership, you shall be engaged only in the
business of operating Stores, and no other business without the prior written consent of
Franchisor.
13.4.4. If you operate other food service businesses which are dine-in and/or carry
out, you shall be permitted to continue to operate the other businesses during the term of
the Franchise Agreement; provided, that in connection with any other businesses, you shall
not:
(a)

divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the Store or of any Store
under the System to any of the other businesses or to any competitor of Franchisor,
by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, directly or indirectly,
any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Marks and
the System;

(b)

unless released in writing by the Franchisor, employ or seek to employ any person
who is at that time employed by Franchisor or by any other franchisee or developer
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of Franchisor, or otherwise directly or indirectly induce such person to leave his or
her employment;
(c)

use or display any of the Marks, which includes future trademarks, service marks,
trade names and trade dress, as well as Franchisor’s distinctive building designs
and color schemes;

(d)

use any of the confidential information, recipes, ingredients, and/or specifications
for food products, that were at any time developed by Franchisor (or Franchisee,
or any other party) in connection with the System; unless, with respect to
ingredients or specifications for food products, Franchisee can demonstrate that
the Franchisee Parties used such ingredients or specifications prior to any
association with Franchisor;

(e)

use any of the operational aspects of the System, including food preparation
methods, methods for inventory control, operational and business standards,
computer hardware or software; and

(f)

use, reproduce, and/or modify any of the Manuals, copyrighted materials, or other
written specifications and standards authorized under the System for the operation
of other businesses.

13.4.5. You and any Franchisee Owner agree that the covenants not to compete
contained in this Agreement are fair and reasonable in light of all of the facts and
circumstances relating to the grant of the License.
13.5. Solicitation of Employees. You shall not directly or indirectly solicit any employee or
officer of Franchisor or any other “Marco's Pizza” franchisee, to become your employee, officer,
partner or director unless you first provide written notice to Franchisor or the “Marco's Pizza”
franchisee so affected immediately upon indication of interest of employment of such person.
13.6. Wholesale Sales to Retail Establishments. You agree not to sell “Marco's Pizza”
products to retail establishments for re-sale, without our prior written consent.
13.7. Computer Systems and Software. With respect to computer systems and required
software:
13.7.1. We will have the right to specify or require that certain brands, types,
makes, and/or models of communications, computer systems, and hardware to be used
by, between, or among Stores, including without limitation: (a) back office and point of sale
systems, data, audio, video, and voice storage, retrieval, and transmission systems for use
at Stores, between or among Stores, and between and among your Store and Franchisor,
our designee and/or you; (b) POS Systems; (c) physical, digital format, and other security
systems; (d) printers and other peripheral devices; (e) archival back-up systems; and (f)
internet access mode (e.g., form of telecommunications connection) and speed
(collectively, the “Computer System”). You are required to elect “software support” on your
point of sale (POS) system during the first year of your Store’s operation at costs provided
in the Franchise Disclosure Document.
13.7.2. We will have the right, but not the obligation, to develop or have developed
for us, or to designate: (a) computer software programs and accounting system software
that you must use in connection with the Computer System (“Required Software”), which
you must install; (b) updates, supplements, modifications, or enhancements to the
Required Software, which you must install; (c) the tangible media upon which such
Franchisee shall record or receive data; and (d) the database file structure of Franchisee’s
Computer System.
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13.7.3. You must install and use the Computer System and Required Software in
the manner required by Franchisor.
13.7.4. You must implement and periodically make upgrades and other changes
to the Computer System and Required Software as we may reasonably request in writing
(collectively, “Computer Upgrades”).
13.7.5. You must comply with all specifications issued by Franchisor with respect
to the Computer System and the Required Software, and with respect to Computer
Upgrades, at your expense. You must also afford Franchisor unimpeded access to your
Computer System and Required Software as Franchisor may request, in the manner, form,
and at the times requested by Franchisor.
13.8. Data. All data provided by you, uploaded to our system from your system, and/or
downloaded from your system to our system is and will be owned exclusively by Franchisor, and
Franchisor will have the right to use such data in any manner that Franchisor deems appropriate
without compensation to you. In addition, all other data created or collected by you in connection
with the System, or in connection with your operation of the business (including but not limited to
consumer and transaction data), is and will be owned exclusively by Franchisor during the term
of, and following termination or expiration of, this Agreement. Copies and/or originals of such
data must be provided to Franchisor upon Franchisor request. Franchisor hereby licenses use of
such data back to you, at no additional cost, solely for the term of this Agreement and solely for
your use in connection with the business franchised under this Agreement.
13.9. Data Requirements and Usage. Franchisor may, from time-to-time, specify in the
Manual or otherwise in writing the information that you must collect and maintain on the Computer
System installed at the Store, and you must provide to Franchisor such reports as Franchisor may
reasonably request from the data so collected and maintained. You must download daily, or in
such other intervals as Franchisor may require, all information and materials Franchisor may
require in connection with the operation of the Store, and shall display such information and
materials in the manner Franchisor may prescribe, including, without limitation, to employees of
the Store. All data pertaining to, derived from, or displayed at the Store (including without
limitation data pertaining to or otherwise about Store customers) is and shall be the exclusive
property of Franchisor, and Franchisor hereby grants a royalty-free non-exclusive license to you
to use said data during the term of this Agreement.
13.9.1. You must abide by all applicable laws pertaining to the privacy of
consumer, employee, and transactional information (“Privacy Laws”).
13.9.2. You must comply with our standards and policies pertaining to Privacy
Laws. If there is a conflict between our standards and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws
and actual applicable law, you shall: (a) comply with the requirements of applicable law;
(b) immediately give us written notice of said conflict; and (c) promptly and fully cooperate
with is and our counsel in determining the most effective way, if any, to meet our standards
and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws within the bounds of applicable law.
13.9.3. You shall not publish, disseminate, implement, revise, or rescind a data
privacy policy without our prior written consent as to said policy.
13.10. No Separate Online Sites. The Franchisor shall maintain an Online Site for benefit of
itself and its franchisees. Unless otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, you shall neither
establish nor permit any other party to establish an Online Site relating in any manner whatsoever
to the Store or referring to the Marks. Franchisor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to
provide one or more references or webpage(s), as Franchisor may periodically designate, within
Franchisor’s Online Site. However, if Franchisor approves, in writing, a separate Online Site for
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you (which Franchisor is not obligated to approve), then each of the following provisions shall
apply:
13.10.1. You specifically acknowledge and agree that any Online Site owned or
maintained by or for your benefit will be deemed “marketing” under this Agreement, and
will be subject to (among other things) our prior written approval.
13.10.2. You shall not establish or use any Online Site without our prior written
approval.
13.10.3. Before establishing any Online Site, you shall submit to us, for our prior
written approval, a sample of the proposed Online Site domain name, format, visible
content (including, without limitation, proposed screen shots), and non-visible content
(including, without limitation, meta tags) in the form and manner we may reasonably
require;
13.10.4. You shall neither not use nor modify such Online Site without our prior
written approval as to such proposed use or modification.
13.10.5. In addition to any other applicable requirements, you shall comply with the
standards and specifications for Online Sites that we may periodically prescribe in the
Manuals or otherwise in writing.
13.10.6. If required by us, you shall establish such hyperlinks to our Online Site and
others as we may request in writing.
13.11. Point of Sale (“POS”) Systems. You must record all sales on computer-based point of
sale systems approved by Franchisor or on such other types of sales registry systems as may be
designated by Franchisor in the Manual or otherwise in writing (“Point of Sale System” or “POS
System”), which shall be deemed part of the your Computer System. You must utilize computerbased POS Systems which are fully compatible with the Required Software, and any other
program or system which Franchisor, in its discretion, may employ, and you must record all Net
Royalty Sales and all sales information on such equipment, and all such data will be collectable
by electronic polling directly by Franchisor.
13.12. Digital Format Identifiers; E-Mail. You shall not use the Marks or any abbreviation or
other name associated with Franchisor and/or the System as part of any e mail address, domain
name, and/or other identification of you or the Store in any digital format medium. You must use,
and only use, the email address and other identifiers we designate in connection with the business
of the Store. You agree not to transmit or cause any other party to transmit advertisements or
solicitations by e-mail or other digital format media without first obtaining our written consent as
to: (a) the content of such e-mail advertisements or solicitations; and (b) your plan for transmitting
such advertisements. In addition to any other provision of this Agreement, you will be solely
responsible for compliance with any laws pertaining to sending e-mails including but not limited
to the Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003 (known as
the “CAN-SPAM Act of 2003”).
13.13. Changes. The parties acknowledge and agree that changes to technology are dynamic
and not predictable within the term of this Agreement. In order to provide for inevitable but
unpredictable changes to technological needs and opportunities, you agree that Franchisor has
the right to establish, in writing, reasonable new standards to address new technologies, and to
implement those changes in technology into the System; and you agree to abide by those
reasonable new standards established by Franchisor as if this Section 13 were periodically
revised by Franchisor for that purpose.
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13.14. E-Mail and Fax Communication. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that exchanging
information with Franchisor by e-mail and fax is an important way to enable quick, effective, and
efficient communication, and that Franchisor is entitled to rely upon Franchisee’s use of e-mail
and faxes for communicating as part of the economic bargain underlying this Agreement. To
facilitate the use of e-mail and fax to exchange information, Franchisee authorizes the
transmission of e-mail by Franchisor and Franchisor’s employees, vendors, and affiliates (on
matters pertaining to the business contemplated hereunder) (together, “Official Senders”) to
Franchisee during the term of this Agreement. Franchisee must communicate with Official
Senders and agrees to accept (and not to opt-out of receiving) emails and faxes from Official
Senders.
13.14.1. In order to implement the terms of this Section 13.14, Franchisee agrees
that: (a) Official Senders are authorized to send e-mails and faxes to those of Franchisee's
employees as Franchisee may occasionally designate for the purpose of communicating
with Franchisor; (b) it will cause its officers, directors, and employees (as a condition of
their employment or position with Franchisee) to give their consent (in an e-mail, digital
format, or in a pen-and-paper writing, as Franchisor may reasonably require and in the form
appended to this Agreement as Exhibit E or another form that Franchisor may reasonably
requireappend ) to Official Senders’ transmission of e-mails and faxes to those persons,
and that such persons shall not opt-out, or otherwise ask to no longer receive e-mails, from
Official Senders during the time that such person works for or is affiliated with Franchisee;
and (c) it will not opt-out, or otherwise ask to no longer receive e-mails and/or faxes, from
Official Senders during the term of this Agreement.
13.14.2. The consent given in this Section 13.14 shall not apply to the provision of
notices by either party under this Agreement using e-mail unless the parties otherwise
agree in a pen-and-paper writing signed by both parties.
13.15. On-Line Order Entry. (Special Venue Stores refer to Exhibit HD.)
13.15.1. You agree, upon Franchisor’s request, to participate in Franchisor’s on-line
order entry system in order to accept pizza and other food orders placed through
Franchisor’s Online Site. You agree to implement and follow such reasonable instructions
as Franchisor may prescribe in writing concerning the on-line order entry system. Among
other things, you agree to:
13.15.1.1. accept these orders for pick-up or delivery as you would any other
lawful order placed directly with your Store;
13.15.1.2. accept these orders via the point-of-sale (POS) system, as we may
reasonably require; and
13.15.1.3. pay a charge for administration of the on-line order entry system from
any of the vendors whom we have approved for such system at their
currently quoted fees. The monthly administrative charges will be in
addition to credit card fees, “set-up” costs, hardware costs, and/or the
costs of a POS system.
13.16. Data Security. You agree to comply with all applicable and commercially reasonable data
security standards to insure no loss of customer, store and Marco’s System data from your Store.
Specifically and in addition, you also agree to comply with such data security standards required
by the credit card issuance industry as designated by us to permit you to accept credit cards for
payment in your Store. You agree to install such commercially reasonable hardware such as a
“firewall” and other software and hardware required by the Franchisor (or their reasonable
commercial alternatives) to comply with the designated security standards which prevent the
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unauthorized transfer of data and permit the authorized transmission of data.You shall accept
debit cards, credit cards, stored value cards, and other non-cash systems that Franchisor
specifies periodically to enable customers to purchase authorized products, and to acquire and
install all necessary hardware and/or software used in connection with these non-cash systems.
The parties acknowledge and agree that protection of customer privacy and credit card
information is necessary to protect the goodwill of businesses operating under the Marks and
Marco’s System. Accordingly, you shall cause the Franchise Business to meet or exceed, at all
times, all applicable security standards developed by the Payment Card Industry Standards
Council or its successor and other regulations and industry standards applicable to the protection
of customer privacy and credit card information. You are solely responsible for your own education
and understanding concerning these regulations and standards and for achieving and maintaining
applicable compliance certifications. You shall defend, indemnify, and hold Franchisor harmless
from and against all claims arising out of or related to your violation of the provisions of this
Section.
13.17. Temporary Store Closure. You agree to immediately close your Store on a temporary
basis if instructed to do so by Franchisor due to any gross violations of the System standards
concerning Product, Service or Image as are contained in the Manuals, are in violation of any law
or ordinance, or the continued operation of your Store threatens, in Franchisor’s sole opinion,
public safety, public health, or the reputation and image of the System. You must also comply
with an instruction by us to close your Store on a temporary basis if you fail to obtain or maintain
in force any insurance, or to furnish any certificates required by this Agreement. Your Store must
be closed at the stated time in any notice provided by us. Franchisor agrees not to default or
terminate this Agreement for any cause relating to the Store not being in operation during the time
of the temporary closure provided you take such actions immediately to remedy the default and
the time allowed for remedy of the default has not lapsed.
13.18. Attendance at the Franchise Annual Conference. You agree to attend and actively
participate in the Franchise Annual Conference each year during the term of this Agreement.
Your attendance at 4 out of 5 consecutive years will be considered substantial compliance with
this requirement.
14.

BOOKKEEPING AND RECORDS.

14.1. Books of Account. You agree to maintain during the term of this Agreement, and to
preserve for at least seven (7) years from the dates of their preparation, full, complete, and
accurate books, records, and accounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and in the form and manner prescribed by Franchisor from time to time in the Manual
or otherwise in writing (except that you only need to keep paper copies of Master Sheets for three
months (unless we otherwise direct in writing)). You must maintain during the term of this
Agreement, and preserve for at least three (3) years from the date of their preparation, all printed
receipts, cash register tapes and other digital format data recorded at the point-of-sale system at
the Store.
14.2.

Sales Reports and Financial Reports.
14.2.1. You shall timely prepare such financial reports in the formdesignated form
and electronic media required by the Manuals for each Accounting Period, including but
not limited to Profit and Loss Statements (P&L), sales reports, and Income Statement and
Balance Sheets. All such financial reports shall be delivered to Franchisor no later than 30
days following the end of such Accounting Period. You shall furnish to Franchisor, upon
request, copies of any federal, state, and local tax filings and returns that you are required
to file within 15 days of the filing of any such return for the Store. You must certify the truth
and accuracy of all such financial reports, sales reports, filings and returns to Franchisor.
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You will authorize your accounting firm to release the financial information as described
above to us by executing the Franchise Information Disclosure Form (Exhibit GC).
14.2.2. If you fail to submit the financial reports as required by this Agreement
within 30 days of the due date, a Financial Reporting Fee of $100 per violation will be
charged to you and collected by ACH to your bank account.
14.3. Obligations to Submit to Inspection and Audit. You agree that Franchisor shall have
the right at any time during business hours and without prior notice to inspect the Store as long
and as often as Franchisor deems necessary to insure, in its sole discretion, your compliance with
the System and the Manuals and to inspect or audit, either through our own personnel or through
the use of an outside auditor, your business records, bookkeeping records, daily sales reports,
payroll records, sales tax records, tax returns, financial reports and various other records and
documents.
14.4. Understatement of Net Royalty Sales. If an audit discloses an understatement of 2%
of Net Royalty Sales for any Period or Periods:, or demonstrates an intentional omission of any
amount:
14.4.1. You shall pay to Franchisor, within fifteen (15) days after the receipt of the
audit results, all costs incurred by Franchisor in connection with the audit, any past due
Royalty Fees, any past due required contributions to the Brand Development Fund and
Geography Based Advertising Funds and all other accounts owing to Franchisor, together
with interest and additional expense fee as specified in Section 4.4; and
14.4.2. Franchisor may require that all of your financial reports be audited at your
expense by a certified independent public accountant acceptable to Franchisor for the
partial calendar year, if any, and full calendar year following the period of understatement,
at your expense.
14.5. Additional Information. You must also submit to us in addition to the Royalty Fee
Reports required pursuant to Section 4.2 above, for review or auditing, such other forms, reports,
records, information, and data as and when we may reasonably designate, in the form and format,
and at the times and places we may reasonably require, upon request and as specified from time
to time in the Manuals or otherwise in writing, including, without limitation, via computer diskette,
or otherwise in digital format, and/or restated in accordance with our financial reporting periods,
consistent with our then current financial reporting periods and accounting practices and
standards. The reporting requirements of this Section 14.5 shall be in addition to, and not in lieu
of, the electronic reporting required under Section 13 above.
15.

COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL LAWS; PAYMENT OF TAXES AND OBLIGATIONS.

15.1. Compliance with Laws. You shall utilize the License granted, and operate the Store in
strict compliance with, all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and other requirements of any
federal, state, county, and municipal, or other government and will maintain all necessary permits,
licenses, and other consents for use of the License and the rights granted hereunder.
15.2. Taxes. You agree to promptly pay any and all personal property, sales, use, payroll,
excise and all other taxes, regardless of nature, which may be imposed upon any product, service
or Equipment sold or furnished in connection with the operation of Store by any federal, state,
county, municipality or any other governmental unit which may have tax jurisdiction over such
products, services or Equipment. You also agree to pay, when due, all required federal, state
and local withholdings for income taxes, social security taxes, workmen’s compensation and
unemployment compensation taxes, and any other taxes required to be paid or withheld in
accordance with applicable law.
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15.3. Obligations. You agree to promptly pay when due all financial obligations you incur that
are in any way associated with the Store, including but not limited to obligations to suppliers
(whether affiliates or unaffiliated with Franchisor), except to the extent that such payments are
subject to a bona fide dispute.
16.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.

16.1. No Agency. Franchisor and you are not and shall never be considered joint venturers,
partners, co-employers, employees or agents for the other. Neither shall have the power to bind
or obligate the other, except as specified in this Agreement. No representation shall be made by
either party to anyone, which would create an apparent agency, partnership, employment, coemployer relationship. Franchisor and you shall hold each other safe and harmless from each
other’s debts, acts, omissions, liabilities and representations.
16.2. Publication of Notice. In all public and private records, documents, relationships and
dealings, you shall indicate you are an independent owner of the business operating under by
this Agreement. You shall post an appropriate and prominent notice at the Site and on all
letterheads, business forms, and the like, that you are a licensed franchisee of Franchisor. You
shall maintain employee records in such a manner as to clearly indicate that neither you nor your
employees are employees of Franchisor.
17.

MARKS.

17.1. Recognition of Franchisor’s Title to the Marks and the System. You recognize and
agree that the name "Marco's" together with all Marks and goodwill pertaining to the Marks and
the System are, and shall remain, the sole property of Franchisor and that they have substantial
value. You accept the validity of the Marks as they exist now and in the future and hereby agree
that under no circumstances will you contest the validity of any of the Marks at any point in time
hereafter. Your use of the Marks does not give you any ownership interest or other interest in or
to the Marks, except the License granted by this Agreement. You shall also comply with
Franchisor instructions in filing and maintaining trade name or fictitious name registrations, and
shall execute any documents deemed necessary by Franchisor or its counsel to obtain protection
of the Marks or to maintain their continued validity and enforceability. Any and all goodwill arising
from your use of the Marks shall inure solely and exclusively to Franchisor benefit, and upon
expiration or termination of this Agreement and the License herein granted, no monetary amount
shall be assigned as attributable to any goodwill associated with your use of the System or the
Marks.
17.2. Use of Marks. You may use the Marks in promoting the System at the Store; however,
your right to use any of the Marks is a privilege granted by this Agreement, and that privilege is
extinguished upon termination or expiration of this Agreement. Upon expiration or earlier
termination of this Agreement, we may, if you do not do so, execute in your name and on your
behalf, any and all documents necessary, in our judgment to end your use of the Marks. You
hereby irrevocably appoint and designate Franchisor as your attorney-in-fact to do so.
17.3. Restrictions on Use of the Marks. You acknowledge that, in granting this License,
Franchisor does not authorize or empower you to (and you agree that you will not):
17.3.1. Use the name “Marco's Pizza” or the Marks in any other capacity other than
is provided herein or in the Manuals;
17.3.2. Use the Marks to incur any obligation or indebtedness on behalf of
Franchisor;
17.3.3. Hold yourself out as a partner or an employee or an agent of Franchisor;
17.3.4. Use the Marks with any other logo or trademarks;
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17.3.5. Use any of the Marks as part of any corporate name or with any prefix,
suffix or other modifying words, terms, designs or symbols (except that you may file a
“doing business as” or fictitious name registration if required by law); and/or
17.3.6. Use any of the Marks in connection with the sale of any unauthorized
product or service; provided, however, you may use the “Marco's Pizza” logo on business
cards, checks, forms and stationery, only if you also use your own name and designation
as a franchisee of Franchisor and follow our written instructions for doing so.
17.4. Litigation and Notification of Infringement. With respect to litigation involving the
Marks, the parties agree that:
17.4.1. You shall promptly notify Franchisor of any suspected infringement of the
Marks, any known challenge to the validity of the Marks, or any known challenge to
Franchisor ownership of, or your right to use, the Marks licensed hereunder. You
acknowledge that Franchisor shall have the sole right to direct and control any
administrative proceeding or litigation involving the Marks, including any settlement thereof.
Franchisor shall also have the sole right, but not the obligation, to take action against uses
by others that may constitute infringement of the Marks.
17.4.2. If you have used the Marks in accordance with this Agreement, Franchisor
shall defend you at Franchisor expense against any third party claim, suit, or demand
involving the Marks arising out of your use thereof. If you have not used the Marks in
accordance with this Agreement, Franchisor will defend you, at your expense, against such
third party claims, suits, or demands.
17.4.3. If Franchisor undertakes the defense or prosecution of any litigation relating
to the Marks, you shall execute any and all documents and do such acts and things as
may, in the opinion of counsel for Franchisor, be necessary to carry out such defense or
prosecution, including, but not limited to, becoming a nominal party to any legal action.
17.5. Changes to Marks. We reserve the right to substitute different Marks for use in identifying
the System and the businesses operating thereunder if our currently owned Marks no longer can
be used, or if we, exercising our right to do so, determine that substitution of different Marks will
be beneficial to the System. In such circumstances, the use of the substituted marks shall be
governed by the terms of this Agreement.
18.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.

18.1. Indemnification. You and each Franchise Owner agree to indemnify and hold the
Marco’s Parties (defined below) harmless against any and all Damages (as defined below) arising
directly or indirectly from any Asserted Claim (defined below) as well as from any breach of this
Agreement by you. Your indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement. As used above in this Section 18.1, the following terms have the following meanings:
18.1.1. “Asserted Claim” means any allegation, claim or complaint that is the
result of, or in connection with: (a) any damages or injury to any person, including, but not
limited to customers, your employees, employees of Franchisor, and members of the
public, suffered or incurred in connection with any or all of your activities hereunder; (b)
any failure by you to pay or honor your obligations or the obligations of any Franchisee
Owner to Franchisor, its Affiliates or to any third party, (c) any failure by you to comply with
all applicable laws; or (d) your failure to pay any taxes required to be paid by you; and, in
any case, despite any claim that any Marco’s Party was or may have been negligent.
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18.1.2. “Marco’s Parties” means Franchisor, Franchisor’s shareholders, parents,
subsidiaries, and affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, employees, and agents
(together, the “Marco’s Parties”).
18.1.3. “Damages” means all claims, demands, causes of action, suits, damages,
liabilities, fines, penalties, assessments, judgments, losses, and expenses (including
without limitation expenses, costs and lawyers’ fees incurred by an indemnified party in the
defense of a threatened or actual Asserted Claim and/or for enforcement of its
indemnification rights under this Section 18.1).
18.2.

Insurance Requirements.
18.2.1. You agree to obtain and keep in full force and effect comprehensive liability
insurance, including premises, products, and completed operations, with a broad form
comprehensive general liability endorsement, including owned (if you own your own
delivery vehicles) and hired (non-owned vehicles) automobile coverage, with a minimum
limit of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) for death and injury to each person, in
any accident, and five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) per accident, with an umbrella
coverage of one million dollars ($1,000,000), or underlying liability coverage with a
minimum of one million dollar ($1,000,000) limits, covering you, and if you are a corporation
or partnership, covering your officers and shareholders/partners personally. If you sell
alcoholic beverages you must also obtain specific liability coverage for such in an amount
equal to $1,000,000 in aggregate. You agree to name Franchisor as an additional insured
in the insurance policies required to be obtained, and to provide a current copy of each
required insurance policy to Franchisor. All policies of insurance shall include a provision
prohibiting cancellations, non-renewal or material changes to the policies until 30 days’
prior written notice has been given to Franchisor in writing. All insurance shall be placed
with a reputable insurance company licensed to do business in the state in which the
FranchisedFranchise Business is located and having a financial size category of XV and
policy holder’s rating of “A+” or “A” (excellent) as assigned by Alfred M. Best and Company,
Inc. You expressly recognize the fact that, in the opinion of Franchisor, this insurance
might not be sufficient in the future and agree, upon written notification, to increase the
limits of said coverage in accordance with Franchisor’s written instructions (and/or to
merely reflect increases in the Index).
18.2.2. You agree to maintain adequate workers’ compensation and employer’s
liability insurance in accordance with the laws of the United States and of the states in
which the Store’s operations are conducted. You also agree to provide copies of such
workers’ compensation policies and/or certificates of coverage to Franchisor upon request.
18.2.3. If you fail to obtain or maintain in force any insurance provided herein or to
furnish any certificates required hereunder, Franchisor may, in addition to other remedies
we may have, obtain such insurance and/or certificates. In such event you shall, within five
(5) days following receipt of an invoice for the same, reimburse Franchisor for all premiums
and other costs incurred thereby. You may also be instructed to close the Store pursuant
to the provisions for Temporary Store Closure in this Agreement, until approved coverage
is obtained.
18.2.3.18.2.4. You acknowledge that the foregoing minimum insurance
requirements do not constitute advice or a representation that such coverages are
necessary or adequate or protect you from losses in connection with the Store.
Nothing in this Agreement prevents or restricts you from acquiring and maintaining
insurance with higher policy limits or lower deductibles than Franchise requires.

MARCO’S PIZZA®
Franchise Agreement ǀ 2015

40

18.3. Insurance During Training. You agree to obtain workers' compensation insurance and
employer’s liability insurance on all personnel undergoing training at Franchisor facilities. You
further agree to obtain the auto and other insurance coverages outlined herein at the beginning
of the training period, and to maintain same throughout your training. You will not be allowed to
begin training until documentation of these insurance coverages are provided to Franchisor.
19.

TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION.

19.1.

Termination Prior to Opening of Store.
19.1.1. Under any Termination of this Agreement per this Section, or any other
Section of this Agreement, you and all your Franchise Owners shall comply with the
provisions of Sections 19.6 and 19.7 of this Agreement.
19.1.2. You have the right to terminate this Agreement prior to completion of
training without cause, by simple written notice to us provided you have exercised due
diligence in attempting to obtain financing for your Store, obtaining a permitted Site for the
Store, and otherwise acted in good faith in compliance with the objectives of this
Agreement. In such event we will refund the Initial Franchise Fee except for $5,000 which
we both agree is a reasonable amount of liquidated damages to offset our costs and
expenses. You have the right to terminate this Agreement after completion of training but
prior to opening the Store by simple written notice to us but we will not refund any portion
of your Initial Franchise Fee and it is fully earned by us.
19.1.3. We have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time prior to your
completion of the third week of Initial Training without cause by simple written notice to you.
If we do so, and provided you have otherwise acted in good faith in compliance with the
objectives of this Agreement, we will refund the Initial Franchise Fee except for $5,000
which we both agree is a reasonable amount of liquidated damages to offset our costs and
expenses. If you satisfactorily complete the “Operational Assessment” (see Item 11 of the
FDD)an operational assessment performed by Franchisor’s operational support team prior
to your execution of this Agreement, and if we do so exercise our right to terminate, we will
refund your entire Initial Franchise Fee.

19.2. Termination By Franchisee. You may terminate this Agreement at any time after
completion of the initial training program by delivering to Franchisor written notification of your
election to terminate this Agreement not less than 120 days prior to the effective date of
termination and payment of a Termination Fee to Franchisor, no later than 30 days prior to the
scheduled termination date. The Termination Fee shall be equal to the average Royalty Fees and
Brand Development Fees due and payable for the 24 full Accounting Periods immediately
preceding the time you ceased operation, multiplied by the lesser of: (a) 36; or (b) the Accounting
Periods remaining in the Term after you cease operations. You shall continue to operate the
Store in accordance with the terms of this Agreement up to the termination date and pay all
Royalty Fees, advertising fees and other fees owing pursuant to the terms of this Agreement prior
to the effective termination date. You shall immediately vacate the Store following the termination
date and you and the Franchisee Owners shall comply with the provisions of Sections 19.6 and
19.7 of this Agreement. The Termination Fee will not be enforced if (a) it is mutually agreed to
close the Store, sell the equipment and a pizza store no longer operates at the location; (b) the
Termination results because of the death of a Franchise Owner or a Franchise Owner’s spouse;
(c) The Termination results from a casualty at the permitted locationFranchise Business that is
not an insurable event, an Act of God, or other event beyond the Franchisee’s control that would
disrupt operations for 90 days or more.
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19.3. Termination by Franchisor Upon Notice. Franchisee shall be deemed to be in default
and Franchisor may, at its option, terminate this Agreement and all rights granted hereunder,
without affording Franchisee any opportunity to cure the default, effective immediately upon the
delivery of written notice to Franchisee by Franchisor (in the manner set forth under Section 21.12
below), upon the occurrence of any of the following events:
19.3.1. You take action for the purpose of effecting a corporate or partnership
dissolution without agreeing to Franchisor satisfaction, personal liability to Franchisor for
any obligation that such corporate or partnership organization had to Franchisor.
19.3.2. You fail to open your Store within 180 days following the Effective Date
unless such failure to open was beyond your reasonable control or you failed upon written
notice by Franchisor to take such actions as Franchisor reasonably required to so open the
location.
19.3.3. You abandoned or failed to actively operate the Store for 24 consecutive
hours except when temporarily closed by order of a public security agency such as the
police or fire department; such closure is caused by any event wholly beyond Franchisee’s
control and the Store is reopened for business to the public within 24 hours following the
resolution of such cause; or as expressly permitted in this Agreement or otherwise by
Franchisor in writing.
19.3.4. You or any Franchisee Owner attempts to transfer an Interest without
Franchisor consent or without compliance with all of the provisions of Section 20, or any of
your representations prove false on Exhibit D, “Declaration ofthe List of Owners
Addendum”,
19.3.5.19.3.4. for Franchise Entity listed on the Summary Sheet. You suffer
cancellation or termination of any lease, sublease or possessory rights pertaining to the
Site.
19.3.6.19.3.5. Your operation of the Store creates or perpetuates a material
hazard or danger to the health and/or safety of the public, your employees, and/or others.
19.3.7.19.3.6. You or any Franchisee Owner have made any material
misstatement or omission in the application for the franchise conferred by this Agreement
or in any other information provided pursuant to this Agreement.
19.3.8.19.3.7. You, any of your employees, or any Franchisee Owner is convicted
of a felony, or pleads guilty or no contest to a charge violating any law that impacts upon
the goodwill associated with the Marks; except that (a) in the case of employees, you fail to
terminate the employee within 24 hours after notification of the offense; or (b) in the case of
a Franchisee Owner, you failed to remove such person from the ownership of the franchisee
entity and from any and all association with the FranchisedFranchise Business established
under this Agreement within 10 days of notification of the offense.
19.3.9.19.3.8. You, any of your employees, or any Franchisee Owner consumes
or possesses illegal drugs or alcoholic beverages at the Store or while engaging in any
delivery service; except that (a) in the case of employees, you or a Franchisee Owner knew
or should have known the employee was engaging in such conduct but failed to prevent
such from occurring; and/or upon becoming aware of any such conduct, you fail to
immediately terminate the employee; or (b) in the case of a Franchisee Owner, you failed to
remove such person from the ownership of the franchisee entity and from any and all
association with the FranchisedFranchise Business established under this Agreement within
10 days of notification of the conduct.
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19.3.10.19.3.9. You use, in the operation of your Store, supplies, inventory, or
ingredients that we have not previously approved in writing or that we have disapproved,
or offer for sale any products that we have not approved in writing or that we have
disapproved.
19.3.11.19.3.10.
You fail on two (2) or more separate occasions within any
twelve (12) consecutive months to comply with the lawful terms of this Agreement, whether
or not such failures to comply are corrected after notice thereof is delivered to you.
19.3.12.19.3.11.
You default on any financing arrangement secured by
equipment or other assets (including real estate owned by you) for the Store, or default on
the lease or sub-lease for the Site upon which your Store is located, and such financing
arrangement or equipment lease has a remedy that includes repossession of such
equipment or other assets or premises, or cessation or closure of the franchisedFranchise
Business for more than three days, and you do not correct or remedy such default(s) within
the terms provided in such financing arrangement or equipment lease. You hereby
authorize and request any secured party of such referenced equipment or other assets for
the Store and the landlord for the Site to notify Franchisor upon any such defaults in any
such applicable financing arrangement or equipment lease, and to provide Franchisor with
a copy of any such applicable documents and notice(s) of default. You further agree that
such notification is reasonable and necessary to insure compliance with this Agreement
and you agree to hold such secured party or Landlord harmless from any such disclosure
required herein.
19.3.13.19.3.12.
You fail to maintain continuous insurance coverage as
required under Section 18.2 and you are notified of a lapse in coverage by either the
insurance provider, its agents, or us, and you do not restore such coverage before
continuing to operate the business. You agree not to operate the Store if you do not have
all required insurance coverages in effect. Franchisor agrees not to terminate this
Agreement if you temporarily close the Store when notified of your lack of insurance
coverage, provided you take such actions to re-instate such required insurance
immediately and such coverage is re-instated in 24 hours or less.
19.3.14.19.3.13.
You take any unprofessional action, or any actions either
oral, written or physical which impugns the integrity or image of the Marco’s Pizza System
in dealing with the public or customers in any way.
19.3.15.19.3.14.
You fail to immediately investigate all claims of sexual
harassment, or hostile workplace, or similar, in your Store, and take such remedial actions
as are appropriate. You agree to provide copies of the results of your investigation and
resultant actions to Franchisor immediately even if the allegations of such inappropriate
behavior prove false.
19.4. With Notice and Opportunity to Cure. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 19,
upon any other default by Franchisee of its obligations hereunder or under any other agreement
between Franchisee (and/or Franchisee’s affiliates) and Franchisor (and/or Franchisor’s
affiliates), Franchisor shall have the right, in addition to all other remedies at law or in equity or as
otherwise set forth in this Agreement, to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice of
termination (in the manner set forth under Section 21.12 below) setting forth the nature of such
default to Franchisee: (a) at least 24 hours before the effective date of termination for all defaults
as a result of Franchisee’s failure to remedy any defaults relating to failure to make only Approved
Products in the Store, or make Approved Products in strict compliance with our standards as set
forth in the Manuals, or provide service to customers in strict compliance with our standards as
set forth in the Manuals, and (b) at least 10 days before the effective date of termination for all
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defaults as a result of Franchisee’s failure to make any payments when due and in the amounts
due to Franchisor or its affiliates under this Agreement or any other agreement; and (c) at least
30 days before the effective date of termination for all other defaults under this Agreement not set
forth above in this Section or in Sections 19.3 above and 19.5 below. Franchisee may avoid
termination under this Section 19.4 by immediately initiating a remedy to cure such default, curing
it to Franchisor’s satisfaction, and by promptly providing proof thereof to Franchisor, all within the
twenty-four hour (24) hour period, 10-day period, or 30-day period, as the case may be. If any
such default is not cured within the specified time, or such longer period as applicable law may
require, this Agreement shall terminate without further notice to Franchisee effective immediately
upon the expiration of the 24-hour period, 10-day period or 30-day period, as the case may be,
or such longer period as applicable law may require.
19.5. Automatic Termination. You will be deemed to be in default under this Agreement, and
all rights granted herein shall automatically terminate without notice to you, if you become
insolvent or make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or if a petition in bankruptcy
is filed by you or such a petition is filed against and not opposed by you; or if you are adjudicated
a bankrupt or insolvent; or if a bill in equity or other proceeding for the appointment of a receiver
of you or other custodian for your business or assets is filed and consented to by you; or if a
receiver or other custodian (permanent or temporary) of your assets or property, or any part
thereof, is appointed by any court of competent jurisdiction; or if proceedings for a composition
with creditors under any state or federal law should be instituted by or against you; or if a final
judgment remains unsatisfied or of record for 30 days or longer (unless unappealed or a
supersedeas bond is filed); or if execution is levied against your business or property; or if suit to
foreclose any lien or mortgage against the Store premises or equipment is instituted against you
and not dismissed within 30 days; or if the real or personal property of the Store is be sold after
levy thereupon by any sheriff, marshal, or constable.
19.6. Conformity with Laws. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Section
19.3, if any valid, applicable law or regulation of a competent governmental authority having
jurisdiction over this Agreement and the parties hereto shall limit Franchisor rights of termination
hereunder or shall require longer notice periods than those set forth above, this Agreement shall
be deemed amended to conform to such laws and regulations. Franchisor shall not, however, be
precluded from contesting the validity, enforceability or application of such laws or regulations in
any action, arbitration, hearing or dispute relating to this Agreement or the termination thereof.
19.7. Your Obligations Upon Termination or Expiration. Upon termination or expiration of
this Agreement for any reason:
19.7.1. Cease Operation. Franchisee shall immediately cease to operate the
Store, and shall not thereafter, directly or indirectly, represent to the public or hold itself out
as a present or former franchisee of Franchisor.
19.7.2. Stop Using Marks. Franchisee shall immediately and permanently cease
to use, in any manner whatsoever, any confidential methods, procedures and techniques
associated with the System, the Marks (including but not limited to the name “Marco’s”),
and any and all other marks and distinctive forms, slogans, signs, symbols, and devices
associated with the System. In particular, Franchisee shall cease to use, without limitation,
all signs, marketing materials, displays, stationery, forms, and any other articles that display
the Marks.
19.7.3. Cancel Assumed Names. Franchisee shall take such action as may be
necessary to cancel any assumed name or equivalent registration which contains the
marks “Marco’s” and any and all other Marks, and/or any other service mark or trademark
of Franchisor, and Franchisee shall furnish Franchisor with evidence satisfactory to
MARCO’S PIZZA®
Franchise Agreement ǀ 2015

44

Franchisor of compliance with this obligation within five (5) days after termination or
expiration of this Agreement.
19.7.4. Store Premises. Franchisee shall, at Franchisor’s option, assign to
Franchisor any interest which Franchisee has in the lease or sublease of the premises at
which the Store is operated and/or for the building in which the Store is operated.
19.7.4.1.

If Franchisor does not elect or is unable to exercise its option to acquire,
or to acquire the lease or sublease for the premises of the Store,
Franchisee shall make such modifications or alterations to the premises
operated hereunder (including, without limitation, the changing of the
telephone number) immediately upon termination or expiration of this
Agreement as may be necessary to distinguish the appearance of said
premises from that of other Stores under the System, and shall make
such specific additional changes thereto as Franchisor may reasonably
request for that purpose.

19.7.4.2.

If Franchisee fails or refuses to comply with the requirements of this
Section 19.7, Franchisor shall have the right to enter upon the premises
of the Store, without being guilty of trespass or any other tort, for the
purpose of making or causing to be made such changes as may be
required, at the expense of Franchisee, which expense Franchisee
agrees to pay upon demand.

19.7.5. Telephone Numbers. In addition, Franchisee shall cease use of all
telephone numbers and any domain names, websites, e-mail addresses, and any other
identifiers, whether or not authorized by Franchisor,that are used by Franchisee while
operating the Store, and shall promptly execute such documents or take such steps
necessary to remove reference to the Store fromwhether or not authorized by Franchisor.
Franchisee’s pre-assignment of all trade or business telephone directories, including
“yellow” and “white” pages, or at Franchisor’s request transfer samerights to these
identifiers back to Franchisor. in the event this Agreement is terminated is evidenced by
Exhibit B of this Agreement.
19.7.6. Franchisor’s Right to Exercise Self-Help. If Franchisee fails or refuses to
comply with all of the requirements of this Section 19.7, Franchisor (or its designee) shall
have the right to enter upon the premises of the Store, without being guilty of trespass or
any other tort, for the purpose of making or causing to be made such changes as may be
required, at the expense of Franchisee, which expense Franchisee agrees to pay upon
demand.
19.7.7. No Use of the Marks in Other Businesses. Franchisee agrees, if it
continues to operate or subsequently begins to operate any other business, not to use any
reproduction, counterfeit copy, or colorable imitation of the Marks, either in connection with
such other business or the promotion thereof, which is likely to cause confusion, mistake,
or deception, or which is likely to dilute Franchisor’s rights in and to the Marks, and further
agrees not to utilize any designation of origin, description, trademark, service mark, or
representation that suggests or represents a present or past association or connection with
any or all of Franchisor, the System, the Products, and the Marks.
19.7.8. Pay All Sums Due. Franchisee shall promptly pay all sums owing to
Franchisor and its subsidiaries and affiliates (regardless whether those obligations arise
under this Agreement or otherwise). In the event of termination for any default of
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Franchisee, such sums shall include all damages, costs, and expenses, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by Franchisor as a result of the default.
19.7.9. Return Confidential Information. Franchisee shall immediately return to
Franchisor the Manuals and all other manuals, records, and instructions containing
confidential information (including without limitation any copies thereof, even if such copies
were made in violation of this Agreement), all of which are acknowledged to be the property
of Franchisor.
19.7.10. Right to Enter and Continue Operations. In order to preserve the goodwill
of the System following termination, Franchisor (or its designee) shall have the right to enter
the Store (without liability to Franchisee, Franchisee’s Principals, or otherwise) for the
purpose continuing the Store’s operation and maintaining the goodwill of the business.
19.7.11. Delivery of Mail. You shall deliver to Franchisor copies of all mail and other
written, as well as all electronic, correspondence that relates to the operation of the Store.
19.7.12. Business Records. You shall immediately deliver in a digital format to
Franchisor copies of all business records, including those pertaining to customers and to
your employees, excepting only those records required by you to be maintained by
governmental agencies, and agree to provide copies of such documents to Franchisor.
19.7.13. Advertising and Signage. You shall immediately return to Franchisor or, if
so directed by Franchisor, destroy all advertising materials, signage, and other material
bearing any Mark.
19.8. Purchase Option. Upon termination of or expiration of this Agreement for any reason,
(without renewal or timely purchase of a new Franchise), Franchisor shall have the following
rights:
19.8.1. Franchisor Right to Purchase Your Assets. Franchisor shall have the right,
exercisable by giving written notice thereof (“Appraisal Notice”) within 180 days prior or
10 days after the date of such termination or expiration, to require a determination of the
“Fair Market Value” (as defined herein) of those tangible assets used in connection with
the operation of the Store including, without limitation, inventory for non-perishable
products, materials, Supplies, furniture, Equipment, signs, and leasehold improvements
owned by you, if such can be relocated (the “Purchased Assets”). In no event shall any
value be extended for “Goodwill” or “going concern value” or any values attributable to the
current sales or profits of the store.
19.8.1.1.

Prior to the determination of such Fair Market Value, and upon such
notification, you shall not sell or remove any of the Purchased Assets
from the Site. You shall give Franchisor, its designated agents and the
Appraiser(s) full access to the Store and your books and records at any
time during customary business hours in order to conduct inventories
and determine the purchase price for the Purchased Assets.

19.8.1.2.

Franchisor shall have the option, exercisable by delivering written
notice thereof within 30 days after a determination of the Fair Market
Value, stating the terms of the offer, to purchase the Purchased Assets
at the determined Fair Market Value. Franchisor shall have the
unrestricted right to assign this option to purchase separate and apart
from the remainder of this Agreement. If the Site is owned by you, the
provisions of Section 7.45 apply.
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19.8.2.
Payment of Purchase Price. If Franchisor exercises its option to
purchase, or assigning such rights to a third party, the purchase price for the Purchased
Assets shall be paid in cash at the closing, which shall occur at the place, time and date
designated by Franchisor, but not later than 30 days after Franchisor exercises its option
to purchase the Purchased Assets. At the closing, Franchisor shall be entitled to all
warranties, title insurance policies and other closing documents and post-closing
indemnifications as it may reasonably require, including without limitation:
19.8.2.1.

Instruments transferring good and merchantable title to the Purchased
Assets, free and clear of all liens, encumbrances and liabilities, to
Franchisor or its designee, with all sales and other transfer taxes paid
by you; and

19.8.2.2.

An assignment of all leases pertaining to the Purchased Assets,
including, without limitation, land, building and/or equipment (or if an
assignment is prohibited, a sublease to Franchisor or its designee for
the full remaining term and on the terms and conditions as your lease,
including renewal and/or purchase options).

19.8.2.3.

In the event that you cannot deliver clear title to the Site, or in the event
there are other unresolved issues, the closing of the sale may, at
Franchisor option, be accomplished through an escrow on such terms
and conditions as Franchisor deems appropriate, including the making
of payments, to be deducted from the purchase price, directly to third
parties in order to obtain clear title to the Purchased Assets. Further,
you and Franchisor shall, prior to closing, comply with any applicable
bulk sales provisions of the Uniform Commercial Code as enacted in
the state where the Site is located and all applicable sales and local
sales and income tax notification and/or escrow procedures.
Franchisor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to set off against
and reduce the purchase price by any and all amounts owed by you
or any Franchise Owner(s) to Franchisor or any of its Affiliates, key
suppliers, purveyors or other persons or entities which Franchisor
depends upon for continuing good will, in Franchisor sole opinion.

19.8.3.
Interim Operation and Removal of Equipment. Upon delivery of the
Appraisal Notice and pending (i) determination of Fair Market Value, (ii) exercise of
Franchisor option, and (iii) the Closing of the purchase, Franchisor may operate for its own
account or authorize continued temporary operations of the Store by you pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement, subject to the supervision and control of one or more of our
appointed managers. If Franchisor elects not to purchase all of your assets, you shall
remove all un-purchased assets from the Site within forty-eight (48) hours of notification by
Franchisor. If you fail to do so, Franchisor may, at its election, place any such assets in
storage at your sole risk and expense.
19.8.4.
Determination of Fair Market Value. In the event you and the Company
do not agree as to the Fair Market Value for the purchase price of the assets or, if you own
the real estate, the value of the real estate as required in Section 19.8, the parties agree to
utilize the “Three Appraiser Method” of determining such value.
20.

OWNERSHIP AND TRANSFER OF FRANCHISE INTERESTS.

20.1. Interests Not Transferable. No Interest may be voluntarily or involuntarily transferred,
by operation of law or otherwise, except to the extent permitted by this Section 20.
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20.2.

Sale, Resale and Third Party Offer – Right of First Refusal.
20.2.1.
If you or any Franchise Owner desire to transfer an Interest, the
prospective transferor must first offer the Interest to Franchisor, as a right of first refusal,
by obtaining a good faith, arms-length offer to purchase the Interest for cash, from a third
person who is eligible to purchase the Interest pursuant to Section 20.2.6 below. The offer
by the third person must be in writing and state the prospective transferee's name and
address, and exact terms of the offer.
20.2.2.
The prospective transferor shall deliver the offer to Franchisor and offer
to transfer the Interest to Franchisor on the terms set forth in the offer. Franchisor must
deliver to the prospective transferor written notice of the intent to exercise the right of first
refusal and acceptance of the offer within 30 days after the Franchisee has provided all
information and documentation, as reasonably requested by Franchisor, on the operation
of the store and the offer. If such notice is not delivered, the offer shall be deemed rejected.
If Franchisor accepts the offer, the transferor shall transfer the Interest to Franchisor in the
manner specified in the offer. Franchisor may specifically enforce the delivery obligation
under this clause.
20.2.3.
If an offer is rejected by Franchisor or Franchisor elects not to exercise
its right of first refusal, Franchisor, within 30 days of the receipt of the third person offer and
completion of such investigation of the prospective Transferee as may be appropriate, may
either reject or approve the prospective Transferee. Such investigation of the prospective
Transferee may include testing of aptitude and ability to manage a Store, as Franchisor
may require. Franchisor discretion with regard to the approval or disapproval of any
prospective Transferee, including existing Franchisees or Franchise Owners, is absolute,
but shall not be unreasonably withheld.
20.2.4.
Neither you nor any Franchisee Owner may transfer an Interest unless
the following conditions have been satisfied:
20.2.4.1.

All of your obligations and accounts with Franchisor and its Affiliates
are current.

20.2.4.2.

You are not in default of any provision of this Agreement, or any other
agreement between you and Franchisor or any of its Affiliates.

20.2.4.3.

The Transferee agrees to undertake and pay for such training as
required by Franchisor.

20.2.4.4.

The Transferee agrees to complete such store improvements, store
layout modifications, and trade dress and Equipment additions,
removals and modifications as Franchisor may require, in accordance
with Franchisor standards.

20.2.4.5.

The Transferee is of good character, reputation, and economic stability,
and has the background and experience required under Store
ownership qualifications as outlined herein or in the Manuals, or as
Franchisor may publish from time to time.

20.2.4.6.

Prior to effectiveness of the transfer, you pay to Franchisor a Transfer
Fee of the sum of: (a) Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500), if
the proposed Transferee is a franchisee of and in Good Standing with
Franchisor; or (b) if the proposed Transferee is not already a franchisee
in Good Standing with Franchisor, the greater of (i) Eight Thousand
Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($8,250); or (ii) one-third (1/3) of the then-
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current Initial Franchise Fee then being offered to new Franchisor
franchisees; provided, however, that if you have requested Franchisor
assistance in re-marketing the. Should a buyer for your Store, which
assistance results in a transfer, you shall be obtained through our
franchise candidate lead generation system, you must also pay to
Franchisorus a marketingFranchise Resale Fee equal to three percent
(3%)% of the gross selling price of your Store.
20.2.4.7.

The Transferee (and its owners) must agree to be bound by all of the
provisions of this Agreement for the remainder of the Term or, at
Franchisor option, execute Franchisor then-current standard form of
franchise agreement and related documents being offered to new
franchisees (which may provide for different Royalty Fees, advertising
contributions and expenditures, duration and other rights and
obligations than those provided in this Agreement).

20.2.4.8.

You and any Franchisee Owner must, except to the extent limited or
prohibited by applicable law, execute a general release, in form and
substance satisfactory to Franchisor, of any and all claims against
Franchisor and its Affiliates, officers, directors, employees, agents,
successors and assigns.

20.2.4.9.

The debt service on any required loan to finance the business sale must
not be so burdensome to adversely affect the Transferee’s operation of
the Store, or its compliance with its Franchise Agreement in Franchisor
sole judgment, based upon historical financial results using customary
and reasonable debt service ratios. Franchisor will not object to any
selling price, which does not involve borrowed funds.

20.2.4.10. If you or any Franchisee Owner finance any part of the sale price of an
Interest, you and any Franchisee Owner must agree that all of the
Transferee’s obligations to you or any Franchisee Owner, and security
interests reserved by any of them in the assets of the Store, will be
subordinate to the Transferee's obligations to pay all amounts due
Franchisor and its Affiliates and to otherwise comply with the franchise
agreement executed by the Transferee.
20.2.4.11. If this Agreement is executed by you pursuant to a Development
Agreement, then the Transferee must acquire, in a concurrent
transaction, all of your rights and any Franchisee Owner’s rights under
such Development Agreement and all franchise agreements executed
by you pursuant to such Development Agreement.
20.2.4.12. You and any Franchisee Owner must execute a non-competition
covenant, in form and substance satisfactory to Franchisor, in favor of
Franchisor and the Transferee, in accordance with the terms of Section
13.4 hereof.
20.2.4.13. You and any Franchisee Owner shall execute such other documents
as shall be reasonably required by Franchisor to protect Franchisor
rights under this Agreement and any Development Agreement.
20.2.4.14. The consent to transfer may be conditioned upon the Transferee's
satisfactory completion of any training required by Franchisor, at the
Transferee’s expense.
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20.2.5.
You and any Franchisee Owner acknowledge that if the price and terms
of sale to be paid for any Interest appears, in Franchisor judgment, to adversely affect the
Transferee's ability to operate the Store profitably, Franchisor may, without liability to you
or any Franchisee Owner, counsel the Transferee regarding such judgment or if deemed
appropriate by Franchisor, refuse to allow the transfer.
20.2.6.
Subject to the foregoing, a third person is eligible to purchase an
Interest if they agree to conform to Franchisor then-current training standards, assume your
obligations, is of good character, reputation and economic stability and meet the Store
ownership qualifications as outlined herein or in the Manuals. Franchisor may require the
submission of certain information regarding the proposed Transferee, which Franchisor
deems reasonably necessary to assist it in its investigation of the proposed Transferee.
20.2.7.
Franchisor approval of a transfer shall not constitute: (a) a
representation by Franchisor as to the fairness of the terms of any agreement or
arrangement between you and the Transferee or as to the prospects of success of the
Store; (b) a waiver of any claims by Franchisor or its Affiliates against you or any Franchise
Owner; or (c) a waiver of Franchisor right to demand Transferee’s exact compliance with
this Agreement.
20.3. Death or Disability. In the event of the death or permanent disability of you or any
Franchisee Owner, the executor, administrator, conservator, guardian or other personal
representative of such person shall, within three (3) months of such event, apply, in writing, for
the right to transfer the Interest of the deceased or disabled person to such person or persons as
the legal representative may specify. The transfer shall be granted by Franchisor upon fulfillment
of the conditions specified in Section 20.2 of this Agreement, except that the transfer fee provided
for in Section 20.2.4.6 shall be waived by Franchisor but the legal representative shall reimburse
Franchisor for all reasonable legal costs incurred as a result of such transfer. Prior to the transfer,
Franchisor shall have the right, at its option, to require such executor, administrator, conservator,
guardian or other person or representative to employ, at its expense, a trained manager
satisfactory to Franchisor to operate the Store. Failure to transfer the Interest within the three (3)
month period shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. The term “permanent
disability” shall mean a mental or physical disability, impairment or condition that is reasonably
expected to prevent or actually does prevent you or any Franchisee Owner from managing and/or
supervising the Store for a period of 90 days or more from the onset of such disability, impairment
or condition.
20.4. Attempted Transfer. Any attempt to transfer an Interest in violation of this Section is
ineffective and shall constitute a material default of this Agreement.
21.

GENERAL CONDITIONS

21.1. Governing Law, Severability, and Substitution of Provisions. Except to the extent
governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act; 15 U.S.C. § 1051 et seq.),
this Agreement and the relationship between Franchisor, you and any Franchisee Owner will be
exclusively governed by the laws of the State of Ohio (without regard to, and without giving effect
to, the application of Ohio choice-of-law rules).
21.1.1. Every part of this Agreement shall be considered severable. If for any
reason, any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid, that determination shall not impair
the other parts of this Agreement. If any covenant herein which restricts competitive activity
is deemed unenforceable by virtue of its scope in terms of geographic area, type of activity
prohibited and/or length of time, but could be rendered enforceable by reducing any part or
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all of it, the parties agree that it will be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under
applicable law and public policy.
21.1.2. If any applicable law requires a greater prior notice of termination than is
required hereunder, a different standard for termination or non-renewal, or the taking of
some other action not required hereunder, the prior notice, different standard, and/or other
action required by such law shall be substituted for the comparable provisions hereof.
21.1.3. If any provision of this Agreement or any specification, standard or
operating procedure prescribed by us is invalid or unenforceable under applicable law,
Franchisor has the right, in Franchisor sole discretion, to modify such invalid or
unenforceable provision, specification, standard or operating procedure to the extent
required to make it valid and enforceable.
21.2. Injunctive Relief. Franchisor will have the right, without the posting of any bond or
security, to apply for specific performance of the terms of this Agreement, by petitions for
temporary and permanent injunctions or other similar equitable relief. Specifically, Franchisor will
have the right to obtain such relief to prevent you or any Franchisee Owner from: (a) misusing
any of the rights licensed by this Agreement; (b) engaging in competitive operations in violation
of the covenants set forth in Section 13.4; (c) transferring or assigning any Interest without
complying with this Agreement; (d) engaging in acts or practices in violation of applicable laws
and regulations or which are fraudulent, dishonest or create health or other hazards to the public;
(e) misuse of any confidential information as set forth in this Agreement; or (f) impairing the good
will associated with the Marks. Franchisor rights to apply for such relief are in addition to all other
remedies available to Franchisor under applicable law or this Agreement.
21.3. Arbitration. Subject to the provisions of Section 21.2, any other controversy or claims
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or any breach thereof, including, without limitation,
any claim that this Agreement or any portion thereof is invalid, illegal or otherwise voidable, shall
be submitted to Arbitration before and in accordance with the then-Current Commercial Arbitration
rules of the American Arbitration Association and judgment upon the award may be entered in
any court having jurisdiction thereof.
21.4. Jurisdiction and Venue.
All litigation, court proceedings, lawsuits, arbitration
proceedings and other hearings must and will be venued exclusively in Toledo, Ohio. You and
each Franchisee Owner do hereby agree and submit to personal jurisdiction in Lucas County,
Ohio or the Federal District Court having jurisdiction therein for the purposes of any suit,
proceeding, arbitration or hearing permitted to be brought to enforce or construe the terms of this
Agreement or to resolve any dispute or controversy arising in connection with this Agreement.
You and each Franchisee Owner waive any rights to contest such venue and jurisdiction and any
claims that such venue and jurisdiction are invalid.
21.5. Cumulative Rights. The rights of Franchisor are cumulative and no exercise or
enforcement by Franchisor of any right or remedy hereunder will preclude the exercise or remedy
by Franchisor of any other right or remedy hereunder to which Franchisor is entitled by law or
equity to enforce. Specifically, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, if this Agreement
is terminated on account of your material default, such termination will not be considered an
election of remedies, and you will be liable to Franchisor for damages in the nature of lost future
profits through the remaining term of this Agreement.
21.6. No Class Actions. You further agree that, for the System to function properly, Franchisor
must not be burdened by the cost of litigating or arbitrating system-wide disputes. Accordingly,
any disagreement between Franchisor, you and/or any Franchisee Owner shall be considered
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unique as to its facts and shall not be brought as a class action, and you or each Franchise Owner
waive any right to proceed against Franchisor by way of class action.
21.7. Waiver. Whenever this Agreement requires Franchisor prior approval or consent, you
shall make a timely written request therefore, and such approval must be obtained in writing
before you act on it. Franchisor makes no warranties or guaranties upon which you may rely, and
assumes no liability or obligation to you, by granting any waiver, approval, or consent to you, or
by reason of any neglect, delay, or denial of any request therefore. Any waiver granted by
Franchisor shall be without prejudice to any other rights Franchisor may have, will be subject to
continuing review by Franchisor, and may be revoked, in Franchisor sole discretion, at any time
and for any reason, effective upon delivery to you of 10 days prior written notice. Franchisor shall
not be deemed to have waived or impaired any right, power, or option reserved in this Agreement
(including the right to demand exact compliance with every term, condition, and covenant herein
or to declare any breach to be a default and to terminate this Agreement) by virtue of any custom
or practice of the parties, at variance with the terms hereof; any failure, refusal, or neglect of
Franchisor to exercise any right under this Agreement or to insist upon exact compliance with
Franchisor obligations hereunder (including any mandatory format, specification, standard,
method, or procedure prescribed by Franchisor); any waiver, forbearance, delay, failure, or
omission by Franchisor to exercise any right, power, or option, whether of the same, similar, or
different nature, with respect to franchisees for other Stores; or the acceptance by Franchisor of
any payments due from you after any breach of this Agreement.
21.8. MUST BRING CLAIMS WITHIN ONE YEAR. Any and all claims and actions arising out
of or relating to this Agreement, the relationship of Franchisee and Franchisor, or Franchisee’s
operation of the Store, brought by any party hereto against the other, shall be commenced within
one (1) year from the occurrence of the facts giving rise to such claim or action, or, it is expressly
acknowledged and agreed by all parties, such claim or action shall be irrevocably barred.
21.9. WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES. Franchisor and Franchisee hereby waive to the
fullest extent permitted by law any right to or claim of any punitive or exemplary damages against
the other, and agree that in the event of a dispute between them each shall be limited to the
recovery of any actual damages sustained by it.
21.10. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. Franchisor and Franchisee irrevocably waive trial by jury in
any action, proceeding, or counterclaim, whether at law or in equity, brought by either of them
against the other, whether or not there are other parties in such action or proceeding.
21.11. Payment of Legal Fees. Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor all damages, costs and
expenses (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees) that Franchisor incurs
subsequent to the termination or expiration of the franchise granted under this Agreement in:
(a) obtaining injunctive or other relief for the enforcement of any provisions of this Agreement
(including without limitation Sections 5.6, 7.1.1, 12, 13.4, 13.5, and 19.7 above); and/or
(b) successfully defending a claim that Franchisor defrauded Franchisee into signing this
Agreement, that the provisions of this Agreement are not fair, were not properly entered into,
and/or that the terms of this Agreement do not govern the parties’ relationship. Franchisee shall
also pay to Franchisor any legal fees, costs and expenses incurred to defend itself from any third
party who enjoins Franchisor in litigation arising solely out of actions taken or not taken by
Franchisee.
21.12. Notices and Payments.
21.12.1. Any and all notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be
in writing and shall be personally delivered, sent by certified mail, a nationally recognized
overnight delivery service, or by other means, including digital format delivery, which
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affords the sender evidence of delivery, or of rejected delivery, to the respective parties at
the addresses designated on the signature page of this Agreement, unless and until a
different address has been designated by written notice to the other party. Any notice by
a means that affords the sender evidence of delivery, or rejected delivery, shall be deemed
to have been given at the date and time of receipt or rejected delivery.
21.12.2. All payments and reports required by this Agreement shall be sent to
Franchisor’s address specified in this Agreement unless and until a different address has
been designated by written notice. No restrictive endorsement on any check or in any letter
or other communication accompanying any payment shall bind Franchisor or any of its
Affiliates, and acceptance of any such payment shall not constitute an accord and
satisfaction.
21.13. Cost of Enforcement. If Franchisor files a claim in a judicial or arbitration proceeding to
enforce any provisions of this Agreement and prevails in any such proceeding, you agree to
immediately reimburse Franchisor for all costs and expenses, including reasonable accounting,
expert witness and attorney’s fees. If Franchisor is required to retain legal counsel in connection
with your failure to comply with this Agreement, you shall reimburse Franchisor for any legal fees
incurred within 30 days following receipt of Franchisor invoice for such expenses.
21.14. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall bind
the parties hereto, their permitted successors and permitted assigns. This Agreement is fully
transferable by us, whether by operation of law or otherwise, without your consent and shall inure
to the benefit of any transferee or any other legal successor to our interest herein and shall not
be contestable by you.
21.15. Construction.
21.15.1. The language of this Agreement shall be construed according to its fair
meaning and not strictly against any party.
21.15.2. This Agreement and the exhibits referred to herein constitute the entire,
full, and complete agreement between you and Franchisor concerning the subject matter
hereof, and supersedes all prior agreements, no other representations having induced you
to execute this Agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that they are not relying
on anything other than the words of this Agreement in deciding whether to enter into this
Agreement. Nothing in the Agreement or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim
the representations we made in the franchise disclosure document.
21.15.3. Except for those permitted to be made unilaterally by Franchisor
hereunder, no amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on
either party unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed by their authorized
officers or agents in writing.
21.15.4. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to confer any rights or remedies
on any person or legal entity not a party hereto, with the express exception of Franchisor
Affiliates.
21.15.5. The headings of the sections are for convenience only and do not in any
way define, limit or construe the contents of such section.
21.15.6. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement may not be modified
except by written agreement signed by both parties and may be executed in several
counterparts and, if so executed, shall constitute one (1) agreement binding all parties
hereto and their respective heirs, successors and assigns.
21.15.7. Time is of the essence in this Agreement.
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21.15.8. Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, each portion, section,
part, term, and/or provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable; and if, for any
reason, any section, part, term, and/or provision herein is determined to be invalid and
contrary to, or in conflict with, any existing or future law or regulation by a court or agency
having valid jurisdiction, such shall not impair the operation of, or have any other effect
upon, such other portions, sections, parts, terms, and/or provisions of this Agreement as
may remain otherwise intelligible; and the latter shall continue to be given full force and
effect and bind the parties hereto; and said invalid portions, sections, parts, terms, and/or
provisions shall be deemed not to be a part of this Agreement.
21.15.9. Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, nothing in this
Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer upon any person or legal entity
other than Franchisee, Franchisor, and such of Franchisee’s and Franchisor’s respective
successors and assigns as may be contemplated (and, as to Franchisee, permitted) by
Section 20 above, any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement.
21.15.10.
You expressly agree to be bound by any promise or covenant
imposing the maximum duty permitted by law which is subsumed within the terms of any
provision hereof, as though it were separately articulated in and made a part of this
Agreement, that may result from striking from any of the provisions hereof any portion or
portions which a court may hold to be unenforceable in a final decision to which Franchisor
is a party, or from reducing the scope of any promise or covenant to the extent required to
comply with such a court order.
21.15.11.
All captions in this Agreement are intended solely for the
convenience of the parties, and none shall be deemed to affect the meaning or construction
of any provision hereof.
21.15.12.
All provisions of this Agreement which, by their terms or intent, are
designed to survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement, shall so survive the
expiration and/or termination of this Agreement.
21.16. Franchisee Information Disclosure Agreement. You and any Franchisee Owner agree
to execute and deliver to us, contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement, a
Franchise Information Disclosure Agreement in a form satisfactory to us, irrevocably authorizing
Franchisor to contact, collect and instruct the recipients to prepare and deliver to us, financial
information from various financial institutions, accountants, tax preparers, government entities or
other individuals or entities that we deem appropriate, from time to time.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hereby acknowledge having read this
Agreement, understands and consents to be bound by all of its terms, and agrees it shall become
effective as of the Effective Date.
Franchisee:

Marco’s Franchising, LLC
By:
Printed
Name:

Printed
Name:

Title:

Title:
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Address for Notices:

Address for Notices:

President
Marco's Franchising, LLC
5252 Monroe Street
Toledo, OH 43623
bstephens@marcos.com

Email:

With a copy delivered to:
By:
General Counsel
Marco's Franchising, LLC
5252 Monroe Street
Toledo, OH 43623
twatson@marcos.com

Printed
Name:
Title:
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MARCO’S FRANCHISING, LLC
[Remainder of Page is Blank]
Exhibits to Follow on Next Page
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EXHIBIT A TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
Area of Responsibility
The area of responsibility for the Store is described as follows:
(If no specific area is designated below by description or by map, the Area of Responsibility for
the Store shall be a circle that has its center at the front door of the Store and a radius of 1.5
miles).
21.16.1.

Marco’s Franchising, LLC

Franchisee:

By:
Printed
Name:

Printed
Name:

Title:

Title:
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MARCO’S FRANCHISING, LLC
MARCO’S FRANCHISING, LLC
EXHIBIT B TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgment
As an inducement to Marco’s Franchising, LLC (“Franchisor”) to execute the Franchise
Agreement between Franchisor and
(“Franchisee”),
dated
, 20____ (the “Agreement”), the undersigned, jointly and
severally, hereby unconditionally guarantee to Franchisor and Franchisor’s successors and
assigns that all of Franchisee’s monetary obligations under the Agreement will be punctually paid
and performed and that all monetary obligations will be punctually paid and performed.
Upon demand by Franchisor, the undersigned each hereby jointly and severally agree to
immediately make each payment required of Franchisee under the Agreement and waive any
right to require Franchisor to: (a) proceed against Franchisee for any payment required under the
Agreement; (b) proceed against or exhaust any security from Franchisee; (c) pursue or exhaust
any remedy, including any legal or equitable relief, against Franchisee; or (d) give notice of
demand for payment by Franchisee. Without affecting the obligations of the undersigned under
this Guarantee, Franchisor may, without notice to the undersigned, extend, modify, or release any
indebtedness or obligation of Franchisee, or settle, adjust, or compromise any claims against
Franchisee, and the undersigned each hereby jointly and severally waive notice of same and
agree to remain and be bound by any and all such amendments and changes to the Agreement.
The undersigned each hereby jointly and severally agree to defend, indemnify and hold
Franchisor harmless against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses
(including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, reasonable costs of financial and other
investigation, court costs, and fees and expenses) resulting from, consisting of, or arising out of
or in connection with any failure by Franchisee to perform any obligation of Franchisee under the
Agreement, any amendment, renewal or extension thereto, or any other agreement executed by
Franchisee referred to therein.
The undersigned each hereby jointly and severally acknowledge and expressly agree to
be individually bound by all of the covenants contained in Sections 5.6, 7.1.1, 12, 13.4, 13.5, and
19.7 of the Agreement, and acknowledge and agree that this Guarantee does not grant the
undersigned any right to use the “Marco’s” marks or system licensed to Franchisee under the
Agreement.
This Guarantee shall terminate upon the termination or expiration of the Agreement,
except that all obligations and liabilities of the undersigned which arose from events which
occurred on or before the effective date of such termination shall remain in full force and effect
until satisfied or discharged by the undersigned, and all covenants which by their terms continue
in force after the expiration or termination of the Agreement shall remain in force according to
their terms. Upon the death of an individual guarantor, the estate of such guarantor shall be
bound by this Guarantee, but only for defaults and obligations hereunder existing at the time of
death; and the obligations of the other guarantors will continue in full force and effect.
Unless specifically stated otherwise, the terms used in this Guarantee shall have the same
meaning as in the Agreement, and shall be interpreted and construed exclusively in accordance
with the laws of the State of Ohio (without regard, and without giving effect, to Ohio choice of law
provisions) as well as the other provisions in Section 21 of the Agreement (including but not limited
to the waiver of jury trial, waiver of punitive damages, agreement to bring claims within one year,
and agreement not to engage in class action litigation against one another).
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has signed this Guarantee as of the
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date of the Agreement.
GUARANTOR(S)
Signed:
(In his/her individual capacity)
Printed Name:
Home Address:

Tax ID / Social Security No.
Signed:
(In his/her individual capacity)
Printed Name:
Home Address:

Tax ID / Social Security No.

Signed:
(In his/her individual capacity)
Printed Name:
Home Address:

Tax ID / Social Security No.
Signed:
(In his/her individual capacity)
Printed Name:
Home Address:
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Tax ID / Social Security No.
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